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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Project 2021-002978CUA / Trader Joe"s/ 555 Fulton
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 12:17:08 PM

 
 
Jonas P Ionin
Director of Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7589 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 
 

From: HVSafe <info@hvsafe.com>
Reply-To: HVSafe <info@hvsafe.com>
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 at 7:15 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>, "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)"
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: "Preston, Dean (BOS)" <dean.preston@sfgov.org>, "Smeallie, Kyle (BOS)"
<kyle.smeallie@sfgov.org>, Richard Johnson <rlj415@sbcglobal.net>, "info@hvsafe.com"
<info@hvsafe.com>
Subject: Project 2021-002978CUA / Trader Joe's/ 555 Fulton
 

 

Attention San Francisco Planning Commission:
 
Hayes Valley is plagued with reckless driving and traffic congestion. SFMTA
continues to minimize parking options. Meanwhile, there is no concrete plan to
restore service for the 21 Hayes.
 
There are serious concerns of the impacts of a Trader Joe’s in the area.  At the
Town Hall community meeting, Trader Joe’s could not clearly answer the proposed
solutions to the expected traffic mitigation issues. Meanwhile in the Planning
Commission Draft Motion, we were astounded to read that TJ’s “is not anticipated
to increase the volume of neighborhood traffic”. Our request for traffic studies (in
order to ensure that the Market Octavia Community Vision Zero plan is upheld) have
gone unanswered. For this reason alone, there is merit to give pause for this
proposal. 
 
Notably, the same group in support of this proposal is responsible for the CBA.
We’ve heard from small independent business members that the Hayes Valley
Neighborhood Association (HVNA) dismissed concerns of a chain store of this size
coming into the neighborhood. We take issue with the HVNA presenting its view as
one representing the broader view of the community. 

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
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We are concerned that the addition of a Trader Joe’s will profoundly alter the
business landscape of Hayes Valley. It’s presence is broadly perceived to be
detrimental to our local entrepreneurs and small store operators.
 
There is an opportunity, after all the starts and stops plaguing the 555 Fulton
project, including the Mohammed Nuru scandal, to reset and fulfill this vacancy
with a long-term tenant that aligns with the vision and character of our unique
neighborhood. This area has undergone significant change after the Central
Freeway was brought down, but it has fallen short of the equitable benefit
promised to the community. Returning to our creative and social roots as we
recover from the pandemic relies on effective enforcement of the Retail Formula
Ban.
 
We ask you to confront the negative impacts of traffic and affordability for
residents and businesses by reconsidering the approval of a Trader Joe’s or any
other chain in Hayes Valley. 
 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to be heard.
Mich R
Richard Johnson
HVSafe
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Merlone, Audrey (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: The Proposed Ordinance for Large Residence Developments
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 12:16:27 PM
Attachments: SFLUC"s Support of Ordinance for Large Residence Developments.pdf

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
Expanded in-person services at the Permit Center at 49 South Van Ness Avenue are
available. Most other San Francisco Planning functions are being conducted remotely. Our
staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are
convening remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our
services here. 
 

From: info@sfluc.org <info@sfluc.org> 
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2021 12:04 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: The Proposed Ordinance for Large Residence Developments
 

 

Mr. Ionin,
 
Please see the attached letter on behalf of the San Francisco Land Use Coalition in support of
Supervisor Mandelman's ordinance for Large Residence Developments.  My apology but I
forgot to include you when we first sent this letter to the Commission and the Board of
Supervisors.
 
Sincerely,
 
Ozzie Rohm
For the San Francisco Land Use Coalition

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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July 20, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Support of the Proposed Ordinance for Large Residence Developments 
 
President Koppel  
Vice President Moore 
Members of the San Francisco Planning Commission 
 
We believe Supervisor Mandelman's proposed Ordinance requiring Conditional Use Authorization for 
certain large residences (Case Number 2021-001791PCA [Board File No. 210116]) is an important step 
in the right direction, needed to rein in out-of-scale homes in RH neighborhoods.   
 
For years, an unending tide of ever-larger, increasingly unaffordable giant houses, inaccessible to all but 
the wealthiest, has been sweeping across many neighborhoods across San Francisco.   Benefits 
continue to accrue to developers, certain architects who cater to this market, and those with plenty of 
capital.  However, too many families who could benefit from access to relatively affordable existing 
housing, or smaller units in multi-family buildings, are simply left behind.   
 
The Ordinance creates an appropriate set of incentives to steer development toward more reasonably 
sized new family housing and toward greater density in lieu of simply larger houses.    
 
We expect that there will be much pushback to this proposal and many amendments proposed.  Some of 
the amendments you will see will have the effect of gutting the intent and purpose of the legislation. 
 
We hope that you will keep in mind the goals of the Ordinance as you consider it and potential 
amendments.  We also hope that you will consider a range of ideas that could strengthen the Ordinance, 
including consideration of quantitative differences in the trigger for a CUA review in different parts of the 
City or consideration of more granular limits such as the relative increase over the average Floor Area 
Ratio of nearby or adjacent homes. 
 
In addition, we would be opposed to any amendment such as the one proposed by the Planning 
Department that would nullify the CUA requirement for homes larger than 2500 square feet if the 
development involves additional units.  Such amendment would alter the Ordinance's strong focus on 
overly large single-family homes with sham units that will never go on the market for sale or rental and 
that, we're emphatically against. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
San Francisco Land Use Coalition 
 
Jerry Dratler – D2, the Richmond District 
Stephanie Peek – D2, the Richmond District 
Maurice Franco – D2, the Marina 
Kathleen Courtney – D3, Russian Hill 
Chris Bigelow – D3, Russian Hill 
Kathy Howard – D4, Outer Sunset 
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Erica Zweig – D4, Outer Sunset 
Jeffrey Rigo – D4, Outer Sunset 
Ken Rackow – D4, Outer Sunset 
Tes Welborn – D5, Haight Ashbury 
Bruce Wolfe – D5, Haight Ashbury 
Marlayne Morgan – D5, Cathedral Hill 
George Wooding – D7, Midtown Terrace 
Karen Wood – D7, Miraloma Park 
Karen Breslin – D7, Miraloma Park 
Katherin Petrin – D7 
Bruce Bowen – D8, Dolores Heights  
Junona Jonas – D8, Dolores Heights 
Gary Weiss – D8, Corbett Heights 
Matt McCabe – D8, Noe Valley 
Ozzie Rohm – D8, Noe Valley 
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Statement on Large Residence Ordinance
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 12:15:33 PM

 
 
 
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
 

From: Thomas Schuttish <schuttishtr@sbcglobal.net> 
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2021 12:10 PM
To: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Kathrin Moore <mooreurban@aol.com>; Diamond,
Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial,
Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Cc: Merlone, Audrey (CPC) <audrey.merlone@sfgov.org>; Bintliff, Jacob (BOS)
<jacob.bintliff@sfgov.org>; Mandelman, Rafael (BOS) <rafael.mandelman@sfgov.org>; Hillis, Rich
(CPC) <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>; Watty, Elizabeth (CPC) <elizabeth.watty@sfgov.org>; Starr, Aaron
(CPC) <aaron.starr@sfgov.org>; Hepner, Lee (BOS) <lee.hepner@sfgov.org>; Sanchez, Scott (CPC)
<scott.sanchez@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Ionin,
Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: Statement on Large Residence Ordinance
 

 

Dear Commissioners:
Sorry for the late comments but I really had to think about this.
My overarching thought about this legislation is that it might not have been necessary if the Section
317 Demolition Calculations had been adjusted a minimum of two times since 2009 as intended
when written and approved.  
I put this request for this kind of two-time adjustment in a letter to the Commission on June 10,
2019, but I never received a response.
Putting that aside for a minute here is what I think about this legislation and what I hope to say when
I call in if I have enough time to speak on the phone:
 
The Commission should approve this legislation with Staff Recommendations #2, #4, and #5.
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http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
https://sfplanning.org/staff-directory
https://sfplanning.org/node/1978
https://sfplanning.org/covid-19


Staff Recommendation #2 makes sense as 20% increase for homes already over 2,500 feet seems
fair.
Staff Recommendation #4 is fine, but curb cuts should be allowed to be maintained as the MTA
already allows homeowners to park in their own driveway as long as they do not block the sidewalk…
and you don’t need to have the parking permit to do that.  This could solve the “parking problem”
that always comes up with neighbors and would align with the recent changes in the Code regarding
parking requirements.
Staff Recommendation #5 to exempt the SUDs is logical.
 
The Commission should not accept Staff Recommendations #1 and #3 unless the Demo Calcs are
adjusted per my June 10, 2019 letter.
Staff Recommendation #1 will only work as intended if the Demolition Calculations are adjusted.  
People that speculate don’t care how much of a house gets demolished.  People that want to live in
their homes want to retain as much of their home as possible while expanding to meet their needs.
 Large speculative homes will continue to sell as single family homes even with a second unit. 
Staff Recommendation #3 is defied by the example of 20 Raycliff Terrace and the Campbell and
Wong home in Glen Park.  Maybe these are the only ones that slipped through, but again unless the
Demo Calcs are adjusted, these Historic homes should be covered by this Ordinance. 
 
Please discuss adding a Finding from the Housing Element, Objective 3, Policy 3.4 which seems to
align with the intent of this Ordinance and reads:  
“Preserve  'naturally affordable’  housing types, such as smaller older ownership units.”
 
Thank you and I want to thank in writing, Ms. Merlone for her excellent work and her
professionalism, Mr. Bintliff for his excellent work and perseverance and I want to acknowledge Ms.
Watty and Mr. Hepner for laying some of the ground work for this with their previous efforts going
back to 2016 through 2019.
 
But again I just want to say, please adjust the Demo Calcs as the Commission is empowered to do
per Section 317 (b) (2) (D) and please do ask the City Attorneys if the Commission can adjust them
twice per my June 2019 letter.
 
Sincerely,
Georgia Schuttish
 
 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES SAN FRANCISCO IS IMPLEMENTING A

SIGNIFICANT EXPANSION OF TREATMENT BEDS FOR PEOPLE SUFFERING FROM MENTAL HEALTH AND
SUBSTANCE USE DISORDERS

Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 12:14:42 PM
Attachments: 07.22.21 Treatment Bed Expansion.pdf

 
 
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
 
 

From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 at 10:56 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES SAN FRANCISCO IS
IMPLEMENTING A SIGNIFICANT EXPANSION OF TREATMENT BEDS FOR PEOPLE SUFFERING
FROM MENTAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE DISORDERS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, July 22, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES SAN FRANCISCO IS

IMPLEMENTING A SIGNIFICANT EXPANSION OF
TREATMENT BEDS FOR PEOPLE SUFFERING FROM

MENTAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE DISORDERS
As part of the Mayor’s budget investments, San Francisco will create over 400 new treatment

beds, a 20% expansion
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and the San Francisco Department of Public
Health (DPH) today announced that San Francisco is implementing the expansion of over 400
new treatment beds for people experiencing mental health and substance use issues. This
expansion of treatment beds will provide more options for people in need to receive
appropriate services that match their situation, while also providing San Francisco’s new
Street Response Teams with additional placements for clients they interact with.
 
The expansion plans represent a 20% increase in the City’s residential treatment capacity. In
2021 alone, San Francisco will see 140 new beds opened, with significant progress made
toward filling the gaps in critical needs areas identified in the 2020 Behavioral Health Bed
Optimization Report. Since Mayor Breed took office, San Francisco has added more than 100
treatment beds across San Francisco’s system of care.
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


expansion of treatment beds will provide more options for people in need to receive appropriate 


services that match their situation, while also providing San Francisco’s new Street Response 


Teams with additional placements for clients they interact with.  


 


The expansion plans represent a 20% increase in the City’s residential treatment capacity. In 


2021 alone, San Francisco will see 140 new beds opened, with significant progress made toward 


filling the gaps in critical needs areas identified in the 2020 Behavioral Health Bed Optimization 


Report. Since Mayor Breed took office, San Francisco has added more than 100 treatment beds 


across San Francisco’s system of care. 


 


“This is an unprecedented expansion of our system of care and treatment for people with mental 


health and substance use disorders,” said Mayor London N. Breed. “We are responding with the 


urgency that this crisis deserves, while saving millions of dollars by removing bottlenecks in the 


system so that people can move into lower, less costly levels of care when they are ready. Each 


one of these placement facilities takes a tremendous amount of time and effort to make happen, 


but we should see the benefits for years to come.”  


 


These new treatment beds will allow San Francisco’s new street outreach teams, including the 


Street Crisis Response Teams and the Street Wellness Response Teams, with additional 


placements that can serve the clients they interact with. There are now five Street Crisis 


Response Teams operating in San Francisco, responding to about 500 calls monthly. Mayor 


Breed included funding in this year’s budget for five Street Wellness Response Teams, which 


will begin to respond to “wellness check” calls, which total roughly 17,000 annually. 


 


The expansion effort is guided by recommendations from the Behavioral Health Bed 


Optimization Project report in 2020, as well as the Mental Health SF legislation in 2019, and 


utilization data that identified the types of treatment in highest need. These new beds and 
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facilities are at various stages of development, with some ready for opening in 2021 and others in 


stages of planning and design.  


 


“Coming out of COVID, our biggest public health crisis is the thousands of people living on our 


streets with untreated mental health and substance use disorders. Getting these sick people off 


the streets and into appropriate treatment beds will save lives and make San Francisco a safer and 


healthier place for all,” said Supervisor Rafael Mandelman. 


 


“People who are mentally ill and addicted to drugs need immediate access to treatment and care.  


Expanding our city's treatment beds and Street Crisis Response teams through Mental Health SF 


will better ensure services are available, accessible and effective,” said Supervisor Matt Haney. 


“Fully funding Mental Health SF was a top priority for us during this year's budget process, and 


we worked together to expand much needed treatment beds, care coordination, and street 


intervention. These treatment beds cannot come soon enough.” 


 


“This expansion of available treatment facilities is an essential part of fully implementing Mental 


Health SF. We must have places for people in crisis to get the care they desperately need and to 


stop the revolving door that returns people to the streets,” said Supervisor Hillary Ronen. 


 


“We are not only improving patient flow so that individuals receive timely care and treatment, 


we are also developing innovative models of care to target the unique needs we see in the 


community,” said Dr. Naveena Bobba, Deputy Director of Health. “The investments we are 


making in the expansion in our residential care and treatment system will be critical to help us 


meet our goal for rapid access to recovery-oriented care and treatment.”  


 


Several innovative types of treatment and care programs designed to meet the diverse needs of 


people with behavioral health challenges are being developed, including: 


• The 20-bed SOMA RISE Center will open in the fall of 2021 as part of the City's 


response to the drug overdose crisis. It will offer a safe indoor space for people who have 


used methamphetamine or other substances, monitor their health while intoxicated, and 


connecting them with other health and social services. 


• A 10-bed residential treatment facility specifically designed to treat young adults with 


serious mental health and/or substance use disorders is under design. 


• Neighborhood-based psychiatric respite facilities for people experiencing homelessness 


to shelter in a safe, supportive environment where they can also access ongoing care. 


 


Meanwhile, as board-and-care homes shutter due to the escalating costs of housing, DPH is also 


in active negotiations to acquire facilities to accommodate at least 73 residential care beds to 


support people with mental health issues who require assistance with activities of daily living. 


Some of these will support the elderly. Critically, DPH is also creating 140 new beds to support 


people leaving residential substance use treatment – a last step in skill-building before 


independent housing.  
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In May, DPH alongside community partners PRC/Baker Places, the Salvation Army, and 


Tipping Point Community opened Hummingbird Valencia, a psychiatric respite facility for 


people experiencing homelessness in the Mission and Castro neighborhoods. It is now operating 


at full capacity with 30 overnight beds and 20 daytime drop-in spaces.  


 


For the latest update on San Francisco’s residential care and treatment expansion, go to: 


sf.gov/residential-care-and-treatment. 


 


San Francisco has also made available a daily update of available mental health and substance 


use treatment beds at: FindTreatmentSF.org.  


 


### 







 
“This is an unprecedented expansion of our system of care and treatment for people with
mental health and substance use disorders,” said Mayor London N. Breed. “We are responding
with the urgency that this crisis deserves, while saving millions of dollars by removing
bottlenecks in the system so that people can move into lower, less costly levels of care when
they are ready. Each one of these placement facilities takes a tremendous amount of time and
effort to make happen, but we should see the benefits for years to come.”
 
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
facilities are at various stages of development, with some ready for opening in 2021 and others
in stages of planning and design.
 
“Coming out of COVID, our biggest public health crisis is the thousands of people living on
our streets with untreated mental health and substance use disorders. Getting these sick people
off the streets and into appropriate treatment beds will save lives and make San Francisco a
safer and healthier place for all,” said Supervisor Rafael Mandelman.
 
“People who are mentally ill and addicted to drugs need immediate access to treatment and
care.  Expanding our city's treatment beds and Street Crisis Response teams through Mental
Health SF will better ensure services are available, accessible and effective,” said Supervisor
Matt Haney. “Fully funding Mental Health SF was a top priority for us during this year's
budget process, and we worked together to expand much needed treatment beds, care
coordination, and street intervention. These treatment beds cannot come soon enough.”
 
“This expansion of available treatment facilities is an essential part of fully implementing
Mental Health SF. We must have places for people in crisis to get the care they desperately
need and to stop the revolving door that returns people to the streets,” said Supervisor Hillary
Ronen.
 
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

The 20-bed SOMA RISE Center will open in the fall of 2021 as part of the City's
response to the drug overdose crisis. It will offer a safe indoor space for people who
have used methamphetamine or other substances, monitor their health while intoxicated,
and connecting them with other health and social services.



A 10-bed residential treatment facility specifically designed to treat young adults with
serious mental health and/or substance use disorders is under design.
Neighborhood-based psychiatric respite facilities for people experiencing homelessness
to shelter in a safe, supportive environment where they can also access ongoing care.

 
Meanwhile, as board-and-care homes shutter due to the escalating costs of housing, DPH is
also in active negotiations to acquire facilities to accommodate at least 73 residential care beds
to support people with mental health issues who require assistance with activities of daily
living. Some of these will support the elderly. Critically, DPH is also creating 140 new beds to
support people leaving residential substance use treatment – a last step in skill-building before
independent housing.
 
In May, DPH alongside community partners PRC/Baker Places, the Salvation Army, and
Tipping Point Community opened Hummingbird Valencia, a psychiatric respite facility for
people experiencing homelessness in the Mission and Castro neighborhoods. It is now
operating at full capacity with 30 overnight beds and 20 daytime drop-in spaces.
 
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
 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: The Proposed Ordinance for Large Residence Developments
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 12:13:12 PM
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
 
 

From: "info@sfluc.org" <info@sfluc.org>
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 at 12:04 PM
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
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mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
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
Subject: FW: Public Comment: Letter to Planning Commission Hearing RE: 2021-001791PCA [BOS#210116]
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 10:47:26 AM
Attachments: 2021-07-22 Letter to Planning Commission Hearing 210116.pdf

 
 
 
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
 

From: Andreas Montes <andreas.montes5@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2021 1:32 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Merlone, Audrey (CPC)
<audrey.merlone@sfgov.org>
Subject: Public Comment: Letter to Planning Commission Hearing RE: 2021-001791PCA
[BOS#210116]
 

 

Dear Commissions Secretary,
Please see attached for my letter for public comment to the Planning Commission Hearing for
today.  My comment is on Supervisor Mandelman’s Large Residence Development Legislation SFBOS
FILE #210116.
I am also copy-pasting it below just in case there are any technical difficulties.
 
Thank you,
Andreas Montes
andreas.montes5@gmail.com
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
July 22, 2021
I am a San Francisco resident and licensed civil engineer. I work at SEMCO Engineering, a
local firm, where I provide engineering services for residential projects in the city, many of
which are modest single family additions for large and multi-generational families that would
be severely hurt by this legislation.  I am against most of this new legislation.  It is not fair to
require homeowners to acquire Conditional Use Authorization (CUA) on proposed additions
that already meet every planning code and building code.  In this letter I will focus on the
macro effects of adding more regulation and delays to housing production. 

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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July 22, 2021 
 
RE:  Supervisor Mandelman’s Large Residence Development Legislation 


SFBOS FILE #210116 
 
I am a San Francisco resident and licensed civil engineer. I work at SEMCO Engineering, a local firm, 
where I provide engineering services for residential projects in the city, many of which are modest single 
family additions for large and multi-generational families that would be severely hurt by this legislation.  I 
am against most of this new legislation.  It is not fair to require homeowners to acquire Conditional Use 
Authorization (CUA) on proposed additions that already meet every planning code and building code.  In 
this letter I will focus on the macro effects of adding more regulation and delays to housing production.  


I understand the stated goal of this legislation is to decrease cost of housing in San Francisco, but to me 
it’s obvious that this legislation will actually increase the cost of housing.  The increase will come from the 
additional backlog of projects that would need to go through CUA via the Planning Commission, which 
already has a large backlog to review applications for projects that would add housing to the city.  If any 
new legislation adds to the long list of pending CUA’s, such legislation would postpone other small-unit 
housing projects that would add supply.   San Francisco has exhibited increasing housing costs partly 
due to its history of preventing and delaying projects through lengthy permit processes. The longer it 
takes to get a permit, the more expensive a project becomes.  Due to financial hurdles associated with 
holding a property for the length of a permit process, the mere concept of some residential projects 
are dead on arrival. 


This legislation would result in an increased volume of projects that go through the Planning 
Commission, which would in turn raise the cost of new housing projects, slow the production of housing, 
and limit housing supply.   


We should wonder how much different today’s housing supply would be if housing production in the 
previous decades was not constrained by strict zoning laws, slow permit process, and Discretionary 
Reviews.  If our laws were more catered to housing production, we would have more housing supply, 
lower costs, and a healthier city. For decades, we have allowed the noisy complaints of a few neighbors 
in the vicinity of residential projects to deter us from adding to the housing stock. Over time, the effect 
has been brutal on affordability, and has punished recent and future generations of San Franciscans.  


Now, in light of that reflection, we should wonder what our city will look like 30 years from now if we 
continue with our current legislative style of adding more and more regulations.  We have the opportunity 
to change our legislative style, and if we don’t, our future generations will curse us for not leaving them 
with enough housing.   


Cities change, and we cannot be in denial of that.  Existing property owners have benefited from 
increased property values thanks to lack of housing development, and this is at the cost of young adults 
who are struggling to pay the rent, let alone save up for a down payment.  We need lots of new units, of 
many sizes; we cannot rely on new ADU’s to meet the needs of a growing population.  We must be 
bolder.  Let us not focus on deterring additions that would push a unit over a mere 2500 square feet 
threshold.  Let us focus on ramping up dense housing production by changing planning codes, changing 
zoning laws, and bold strategies to achieve shorter permit processes.  







With regards to the aforementioned proposed legislation, I recommend the following: 


• The legislation should be revised to not affect ANY applications that would result in a unit 
with a gross floor area of less than 4,000 square feet.  


• Eliminate RH-1 and RH-2 zoning. 


• For a “qualifying development” (defined below), prohibit rejection of a design by the 
Planning Department, Planning Commission, and the public based on their critique of the 
proposed structure’s “scale” in proportion to the size of neighboring structures.  Also 
prohibit the rejection of a design based on perceived lack of parking, and prohibit 
rejection of a design based on shade cast on neighboring residential properties.   


o A “qualifying development” is one that is located in a public transit corridor, and increases 
housing density, and does not reduce the average front yard setback of neighboring 
properties. 


o A “qualifying development” shall be exempt from the Discretionary Review (DR) process if 
it meets all planning code requirements. The breaking of a Planning Department “policy” is 
not grounds for DR.  To ensure the basis of a complaint is worthy of DR, the DR shall be 
requested to the Planning Department who can informatively decide which complaints are 
granted DR and subsequently sent to the Planning Commission. 


o All parties have a right to free speech in hearings, however such critiques outlined above 
cannot be used as a basis for deciding to reject such a design.  If and when a party voices 
such a critique, the leader of the hearing shall kindly remind them and the audience of this 
rule and its intent. 


o The intent for this rule is to make up for the lack of housing production in recent decades.  
We need bold new housing policies to increase the health of future generations, and this 
policy would do so by increasing density, in turn reducing cost of housing in the long-term, 
and reducing carbon footprint by increasing housing in public transit corridors.   We 
already have a precedent in San Francisco that a proposed project cannot be rejected on 
the basis that it blocks a neighbor’s view.  We need to expand on that precedent.  


 


Sincerely, 


Andreas Montes, P.E. 
San Francisco Resident 
Civil Engineer 







I understand the stated goal of this legislation is to decrease cost of housing in San
Francisco, but to me it’s obvious that this legislation will actually increase the cost of
housing.  The increase will come from the additional backlog of projects that would need to
go through CUA via the Planning Commission, which already has a large backlog to review
applications for projects that would add housing to the city.  If any new legislation adds to
the long list of pending CUA’s, such legislation would postpone other small-unit housing
projects that would add supply.   San Francisco has exhibited increasing housing costs
partly due to its history of preventing and delaying projects through lengthy permit
processes. The longer it takes to get a permit, the more expensive a project becomes.  Due
to financial hurdles associated with holding a property for the length of a permit process,
the mere concept of some residential projects are dead on arrival.

This legislation would result in an increased volume of projects that go through the Planning
Commission, which would in turn raise the cost of new housing projects, slow the
production of housing, and limit housing supply.  

We should wonder how much different today’s housing supply would be if housing
production in the previous decades was not constrained by strict zoning laws, slow permit
process, and Discretionary Reviews.  If our laws were more catered to housing production,
we would have more housing supply, lower costs, and a healthier city. For decades, we
have allowed the noisy complaints of a few neighbors in the vicinity of residential projects to
deter us from adding to the housing stock. Over time, the effect has been brutal on
affordability, and has punished recent and future generations of San Franciscans. 

Now, in light of that reflection, we should wonder what our city will look like 30 years from
now if we continue with our current legislative style of adding more and more regulations. 
We have the opportunity to change our legislative style, and if we don’t, our future
generations will curse us for not leaving them with enough housing.  

Cities change, and we cannot be in denial of that.  Existing property owners have benefited
from increased property values thanks to lack of housing development, and this is at the
cost of young adults who are struggling to pay the rent, let alone save up for a down
payment.  We need lots of new units, of many sizes; we cannot rely on new ADU’s to meet
the needs of a growing population.  We must be bolder.  Let us not focus on deterring
additions that would push a unit over a mere 2500 square feet threshold.  Let us focus on
ramping up dense housing production by changing planning codes, changing zoning laws,
and bold strategies to achieve shorter permit processes.

With regards to the aforementioned proposed legislation, I recommend the following:

·       The legislation should be revised to not affect ANY applications that would
result in a unit with a gross floor area of less than 4,000 square feet.

·       Eliminate RH-1 and RH-2 zoning.

·       For a “qualifying development” (defined below), prohibit rejection of a
design by the Planning Department, Planning Commission, and the public
based on their critique of the proposed structure’s “scale” in proportion to the
size of neighboring structures.  Also prohibit the rejection of a design based
on perceived lack of parking, and prohibit rejection of a design based on
shade cast on neighboring residential properties. 



o   A “qualifying development” is one that is located in a public transit corridor,
and increases housing density, and does not reduce the average front yard
setback of neighboring properties.

o   A “qualifying development” shall be exempt from the Discretionary Review
(DR) process if it meets all planning code requirements. The breaking of a
Planning Department “policy” is not grounds for DR.  To ensure the basis of
a complaint is worthy of DR, the DR shall be requested to the Planning
Department who can informatively decide which complaints are granted DR
and subsequently sent to the Planning Commission.

o   All parties have a right to free speech in hearings, however such critiques
outlined above cannot be used as a basis for deciding to reject such a
design.  If and when a party voices such a critique, the leader of the hearing
shall kindly remind them and the audience of this rule and its intent.

o   The intent for this rule is to make up for the lack of housing production in
recent decades.  We need bold new housing policies to increase the health
of future generations, and this policy would do so by increasing density, in
turn reducing cost of housing in the long-term, and reducing carbon footprint
by increasing housing in public transit corridors.   We already have a
precedent in San Francisco that a proposed project cannot be rejected on
the basis that it blocks a neighbor’s view.  We need to expand on that
precedent.

 
Sincerely,
Andreas Montes, P.E.
San Francisco Resident
Civil Engineer
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Public Public Comment Record No.: 2017-014833PRJ
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 10:46:11 AM

 
 
 
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
 

From: Rudy Gonzalez <rudy@sfbctc.org> 
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2021 10:45 AM
To: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>;
Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>;
Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>;
Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Cc: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Foster, Nicholas (CPC)
<nicholas.foster@sfgov.org>; Kim Tavaglione <kim@sflaborcouncil.org>; Larry Mazzola - UA Local 38
<larryjr@ualocal38.org>; Mike Casey (mcasey@unitehere2.org) <mcasey@unitehere2.org>
Subject: Re: Public Public Comment Record No.: 2017-014833PRJ
 

 

469 Stevenson update 
 
Dear Commissioners and Staff, 
 
I write to inform you of a recent development on the 469 Stevenson matter. Since my
last email, rigorous and good-faith negotiations transpired resulting in mutually
agreeable commitments to the local workforce. This is significant for the SFBCTC,
especially those workers who are currently without employment and nearing a cliff with
respect to their healthcare coverage. 
 
We fully appreciate and respect the process that is underway with community
representatives and strongly encourage the parties to stay at the table and come to a
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resolution. I believe the affordability of the project remains an outstanding concern and
we support the push for achieving as much affordability as is truly feasible. 
 
It is my hope you will note the significant commitment made to the local workforce to
enter into a binding Project Labor Agreement, aka Community Workforce Agreement.
This guarantees local apprentices, labor piece, efficiency, and high standards on the
project, among other important commitments.
 
Also, it should be noted we agreed to a new community benefit which includes
partnering skilled and trained volunteers on the TI work that will be associated with the
community space the developer is donating. 
 
The SFBCTC issues around conventional construction and workforce commitments have
been cured and we look forward to hearing the outcome of the outstanding community
concerns. Thanks for your time and consideration of this project.
 
Respectfully,
 
Rudy Gonzalez
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

RUDY GONZALEZ
Secretary Treasurer

 
www.sfbuildingtradescouncil.org | rudy@sfbuildingtradescouncil.org

Cell: 415/794-0377 |  Office: 415/345-9333 |  Fax: 415/345-9449
1188 Franklin St., Suite 203, SF, CA 94109
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Please update your contact information as my role has changed. I have now joined the SF Building &

Construction Trades Council.
Scheduling requests: Sandra Duarte.  

 
Also, join me in welcoming Kim Tavaglione as the SFLC Interim Executive Director.

Scheduling requests for her office should be made through Emily Nelson.
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From: Rudy Gonzalez
Sent: Thursday, June 24, 2021 12:02:09 PM
To: joel.koppel@sfgov.org <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; kathrin.moore@sfgov.org
<kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; deland.chan@sfgov.org <deland.chan@sfgov.org>;
sue.diamond@sfgov.org <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; frank.fung@sfgov.org <frank.fung@sfgov.org>;
theresa.imperial@sfgov.org <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; rachael.tanner@sfgov.org
<rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Cc: commissions.secretary@sfgov.org <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>;
nicholas.foster@sfgov.org <nicholas.foster@sfgov.org>; Kim Tavaglione <kim@sflaborcouncil.org>;
Larry Mazzola - UA Local 38 <larryjr@ualocal38.org>; Mike Casey (mcasey@unitehere2.org)
<mcasey@unitehere2.org>
Subject: Public Public Comment Record No.: 2017-014833PRJ
 
Honorable Planning Commissioners,
 
We are writing to you on behalf of the affiliated unions of the San Francisco Building &
Construction Trades Council & the San Francisco Labor Council. Our Councils
OPPOSE the proposed project at 469 Stevenson Street. The Developer has made no
commitments to the community workforce, including but not limited to the utilization of
high road training partnerships, also known as apprenticeship, that put our local residents
to work. 
 
Our apprenticeship programs offer opportunity to disadvantaged communities, including
but not limited to women, victims of domestic violence, foster youth, not to mention the
critical work we do to help transition US Military servicewomen and servicemen to
construction careers. These apprenticeship programs are state certified and provide real
career paths to middle class, family sustaining, jobs with health care and retirement
security. No commitments have been made to put apprentices to work on this project.
 
The public benefit when developers utilize high-road employers. Those employers work
with organized labor and put to work skilled and trained workers. Those workers have a
voice on the job to address safety and working conditions through collective bargaining
and often these arrangements are covered in binding community workforce agreements,
also known as project labor agreements. These agreements promote labor peace and
workplace safety, in addition to setting forth goals for minority and local business
participation. No such agreement has been offered or made on this project.
 
As an aside, the project sponsor planned to use a non-traditional means to construct the
site. This “factory” built model erodes and undermines the objectives of our local
workforce policy by outsourcing otherwise good local jobs. It also works against the
efforts to lift up our communities through legitimate workforce and apprenticeship
readiness training, such as the City Build Academy run by the Mayor’s OEWD. This
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model is volatile from a business standpoint and the fact is the original supplier of this
particular project has gone out of business. Worse yet is the lack of safety and ability to
inspect the units once in our jurisdiction. Organized labor OPPOSSES this model of
outsourcing local jobs and here you will see a recent resolution outlining our unified
position: https://sflaborcouncil.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/06-07-
21ResReFBH.pdf 
 
Finally, it should be noted that unemployment among our union construction crafts is
now hovering at around 1,500 workers. While some developers will see that as an
opportunity to roll back standards and subject the construction industry to the unsafe and
unfair conditions of the past, our Councils cannot allow it. We simply cannot afford to
promote an unjust economic recovery and roll back decades of progress for workers in
San Francisco by letting low-road projects see the light of day. We urge the Commission
to OPPOSE this project and at a minimum, continue the matter until such time the
community can address important workforce standards for the benefit of the public at
large.
 
Thank you for your time and consideration.
 
 
Sincerely,
 
Rudy Gonzalez, Secretary-Treasurer, SF Building & Construction Trades Council, AFL-
CIO
Kimberly Tavaglione, Executive Director, SF Labor Council, AFL-CIO
 
 
 

 
 

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
To: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 10:30:56 AM

Jonas P Ionin
Director of Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7589 | www.sfplanning.org <http://www.sfplanning.org/>
San Francisco Property Information Map <https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/>

﻿On 7/22/21, 10:30 AM, "Jon Liggett" <jusayawn@icloud.com> wrote:

    This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

    Dear Commissioners, <BR><BR>The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I
am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure.<BR><BR>After waiting years to
present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents
who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building
have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any
additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their
condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for
the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset
and much-needed middle-income housing. <BR><BR>The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any
issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form
and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Jardines, Esmeralda (CPC)
Subject: FW: Notice of public hearing 1500-1528 15th St
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 10:37:25 AM
Attachments: 1500 South Van Ness Project memorandum.docx

 
 
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
 
 

From: "Jardines, Esmeralda (CPC)" <esmeralda.jardines@sfgov.org>
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 at 10:35 AM
To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>
Subject: Fw: Notice of public hearing 1500-1528 15th St
 
Hi Commission Secretary, 
 
Can we please forward this to the Planning Commission? The project is proposed for
continuance from today to October 14th, but I'd like to forward this on in the interim.
 
Best, 
Es
 
Esmeralda Jardines, Senior Planner
Office of Executive Programs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7531 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 
Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is not providing any in-person services, but we are
operating remotely. Our staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic Preservation
Commissions are convening remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find more
information on our services here. 

From: Jay Salam <jaysalam01@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2021 10:24 AM
To: Jardines, Esmeralda (CPC) <esmeralda.jardines@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: Notice of public hearing 1500-1528 15th St
 
HI Esmeralda, thank you so much for all your help and responding to my inquiries. I wrote a
memorandum (attached). Thank you for hearing my voice and for helping make sure my voice
reaches the right ears. I really do appreciate all your help.
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July 22, 2021



To: Esmeralda Jardines (esmeralda.jardines@sfgov.org); City Planning Commissioner



From: Jay Salam, CPA



Subject: Record No. 2016-011827ENX (1500 South Van Ness Avenue





This memorandum is regarding he construction of an eight-story, 85-foot-tall structure at the corner of 15th Street and South Van Ness Avenue. I am writing this memorandum in objection to this construction. The reasons for my objections are as follows:



1) Mission already has a lot of SRO’s within a half mile radius of this construction project:  these include SRO’s located at 15th St and Valencia; 16th St and South Van Ness Avenue; 15th St and Julian Avenue. All these SRO’s have the same things in common, people hanging out outside the building, crime, and drug use in public. The builder is calling this project a “modern-day SRO”, however as a resident in The Mission, this feels more like modern-day Apartheid.



To me it feels like the city wants to keep all the voiceless black people and Hispanic people in Bay View and The Mission. Therefore, it is modern-day Apartheid because the city is segregating us based on race. San Francisco is 49 Square mile long, you’re never too far from public transit whether in the Heights, Sunset, Potrero Hill, Dog Patch, Noe Valley…etc. There are lots of other locations that are excellent for this project. However, the city isn’t going to put this project in the locations mentioned above because the residents there are more affluent and are able to voice their opinions unlike people in my community.



2) The second reason I object to this construction is because there is an Elementary School (Marshall Elementary School) a block away from this construction. What are the children supposed to think when they see people hanging out all day, crime, and drug use in public? Those who have ability will move their children out of this school; the rest of us will have our children think hanging out outside all day, crime and public drug use are a normal part of life. By putting this SRO here you’re robbing the future of these children. Instead of being future leaders in this community they will just be part of the problem because this is all they will be expose to.



To me it is incredible how there is an elementary school but where is the library or park for these children? Instead of investing in their futures and helping them grow, the city has other plans.



A lot of times decision are made because the decision makers think it is the best for the people. As mentioned above the unintended consequences will be the further deterioration of The Mission. The builder will make lots of noise for a couple of years and will leave us holding the bag. After they are long gone it is us that will have to deal with their consequences. Thank you for hearing my voice.





Kind regards,

Jay Salam, CPA



Kind regards,
-Jay 
 
On Tue, Jul 20, 2021 at 11:06 AM Jardines, Esmeralda (CPC) <esmeralda.jardines@sfgov.org> wrote:

Hi Jay, 
 
My brief responses are below:
 
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
Sent: Monday, July 19, 2021 9:26 AM
To: Jardines, Esmeralda (CPC) <esmeralda.jardines@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: Notice of public hearing 1500-1528 15th St
 
Hi Esmeralda,
 
Thank you for your email, and apologies in advance for my delayed response. Based on your
response I have some follow up questions. I was hoping you would be able to point me in the right
direction. 
1) I want to voice my opinion about this project, who do I address these options to? And what is
the deadline to submit these opinions?  You're welcome to email me the opinions you would like
to share. You're also welcome to call into the Planning Commission meeting while it is remote or
attend the hearing when in-person hearings resume. Please note that the project has been
continued and will not be heard this Thursday, July 22nd. Instead, it will be continued and
rescheduled to be heard mid-October.
2) What is the format of the planning hearing that is going to happen this week on July 22? The
project will not be heard this Thursday. The project sponsor requested a continuance.
3) Do people who don't address their opinions to the personnel/contact information on #1 do
they get the opportunity to voice their opinion during the hearing? Yes, you don't have to submit
your opinions in advance of the hearing. However, it is appreciated if you do so to allow the
Planning Commission enough time to consider them.
 
Thank you so much Esmeralda, I really appreciate all your help. It's my sincere pleasure. Please let
me know if you have any additional questions or if I could be of assistance.
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Kind regards,
-Jay  
 
On Tue, Jul 13, 2021 at 6:14 PM Jardines, Esmeralda (CPC) <esmeralda.jardines@sfgov.org>
wrote:

Hello Jay,

 

I am well and I hope you are, too!

 

As for the notice, you don’t have to do anything. The notice is to inform you of what is
being proposed at 1500 15th Street. If you had thoughts or questions about the project,
you’re welcome to provide that in an email that can be provided to the Planning
Commission. But this isn’t required as the notice is a courtesy notice to the neighbors and
neighborhood groups in the vicinity.

 

The project is scheduled to be heard by the Planning Commission next Thursday;
Planning Staff is recommending approval of the project and the Planning Commission
will hear and if needed, deliberate on the project next week.

 

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
operating remotely. Our staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic
Preservation Commissions are convening remotely. The public is encouraged to participate.
Find more information on our services here. 
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

 

From: Jay Salam <jaysalam01@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, July 13, 2021 12:47 PM
To: Jardines, Esmeralda (CPC) <esmeralda.jardines@sfgov.org>
Subject: Notice of public hearing 1500-1528 15th St

 

 

Hi Esmeralda,

 

I hope you are well. I received the following notice of public hearing record # 2016-
011827ENX for a construction project on 15th St and South Van Ness St.

 

This is my first time receiving a notice like this. I'm not sure what I'm supposed to do.
Will you please let me know what I am supposed to do or how the hearing is supposed to
go so I can get a better understanding of this process? Thank you. I called last Thursday
on July 8, and left a message. Thank you.

 

Kind regards,

-Jay Salam
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
Subject: FW: Correction of Agenda Statement Regarding 1525 Pine Street Matter
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 10:28:35 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: David C <davidc@dpclawoffices.com> on behalf of David C
<davidc@dpclawoffices.com>
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 at 4:09 PM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: KATE STACY <Kate.Stacy@sfcityatty.org>, "joel.koppel@sfgov.org"
<joel.koppel@sfgov.org>, Theresa Imperial <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>, "Diamond, Susan
(CPC)" <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>, "Fung, Frank (CPC)" <frank.fung@sfgov.org>, "Moore,
Kathrin (CPC)" <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>, "Chan, Deland (CPC)" <deland.chan@sfgov.org>,
"Tanner, Rachael (CPC)" <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Subject: Correction of Agenda Statement Regarding 1525 Pine Street Matter
 

 

Mr. Ionin, I want to call your attention, and the attention of the Commissioners, to a lack of
information on the Agenda of the Planning Commission for the hearing scheduled for July 22 for the
matter of 1525 Pine Street. (This omission also appears in the Agenda for June 17,2021.) The
statement describing the actions during the original hearing of this matter on May 6, 2021 ignores,
or forgets, the initial action of the Planning Commission on the matter.
 
I have reviewed the tape of the hearing three times and it can be confirmed that the initial action of
the Commission was a Motion to Approve the project [Motion made: Tanner; Motion seconded:
Diamond.] That Motion failed by a vote of 4 to 3 which should be reflected as a disapproval of the
Project. After the vote on the Motion, Commission members began considering possible
modifications of the project and subsequently voted to continue the matter and that Motion is
correctly being reported as passing 5-2.
 
Your statement regarding the actions of the hearing does not acknowledge the initial disapproval of
the project by the failed Motion to Approve. In order to make the history of the Commission’s
actions more accurate, please correct the meeting Agenda to reflect the initial action by the
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Planning Commission.
 
Thank you for your consideration.
 
David C
 

        Law Offices of
David P. Cincotta

140 Geary Street, 7th Floor
San Francisco, CA 94108
415.754.5008
davidc@dpclawoffices.com
https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?
o=www.dpclawoffices.com&g=NWRiNTc3ZDVmNDZjZGJkNA==&h=NmVhYWIwODNjNjM2ODBkOGFi
YjEzMTc5YjFmYWFjYjA2MWY2OGYzNGFjZjI3MDE3OWIxZWExMWM3NTUxN2ViOQ==&p=YXAzOnNm
ZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjM5YzRmYTM2ODA4OTEzNjUyYjYxNjVkYTliNzBmZTdiOnYx
 
 

Scanned by McAfee and confirmed virus-free.
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
Subject: FW: Support for Hayes Valley Trader Joe"s
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 10:24:51 AM

 
 
 
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
 

From: Cynthia Horiguchi <choriguchi@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2021 9:39 AM
To: PrestonStaff (BOS) <prestonstaff@sfgov.org>; ajunius@reubenlaw.com; Koppel, Joel (CPC)
<joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Chan, Deland (CPC)
<deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael
(CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; Asbagh, Claudine (CPC) <claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org>; CPC-
Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Support for Hayes Valley Trader Joe's
 

 

Hi everyone, 
I'm writing to express my strong support for the Trader Joe's in Hayes Valley as a resident of the
neighborhood. We saw during the pandemic that proximity to basic necessities like groceries is
extremely important. Trader Joe's would serve a very much needed gap for residents. 
 
If the concern is increased traffic, I'd like to remind everyone that we are also home to many world
class attractions -- the Opera, Ballet, Symphony, Jazz Center, Bill Graham, Civic Center, Museums --
which are all great points of pride...and also attract people from outside of the neighborhood, city,
and state!! Let's not let concerns around traffic hinder efforts to do something that would provide
basic necessities for the direct local community. 
 
If the concern is that Trader Joe's will not be a good community member, they have already
demonstrated that they are with other locations throughout the city. 
 

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


Let's not cut off our nose to spite our face. Please remember that when the Castro blocked Trader
Joe's from opening, they got a Barry's Bootcamp instead...a service that serves only those who can
afford $30+ workout classes. Let's bring this critical service to the neighborhood, and let's do it
quickly. 
 
Thanks,
Cynthia Horiguchi
 
Case number: 2021-002978CUA: 555 Fulton Street
 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 9:56:09 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Nellyn Hecktman <info@email.actionnetwork.org>
Reply-To: "nhecktman@gmail.com" <nhecktman@gmail.com>
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 at 9:52 AM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street
 

 

Mr. Jonas Ionin,

I’m writing to express my strong support for an exciting project that would bring 24 new
homes to a vacant lot located at 1900 Diamond Street (at the intersection of Noe Valley,
Diamond Heights and Glen Park).

For the first time in over 40 years, a housing proposal with more than 20 homes could
happen in Noe Valley, Diamond Heights or Glen Park. This marks a great step towards
housing equity in San Francisco and will help to alleviate our city's housing shortage,
displacement, and affordability crises. It's long past time for District 8 neighborhoods to add
their fair share of new homes.

Moreover, these proposed new homes at 1900 Diamond Street are exceedingly thoughtful,
well-designed, and well-located. Their many highlights include:

1. Close proximity to public transit: Two major SFMTA bus lines, 35 and 52, stop directly in
front of the new homes. The site is also only ¾ mile from the Glen Park BART Station, an
easy walk or bike ride away.

2. Economical land use: A steep, undeveloped hillside will be transformed into 24 homes.

3. Affordable housing: 11 affordable homes will be created (31% of all new homes) with the
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$2.8M in affordable housing fees being paid to the Mayor’s Office of Housing.

Moreover, the land is being sold by the Cesar Chavez Foundation, a 45-year old non-profit
headed by Cesar’s son, Paul Chavez. The proceeds from the sale of 1900 Diamond will be
used by the Cesar Chavez Foundation to further its mission of building affordable housing
and providing services to Latinx working families.

4. Family housing: These homes are designed for families. All townhomes have three
bedrooms, and the home layouts were informed by Emeryville’s family housing design
guidelines.

5. Neighborhood cohesiveness - These homes have been thoughtfully designed to blend in
with Diamond Height's mid-century aesthetic through stacked townhomes.

6. Open space - The area surrounding these homes is one of the most park-rich in all of
SF, with five parks, playgrounds, and open spaces located within blocks.

For all these and many other reasons, I urge you to support these new homes and help
your district become a place where more residents can call home.

Nellyn Hecktman 
nhecktman@gmail.com

San Francisco, California 94123

 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Project 2021-002978CUA / Trader Joe"s/ 555 Fulton
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 9:36:48 AM

 
 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 7:16 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: Preston, Dean (BOS) <dean.preston@sfgov.org>; Smeallie, Kyle (BOS) <kyle.smeallie@sfgov.org>;
Richard Johnson <rlj415@sbcglobal.net>; info@hvsafe.com
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
Subject: Grubstake
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 9:35:55 AM
Attachments: Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner.msg

Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner.msg
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
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Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		David Nemoyten

		To

		Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Chan, Deland (CPC); Diamond, Susan (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Imperial, Theresa (CPC); Tanner, Rachael (CPC); Ionin, Jonas (CPC); Peskin, Aaron (BOS); MandelmanStaff, [BOS]; sfgrubstake@gmail.com

		Recipients

		joel.koppel@sfgov.org; kathrin.moore@sfgov.org; deland.chan@sfgov.org; sue.diamond@sfgov.org; frank.fung@sfgov.org; theresa.imperial@sfgov.org; rachael.tanner@sfgov.org; jonas.ionin@sfgov.org; aaron.peskin@sfgov.org; mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org; sfgrubstake@gmail.com





This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.







Dear Commissioners, <BR><BR>The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure.<BR><BR>After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing. <BR><BR>The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.





Sent from my iPhone






Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		Joey Ereñeta

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



 



Dear Commissioners, 

The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure.

After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building. Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing. 

The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.





Joey Ereñeta

(510) 205-4777




Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		Jonathan Scott

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

		robertmorrison942

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

After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing. 

The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd. 









Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone






Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		David Albert

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

After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing..

The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.

Sincerely,

David Albert

Grubstake patron since 1980








Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		Laurel Jansen

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





- laurel






Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		tommie murphy

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



 



Dear Commissioners, <BR><BR>The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure.<BR><BR>After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing. <BR><BR>The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.





Cheers!




Tommie Murphy

Intrinsic Events and Design

415-734-7381





 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Merlone, Audrey (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: SF planning code change being proposed by Supervisor Rafael Mandelman.
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 9:35:05 AM

 
 
 
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
 

From: michael harris <mharris@mbh-arch.com> 
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2021 8:23 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: SF planning code change being proposed by Supervisor Rafael Mandelman.
 

 

Planning Commission
 
My understanding is that this legislation is a reaction to two issues; lack of units and “monster
homes”? I want more density and don’t want “monster” homes, but Supervisor Mandelman’s
current proposal is poor legislation.

1. The Planning Commission should not be deciding every time someone wants to build a single
family house or a unit over 2500 sf. Too many projects already go before the Planning Commission.
The SF Planning Code is already a mess by being a discretionary code. Good legislation does not punt
to the Planning Commission but crates standards rules that allow one to build.  San Francisco already
is the most expensive and time consuming place to build and  this will slow down all projects
including the housing you want to build, an already cumbersome process will become glacier.  A goal
should be to redo the out of date and convoluted Planning Code, fewer projects should go before
the Commission not more.

2. Pick a more reasonable size, 2500 sf gross, is hardly a big house; the way the Planning Code
determines size, it is approximately the size of a two story house in the Sunset, as outside walls and
all interior spaces including storage and parking-except in a below grade basement are included.
Building a 3 bedroom 2 1/2 bath house without particularly large rooms and parking would be a tight
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fit, let alone a house for an extended family with grandparents or grandchildren.  This proposal is too
drastic a reduction from what the code allows now, assuming 3 stories of 1200 sf each (114’ deep lot
with 45% rear yard)-is 3600 with a 30% rear yard it would be 4800sf for 3 stories. I think if you
picked 3,000 sf and 4000 sf depending on zoning there would be more support. Most cities have FAR
or some type of size limit. the story could also be included, 3 for single family 4 for more units, pick a
reasonable limit and put it in the code and include bonuses for more units.

3. Do you really want to eliminate single family homes? Do property owners have so little control of
their property? Is it fair that so many San Franciscans already have single family homes that now you
want to deny them to others? Give incentives to build more units.

I feel that some of Supervisor Mandelman’s legislation related planning and building are reactive to a
situation but do not do not adequately understand the consequences of the proposed solutions.  I
think if you defined the problem and worked with the Planning dept, community, and professionals 
better legislation would be created, I am disappointed that this is not the way it is done.

Michael Harris
333 Cumberland
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Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street

		From

		Brian Hecktman

		To

		Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

		Recipients

		jonas.ionin@sfgov.org



 	This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.



 



Mr. Jonas Ionin,



I’m writing to express my strong support for an exciting project that would bring 24 new homes to a vacant lot located at 1900 Diamond Street (at the intersection of Noe Valley, Diamond Heights and Glen Park).



For the first time in over 40 years, a housing proposal with more than 20 homes could happen in Noe Valley, Diamond Heights or Glen Park. This marks a great step towards housing equity in San Francisco and will help to alleviate our city's housing shortage, displacement, and affordability crises. It's long past time for District 8 neighborhoods to add their fair share of new homes. 



Moreover, these proposed new homes at 1900 Diamond Street are exceedingly thoughtful, well-designed, and well-located. Their many highlights include:



1. Close proximity to public transit: Two major SFMTA bus lines, 35 and 52, stop directly in front of the new homes. The site is also only ¾ mile from the Glen Park BART Station, an easy walk or bike ride away.



2. Economical land use: A steep, undeveloped hillside will be transformed into 24 homes.



3. Affordable housing: 11 affordable homes will be created (31% of all new homes) with the $2.8M in affordable housing fees being paid to the Mayor’s Office of Housing.



Moreover, the land is being sold by the Cesar Chavez Foundation, a 45-year old non-profit headed by Cesar’s son, Paul Chavez. The proceeds from the sale of 1900 Diamond will be used by the Cesar Chavez Foundation to further its mission of building affordable housing and providing services to Latinx working families.



4. Family housing: These homes are designed for families. All townhomes have three bedrooms, and the home layouts were informed by Emeryville’s family housing design guidelines.



5. Neighborhood cohesiveness - These homes have been thoughtfully designed to blend in with Diamond Height's mid-century aesthetic through stacked townhomes.



6. Open space - The area surrounding these homes is one of the most park-rich in all of SF, with five parks, playgrounds, and open spaces located within blocks.



For all these and many other reasons, I urge you to support these new homes and help your district become a place where more residents can call home.



Brian Hecktman 
bhecktman@yahoo.com



San Francisco, California 94123





 




Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street

		From

		Gelareh Esfahlani

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
2gelareh@gmail.com



San Francisco, California 94105





 




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



Al Hariri 
ahariri15@gmail.com



San Francisco, California 94107
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Jonas P Ionin
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Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		alan choy

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

		Lucas Montgomery-Davis

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

		Mark Abramson

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

		J.Emmett Patterson

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



Emmett Patterson 




Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		Jason Castleberry

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

		Darwin Bell

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
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Dear Commissioners, The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure. After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing. <BR><BR>The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.



Thank you,



Darwin Bell





Sent from my iPhone






Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		William Hack

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





Sent from my iPad

William Hack

P Wibowo

1728 Laguna street

94115






Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		Eric Press

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

		Norman Golchehreh

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
Subject: FW: Mandelman Planning Code Section 319 Hearing
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 8:18:16 AM

 
 
 
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
 
From: shaun <shaun@semcoengineering.net> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 4:52 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: FW: Mandelman Planning Code Section 319 Hearing
 

 

 
Dear Planning Commission:
I am writing regarding agenda item 10 for the Planning Commission Hearing on July 22nd – Review of
Large Residence Developments.
I have been working as a structural engineer in San Francisco since 1989 and have been operating a
small firm since 2004. Most of our clients are modest middle income people with families.
Many of them find themselves outgrowing their homes and have a need for additional space.
Limiting a maximum home size to 2500 sf or face the burden of a conditional use authorization adds
undue restrictions on property owners in the city. If homeowners are facing the risk and cost of
these constraints, it is my firm belief they will leave the city and seek housing elsewhere. Building
size is already restricted by setback requirements and height limits. Putting a cap on square footage
strangles the ability for homeowners to rework their buildings and accommodate a growing family or
aging parents.
I urge the commission to vote this down.  
Sincerely,
Shaun Moynahan, S.E.
 
SEMCO
ENGINEERING INC.
322 cortland avenue
san francisco, ca 94110
ph 415.553.8810 x301
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Merlone, Audrey (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Rafael Mandelman has proposed legislation
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 8:17:36 AM

 
 
 
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
 

From: Mark English <mark@markenglisharchitects.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 4:36 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Mark English <mark@markenglisharchitects.com>
Subject: Rafael Mandelman has proposed legislation
 

 

Dear Commissioners,
 
As a residential architect with 30 years of experience working in San Francisco and the Bay Area, I am
completely against the proposed legislation by Supervisor Mandelman. What possible good outcome would
come out of this legislation?  The gulf of credibility between real people in the City, and the ruling class
increases every year and is increasingly Kafka-esque.
 
Most existing 2 story homes are already near or above the 2500 sf mark.  Calling these “Large Residence
Developments” is simply incorrect, and the proponents know this. In addition, does anyone actually think
that making the system even more draconian will foster the development of more housing units?
 
This is a fantasy, and a cynical one. This is simply a back door way of suppressing change to the built
environment without having enough respect for the residents of this city to present it for what it is. Overuse
of CEQA in San Francisco evidently has not accomplished the desired suppression.
 
Mark English, AIA 
 
Supervisor Rafael Mandelman has proposed legislation that would create a new section of the

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:audrey.merlone@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
https://sfplanning.org/staff-directory
https://sfplanning.org/node/1978
https://sfplanning.org/covid-19


Planning Code, Section 319  ‘Large Residence Developments'. This legislation seeks to establish an
absolute maximum home size of 2500sf, above which most residential projects must obtain a
Conditional Use Authorization for approval. Moreover, it bakes in redundant reviews: mandating
that all properties with potential or actual historic value are automatically subject to CUA, and
retaining the right to Discretionary Review, giving neighbors an additional tool to slow or stop
projects.  In all, the proposed legislation, if it becomes law, will increase the risk, cost, and time
burden for residential expansions and the construction of new units in these districts, without
improving the supply of affordable housing. 

 
Please send all written correspondence to my NAPA address.
 
OFFICE: NAPA
1708 Los Carneros Avenue
Napa, CA 94559
t: 415.505.0443
 
OFFICE: SAN FRANCISCO
315 Sutter Street 5th Floor
San Francisco, CA 94108
t: 415.391.0186 xtn 1001
www.markenglisharchitects.com
 
Blog:
thearchitectstake.com
Twitter:
Markenglisharch
 
The contents of this email and any attachments to it contain confidential and/or legally
privileged information from Mark English architects or its affiliates. If you are not the
intended recipient, or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the
intended recipient, be aware that any disclosure, copying, distribution, taking action in
reliance upon or use of the information contained herein is strictly prohibited and may be
unlawful. If you received this transmission in error, please contact the sender and destroy
the material in its entirety, whether in electronic or hard copy format.

 
 

 

https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=http%3A//www.markenglisharchitects.com/&g=ZGJjMzI0ZDhmZThkMjZkZA==&h=MmNjZDM5YTQzYmY2ZDQzYzEyY2NjNjFiZjBkYTU4ZjYwYThjNzYwMWFmYmJlZTlkYmIzNWVlNTc3NTg4Y2FkMA==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjE2YTY4ZTIwMDg1ZmViNmJjYzE2MjhmYTE4YzUzZDQ4OnYx
https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=http%3A//thearchitectstake.com/&g=ZTRkYzk5NTMyOWZjNzYxNQ==&h=MjU2ODI0YjU3Y2VmZmM0YzA2Njg5NDU5MWZjNzZhZGY2NGE0YjEwMjM3MTVjZjg4ZmQ0YzFjNzRkMWYyOTE2Nw==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjE2YTY4ZTIwMDg1ZmViNmJjYzE2MjhmYTE4YzUzZDQ4OnYx


 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: support for 469 Stevenson
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 8:16:51 AM

 
 
 
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
 

From: Hunter Oatman-Stanford <hoatmanstanford@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 4:11 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: support for 469 Stevenson
 

 

Hi there,

I'm just writing to affirm my full support for the new housing project in development for 469
Stevenson Street in SoMa. As a longtime D6 resident and neighbor, this project will provide excellent
community benefits and funding for affordable housing, while replacing and unsightly and
unpleasant surface parking lot. Please expedite any approvals so we can welcome more neighbors
ASAP.
 
thank you!
Hunter Oatman-Stanford
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  This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: General Public Comment to HPC on Large Residence Ordinance
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 8:15:45 AM
Attachments: IMG_7579.PNG

IMG_7580.PNG
Demo317_DBI_20210610_INTERNAL_USE_ONLY.pdf
image.png

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
Expanded in-person services at the Permit Center at 49 South Van Ness Avenue are available. Most other San Francisco Planning functions are being conducted remotely. Our staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our services here. 
 

From: Thomas Schuttish <schuttishtr@sbcglobal.net> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 3:54 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; mooreurban@aol.com; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Cc: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Feliciano, Josephine (CPC) <josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>; Merlone, Audrey (CPC) <audrey.merlone@sfgov.org>; Bintliff, Jacob (BOS) <jacob.bintliff@sfgov.org>
Subject: Fwd: General Public Comment to HPC on Large Residence Ordinance
 

 

Dear Commissioners,
I wanted to forward this email that I sent to the HPC yesterday to the Planning Commission.  
I know you have a terribly intense agenda tomorrow (7/22) but I hope you can take a minute to at least look at the photos below because I think they say a lot.
These photos and the screenshot of this project is another example of two things:
1.  The need to adjust the Demo Calcs as the Planning Commission can do per Section 317 (b) (2) (D)
2.  The need to approve the proposed legislation that you will hear tomorrow.
I think these two would work well together in tandem.
With regard to this particular project at 20 Raycliff Terrace below, it has always puzzled me as to why, when you look at the photos of the site from April 2020, the project sponsors did not take advantage of the Demonstrably Unaffordable clause in the Code, Section 317 (d) (3)?  This is RH-1 and the house sold for nearly $5 Million.  Section 317 (d) (3) was still in the Code when this “A” rated house applied for an Alteration Permit.
Thank you.
Sincerely,
Georgia Schuttish
 

Begin forwarded message:
 
From: SchuT <schuttishtr@sbcglobal.net>
Subject: General Public Comment 7/19/21: 20 Raycliff Terrace/Large Residence Ordinance
Date: July 20, 2021 at 12:58:43 PM PDT
To: diane.matsuda@sfgov.org, jonathan.pearlman@sfgov.org, kate.black@sfgov.org, richard.se.johns@sfgov.org, chris.foley@sfgov.org, ruchira.nageswaran@sfgov.org, lydia.so@sfgov.org, jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
Cc: audrey.merlone@sfgov.org, jacob.bintliff@sfgov.org, Commissions.Secretary@sfgov.org, david.winslow@sfgov.org
 
 
﻿Dear Commissioners,
This project was mentioned during the HPC meeting on July 7, 2021 during the discussion of the proposed Large Residence Ordinance.
This is an “A” rated property located in an historic part of the Pacific Heights neighborhood.  I believe it was considered a “contributor” to the grouping of homes considered Second Bay Tradition.
The original house was 4,041 gross square feet and the completed Alteration project will be 6,308 gross square feet per the CatEx for the project. 
(The web ads use the Assessor’s Info for the house size of 2,750 sq. ft. when it sold for $4.995 million in 2017.)
There are four screenshots of the project below.
The attached pdf is a document from the Planning Department Enforcement Staff.  
It is an extremely good and thorough explanation of the Section 317 Demo Calcs.  
It was prepared for DBI, but I thought it would be a useful document for the members of the HPC to have.
The revised Demolition Calculations from 2020 for the project at 20 Raycliff Terrace are in the upper left corner of the last screenshot below.  
These Calcs were revised after a Planning Enforcement action last year.
These revised Calcs for 20 Raycliff Terrace just skirt the thresholds for Tantamount to Demolition.
The current Demo Calcs in Planning Code Section 317 (b)(2)(B) and (b)(2)(C) should be adjusted by the Planning Commission as it is empowered to do under Section 317 (b) (2) (D) due to the issues raised by extreme Alterations such as this one at 20 Raycliff Terrace.
Thank you.
Sincerely,
Georgia Schuttish 
 

During Alteration work Spring 2020

During Alteration work Spring 2020
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DEMOLITION CALCULATIONS
Informational presentation


Kelly Wong & Chaska Berger
Senior Planners, Code Enforcement Team, Zoning & Compliance Division
kelly.wong@sfgov.org   /    chaska.berger@sfgov.org


JUNE 10, 2021
DEPARTMENT OF BUILDING INSPECTION meeting
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Demolition Calculations Presentation


Agenda


• What is Section 317? 


• How to Review and Verify Demolition Calculations


• Key Concepts & Field Examples
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Demolition Calculations Presentation


What is Section 317?
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Demolition Calculations Intro to Section 317


Intent & Process


Intent: 


• Conserve existing housing and preserve affordable housing


• Section 317 includes definitions such as:


• Residential Demolition (or Tantamount to Demolition)


• Dwelling Unit Merger 


• Dwelling Unit Conversion


Process:


• Conditional Use (CU) authorization application


 CU application requires a proposed replacement project







Photo credit.


Demolition Calculations Intro to Section 317
Section 317 Thresholds


Planning Code Section 317(b)(2)(B): 


Removal of more than 50% of the sum of the Front Facade and Rear Facade 


Lineal Feet (LF)


Planning Code Section 317(b)(2) (C):


Removal of more than 50% of the Vertical Envelope Elements


AND
Removal of more than 65% of the sum of all exterior walls, measured in 
lineal feet at the foundation level, 


OR


Removal of more than 50% of the Horizontal Elements of the existing 
building, as measured in square feet of actual surface area.


AND


Square Feet (SF)
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Demolition Calculations Resources


Spreadsheet & Examples
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Demolition Calculations Presentation


How to review & verify
Demolition Calculations
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Demolition Calculations Presentation


Part I - Lineal Feet (LF)
Looking at Building “Footprints”


Existing Proposed


Rear
Addition
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Demolition Calculations Intro to Section 317


Thresholds – Lineal Feet


• Part I ~ Lineal Feet (LF)


• Section 317(b)(2)(B):


1) Front + Rear Facades (LF) = 50% max. AND


2) All Exterior Walls (LF) = 65% max.


• Measured in Lineal Feet at the Foundation Level


• Key: Expansion of existing footprint
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1) Front + Rear Facades (LF) = 50% max.


Remember: Measured in Lineal Feet at the Foundation Level


Existing First Floor Proposed First Floor


Front 
Facade


Rear 
Facade


Front Façade 
(Unchanged)


New Rear
Facade


Important:


Reviewing the 
"PROPOSED" 
project is required to 
verify removal 
on demo diagrams.


Measuring LF: Front & Rear Facades


Removal at:


Front = 0 LF
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


Rear = 45 LF


Calculation:


Front = stays the same; no removal.


Rear = removal of 7+20+18 = 45 LF


7


20


18


15
3
10







Demolition Calculations Intro to Section 317


Front 
Facade


Rear 
Facade


7


20


18


15
3
10


Existing First Floor


Calculations:


Existing LF


Front = 15+3+10 = 28 LF


Rear = 7+20+18 = 45 LF


Removed LF


Front = 0 LF


Rear = 7+20+18 = 45 LF
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Demolition Calculations Intro to Section 317


How to Measure each Section (LF vs. SF)


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
1) All Exterior Walls (LF) = 65% max.


Remember: Measured in Lineal Feet at the Foundation Level


Existing First Floor Proposed First Floor


Existing 
side
Walls


Removed
Walls


Existing 
side
Walls


Important:


Reviewing the 
"PROPOSED" 
project is required to 
verify removal 
on demo diagrams.


New courtyard
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


West
Wall


Removed
Walls


Removal at:


West = 0 LF


East = 2 LF


Calculation:


West = infilled; no removal.


East= removal of 2 LF


East
Wall
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Demolition Calculations Intro to Section 317


Both sections must exceed Max. Permitted % in Section 317 to be defined as “demo.” 


Since only one section exceeds the Max. Permitted thresholds, 
a Conditional Use Authorization is NOT required.
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Demolition Calculations Presentation


Part II - Square Feet (SF)
Looking at Building “Floors/Roof and Walls”
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Demolition Calculations Intro to Section 317


How to Measure each Section (LF vs. SF)


• Part II ~ Square Feet (SF)


• Section 317(b)(2)(C):


1) Vertical Envelope Elements (SF) = 50% max. AND


2) Horizontal Elements (SF) = 50% max.


• Measured in Square Feet of actual Surface Area


• Vertical: walls, bay windows, light wells, openings


• Horizontal: 


• At/below grade = N/A (add bldg section)


• Floor plates, attic floors, roof
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Demolition Calculations Intro to Section 317


Existing First Floor Proposed First Floor


2) Horizontal Elements (SF) = 50% max.


50 sf
removed  
(for new 


stair)


Calculation:


Ground = N/A


First Fl = 50 SF


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


Remember: Roof is measured in Plan View


1150 sf
removed


(new floor 
level)


Existing Roof Plan Proposed Second Floor


Removal at:


Horizontal = 1,200 SF


Calculation:


Ground = N/A


First Fl = 50 SF


Roof = 1,150 SF
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


Existing Front Façade Proposed Front Façade 


1) Vertical Envelope Elements (SF) = 50% max.


Remember: Measured in Square Feet of actual Surface Area


30 sf “removed”
(infill of garage door)


Calculation:


North (Front) = 30 SF


Important:


Reviewing the "PROPOSED" 
project is required to verify 
removal on demo diagrams.
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Demolition Calculations Intro to Section 317


Existing Rear Façade Proposed Front Façade 


1) Vertical Envelope Elements (SF) = 50% max.


Remember: Measured in Square Feet of actual Surface Area


420 sf “removed”
(entire elevation 
to accommodate 
new rear addition)


Calculation:


North (Front) = 30 SF


South (Rear) = 420 SF
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Demolition Calculations Intro to Section 317


Existing West Elevation Proposed West Elevation


1) Vertical Envelope Elements (SF) = 50% max.


Remember: Measured in Square Feet of actual Surface Area


Calculation:


North (Front) = 30 SF


South (Rear) = 420 SF


West = 185 SF


(enlargement of windows)


(infill of windows)


185 sf 
“removed”
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Demolition Calculations Intro to Section 317


Existing East Elevation Proposed East Elevation


1) Vertical Envelope Elements (SF) = 50% max.


Remember: Measured in Square Feet of actual Surface Area


Removal at:


Vertical = 965 SF


Calculation:


North (Front) = 30 SF


South (Rear) = 420 SF


West = 185 SF


East = 330 SF


(moving of windows)


330 sf 
“removed”
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Demolition Calculations Intro to Section 317


Both sections must exceed Max. Permitted % in Section 317 to be defined as “demo.” 


Since neither section exceeds the Max. Permitted thresholds,
a Conditional Use Authorization is NOT required.


.
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Demolition Calculations Presentation


Key Concepts


and


Field Examples
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Demolition Calculations Resources


Implementation Document
https://sfplanning.org/sites/default/files/resources/2
020-06/ZoningRemovalDwellingUnits.pdf
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Demolition Calculations Intro to Section 317


Horizontal removal


Calculating Horizontal Removal on a Sloped Roof:
• The areas of sloping roofs should be calculated as their horizontal-


projected (plan view) area, not actual surface area.


• Note: Roofs that slope more than 30 degrees are considered horizontal, not 
vertical, elements


Calculate total 
area in plan view 


NOT the total 
surface area
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Demolition Calculations how to review? 


HELPFUL HINTS


• What to look for FIRST? 


1. Part II (SF) – Horizontal


• Roof and floor plates


 Does the project remove > 50% 
of horizontal elements?


 Is the roof being removed?


 Less than 50% removal?  
= project meets 317 (still must 
complete table) 


 More than 50% removal 
=  proceed with closely verifying 
vertical 


Two-story 
building


Roof







Demolition Calculations Intro to Section 317


Horizontal Removal


Existing Proposed


Horizontal Removal: Include area removed to accommodate new stairs / elevators


New stairs


New elevator 


Floor to be 
removed to 
accommodate 
new stairs and 
elevator counts 
towards 
removal


Important:


Reviewing the "PROPOSED" 
project is required to verify 
removal on demo diagrams.
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Demolition Calculations FAQ


• Raised Buildings: 


a. Raised FULL floor = NO, do not include in demo calcs


b. Raised a few feet = YES, this is 100% removal of floor plates & roof


Existing Proposed


Important:


Reviewing the ”Existing 
and "PROPOSED" 
project is required to 
verify this.Horizontal Removal
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Demolition Calculations FAQ


• Raised Buildings:


• Raised a few feet = YES, this is 100% removal of all horizontal elements 


Proposed


Horizontal Removal
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Demolition Calculations FAQ


Horizontal Removal: shall mean all roof areas and all floor plates, except existing floor 
plates at or below grade.


Floor plates at or below grade = N/A 
(Does not count towards removal) 


Horizontal Removal on Sloped Sites
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Demolition Calculations Intro to Section 317


Vertical Removal  - How to count New OPENINGS 


Calculating Vertical Removal: If an opening is introduced into an existing wall, or if an 
opening increases in size then that new open area is considered removal.
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Demolition Calculations During Construction


REMOVAL DEFINITION


Section 317(b)(9) – Definition of “Removal”


"Removal" shall mean, with reference to a wall, roof or floor structure, its 
dismantling, its relocation or its alteration of the exterior function by 
construction of a new building element exterior to it. Where a portion of an 
exterior wall is removed, any remaining wall with a height less than the Building 
Code requirement for legal head room shall be considered demolished. 


Dismantling Relocation


< legal head room


New element exterior to it


New 
element


Removed 
wall (shaded)
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Demolition Calculations During Construction


• Not Legal Head Height (per Building Code)


Vertical Removal – basement Excavation


• If existing wall height is less 
than legal head height per 
Building Code 
= count towards removal
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Demolition Calculations During Construction


Existing vs. Removed – Field Observations


• Existing:


• Existing framing intact;


• Sistering of “new” to existing;


• Removal of only sheathing or 
cladding (unless the property is 
a historic resource); 


• Existing wall height remains the 
same in the proposed project; or


• Floor level remains OR moved 
one floor up or down.


• Removed:


• Existing framing replaced;


• Sistering of “existing” to new;


• Removal of existing 
wall/floor/ceiling/roof assembly; 


• Existing wall height = less than 
legal head height per Building 
Code; or


• Raising/lowering floor level a 
few feet.
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Demolition Calculations During Construction


New Floor Plate


• Removed:
New framing


Existing Floor Plate


• Existing:
Existing framing intact


Existing vs. Removed


• Removed:
Sistering “existing” to new


New Wall Framing
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Demolition Calculations During Construction


• Existing: 


When only surface materials removed 
(i.e. sheathing, cladding)


Existing vs. Removed
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Demolition Calculations Conclusion


What should you REMEMBER?


SF Planning Tantamount to Demo Letter 


• During project review, if a project is within 5% 
of Section 317 thresholds, SF Planning staff 
sends a “Tantamount to Demo Letter” to the 
Project Sponsor and DBI. 


• Elements “to remain” shall not be 
removed during construction. 


• If DBI determines additional removal is 
required, route revised plans to Planning.


• Prior to start of construction, an 
inspection by DBI is required. 
This is to be noted on Job Card and
DBI Permit Tracking System. 
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Demolition Calculations During Construction


Removal for “Repair & Maintenance”  


During construction, any additional removal 
for repair & maintenance (in like kind 
materials), the contractor is required to: 


• Stop work immediately;


• Obtain a DBI “Correction Notice” outlining 
the specific areas that are to be replaced;


• DBI may require obtaining a revision 
permit and/or engineer’s report.


• Removal for repair during construction & 
maintenance with a DBI Correction Notice 
does NOT count towards demolition 
calculations.  







Kelly Wong & Chaska Berger
Senior Planners
Code Enforcement Team
Zoning & Compliance Division
kelly.wong@sfgov.org
chaska.berger@sfgov.org


www.sfplanning.org


THANK YOU
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Original House (Second Bay Tradition) built 1947

Project on July 19, 2021 (vertical expansion behind fence on top level)

 

 



Revision to §317 (b)(2)(B) and (b)(2)(C) Demo Calcs after Planning Enforcement

 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: Grubstake
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 5:56:05 PM
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
mailto:Claudine.Asbagh@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/

Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		Ray Tilton

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

		Dinysio walloe

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


  I  recently went there remembering going there with freind Cockette Angel of Light 'Hibiscus' aka George ♥ Harris on our way in and out of North Beach to do shows. A true beloved historic sacred place   LuvtoU 

   Dinysio Scotz Walloe  thanxoxo 



After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building. Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing. 

The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd. 



Get Outlook for Android




Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		Florencia Martinez

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

After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing.  The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.





Florencia Martinez



Sent from my iPhone






Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		Kurtiss Tews

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



Kurtiss J. Tews






Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		Jim Love

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



We don't want to lose anymore historical and legacy businesses in this wonderfully cultural city.  

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

Jim Fleming 

31 year San Francisco resident





From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 5:07:46 PM

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

﻿On 7/21/21, 5:07 PM, "Tyler Underwood" <tylerunderwood@gmail.com> wrote:

    This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

    Dear Commissioners,The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased
to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure. After waiting years to present the new building
to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved
into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way
possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height
adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the
Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing
units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-
needed middle-income housing. <BR><BR>The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought
forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote
affirmatively on July 22nd.

    Loads of Love

     MOREboy Tyler

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
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 5:00:46 PM

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

﻿On 7/21/21, 4:41 PM, "César Cadabes" <cesar.cadabes@gmail.com> wrote:

    This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

    Dear Commissioners,

    The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community,
    and I am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this
    community treasure.

    After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning
    Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent
    residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents
    of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way
    possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their
    sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their
    building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased
    their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being
    redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the
    housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone
    the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed
    middle-income housing.

    The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought
    forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of
    this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.

    Best regards,
    Cesar Cadabes

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
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 5:00:28 PM

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

﻿On 7/21/21, 4:48 PM, "Scott Louis" <scott@scottlouis.com> wrote:

    This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

    Dear Commissioners,

    The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased to express my support
for the rebuilding of this community treasure.

    After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition
from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin
condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their
sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when
they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include
additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the
redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing.

    The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope
that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.

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
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 5:00:12 PM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Cabure Bonugli <shotinthecity@gmail.com>
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 at 4:59 PM
To: "joel.koppel@sfgov.org" <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>, "Moore, Kathrin (CPC)"
<kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>, "Chan, Deland (CPC)" <deland.chan@sfgov.org>, "Diamond,
Susan (CPC)" <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>, "Fung, Frank (CPC)" <frank.fung@sfgov.org>,
Theresa Imperial <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>, "Tanner, Rachael (CPC)"
<rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>, "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>, "Peskin, Aaron
(BOS)" <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>, "MandelmanStaff, [BOS]" <mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org>,
"sfgrubstake@gmail.com" <sfgrubstake@gmail.com>
Subject: Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner
 

 

Dear Commissioners, 

The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased to express
my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure.

After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now
facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The
residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file
appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height
adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos
that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to
allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the
redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing. 

The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin
residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote

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
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 5:00:03 PM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Tadd Tobias <taddtobias@gmail.com>
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 at 4:50 PM
To: "Peskin, Aaron (BOS)" <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>, "Tanner, Rachael (CPC)"
<rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>, "Chan, Deland (CPC)" <deland.chan@sfgov.org>, "Fung, Frank
(CPC)" <frank.fung@sfgov.org>, "joel.koppel@sfgov.org" <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>, "Ionin,
Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>, "Moore, Kathrin (CPC)" <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>,
"MandelmanStaff, [BOS]" <mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org>, "sfgrubstake@gmail.com"
<sfgrubstake@gmail.com>, "Diamond, Susan (CPC)" <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>, Theresa
Imperial <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>
Subject: Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner
 

 

Dear Commissioners, The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I
am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure. After waiting years
to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from
adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the
neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various
aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their
building. Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the
Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for
the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this
community asset and much-needed middle-income housing. The Grubstake team has worked
tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the
value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.
--
Tadd Tobias NP-C
Email: taddtobias@gmail.com
Web: www.linkedin.com/in/taddtobias

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Claudine.Asbagh@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:taddtobias@gmail.com
https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=http%3A//www.linkedin.com/in/taddtobias&g=NTFjZDE4M2Y1Y2MxYjJkZA==&h=M2NjZWUwNWE3OTM0OTY0OGYzZGEyMWI1MzUwNTA1ZWQ0MTZjMTM1Njc3M2U5MjFhMTg2ZWNiY2RiNmU2ODA0MA==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjFkZjMyZThhMWI4ZWI3Zjk2ZWQ3ZmVmNGMwNDc5NTM0OnYx




From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 4:59:48 PM

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

﻿On 7/21/21, 4:53 PM, "Jason Armenta" <jeldiablo@icloud.com> wrote:

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
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 4:40:24 PM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Rolo Talorda <rolodj@gmail.com>
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 at 4:36 PM
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
Subject: FW: Adverse impacts of Grubstake project
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 4:34:43 PM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Rajan Arora <arorarajan@gmail.com>
Reply-To: "arorarajan@gmail.com" <arorarajan@gmail.com>
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 at 4:10 PM
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
Cc: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>, "Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)"
<claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org>, "Li, Michael (CPC)" <michael.j.li@sfgov.org>
Subject: Adverse impacts of Grubstake project
 

 

Dear Commissioners,
 
I'm a resident of 1545 Pine st in the stack that does not have any street facing windows. Our Only
source of light is from the lightwell facing east towards Grubstake. This stack includes 2 BMR homes
as well.
 
Please let me begin by saying that we are Not against rebuilding the Grubstake. The project sponsors
have been very misleading in their arguments and a recent scrupulous email was generated by their
team targeting several residents in the neighborhood. It's with the subject "Support Rebuilding
Grubstake Diner" addressing all commissioners, and was sent out as a click-bait tricking residents
into clicking on a link, which sent out the email to all commissioners by just clicking one button. We
don't know who from the project sponsor's team sent this targeted email but it is highly
misrepresentative of our concerns and misguides the residents who are being targeted for this click-
bait action that is a really terrible tactic deployed by the project sponsors. I request that
this commission consider disregarding any such emails that were received in the last week or so.
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Next, I would also like to draw some attention towards a different project that this commission
reviewed for 198 Valencia st, which was going to block sunlight to the outdoor seating area for
Zeitgiest's beer garden across Valencia street. A shadow study was ordered and the commission
ruled in favor of Not blocking sunlight by lowering the proposed development's height. 
 
Several of us in the Austin are in similar situations. We had purchased our homes with the
knowledge of having continued access to direct sunlight, for as long as we lived here. The windows
in the lightwell are our Only source of light for homes in the center stack, which includes 2 BMR
homes - one of which is occupied by a physically handicapped resident. Even with the updated
project proposal to add ambient lighting, it does not come anywhere close to being a replacement
for direct sunlight from the east, or natural light. 
 
During the previous hearing on Grubstake project - this group of commissioners had requested
project sponsors to come up with a significantly different design to alleviate natural light concerns.
That is Not what the sponsors are presenting tomorrow. It is the same exact design just with a few
ambient lights added. In our opinion - it should be outright denied from hearing as it's the same
exact plan being presented again without any real modifications. Which goes against the rules of this
comission.
 
On behalf of myself and my neighbors facing east from the lightwell of the Austin, I would like to
Urge this comission to please consider the real impact on our lives and what's really at stake here.
There are already 200+ housing units approved within the last year in this immediate neighborhood
in a 2 block radius. We really should be considering the severe adverse impact to the lives of 16+
homes in the Austin that are being impacted by the developer's plans with use of the SDP. Which
only adds 4 additional studio units in return. The units impacted to units gained, just doesn't
compare - and the project sponsor is not even adding any additional BMR units while using the the
SDP. They still just offer 1 BMR unit in this entire development.
 
Lastly - with regards to the use of State Density Program, we appreciate that this comission has
sought additional presentations and clarifications from planning staff. I hope the comission realizes
that the SDP does not emasculate this comission's authority, and hope it is not perceived as such.
Rebuilding the Grubstake with 3-4 stories of housing above that does not impact homeowners in the
Austin's lightwell, is a plan that several of us are in support of. And we would request the comission
to provide similar guidance to project sponsors so we can all collectively move forward in keeping
alive this diner, and not fall into a greed for a bigger project at the cost of people's lives and health
safety.
 
With Regards
Rajan Arora
 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 4:34:18 PM

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

﻿On 7/21/21, 4:26 PM, "Lois Langevin-King, LMT CD" <positivebirth1@gmail.com> wrote:

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

    Lois Langevin-King
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
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 4:34:10 PM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Paul Miller <paul@academy-sf.com>
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 at 4:27 PM
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
Subject: FW: Project 2021-002978CUA / 555 Fulton / Trader Joe"s
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 3:35:53 PM

 
 
 
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
 

From: Mich <hvsfcaus@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 2:00 PM
To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Smeallie, Kyle (BOS) <kyle.smeallie@sfgov.org>; Preston, Dean (BOS) <dean.preston@sfgov.org>;
MAGIE CRYSTAL <magie@allaprimalingerie.com>; Nabilas Naturals <nabilassf96@gmail.com>;
info@hvsba.org
Subject: Project 2021-002978CUA / 555 Fulton / Trader Joe's
 

 

Dear San Francisco Planning Commission:
 
The Hayes Valley Small Business Association (HVSBA) does not support the proposal for a Trader
Joe’s in Hayes Valley. Loopholes in the enforcement of Formula Retail Ban (FRB) have allowed for
a significant increase in Formula Retail Chains. The economic impact of Covid-19 is facilitating the
exploitation of those loopholes.
 
A chain store of this size coming to the neighborhood is alarming. The impact it will have on
existing independent small businesses, traffic, parking and local hires gravely concerns us.  
 
555 Fulton was set to usher in a “family grocery store” - which Trader Joe’s definitively is not. A
national chain with centralized purchasing and marketing power threatens the very foundation the
merchant corridor of Hayes Valley was built upon. 
 
As our businesses struggle to recover from the impact of the pandemic, we are entering a critical
period which will likely determine their survival as well as the character of our business community.
Our organization, HVSBA, requests that you consider the additional stress of this weakening of the
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formula retail ban on our local merchants. 
 
Please reconsider this approval.

Best,
Mich, Magie and Ramiz
HVSBA

https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=https%3A//www.hvsba.org/&g=MDgxZDIxMDhmZTc1OWQ0Zg==&h=ZjU3MzllOWMyOGE0MTQzNzZmMjUwNzhiODRjMmU1OGY2YjE0MjgyNzEzZDJhMmQyN2RjZjgyYzlkMzNiMDM4OQ==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjEwMjczYjJmYjQyNzhjNzg1MmFlM2M3MzgzODMwZWZiOnYx


 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Project 2021-002978CUA / 555 Fulton / Trader Joe"s
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 2:12:40 PM

 
 
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
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 at 2:00 PM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>, CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: "Smeallie, Kyle (BOS)" <kyle.smeallie@sfgov.org>, "Preston, Dean (BOS)"
<dean.preston@sfgov.org>, MAGIE CRYSTAL <magie@allaprimalingerie.com>, Nabilas
Naturals <nabilassf96@gmail.com>, "info@hvsba.org" <info@hvsba.org>
Subject: Project 2021-002978CUA / 555 Fulton / Trader Joe's
 

 

Dear San Francisco Planning Commission:
 
The Hayes Valley Small Business Association (HVSBA) does not support the proposal for a
Trader Joe’s in Hayes Valley. Loopholes in the enforcement of Formula Retail Ban (FRB)
have allowed for a significant increase in Formula Retail Chains. The economic impact of
Covid-19 is facilitating the exploitation of those loopholes.
 
A chain store of this size coming to the neighborhood is alarming. The impact it will have on
existing independent small businesses, traffic, parking and local hires gravely concerns us.
 
 
555 Fulton was set to usher in a “family grocery store” - which Trader Joe’s definitively is
not. A national chain with centralized purchasing and marketing power threatens the very
foundation the merchant corridor of Hayes Valley was built upon. 
 
As our businesses struggle to recover from the impact of the pandemic, we are entering a
critical period which will likely determine their survival as well as the character of our
business community. Our organization, HVSBA, requests that you consider the additional
stress of this weakening of the formula retail ban on our local merchants. 
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
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Enchill, Charles (CPC)
Subject: FW: 400 California Street - 2020-010710CUA - Revised Motion
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 1:26:39 PM
Attachments: 2020-010710CUA_400 California Street_Revised DRAFT Motion.pdf

2020-010710CUA_400 California Street_Revised DRAFT Motion.docx

 
 
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
 
 

From: "Enchill, Charles (CPC)" <charles.enchill@sfgov.org>
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 at 12:50 PM
To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>
Subject: 400 California Street - 2020-010710CUA - Revised Motion
 
Hello Commission Secretary,

Attached are edits to the draft motion for distribution to the Planning Commission. 

The revised motion adds a substantive condition (#17 Tenant Guidelines, pp. 14-15) as presented to
the HPC regarding best practices for tenant improvements. Additionally, minor factual
corrections/edits on pp. 3, 6, and 7.
 

Thank you,

 

Charles Enchill, Preservation Planner

Northeast Team / Current Planning Division
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7551 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

Expanded in-person services at the Permit Center at 49 South Van Ness Avenue are
available. Most other San Francisco Planning functions are being conducted remotely. Our
staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are
convening remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our
services here. 
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Planning Commission Draft Motion 
HEARING DATE: JULY 22, 2021 


 


Record No.: 2020-010710CUA 
Project Address: 400 California Street 
Zoning: Downtown-Office (C-3-O) Zoning District 
 350-S Height and Bulk District 
Block/Lot: 0239/003 
Project Sponsor: Michael Eadie 
 400 California, LLC 
  Newport Beach, CA 92663 
Property Owner: Kennedy Wilson 
 505 Montgomery Street, Suite 1102 
  San Francisco, CA 94111 
Staff Contact: Charles Enchill – 628-652-7551 
 Charles.Enchill@sfgov.org  
 
 
ADOPTING FINDINGS TO APPROVE A CONDITIONAL USE AUTHORIZATION PURSUANT TO PLANNING CODE 
SECTIONS 210.2 AND 303 TO ALLOW THE CONVERSION OF 9,330 SQUARE FEET OF RETAIL SPACE TO OFFICE SPACE 
AT THE GROUND FLOOR OF AN EXISTING TWO-STORY BUILDING (ONE-STORY WITH BASEMENT) AT THE SUBJECT 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 400 CALIFORNIA STREET, LOT 003 IN ASSESSOR’S BLOCK 0239, WITHIN THE C-3-O 
(DOWNTOWN-OFFICE) ZONING DISTRICT AND A 350-S HEIGHT AND BULK DISTRICT, AND ADOPTING FINDINGS 
UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT. 
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PREAMBLE 
On November 24, 2020, Michael Eadie of Kennedy Wilson (hereinafter “Project Sponsor”) filed Application No. 
2020-010710CUA (hereinafter “Application”) with the San Francisco Planning Department (hereinafter 
“Department”) for a Conditional Use Authorization to establish 9,330 square feet of office use at the ground floor 
of the subject building at 400 California Street, Lot 003 in Assessor’s Block 0239 (hereinafter “Project Site”).  
 
The Project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) as a Class 1 categorical exemption. 
 
On July 15, 2021, the San Francisco Planning Commission (hereinafter “Commission”) conducted a duly noticed 
public hearing at a regularly scheduled meeting on Conditional Use Authorization Application No. 2020-
010710CUA. At that hearing, the Commission continued the item to a regular hearing on July 22, 2021. 
 
The Planning Department Commission Secretary is the Custodian of Records; the File for Record No. 2020-
010710CUA is located at 49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, California. 
 
The Commission has heard and considered the testimony presented to it at the public hearing and has further 
considered written materials and oral testimony presented on behalf of the applicant, Department staff, and other 
interested parties. 
 
MOVED, that the Commission hereby authorizes the Conditional Use Authorization as requested in Application No. 
2020-010710CUA, subject to the conditions contained in “EXHIBIT A” of this motion, based on the following 
findings: 
 


FINDINGS 


Having reviewed the materials identified in the preamble above, and having heard all testimony and arguments, 
this Commission finds, concludes, and determines as follows: 
 


1. The above recitals are accurate and constitute findings of this Commission. 


2. Project Description. The Project includes conversion of 9,330 square feet of retail space into office 
space at the ground floor of an existing two-story building (one-story with basement). Associated interior 
alterations include: widening of an interior connection at the subject property to the adjacent 21-story 
building (430 California Street) and removal of the existing entry vestibule. Exterior work will be limited to 
replacement of the main entry doors, side lite windows and transom windows. No changes to the 
Sansome Street and Halleck Alley facades are proposed. 


3. Site Description and Present Use. 400 California Street is located on the north side of California Street 
between Leidesdorff Street and Sansome Street (Assessor’s Block 0239; Lot 003).  The subject building is 
Landmark No. 3 (Bank of California), locally designated under Article 10 of the Planning Code. The building 
is also an Article 11 Category I “Significant Building.”  The Classical Revivalist, two-story (ground 
floor plus basement) building, which was completed in 1908, was designed by Bliss & Faville, and 
modeled after the Knickerbocker Bank building in New York City by McKim, Mead & White. The building 
was expanded to the west with the construction of the 21-story Bank of California Tower at 430 California 
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Street in 1967-1968, which was designed by Ashen + Allen. 430 California Street is located on a separate 
parcel (Block/Lot 0239/029) but is internally connected to 400 California Street. The property most 
recently served as a retail bank. 


4. Surrounding Properties and Neighborhood. The Project Site is located within the C-3-O Zoning District 
and the sector covered by the Downtown Area Plan. The immediate context is predominantly office with 
retail uses often found at the lowest levels. As this portion of downtown is characterized by mid to high 
rise towers, the Project Site is generally consistent with these heights. Transit options abound as the 
property fronts on Sansome and California Streets, and is a few blocks north from Market Street. Other 
zoning districts in the vicinity of the Project Site include the C-2 (Community Business) and CCB 
(Chinatown Community Business) Zoning Districts. 


5. Public Outreach and Comments.  As of the drafting of this report, no public comment has been received. 


6. Planning Code Compliance. The Commission finds that the Project is consistent with the relevant 
provisions of the Planning Code in the following manner: 


A. Use. Planning Code Section 210.2 states that a Conditional Use Authorization is required for office use 
at or below the ground floor.  


The Project proposes to provide new office space at the ground floor. The office use will also maintain 
public access to the historic banking hall interior. 


7. Conditional Use Findings. Planning Code Section 303 establishes criteria for the Planning Commission 
to consider when reviewing applications for Conditional Use authorization. On balance, the project 
complies with said criteria in that: 


A. The proposed new uses and building, at the size and intensity contemplated and at the proposed 
location, will provide a development that is necessary or desirable, and compatible with, the 
neighborhood or the community. 


The additional office space is necessary and desirable, and compatible with the surrounding 
neighborhood. The subject property is in the C-3-0 Zoning District, which transitions from the more mixed 
uses of the C-3-R to a relatively dedicated office district. As the shift to online services continues to grow, 
in-person banking will likely see less and less demand. Finally, the subject building is an individually 
designated historic resource with both an interior and exterior composition that are not conducive to 
typical retail uses. 


The structure has had a retail and public-facing use component from its original completion up until the 
most recent tenant, dba Union Bank, vacated the building in 2020. Conversion to a wholly private office 
use could eliminate this aspect of the property and preclude the ability of the general public to see and 
experience the historic interior volumes and features. To account for this, recommended Condition of 
Approval No. 16 contains measures that would ensure public access to the overall interior is retained. 


B. The proposed project will not be detrimental to the health, safety, convenience or general welfare of 
persons residing or working in the vicinity. There are no features of the project that could be 


Deleted: , and that such access is in fact encouraged when it 
comes to the rotunda and main lobby
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detrimental to the health, safety or convenience of those residing or working the area, in that:  


(1) Nature of proposed site, including its size and shape, and the proposed size, shape and 
arrangement of structures;  
 
The height and bulk of the existing building will remain the same and will not alter the existing 
appearance or character of the project vicinity. The proposed work will not affect the building 
envelope. 


(2) The accessibility and traffic patterns for persons and vehicles, the type and volume of such 
traffic, and the adequacy of proposed off-street parking and loading;  


The Project Site, located downtown, is very well served by public transit. The property is a few 
blocks north of the Montgomery Street MUNI and BART station, as well as a MUNI bus lines 
running along Sansome Street and a cable car that runs along California Street. Employees of 
the new office use will be able to walk, ride a bicycle, or take public transportation to the 
property and other parts of downtown, avoiding the need for a single-rider, vehicular commute. 
The proposed use is designed to meet the needs of the immediate neighborhood and should 
not generate significant amounts of vehicular trips from the immediate neighborhood or 
citywide. 


(3) The safeguards afforded to prevent noxious or offensive emissions such as noise, glare, dust 
and odor;  
 
The proposed use is subject to the standard conditions of approval for garbage treatment and 
disposal. The new office use is not anticipated to produce noxious or offensive emissions. 


(4) Treatment given, as appropriate, to such aspects as landscaping, screening, open spaces, 
parking and loading areas, service areas, lighting and signs;  


The project largely entails the interior remodel of an existing structure occupying the entirety of 
its parcel, thus landscaping, screening, and new open spaces are not proposed.  


C. That the use as proposed will comply with the applicable provisions of the Planning Code and 
will not adversely affect the General Plan. 


The Project complies with all relevant requirements and standards of the Planning Code and is 
consistent with objectives and policies of the General Plan as detailed below. 


D. That the use as proposed would provide development that is in conformity with the purpose of 
the applicable Neighborhood Commercial District. 


The proposed project is not located within any Neighborhood Commercial District, but rather the 
Downtown-Office Zoning District (C-3-O). Planning Code Section 303(g) contains no specific criteria 
tied to ground floor office uses in the C-3-O. 
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8. General Plan Compliance. The Project is, on balance, consistent with the following Objectives and 
Policies of the General Plan: 


DOWNTOWN PLAN AREA 


Objectives and Policies 
 
OBJECTIVE 2 
MAINTAIN AND IMPROVE SAN FRANCISCO’S POSITION AS A PRIME LOCATION FOR FINANCIAL, 
ADMINISTRATIVE, CORPORATE, AND PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITY 
 
Policy 2.1 
Encourage prime downtown office activities to grow as long as undesirable consequences of such growth 
can be controlled. 
 
Policy 2.2 
Guide location of office development to maintain a compact downtown core and minimize displacement 
of other uses. 
 


COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY ELEMENT 


Objectives and Policies 
 


OBJECTIVE 2 
MAINTAIN AND ENHANCE A SOUND AND DIVERSE ECONOMIC BASE AND FISCAL STRUCTURE 
FOR THE CITY 
 
Policy 2.1 
Seek to retain existing commercial and industrial activity and to attract new such activity to the city. 
 


TRANSPORTATION ELEMENT 


Objectives and Policies 
 


OBJECTIVE 2 
USE THE TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM AS A MEANS FOR GUIDING DEVELOPMENT AND 
IMPROVING THE ECONOMY. 
 
Policy 2.1 
Use rapid transit and other transportation improvements in the city and region as a catalyst for desirable 
development, and coordinate new facilities with public and private development. 
 


URBAN DESIGN ELEMENT 


Objectives and Policies 
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OBJECTIVE 2 
CONSERVATION OF RESOURCES WHICH PROVIDE A SENSE OF NATURE, CONTINUITY WITH THE 
PAST, AND FREEDOM FROM OVERCROWDING. 
 
Policy 2.4 
Preserve notable landmarks and areas of historic, architectural, or aesthetic value, and promote the 
preservation of other buildings and features that provide continuity with past development. 
 
Policy 2.5 
Use care in remodeling of older buildings, in order to enhance rather than weaken the original character 
of such buildings. 


 
The Project would add an office space at a location well-served by existing and future public-transit options that is 
also within walking distance to a diversity of goods and services available to employees of the office tenant(s). The 
new office use will likely draw a tenant or tenants whose employees likely would not rely on private vehicles, and 
many employees will be able to walk to the Property from the SoMa, Downtown, Jackson Square and Chinatown 
neighborhoods. The Project’s location and proximity to public transit encourage growth while limiting potential 
impacts on traffic and utilizing transit options to guide development. Given the nature of the subject building’s 
historic interior and exterior, the property is not conducive to most retail uses. The conversion to office use will 
ensure that the structure remains occupied and maintained without resulting in the diminishment of its historic 
character. As the subject structure is an individually designated historic resource, the proposed alterations to the 
exterior and interior went through an extensive review pursuant to CEQA, which included consideration of interior 
character-defining features; the widening of an interior connection to 430 California Street; removal of the entry 
vestibule and replacement of main entry doors, sidelights, and transom windows. The review resulted in a 
determination that the proposed work adheres to the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation and 
would not result in an impact to the resource. 


 
9. Planning Code Section 101.1(b) establishes eight priority-planning policies and requires review of 


permits for consistency with said policies. On balance, the project complies with said policies in that:  


A. That existing neighborhood-serving retail uses be preserved and enhanced and future 
opportunities for resident employment in and ownership of such businesses be enhanced.  
 
The Project Site was previously occupied by retail use for Union Bank. This retail component would 
be eliminated at the subject property, but there remain ample banking service locations in the 
immediate vicinity and throughout downtown. These locations include, but are not limited to: Union 
Bank’s new location one block to the east, and retail banks one block to the south and one to the 
west. 


B. That existing housing and neighborhood character be conserved and protected in order to 
preserve the cultural and economic diversity of our neighborhoods. 


The Project Site does not possess any existing housing; it is a strictly commercial property and will 
remain so. 


Deleted: FREEDROM 


Deleted: Tenderloin 
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C. That the City's supply of affordable housing be preserved and enhanced. 


The Project Site is a strictly commercial property and will remain so.  


D. That commuter traffic not impede MUNI transit service or overburden our streets or 
neighborhood parking.  


The Project Site, located downtown, is very well served by public transit. The property is a few blocks 
north of the Montgomery Street MUNI and BART station, as well as a MUNI bus lines running along 
Sansome Street and a cable car that runs along California Street. Employees of the new office use 
will be able to walk, ride a bicycle, or take public transportation to the property and other parts of 
downtown, avoiding the need for a single-rider, vehicular commute. The proposed use is designed 
to meet the needs of the immediate neighborhood and should not generate significant amounts of 
vehicular trips from the immediate neighborhood or citywide. 


E. That a diverse economic base be maintained by protecting our industrial and service sectors from 
displacement due to commercial office development, and that future opportunities for resident 
employment and ownership in these sectors be enhanced. 


The subject property already serves a largely office use in the Downtown-Office Zoning District. The 
provision of a relatively small amount of additional office space will not endanger industrial and 
service sectors or diminish future opportunities for resident employment and ownership in those 
sectors. New office employees are anticipated to increase the demand for, and patronage of, 
existing and new retail uses in the immediate vicinity and throughout downtown. 


F. That the City achieve the greatest possible preparedness to protect against injury and loss of life 
in an earthquake. 


The project sponsor has already completed a seismic retrofit of the building in anticipation of re-
tenanting the building and the proposed change of use, therefore, the Project will not impact the 
property’s ability to withstand an earthquake. 


G. That landmarks and historic buildings be preserved. 


The subject building is individually designated landmark under Article 10 of the Planning Code. The 
proposed interior and exterior alterations have been found to satisfy the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards for Rehabilitation and the project will not adversely affect the historic resource. 


H. That our parks and open space and their access to sunlight and vistas be protected from 
development.  
 
The Project will have no effect on parks and open spaces and their access to sunlight and vistas. 


10. The Project is consistent with and would promote the general and specific purposes of the Code provided 
under Section 101.1(b) in that, as designed, the Project would contribute to the character and stability of 
the neighborhood and would constitute a beneficial development.  


Deleted: The Project will be designed and constructed to 
conform to the structural and seismic safety requirements of the 
Building Code. The


Deleted: improve 


Deleted:  as it will be constructed to current code
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11. The Commission hereby finds that approval of the Conditional Use Authorization would promote the 
health, safety, and welfare of the City. 
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DECISION 


That based upon the Record, the submissions by the Applicant, the staff of the Department and other interested 
parties, the oral testimony presented to this Commission at the public hearings, and all other written materials 
submitted by all parties, the Commission hereby APPROVES Conditional Use Authorization Application No. 
2020-010710CUA subject to the following conditions attached hereto as “EXHIBIT A” in general conformance with 
plans on file, dated November 18, 2020, and stamped “EXHIBIT B”, which is incorporated herein by reference as 
though fully set forth. 
 
APPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE OF MOTION: Any aggrieved person may appeal this Conditional Use Authorization 
to the Board of Supervisors within thirty (30) days after the date of this Motion. The effective date of this Motion 
shall be the date of this Motion if not appealed (after the 30-day period has expired) OR the date of the decision of 
the Board of Supervisors if appealed to the Board of Supervisors. For further information, please contact the Board 
of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184, City Hall, Room 244, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San Francisco, CA 94102. 
 
Protest of Fee or Exaction: You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 that is 
imposed as a condition of approval by following the procedures set forth in Government Code Section 66020. The 
protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of 
the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development referencing the challenged fee or 
exaction. For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee shall be the date of 
the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.  
 
If the City has not previously given Notice of an earlier discretionary approval of the project, the Planning 
Commission’s adoption of this Motion, Resolution, Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s 
Variance Decision Letter constitutes the approval or conditional approval of the development and the City hereby 
gives NOTICE that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun. If the City has 
already given Notice that the 90-day approval period has begun for the subject development, then this document 
does not re-commence the 90-day approval period. 
 
I hereby certify that the Planning Commission ADOPTED the foregoing Motion on July 22, 2021. 
 
 
Jonas P. Ionin 
Commission Secretary 
 
 
AYES:    


NAYS:    


ABSENT:   


ADOPTED: July 22, 2021 
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EXHIBIT A 
Authorization 


This authorization is for a conditional use to allow the conversion of 9,330 square feet of retail space to office space 
at the ground floor of the property located at 400 California Street, Block 0239, Lot 003 pursuant to Planning Code 
Sections 210.2 and 303 within the C-3-O (Downtown-Office) Zoning District and a 350-S Height and Bulk District; 
in general conformance with plans, dated 11/18/2020, and stamped “EXHIBIT B” included in the docket for Record 
No. 2020-010710CUA and subject to conditions of approval reviewed and approved by the Commission on July 
22, 2021 under Motion No. XXXXX. This authorization and the conditions contained herein run with the property 
and not with a particular Project Sponsor, business, or operator. 
 


Recordation of Conditions Of Approval 


Prior to the issuance of the building permit or commencement of use for the Project the Zoning Administrator 
shall approve and order the recordation of a Notice in the Official Records of the Recorder of the City and County 
of San Francisco for the subject property. This Notice shall state that the project is subject to the conditions of 
approval contained herein and reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on July 22, 2021 under 
Motion No. XXXXX. 
 


Printing of Conditions of Approval on Plans 


The conditions of approval under the 'Exhibit A' of this Planning Commission Motion No. XXXXX shall be 
reproduced on the Index Sheet of construction plans submitted with the site or building permit application for the 
Project. The Index Sheet of the construction plans shall reference to the Conditional Use authorization and any 
subsequent amendments or modifications.  
 


Severability 


The Project shall comply with all applicable City codes and requirements. If any clause, sentence, section or any 
part of these conditions of approval is for any reason held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect or impair 
other remaining clauses, sentences, or sections of these conditions. This decision conveys no right to construct, 
or to receive a building permit. “Project Sponsor” shall include any subsequent responsible party. 
 


Changes and Modifications  


Changes to the approved plans may be approved administratively by the Zoning Administrator. Significant 
changes and modifications of conditions shall require Planning Commission approval of a new Conditional Use 
authorization.  
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Conditions of Approval, Compliance,  
Monitoring, and Reporting 


Performance 


1. Validity. The authorization and right vested by virtue of this action is valid for three (3) years from the effective 
date of the Motion. The Department of Building Inspection shall have issued a Building Permit or Site Permit 
to construct the project and/or commence the approved use within this three-year period. 
 
For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 


2. Expiration and Renewal. Should a Building or Site Permit be sought after the three (3) year period has lapsed, 
the project sponsor must seek a renewal of this Authorization by filing an application for an amendment to 
the original Authorization or a new application for Authorization. Should the project sponsor decline to so file, 
and decline to withdraw the permit application, the Commission shall conduct a public hearing in order to 
consider the revocation of the Authorization. Should the Commission not revoke the Authorization following 
the closure of the public hearing, the Commission shall determine the extension of time for the continued 
validity of the Authorization. 


For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463,  
www.sfplanning.org 


3. Diligent Pursuit. Once a site or Building Permit has been issued, construction must commence within the 
timeframe required by the Department of Building Inspection and be continued diligently to completion. 
Failure to do so shall be grounds for the Commission to consider revoking the approval if more than three (3) 
years have passed since this Authorization was approved. 


For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 


4. Extension. All time limits in the preceding three paragraphs may be extended at the discretion of the Zoning 
Administrator where implementation of the project is delayed by a public agency, an appeal or a legal 
challenge and only by the length of time for which such public agency, appeal or challenge has caused delay. 
 
For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 


5. Conformity with Current Law. No application for Building Permit, Site Permit, or other entitlement shall be 
approved unless it complies with all applicable provisions of City Codes in effect at the time of such approval. 
 
For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 
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Design – Compliance at Plan Stage 


6. Final Materials. The Project Sponsor shall continue to work with Planning Department on the building design. 
Final materials, glazing, color, texture, landscaping, and detailing shall be subject to Department staff review 
and approval. The architectural addenda shall be reviewed and approved by the Planning Department prior 
to issuance.  


For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7319, 
www.sfplanning.org 


7. Garbage, Composting and Recycling Storage. Space for the collection and storage of garbage, composting, 
and recycling shall be provided within enclosed areas on the property and clearly labeled and illustrated on 
the building permit plans. Space for the collection and storage of recyclable and compostable materials that 
meets the size, location, accessibility and other standards specified by the San Francisco Recycling Program 
shall be provided at the ground level of the buildings.  


For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7319, 
www.sfplanning.org 


8. Rooftop Mechanical Equipment. Pursuant to Planning Code 141, the Project Sponsor shall submit a roof 
plan to the Planning Department prior to Planning approval of the building permit application. Rooftop 
mechanical equipment, if any is proposed as part of the Project, is required to be screened so as not to be 
visible from any point at or below the roof level of the subject building. 


For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7319, 
www.sfplanning.org  


Parking and Traffic 


9. Managing Traffic During Construction. The Project Sponsor and construction contractor(s) shall coordinate 
with the Traffic Engineering and Transit Divisions of the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency 
(SFMTA), the Police Department, the Fire Department, the Planning Department, and other construction 
contractor(s) for any concurrent nearby Projects to manage traffic congestion and pedestrian circulation 
during construction of the Project. 


For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 


Provisions 


10. Transportation Sustainability Fee. The Project is subject to the Transportation Sustainability Fee (TSF), as 
applicable, pursuant to Planning Code Section 411A. 


For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7319, 
www.sfplanning.org 
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11. Downtown Park Fee - C-3 District. The Project is subject to the Downtown Park Fee, as applicable, pursuant 
to Planning Code Section 412. 


For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7319, 
www.sfplanning.org 


Monitoring - After Entitlement 


12. Enforcement. Violation of any of the Planning Department conditions of approval contained in this Motion or 
of any other provisions of Planning Code applicable to this Project shall be subject to the enforcement 
procedures and administrative penalties set forth under Planning Code Section 176 or Section 176.1. The 
Planning Department may also refer the violation complaints to other city departments and agencies for 
appropriate enforcement action under their jurisdiction. 


For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 


13. Revocation due to Violation of Conditions. Should implementation of this Project result in complaints from 
interested property owners, residents, or commercial lessees which are not resolved by the Project Sponsor 
and found to be in violation of the Planning Code and/or the specific conditions of approval for the Project as 
set forth in Exhibit A of this Motion, the Zoning Administrator shall refer such complaints to the Commission, 
after which it may hold a public hearing on the matter to consider revocation of this authorization. 
 
For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 


Operation 


14. Sidewalk Maintenance. The Project Sponsor shall maintain the main entrance to the building and all 
sidewalks abutting the subject property in a clean and sanitary condition in compliance with the Department 
of Public Works Streets and Sidewalk Maintenance Standards. 


For information about compliance, contact Bureau of Street Use and Mapping, Department of Public Works, 
628.271.2000, www.sfpublicworks.org 


15. Community Liaison. Prior to issuance of a building permit to construct the project and implement the 
approved use, the Project Sponsor shall appoint a community liaison officer to deal with the issues of concern 
to owners and occupants of nearby properties. The Project Sponsor shall provide the Zoning Administrator 
and all registered neighborhood groups for the area with written notice of the name, business address, and 
telephone number of the community liaison. Should the contact information change, the Zoning 
Administrator and registered neighborhood groups shall be made aware of such change. The community 
liaison shall report to the Zoning Administrator what issues, if any, are of concern to the community and what 
issues have not been resolved by the Project Sponsor. 


For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 
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16. Public Access. In order to maintain public access to the historic banking hall interior the property owner shall 
adhere to the following measures: 


• An historic/interpretive display and online program shall be provided. The property owner shall 
coordinate with the Planning Department to develop and implement these measures. Both are to be 
completed prior to issuance of the building permit. 


• Architectural tours of the banking hall shall be open to the public and operated at least once per 
month. 
 


17. Tenant Guidelines. Tenant Guidelines have been developed to inform future tenant improvements. They 
apply to features that will be fixed, such as partitions. These guidelines do not apply to furniture or other 
moveable features. The guidelines are intended to protect character-defining features in the Project’s 
banking hall while allowing tenants to build out spaces that reflect their identity and brand, but are not 
intended to prohibit proposed future modifications which may, depending on the proposal, require a new 
Certificate of Appropriateness. They are not strict requirements but rather represent general guidance for 
future tenant improvements.  


• General Design Principles 


o Modifications to the historic Banking Hall should allow continued perception of the sense 
of its historic volume of space. 


o Material finishes should have an office aesthetic. An industrial aesthetic, such as exposed 
mechanical ducts, is not appropriate. 


o Design of tenant improvements should be distinct from the original fabric of the space but 
compatible to the Banking Hall. 


o  Removal of historic materials should be avoided to the extent practicable. 


o New construction should be limited to the extent practicable to below the Greek key frieze 
datum line below the pilasters. 


o If a privacy screen is programmatically required near the entry, its height should be limited 
so that it is no taller than the datum line created by the bottom of the Greek key frieze 
below the pilasters. 


o Refrain from attaching new construction to historic features, especially those above the 
Greek key frieze datum line, to the extent practicable. 


o New tenant improvements should comply with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards 
for Rehabilitation. 


• Compatible Materials 


The materials listed below are identified as being compatible with the banking hall space. 
These guidelines are not intended to restrict the use of materials that are not listed below. 


o Plaster 


o Finished and painted drywall 
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o Stone with tones that are compatible with the existing colors in the space or similar to the 
marble seen in historic photos 


o Metals similar to the existing metals in the space, such as the lattice screen of the windows 
or the bronze used in teller partitions as seen in the historic photos 


o Wood 


• Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing, and Life Safety Equipment 


o Mechanical, electrical, and plumbing services should be hidden, not exposed. 


o Fire sprinklers and other life safety features should be hidden to the extent possible. 


o Anchorage methods of these features should be reversible. 


o Do not attach mechanical, electrical, and plumbing equipment to character-defining 
features. 


 
For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 
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ADOPTING FINDINGS TO APPROVE A CONDITIONAL USE AUTHORIZATION PURSUANT TO PLANNING CODE SECTIONS 210.2 AND 303 TO ALLOW THE CONVERSION OF 9,330 SQUARE FEET OF RETAIL SPACE TO OFFICE SPACE AT THE GROUND FLOOR OF AN EXISTING TWO-STORY BUILDING (ONE-STORY WITH BASEMENT) AT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY LOCATED AT 400 CALIFORNIA STREET, LOT 003 IN ASSESSOR’S BLOCK 0239, WITHIN THE C-3-O (DOWNTOWN-OFFICE) ZONING DISTRICT AND A 350-S HEIGHT AND BULK DISTRICT, AND ADOPTING FINDINGS UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT.






PREAMBLE

On November 24, 2020, Michael Eadie of Kennedy Wilson (hereinafter “Project Sponsor”) filed Application No. 2020-010710CUA (hereinafter “Application”) with the San Francisco Planning Department (hereinafter “Department”) for a Conditional Use Authorization to establish 9,330 square feet of office use at the ground floor of the subject building at 400 California Street, Lot 003 in Assessor’s Block 0239 (hereinafter “Project Site”). 



The Project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) as a Class 1 categorical exemption.



On July 15, 2021, the San Francisco Planning Commission (hereinafter “Commission”) conducted a duly noticed public hearing at a regularly scheduled meeting on Conditional Use Authorization Application No. 2020-010710CUA. At that hearing, the Commission continued the item to a regular hearing on July 22, 2021.



The Planning Department Commission Secretary is the Custodian of Records; the File for Record No. 2020-010710CUA is located at 49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, California.



The Commission has heard and considered the testimony presented to it at the public hearing and has further considered written materials and oral testimony presented on behalf of the applicant, Department staff, and other interested parties.



MOVED, that the Commission hereby authorizes the Conditional Use Authorization as requested in Application No. 2020-010710CUA, subject to the conditions contained in “EXHIBIT A” of this motion, based on the following findings:



FINDINGS

Having reviewed the materials identified in the preamble above, and having heard all testimony and arguments, this Commission finds, concludes, and determines as follows:



1. The above recitals are accurate and constitute findings of this Commission.

2. Project Description. The Project includes conversion of 9,330 square feet of retail space into office space at the ground floor of an existing two-story building (one-story with basement). Associated interior alterations include: widening of an interior connection at the subject property to the adjacent 21-story building (430 California Street) and removal of the existing entry vestibule. Exterior work will be limited to replacement of the main entry doors, side lite windows and transom windows. No changes to the Sansome Street and Halleck Alley facades are proposed.

3. Site Description and Present Use. 400 California Street is located on the north side of California Street between Leidesdorff Street and Sansome Street (Assessor’s Block 0239; Lot 003).  The subject building is Landmark No. 3 (Bank of California), locally designated under Article 10 of the Planning Code. The building is also an Article 11 Category I “Significant Building.”  The Classical Revivalist, two-story (ground floor plus basement) building, which was completed in 1908, was designed by Bliss & Faville, and modeled after the Knickerbocker Bank building in New York City by McKim, Mead & White. The building was expanded to the west with the construction of the 21-story Bank of California Tower at 430 California Street in 1967-1968, which was designed by Ashen + Allen. 430 California Street is located on a separate parcel (Block/Lot 0239/029) but is internally connected to 400 California Street. The property most recently served as a retail bank.

4. Surrounding Properties and Neighborhood. The Project Site is located within the C-3-O Zoning District and the sector covered by the Downtown Area Plan. The immediate context is predominantly office with retail uses often found at the lowest levels. As this portion of downtown is characterized by mid to high rise towers, the Project Site is generally consistent with these heights. Transit options abound as the property fronts on Sansome and California Streets, and is a few blocks north from Market Street. Other zoning districts in the vicinity of the Project Site include the C-2 (Community Business) and CCB (Chinatown Community Business) Zoning Districts.

5. Public Outreach and Comments.  As of the drafting of this report, no public comment has been received.

6. Planning Code Compliance. The Commission finds that the Project is consistent with the relevant provisions of the Planning Code in the following manner:

A. Use. Planning Code Section 210.2 states that a Conditional Use Authorization is required for office use at or below the ground floor. 

The Project proposes to provide new office space at the ground floor. The office use will also maintain public access to the historic banking hall interior.

7. Conditional Use Findings. Planning Code Section 303 establishes criteria for the Planning Commission to consider when reviewing applications for Conditional Use authorization. On balance, the project complies with said criteria in that:

A. The proposed new uses and building, at the size and intensity contemplated and at the proposed location, will provide a development that is necessary or desirable, and compatible with, the neighborhood or the community.

The additional office space is necessary and desirable, and compatible with the surrounding neighborhood. The subject property is in the C-3-0 Zoning District, which transitions from the more mixed uses of the C-3-R to a relatively dedicated office district. As the shift to online services continues to grow, in-person banking will likely see less and less demand. Finally, the subject building is an individually designated historic resource with both an interior and exterior composition that are not conducive to typical retail uses.

The structure has had a retail and public-facing use component from its original completion up until the most recent tenant, dba Union Bank, vacated the building in 2020. Conversion to a wholly private office use could eliminate this aspect of the property and preclude the ability of the general public to see and experience the historic interior volumes and features. To account for this, recommended Condition of Approval No. 16 contains measures that would ensure public access to the overall interior is retained, and that such access is in fact encouraged when it comes to the rotunda and main lobby.

B. The proposed project will not be detrimental to the health, safety, convenience or general welfare of persons residing or working in the vicinity. There are no features of the project that could be detrimental to the health, safety or convenience of those residing or working the area, in that: 

(1) Nature of proposed site, including its size and shape, and the proposed size, shape and arrangement of structures; 

The height and bulk of the existing building will remain the same and will not alter the existing appearance or character of the project vicinity. The proposed work will not affect the building envelope.

(2) The accessibility and traffic patterns for persons and vehicles, the type and volume of such traffic, and the adequacy of proposed off-street parking and loading; 

The Project Site, located downtown, is very well served by public transit. The property is a few blocks north of the Montgomery Street MUNI and BART station, as well as a MUNI bus lines running along Sansome Street and a cable car that runs along California Street. Employees of the new office use will be able to walk, ride a bicycle, or take public transportation to the property and other parts of downtown, avoiding the need for a single-rider, vehicular commute. The proposed use is designed to meet the needs of the immediate neighborhood and should not generate significant amounts of vehicular trips from the immediate neighborhood or citywide.

(3) The safeguards afforded to prevent noxious or offensive emissions such as noise, glare, dust and odor; 

The proposed use is subject to the standard conditions of approval for garbage treatment and disposal. The new office use is not anticipated to produce noxious or offensive emissions.

(4) Treatment given, as appropriate, to such aspects as landscaping, screening, open spaces, parking and loading areas, service areas, lighting and signs; 

The project largely entails the interior remodel of an existing structure occupying the entirety of its parcel, thus landscaping, screening, and new open spaces are not proposed. 

C. That the use as proposed will comply with the applicable provisions of the Planning Code and will not adversely affect the General Plan.

The Project complies with all relevant requirements and standards of the Planning Code and is consistent with objectives and policies of the General Plan as detailed below.

D. That the use as proposed would provide development that is in conformity with the purpose of the applicable Neighborhood Commercial District.

The proposed project is not located within any Neighborhood Commercial District, but rather the Downtown-Office Zoning District (C-3-O). Planning Code Section 303(g) contains no specific criteria tied to ground floor office uses in the C-3-O.

8. General Plan Compliance. The Project is, on balance, consistent with the following Objectives and Policies of the General Plan:

Downtown plan area

Objectives and Policies



OBJECTIVE 2

maintain and improve san francisco’s position as a prime location for financial, administrative, corporate, and professional activity



Policy 2.1

Encourage prime downtown office activities to grow as long as undesirable consequences of such growth can be controlled.



Policy 2.2

Guide location of office development to maintain a compact downtown core and minimize displacement of other uses.



Commerce and industry element

Objectives and Policies



OBJECTIVE 2

maintain and enhance a sound and diverse economic base and fiscal structure for the city



Policy 2.1

Seek to retain existing commercial and industrial activity and to attract new such activity to the city.



Transportation element

Objectives and Policies



OBJECTIVE 2

use the transportation system as a means for guiding development and improving the economy.



Policy 2.1

Use rapid transit and other transportation improvements in the city and region as a catalyst for desirable development, and coordinate new facilities with public and private development.



urban design element

Objectives and Policies





OBJECTIVE 2

conservation of resources which provide a sense of nature, continuity with the past, and freedrom freedom from overcrowding.



Policy 2.4

Preserve notable landmarks and areas of historic, architectural, or aesthetic value, and promote the preservation of other buildings and features that provide continuity with past development.



Policy 2.5

Use care in remodeling of older buildings, in order to enhance rather than weaken the original character of such buildings.



The Project would add an office space at a location well-served by existing and future public-transit options that is also within walking distance to a diversity of goods and services available to employees of the office tenant(s). The new office use will likely draw a tenant or tenants whose employees likely would not rely on private vehicles, and many employees will be able to walk to the Property from the SoMa, Downtown, Jackson Square and Tenderloin Chinatown neighborhoods. The Project’s location and proximity to public transit encourage growth while limiting potential impacts on traffic and utilizing transit options to guide development. Given the nature of the subject building’s historic interior and exterior, the property is not conducive to most retail uses. The conversion to office use will ensure that the structure remains occupied and maintained without resulting in the diminishment of its historic character. As the subject structure is an individually designated historic resource, the proposed alterations to the exterior and interior went through an extensive review pursuant to CEQA, which included consideration of interior character-defining features; the widening of an interior connection to 430 California Street; removal of the entry vestibule and replacement of main entry doors, sidelights, and transom windows. The review resulted in a determination that the proposed work adheres to the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation and would not result in an impact to the resource.



9. Planning Code Section 101.1(b) establishes eight priority-planning policies and requires review of permits for consistency with said policies. On balance, the project complies with said policies in that: 

A. That existing neighborhood-serving retail uses be preserved and enhanced and future opportunities for resident employment in and ownership of such businesses be enhanced. 

The Project Site was previously occupied by retail use for Union Bank. This retail component would be eliminated at the subject property, but there remain ample banking service locations in the immediate vicinity and throughout downtown. These locations include, but are not limited to: Union Bank’s new location one block to the east, and retail banks one block to the south and one to the west.

B. That existing housing and neighborhood character be conserved and protected in order to preserve the cultural and economic diversity of our neighborhoods.

The Project Site does not possess any existing housing; it is a strictly commercial property and will remain so.

C. That the City's supply of affordable housing be preserved and enhanced.

The Project Site is a strictly commercial property and will remain so. 

D. That commuter traffic not impede MUNI transit service or overburden our streets or neighborhood parking. 

The Project Site, located downtown, is very well served by public transit. The property is a few blocks north of the Montgomery Street MUNI and BART station, as well as a MUNI bus lines running along Sansome Street and a cable car that runs along California Street. Employees of the new office use will be able to walk, ride a bicycle, or take public transportation to the property and other parts of downtown, avoiding the need for a single-rider, vehicular commute. The proposed use is designed to meet the needs of the immediate neighborhood and should not generate significant amounts of vehicular trips from the immediate neighborhood or citywide.

E. That a diverse economic base be maintained by protecting our industrial and service sectors from displacement due to commercial office development, and that future opportunities for resident employment and ownership in these sectors be enhanced.

The subject property already serves a largely office use in the Downtown-Office Zoning District. The provision of a relatively small amount of additional office space will not endanger industrial and service sectors or diminish future opportunities for resident employment and ownership in those sectors. New office employees are anticipated to increase the demand for, and patronage of, existing and new retail uses in the immediate vicinity and throughout downtown.

F. That the City achieve the greatest possible preparedness to protect against injury and loss of life in an earthquake.

The Project will be designed and constructed to conform to the structural and seismic safety requirements of the Building Code. TheThe project sponsor has already completed a seismic retrofit of the building in anticipation of re-tenanting the building and the proposed change of use, therefore, the Project will improve not impact the property’s ability to withstand an earthquake as it will be constructed to current code.

G. That landmarks and historic buildings be preserved.

The subject building is individually designated landmark under Article 10 of the Planning Code. The proposed interior and exterior alterations have been found to satisfy the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation and the project will not adversely affect the historic resource.

H. That our parks and open space and their access to sunlight and vistas be protected from development. 

The Project will have no effect on parks and open spaces and their access to sunlight and vistas.

10. The Project is consistent with and would promote the general and specific purposes of the Code provided under Section 101.1(b) in that, as designed, the Project would contribute to the character and stability of the neighborhood and would constitute a beneficial development. 

11. The Commission hereby finds that approval of the Conditional Use Authorization would promote the health, safety, and welfare of the City.




DECISION

That based upon the Record, the submissions by the Applicant, the staff of the Department and other interested parties, the oral testimony presented to this Commission at the public hearings, and all other written materials submitted by all parties, the Commission hereby APPROVES Conditional Use Authorization Application No. 2020-010710CUA subject to the following conditions attached hereto as “EXHIBIT A” in general conformance with plans on file, dated November 18, 2020, and stamped “EXHIBIT B”, which is incorporated herein by reference as though fully set forth.



APPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE OF MOTION: Any aggrieved person may appeal this Conditional Use Authorization to the Board of Supervisors within thirty (30) days after the date of this Motion. The effective date of this Motion shall be the date of this Motion if not appealed (after the 30-day period has expired) OR the date of the decision of the Board of Supervisors if appealed to the Board of Supervisors. For further information, please contact the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184, City Hall, Room 244, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San Francisco, CA 94102.



Protest of Fee or Exaction: You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 that is imposed as a condition of approval by following the procedures set forth in Government Code Section 66020. The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development referencing the challenged fee or exaction. For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development. 



If the City has not previously given Notice of an earlier discretionary approval of the project, the Planning Commission’s adoption of this Motion, Resolution, Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter constitutes the approval or conditional approval of the development and the City hereby gives NOTICE that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun. If the City has already given Notice that the 90-day approval period has begun for the subject development, then this document does not re-commence the 90-day approval period.



I hereby certify that the Planning Commission ADOPTED the foregoing Motion on July 22, 2021.





Jonas P. Ionin

Commission Secretary





AYES:		 

NAYS:		 

ABSENT:	 

ADOPTED:	July 22, 2021




EXHIBIT A

Authorization

This authorization is for a conditional use to allow the conversion of 9,330 square feet of retail space to office space at the ground floor of the property located at 400 California Street, Block 0239, Lot 003 pursuant to Planning Code Sections 210.2 and 303 within the C-3-O (Downtown-Office) Zoning District and a 350-S Height and Bulk District; in general conformance with plans, dated 11/18/2020, and stamped “EXHIBIT B” included in the docket for Record No. 2020-010710CUA and subject to conditions of approval reviewed and approved by the Commission on July 22, 2021 under Motion No. XXXXX. This authorization and the conditions contained herein run with the property and not with a particular Project Sponsor, business, or operator.



Recordation of Conditions Of Approval

Prior to the issuance of the building permit or commencement of use for the Project the Zoning Administrator shall approve and order the recordation of a Notice in the Official Records of the Recorder of the City and County of San Francisco for the subject property. This Notice shall state that the project is subject to the conditions of approval contained herein and reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on July 22, 2021 under Motion No. XXXXX.



Printing of Conditions of Approval on Plans

The conditions of approval under the 'Exhibit A' of this Planning Commission Motion No. XXXXX shall be reproduced on the Index Sheet of construction plans submitted with the site or building permit application for the Project. The Index Sheet of the construction plans shall reference to the Conditional Use authorization and any subsequent amendments or modifications. 



Severability

The Project shall comply with all applicable City codes and requirements. If any clause, sentence, section or any part of these conditions of approval is for any reason held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect or impair other remaining clauses, sentences, or sections of these conditions. This decision conveys no right to construct, or to receive a building permit. “Project Sponsor” shall include any subsequent responsible party.



Changes and Modifications 

Changes to the approved plans may be approved administratively by the Zoning Administrator. Significant changes and modifications of conditions shall require Planning Commission approval of a new Conditional Use authorization.


Conditions of Approval, Compliance, 
Monitoring, and Reporting

Performance

1. Validity. The authorization and right vested by virtue of this action is valid for three (3) years from the effective date of the Motion. The Department of Building Inspection shall have issued a Building Permit or Site Permit to construct the project and/or commence the approved use within this three-year period.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, www.sfplanning.org

2. Expiration and Renewal. Should a Building or Site Permit be sought after the three (3) year period has lapsed, the project sponsor must seek a renewal of this Authorization by filing an application for an amendment to the original Authorization or a new application for Authorization. Should the project sponsor decline to so file, and decline to withdraw the permit application, the Commission shall conduct a public hearing in order to consider the revocation of the Authorization. Should the Commission not revoke the Authorization following the closure of the public hearing, the Commission shall determine the extension of time for the continued validity of the Authorization.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463,  www.sfplanning.org

3. Diligent Pursuit. Once a site or Building Permit has been issued, construction must commence within the timeframe required by the Department of Building Inspection and be continued diligently to completion. Failure to do so shall be grounds for the Commission to consider revoking the approval if more than three (3) years have passed since this Authorization was approved.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, www.sfplanning.org

4. Extension. All time limits in the preceding three paragraphs may be extended at the discretion of the Zoning Administrator where implementation of the project is delayed by a public agency, an appeal or a legal challenge and only by the length of time for which such public agency, appeal or challenge has caused delay.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, www.sfplanning.org

5. Conformity with Current Law. No application for Building Permit, Site Permit, or other entitlement shall be approved unless it complies with all applicable provisions of City Codes in effect at the time of such approval.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, www.sfplanning.org


Design – Compliance at Plan Stage

6. Final Materials. The Project Sponsor shall continue to work with Planning Department on the building design. Final materials, glazing, color, texture, landscaping, and detailing shall be subject to Department staff review and approval. The architectural addenda shall be reviewed and approved by the Planning Department prior to issuance. 

For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7319, www.sfplanning.org

7. Garbage, Composting and Recycling Storage. Space for the collection and storage of garbage, composting, and recycling shall be provided within enclosed areas on the property and clearly labeled and illustrated on the building permit plans. Space for the collection and storage of recyclable and compostable materials that meets the size, location, accessibility and other standards specified by the San Francisco Recycling Program shall be provided at the ground level of the buildings. 

For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7319, www.sfplanning.org

8. Rooftop Mechanical Equipment. Pursuant to Planning Code 141, the Project Sponsor shall submit a roof plan to the Planning Department prior to Planning approval of the building permit application. Rooftop mechanical equipment, if any is proposed as part of the Project, is required to be screened so as not to be visible from any point at or below the roof level of the subject building.

For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7319, www.sfplanning.org 

Parking and Traffic

9. Managing Traffic During Construction. The Project Sponsor and construction contractor(s) shall coordinate with the Traffic Engineering and Transit Divisions of the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA), the Police Department, the Fire Department, the Planning Department, and other construction contractor(s) for any concurrent nearby Projects to manage traffic congestion and pedestrian circulation during construction of the Project.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, www.sfplanning.org

Provisions

10. Transportation Sustainability Fee. The Project is subject to the Transportation Sustainability Fee (TSF), as applicable, pursuant to Planning Code Section 411A.

For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7319, www.sfplanning.org



11. Downtown Park Fee - C-3 District. The Project is subject to the Downtown Park Fee, as applicable, pursuant to Planning Code Section 412.

For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7319, www.sfplanning.org

Monitoring - After Entitlement

12. Enforcement. Violation of any of the Planning Department conditions of approval contained in this Motion or of any other provisions of Planning Code applicable to this Project shall be subject to the enforcement procedures and administrative penalties set forth under Planning Code Section 176 or Section 176.1. The Planning Department may also refer the violation complaints to other city departments and agencies for appropriate enforcement action under their jurisdiction.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, www.sfplanning.org

13. Revocation due to Violation of Conditions. Should implementation of this Project result in complaints from interested property owners, residents, or commercial lessees which are not resolved by the Project Sponsor and found to be in violation of the Planning Code and/or the specific conditions of approval for the Project as set forth in Exhibit A of this Motion, the Zoning Administrator shall refer such complaints to the Commission, after which it may hold a public hearing on the matter to consider revocation of this authorization.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, www.sfplanning.org

Operation

14. Sidewalk Maintenance. The Project Sponsor shall maintain the main entrance to the building and all sidewalks abutting the subject property in a clean and sanitary condition in compliance with the Department of Public Works Streets and Sidewalk Maintenance Standards.

For information about compliance, contact Bureau of Street Use and Mapping, Department of Public Works, 628.271.2000, www.sfpublicworks.org

15. Community Liaison. Prior to issuance of a building permit to construct the project and implement the approved use, the Project Sponsor shall appoint a community liaison officer to deal with the issues of concern to owners and occupants of nearby properties. The Project Sponsor shall provide the Zoning Administrator and all registered neighborhood groups for the area with written notice of the name, business address, and telephone number of the community liaison. Should the contact information change, the Zoning Administrator and registered neighborhood groups shall be made aware of such change. The community liaison shall report to the Zoning Administrator what issues, if any, are of concern to the community and what issues have not been resolved by the Project Sponsor.

For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, www.sfplanning.org

16. Public Access. In order to maintain public access to the historic banking hall interior the property owner shall adhere to the following measures:

· An historic/interpretive display and online program shall be provided. The property owner shall coordinate with the Planning Department to develop and implement these measures. Both are to be completed prior to issuance of the building permit.

· Architectural tours of the banking hall shall be open to the public and operated at least once per month.



17. Tenant Guidelines. Tenant Guidelines have been developed to inform future tenant improvements. They apply to features that will be fixed, such as partitions. These guidelines do not apply to furniture or other moveable features. The guidelines are intended to protect character-defining features in the Project’s banking hall while allowing tenants to build out spaces that reflect their identity and brand, but are not intended to prohibit proposed future modifications which may, depending on the proposal, require a new Certificate of Appropriateness. They are not strict requirements but rather represent general guidance for future tenant improvements. 

General Design Principles

· Modifications to the historic Banking Hall should allow continued perception of the sense of its historic volume of space.

· Material finishes should have an office aesthetic. An industrial aesthetic, such as exposed mechanical ducts, is not appropriate.

· Design of tenant improvements should be distinct from the original fabric of the space but compatible to the Banking Hall.

·  Removal of historic materials should be avoided to the extent practicable.

· New construction should be limited to the extent practicable to below the Greek key frieze datum line below the pilasters.

· If a privacy screen is programmatically required near the entry, its height should be limited so that it is no taller than the datum line created by the bottom of the Greek key frieze below the pilasters.

· Refrain from attaching new construction to historic features, especially those above the Greek key frieze datum line, to the extent practicable.

· New tenant improvements should comply with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation.

Compatible Materials

The materials listed below are identified as being compatible with the banking hall space. These guidelines are not intended to restrict the use of materials that are not listed below.

· Plaster

· Finished and painted drywall

· Stone with tones that are compatible with the existing colors in the space or similar to the marble seen in historic photos

· Metals similar to the existing metals in the space, such as the lattice screen of the windows or the bronze used in teller partitions as seen in the historic photos

· Wood

Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing, and Life Safety Equipment

· Mechanical, electrical, and plumbing services should be hidden, not exposed.

· Fire sprinklers and other life safety features should be hidden to the extent possible.

· Anchorage methods of these features should be reversible.

· Do not attach mechanical, electrical, and plumbing equipment to character-defining features.



For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, www.sfplanning.org
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From: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)
To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; Diamond, Susan (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Tanner, Rachael (CPC);

Fung, Frank (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Imperial, Theresa (CPC); Chan, Deland (CPC)
Subject: RE: 2015-009955CUA 1525 Pine St Public Comment Docs for July 22nd hearing.
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 12:37:36 PM
Attachments: Re 2015-009955CUA 1525 Pine St Public Comment Docs for July 22nd hearing..msg

My apologies for the multiple emails (especially given the volume of emails we’ve already received).
The attached was sent as a follow up.
Thank you,
Claudine
 
Claudine Asbagh, Principal Planner
Northeast Quadrant/Current Planning
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7329 | www.sfplanning.org
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
services here
 

From: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC) 
Sent: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 12:35 PM
To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan
(CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Tanner,
Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <Frank.Fung@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel
(CPC) <Joel.Koppel@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Chan,
Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>
Subject: FW: 2015-009955CUA 1525 Pine St Public Comment Docs for July 22nd hearing.
 
Dear Commissioners,
 
Please see the following correspondence submitted for your information.
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
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Re: 2015-009955CUA 1525 Pine St Public Comment Docs for July 22nd hearing.

		From

		Theresa Calderon

		To

		Li, Michael (CPC); Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)

		Recipients

		michael.j.li@sfgov.org; claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org



 	 This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.



 



I've missed the PDF attachment. Here it is.

Please confirm the receipt.

Best,
Theresa Calderon





On Wed, Jul 21, 2021 at 12:19 PM Theresa Calderon <cgtheresa@gmail.com> wrote:




Hi Michael and Claudine,

My name is Theresa Calderon and I am planning to call in to the meeting tomorrow with 2 other members of the public who live in the build next to the 1525 Pine St project. The agenda item is 13 for case number  2015-009955CUA.




We are planning to present the PDF in succession.
Please upload the PDF slides titled V7_1525_pine_st_theresa_calderon_415-601-4442.pdf so that I can refer to them during the meeting. 

I'll be using a subset (Slidese 4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11) Also attached below for your reference.



I've also attached our brief for review.





Minute 1



(Slide 4)



We think the sponsor's study doesn't paint the whole picture of how the east facing studios in the light well will be affected. We want to show that based on their light study data that the inside of our units will be very dark.



Here you see the 3rd floor unit will have around 400 LUX at the window so we measured around 370 LUX at the window and took a picture of the living room. 



The light in the living room is 147 LUX which is 50% lower than the window light. This is considered "dark" and "very dark" in the kitchen according to the lux light range.





(Slide 5)



We've also done the same procedure for all the mornings throughout the year. See that the mornings are in the dark to very dark range during fall, winter and spring.





(Slide 6) 



The afternoon, fall, winter and spring are in the dark to very dark range.





As you can see here, the inside of the units paint a very different picture than what the tables and the colorful graphs shown by the project sponsor.



With the proposed building height, all 10 of the studio units will be very dark in the mornings and afternoons throughout the year. A majority will be below the average specified by the table.





Minute 2



(Please scroll through Slide 7, 8, 9 quickly and stop at 10)



We want to show that the actual light reduction for the lower floors are significant (more than 50- 90%) and that lowering the height of the building will be effective in improving the morning light.



To do this we've built scale models, set it up on the roof with the correct orientation and measured the 2nd and 4th floor light throughout the day.



(Slide 10)



You can see here that lowering the building doesn't change the light much at the time of day the sponsors measured for their study but the light at 10:30  am between 9AM and 12PM  is significantly improved by lowering the building height to 4 floors.



The light blocked will be 43% rather than 93%. That's an 8-fold improvement in light quality for the second floor.



(Slide 11) 



This slide shows what the inside of the 2nd floor will look like with 4 floors which puts it in the "normal" light range rather than "dark"





Minute 3



Conclusion and Request



To summarize our findings, our light study shows that 10 east facing studio units that only has one window will be in darkness all day. Our light will be reduced by more than 90% for the whole year except for an hour at noon. The light conditions will not be suitable for seniors and disabled people like Tony who lives there right now. These light conditions will be some of the worst in the city because of the extra height and exceptionally small courtyard.





Adding artificial light does not fix our problem because it does not increase access to natural light. There is also no law requiring the owners of the building to maintain the light once the building is built.





The commission should consider reducing the number of units by 10 and lowering the height to 4 floors because the project is destroying the habitability of at least 10-20 units next door. Without any changes the commission should reject the conditional use.





If the commission approves, they are setting a dangerous precedent that allows developers to destroy the habitability of neighboring homes under the banner of  increasing housing when what they are really doing is adding substandard housing to the city’s inventory.







Best,
Theresa Calderon
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Interior Light in 3rd Floor Unit on Summer Morning

‘The sponsor's light study shows that a summer morning on the 3rd floor would have around 400 LUX
‘The picture shows the inside of the unit at the time when we measured 370 LUX at the window matching the study.

At that same time, we measured with 147 LUX at the living room (50% less) light than at the window 36 LUX in the kitchen.
‘These are considered “dark’ and *very dark” according to a standard

‘The interior light s below the average LUX reading and is disproportionately darker in the lower floors.
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Height Reduction is an Effective Mitigation
For Morning Light Reduction

Morning light reduction for lower units between 9 AM -
12 PM can be improved by lowering the 1525 building

height to 4 floors.
Light Reduction Percentage 9AM - 4PM 2nd floor
Time/heig | 79 ft 65ft 4 floors
ht/%
915AM | 99.99% | 99.98% | 99.98
10:30AM | 93% 82% 43%
12:40PM | 77% 74% 72%
4:00 PM 91% 90% 89%
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Values Lux vs Perceived

Dark Afternoons 3 out of 4 seasons for Lower floors

Below shows the approximate light on 3rd floor studio using the light readings
from the simulation.
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Physical Light Studies on the roof

el
e Scale cardboard models with differing heights
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Values Lux vs Perceived

Dark Mornings All Year for Lower floors Y

Below shows the approximate light on 3rd floor studio using the light readings
from the simulation.

Summer Morning Winter Morning

Fall/Spring Morning

370 LUX
“dark”
approx

79 LUX
“Very dark"
approx

200 LUX
“dark”
approx

24 LUX
‘very dark’

“See side 23124125 for breakdown of LUX readings
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Negative Effects of 
1525 Pine St on 



1545 Pine St Neighbors



1











Units Affected



21 total units affected



● 10 studio units with 
single east facing window 
and no exposure to street 
or alley



● 10 north and south facing 
units



● 2 BMR units
● 1 studio unit in new 



building
(376 sqft)
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Using Sponsor’s Light Study to Simulate Interior Light
1. Use a Light Meter to measure LUX at the Window
2. At that time, measure LUX in the middle of the living room and  kitchen (see orange arrows)
3. Measured many light ranges to cover very dark - normal lighting conditions ie. 79 LUX - 830 LUX (See slides 24 - 29)



Exterior Light is “Normal” perceived brightness while Interior Light is “Normal” and “Dark”
LUX readings drop by up to 40% from window to living room.



519 LUX in living room
“normal” 



101 LUX in kitchen 
“dark”



830 LUX at the window “normal”



519 LUX 
“normal” 



101 LUX 
“dark”
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Interior Light in 3rd Floor Unit on Summer Morning



Summer Morning Simulation



1. The sponsor’s light study shows that  a summer morning on the 3rd floor would have around 400 LUX.
2. The picture shows the inside of the unit at the time when we measured  370 LUX at the window matching the study.
3. At that same time, we measured with 147 LUX at the  living room (50% less) light than at the window 36 LUX in the kitchen.
4. These are considered “dark” and “very dark” according to a standard 
5. The interior light is below the average LUX reading and is disproportionately darker in the lower floors.



147 LUX 
“dark” 



36 LUX 
“very dark”



Summer Morning Average



370 LUX
“Dim”
approx



*See slide 23 for breakdown of LUX readings
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*See slide 23/24/25 for breakdown of LUX readings



Dark Mornings All Year for Lower floors 



Summer Morning Winter Morning



200 LUX
“dark”
approx



370 LUX
“dark”
approx



Fall/Spring Morning



147 LUX 
“dark” 



89 LUX
“dark”



Below shows the approximate light on 3rd floor studio using the light readings 
from the simulation.



24 LUX
“very dark”



79 LUX
“Very dark”
approx
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519 LUX 
“normal” 



Dark Afternoons 3 out of 4 seasons for Lower floors 



Summer Afternoon Winter Afternoon



79 LUX
“Very dark”
approx



200 LUX
“dark”
approx



830 LUX
“normal”
approx



Fall/Spring Morning



24 LUX
“very dark”



 89 LUX
“dark”



Below shows the approximate light on 3rd floor studio using the light readings 
from the simulation.



519 LUX 
“normal” 



*See slide 22/24/25 for breakdown of LUX readings
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Physical Light Studies on the roof



79ft 5 floors65ft 4 floorsNo building
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● Scale cardboard models with differing heights
● Using the real sun on the Austin’s roof with correct orientation
● Objective measurements
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Scientific measurements of light on 2nd and 4th Floor



● 2 Light meters inside 
2nd floor and 4th floor model



● Objective LUX measurement
● Reviewed by light expert
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No building 79 ft 65ft 5 floors 4 floors



4th floor (lux) 11350 2970 8800 9780 11000



% reduction 73% 22% 13% 3%



2nd floor(lux) 1060 70 190 220 600



% reduction 93% 82% 79% 43%



Light Measurement on June 11 at 10:30AM
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
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              S



Time/heig
ht/%



79 ft 65ft 4 floors



9:15 AM 99.99% 99.98% 99.98



10:30 AM 93% 82% 43%



12:40 PM 77% 74% 72%



4:00 PM 91% 90% 89%
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No 
building



79 ft 65 ft 4 floors



2nd floor(lux) 1060 70
“dark”



190
“dark”



600
“normal”



% reduction 93% 82% 43%



Effect of Lowering the Building to 4 Floors:
Improved Morning Light from Dark to Normal



June 11 @ 10:30 AM Light Measurements



By lowering the building to 4 floors, morning 
light between 9 AM - 12 PM for lower units 
can be improved from dark to normal,



89 LUX
“dark”



519 LUX 
“normal” 



147 LUX 
“dark” 11



79ft 65 ft = 2X improvement 4 floors = 8X improvement 











● Sponsor’s light study did not tell the full story
○ Does not show interior light in the individual units
○ Does not show that lower units have significantly below average light
○ Does not show that morning light is significantly reduced for east facing studio units



● Comparing the difference between 79ft and 65ft are “not significant” but does not show significant 
reduction from current light levels



Critiques of Sponsor’s Light Study 
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We are want to focus on improving morning light for east facing studio units that have no other light source.
9AM - 12PM is the only time we get direct light.



Supplemental Light Study Findings
● Morning light reduction with 79ft building is significant (99% reduction) from current levels
● Lower floors (including 2 BMR units) are disproportionately affect and face extremely dark conditions that has 



adverse effects on residents and their health
● Lowering height to 4 floors effectively mitigates morning light blockage for lower floors



Request: Protect Morning Light for East facing Studio Units
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Significantly Adverse Effects on Light Quality



● 10 units are extraordinarily dark with 79ft proposal
● 1 window with no other exposure to street or alley
● Dim to very dark during morning and afternoon 6am - 9am and 3pm - 8pm during throughout the year
● Very dark to pitch black interior light all day during winter solstice
● Disproportionate effects on lower floors including 2 BMR units



Human Costs
● Light conditions are detrimental to the health of seniors and disabled residents in the light well.
● Significantly affects the Light exposure for 2 BMR units.
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Conclusion and Request 



Conclusion



● 10 units without other light source has adverse effects on health and safety of residents
● 2 BMR units affected in Austin
● 20 total units affected 
● Sponsor’s proposal to add artificial light does not address lack of access to real sunlight



○ No laws required to maintain artificial lights after construction
● Creating 14 small studios and destroying light for 11 studios is a bad tradeoff
● 1 studio unit in the new building also has low exposure and seeks a variance



Request 



● Lower the height of the building to 4 floors to improve natural morning light for east facing studio units
● Do not grant exposure variance for 1 new studio facing lightwell 
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Appendix
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Approximate light 
on 3rd floor



June 21 September 21 December 21 March 21



9:00 AM 370 200 79 200



3:00 PM 830 200 79 200



Average vs 3rd floor Simulation Light Readings
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65 ft project 79 ft project



65ft project 79 ft project



Average 2376 LUX
“Bright”



840 LUX
“Normal”



3rd floor
Exterior 
Window



830 LUX
“Normal”



370 LUX
“Dim”



3rd floor
Interior
Living 
room



519 LUX 
“Dim”



147
“Dim”



3rd floor
Interior
Kitchen



101 LUX
“Dark”



36 LUX
“Very dark”



“Average” light does not paint the full picture.



Inside the 3rd floor Studio
Summer Solstice Morning Simulation 
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Inside the 3rd floor Studio
Winter Solstice Morning Simulation 



Light meter
Location 



65ft project 79 ft project



Window 526 LUX
“Normal indoors”



200 LUX
“Dim indoors”



Living 
room



338 LUX 
“Dim indoors”



89
“Dark indoors”



Kitchen 87 LUX
“Dark indoors”



23 LUX
“Very dark”



65 ft project 79 ft project
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Normal Exterior Light is Normal/Dark Interior Light
Pictures showing light measured at 830 LUX at the window, 519 LUX in the living room, 101 LUX in the kitchen
Exterior Light is “Normal” perceived brightness while Interior Light is “Normal” and “Dark”



519 LUX in living room
“normal” 



101 LUX in kitchen 
“dark”



830 at the window
“normal”



519 LUX 
“normal” 



101 LUX 
“dark”
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Pictures showing light measured at 526 LUX at the window, 338 LUX in the living room, 87 LUX in the kitchen
Exterior Light is “Normal” perceived brightness while Interior Light is “Dim” and “Dark”



Normal Exterior Light is Dim/Dark Interior Light 



338 LUX in living room 
“dim”



87 LUX in kitchen 
“dark”



526 at the window
“normal”



338 LUX 
“dim”



87 LUX 
“dark”
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Pictures showing light measured at 370  LUX at the window, 147  LUX in the living room, 36 LUX in the kitchen
Exterior Light is “Dim” perceived brightness while Interior Light is “Dim” and “Very Dark”



Dim Exterior Light is Dark/Very Dark Interior Light



147 LUX in living room
“dark” 



36 LUX in kitchen 
“very dark”



370 at the window
“dim”



147 LUX 
“dark” 



36 LUX 
“very dark”
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Pictures showing light measured at 200 LUX at the window, 89 LUX in the living room, 23 LUX in the kitchen
Exterior Light is “Dark” perceived brightness while Interior Light is “Dark” and “Very Dark” 



Dark Exterior Light is Dark/Very Dark Interior Light 



89 LUX in living room 
“dark”



23 LUX in kitchen 
“very dark”



89 LUX
“dark”



23 LUX 
“very dark”



200 at the window
“dark”
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Pictures showing light measured at 79 LUX at the window, 24 LUX in the living room, 5 LUX in the kitchen
Exterior Light is “Dim” perceived brightness while Interior Light is “Dark” and “Very Dark” 



Dark Exterior Light is Very Dark/Pitch Black Interior Light 



24 LUX 
“very dark”



5 LUX 
“pitch black”



79 at the window
“dark”



24 LUX
“very dark”



5 LUX 
“pitch black”
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830 LUX at the window = dim indoors
519 LUX in the living room = dim indoors
101 LUX in the kitchen = very dark indoors



Interior Light “Normal Indoors”  830 LUX
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526 LUX at the window = normal indoors
338 LUX in the living room = dim indoors
87 LUX in the kitchen = dark indoors



Interior Light “Normal Indoors”  526 LUX
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370 LUX at the window = dim indoors
147 LUX in the living room  = dark indoors
36 LUX in the kitchen = very dark indoors



Interior Light “Dim Indoors”  370 LUX



28











Interior Light “Dark Indoors”  200 LUX



200 LUX at the window = dark indoors
89 LUX in the living room = dark indoors
23 LUX in the kitchen = very dark indoors
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79 LUX at the window = dark indoors
24 LUX in the living room = very dark indoors
5 LUX in the kitchen = pitch black



Interior Light “Dark Indoors”  79 LUX
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Very Dark during Winter Solstice on Average
Sponsors Light Study Averages



12 PM @ 830 LUX window



*See appendix slides 24/26/27 
for detailed breakdown and lux 
readings



89 LUX 
“dark”



24 LUX
“very dark”



23 LUX 
“very dark”



9 AM @ 200 LUX window 12 PM @ 79 LUX window



101 LUX 
“dark”



519 LUX 
“normal” 



5 LUX 
“pitch black” 31











Compounding Shadows 
● Shadows of the Austin already cast shadows from south and west 
● New building will enclose court from the east blocking reflected light
● Does not show the magnitude of light loss for 20 affected units
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Supplemental Light Study



● Proportional
● Correct orientation
● Uses the real sun
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E                      W



              S
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Sun Position and Shadows



June 15 9:15 AM June 11 12:40 PM June 11 1:40 PM June 11 3:50 PM
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Light Well Shadows on June 11 at 10:30AM



79ft 5 floors65ft 4 floorsNo building



              N



E                      W



              S
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No building 79 ft 65ft 5 floors 4 floors



4th floor (lux) 7190 4370 4290 4300 4730



% reduction 39% 40% 40% 34%



2nd floor (lux) 740 170 190 190 210



% reduction 77% 74% 74% 72%



Light Measurement on June 11 at 12:40PM
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No building 79 ft 65ft 5 floors 4 floors



4th floor (lux) 34900 2340 3250 6650 n/a*



% reduction 99.93% 99.90% 99.80% na/*



2nd floor (lux) 6000 40 70 99.9 118.2



% reduction 99.99% 99.98% 99.98% 99.98%



Light Measurement on June 15 at 9:15 AM
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No building 79 ft 65ft 5 floors 4 floors



4th floor (lux) 598 262 376 262 346



% reduction 56% 37% 56% 42%



2nd floor (lux) 122 11 12 10 13



% reduction 91% 90% 92% 89%



Light Measurement on June 11 at 4:00PM
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Time/height/% 79 ft 65ft 4 floors



9:15 AM 99.99% 99.98% 99.98



10:30 AM 93% 82% 43%



12:40 PM 77% 74% 72%



4:00 PM 91% 90% 89



Light Reduction Percentage 2nd Floor Studio 9AM - 4PM
Lower floors are disproportionately and significantly impacted.
6 units from 2nd, 3rd, and 4th floors are most affected.
Sponsors’ light study does not show reduction from current levels.



Similar light reduction on a park is considered a significant adverse effect.



*See appendix for detailed breakdown and lux readings
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

 

From: Theresa Calderon <cgtheresa@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 12:28 PM
To: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC) <claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: 2015-009955CUA 1525 Pine St Public Comment Docs for July 22nd hearing.
 

 

Hi Claudine, 
 
Can you please add this to the written record so that the commissioners have access before the
meeting tomorrow?
 
Best,
Theresa Calderon
 
On Wed, Jul 21, 2021 at 12:19 PM Theresa Calderon <cgtheresa@gmail.com> wrote:

Hi Michael and Claudine,

My name is Theresa Calderon and I am planning to call in to the meeting tomorrow with 2 other
members of the public who live in the build next to the 1525 Pine St project. The agenda item
is 13 for case number  2015-009955CUA.

We are planning to present the PDF in succession.
Please upload the PDF slides titled V7_1525_pine_st_theresa_calderon_415-601-4442.pdf so that
I can refer to them during the meeting.
I'll be using a subset (Slidese 4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11) Also attached below for your reference.

I've also attached our brief for review.

Minute 1
(Slide 4)
We think the sponsor's study doesn't paint the whole picture of how the east facing
studios in the light well will be affected. We want to show that based on their light
study data that the inside of our units will be very dark.
Here you see the 3rd floor unit will have around 400 LUX at the window so we
measured around 370 LUX at the window and took a picture of the living room. 
The light in the living room is 147 LUX which is 50% lower than the window light.
This is considered "dark" and "very dark" in the kitchen according to the lux light
range.
 
(Slide 5)
We've also done the same procedure for all the mornings throughout the year. See

mailto:cgtheresa@gmail.com
mailto:claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org
mailto:cgtheresa@gmail.com


that the mornings are in the dark to very dark range during fall, winter and spring.
 
(Slide 6) 
The afternoon, fall, winter and spring are in the dark to very dark range.
 
As you can see here, the inside of the units paint a very different picture than what
the tables and the colorful graphs shown by the project sponsor.
With the proposed building height, all 10 of the studio units will be very dark in the
mornings and afternoons throughout the year. A majority will be below the average
specified by the table.
 
Minute 2
(Please scroll through Slide 7, 8, 9 quickly and stop at 10)
We want to show that the actual light reduction for the lower floors are significant
(more than 50- 90%) and that lowering the height of the building will be effective in
improving the morning light.
To do this we've built scale models, set it up on the roof with the correct orientation
and measured the 2nd and 4th floor light throughout the day.
(Slide 10)
You can see here that lowering the building doesn't change the light much at the
time of day the sponsors measured for their study but the light at 10:30  am
between 9AM and 12PM  is significantly improved by lowering the building height to
4 floors.
The light blocked will be 43% rather than 93%. That's an 8-fold improvement in light
quality for the second floor.
(Slide 11) 
This slide shows what the inside of the 2nd floor will look like with 4 floors which
puts it in the "normal" light range rather than "dark"
 
Minute 3
Conclusion and Request
To summarize our findings, our light study shows that 10 east facing studio units
that only has one window will be in darkness all day. Our light will be reduced by
more than 90% for the whole year except for an hour at noon. The light conditions
will not be suitable for seniors and disabled people like Tony who lives there right
now. These light conditions will be some of the worst in the city because of the
extra height and exceptionally small courtyard.
 
Adding artificial light does not fix our problem because it does not increase access
to natural light. There is also no law requiring the owners of the building to maintain
the light once the building is built.
 
The commission should consider reducing the number of units by 10 and lowering
the height to 4 floors because the project is destroying the habitability of at least 10-
20 units next door. Without any changes the commission should reject the
conditional use.
 



If the commission approves, they are setting a dangerous precedent that allows
developers to destroy the habitability of neighboring homes under the banner of 
increasing housing when what they are really doing is adding substandard housing
to the city’s inventory.
 
 
Best,
Theresa Calderon





 



From: RivamonteMesa, Abigail (BOS)
To: Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Chan, Deland (CPC); Diamond, Susan (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC);

Imperial, Theresa (CPC); Tanner, Rachael (CPC)
Cc: Ionin, Jonas (CPC); CPC-Commissions Secretary; Haney, Matt (BOS); Starr, Aaron (CPC); Delumo, Jenny (CPC)
Subject: 469 Stevenson Continuance Request (Item 11 on 7/22 Planning Commission Agenda)
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 12:36:32 PM

President Koppel and Commissioners,

Our office would like to request a 1 week continuance to July 29th for the 469 Stevenson
project which is Item No. 11 on tomorrow's planning commission agenda.
I've reached out to the Project Sponsor and they are aware of our request.
Please let me know if you have any questions.
Best,
Abigail
Abigail Rivamonte Mesa
Chief of Staff
Office of Supervisor Matt Haney, D6
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244
San Francisco, CA 94102
T 415-554-7969 | F 415-554-7974
abigail.rivamontemesa@sfgov.org | www.sfbos.org

mailto:abigail.rivamontemesa@sfgov.org
mailto:Joel.Koppel@sfgov.org
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mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
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mailto:matt.haney@sfgov.org
mailto:aaron.starr@sfgov.org
mailto:Jenny.Delumo@sfgov.org
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
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 10:04:13 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Elaine Carney <outlook_701BBD7FC1A1D256@outlook.com>
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 at 10:02 AM
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
Sent from Mail for Windows 10
 
I first went to the Grubstake in 1976 when I was 18. Coming from the East Coast where one heard
everyday the words “faggot” and “queer” being hurled as obscenities. The Grubstake to me was Oz,
everyone was gay or simply woke! OMG community? That concept was first learned and embraced
at the Grubstake. In these days of franchises and chains, help preserve community and non-tech
jobs!
 
Angel B Carney
bodhibsteele@yahoo.com
 

https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=https%3A//go.microsoft.com/fwlink/%3FLinkId%3D550986&g=ZmZiNWRkNWEzMGM4ZWUzYg==&h=MTRhNDdjN2QxMzE3MTA1YTQyNDlhNmQ2MjU2ZjJkZTRkY2EzNmI0OTVmODM0MWZmMGUzZGZlZjgwMzNmYWU1Yg==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOmVlYzEzNDc2ZTgwY2Y0YzFlNzEzOGIzZDkzMDFiMWU4OnYx


 
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
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 8:37:50 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Candi Whitman <whitmancandi@gmail.com>
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 at 1:28 AM
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
Subject: 1900 Diamond
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 8:37:23 AM
Attachments: Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street.msg

Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street.msg

 
 
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

		Emanuela Zacco

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
zacco_e@hotmail.com



San Francisco, California 94110





 




Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street

		From

		Francesco Mozzati

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
francesco.mozzati@gmail.com



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
Subject: FW: The Grubstake
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 8:36:53 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Greg Pennington <greglpennington@aol.com>
Reply-To: Greg Pennington <greglpennington@aol.com>
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 at 8:08 PM
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
Subject: The Grubstake
 

 

Dear Commissioners, 
 
I moved to San Francisco in 1977 and have lived in the Polk area for more than 40 years.  I ate at the
grubstake my very first week here and have frequented it ever since.  It is a uniquely valuable San
Francisco asset.  San Francisco needs more housing and the owners of the Grubstake need to be able to
create a financially viable way to preserve the Grubstake.  This classic diner must be preserved.  Please
support the Grubstake project.
 
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
sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when
they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include
additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the
redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing. 
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The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we
hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.
 
 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support for Trader Joe"s in Hayes Valley. Case #: 2021-002978CUA: 555 Fulton Street.
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 8:24:10 AM

 
 
 
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
 

From: Victoria Cheng <victoriaruicheng@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 11:20 PM
Subject: Support for Trader Joe's in Hayes Valley. Case #: 2021-002978CUA: 555 Fulton Street.
 

 

Case #: 2021-002978CUA: 555 Fulton Street.
 
Dear Supervisor,
 
How are you? I am a resident and homeowner of Hayes Valley and am writing in to support the
construction of a Trader Joe's at the 555 Fulton Street location. 
 
Trader Joe's would be a vital asset to the community for many reasons. The number one reason is
that there is no accessible grocery store within walking distance. The closest grocery stores (Whole
Foods, Safeway, Trader Joe's) are all over 1 or 2 miles away and are difficult to get to without a car.
Walking is too far when carrying groceries, and public transportation is limited, very indirect, and
time consuming. Trader Joe's would bring greater accessibility to fresh and affordable produce,
especially to the less affluent residents of Hayes Valley.
 
In addition, Trader Joe's would bring much needed jobs to this community, especially in the
aftermath of the COVID-19 pandemic as local businesses and residents are struggling to recover.
Both the construction of Trader Joe's and the long-term staffing needed will be an economic boon to
Hayes Valley.
 
Thank you very much for considering this request. 
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Regards, 
 
Victoria Cheng
555 Fulton Street Unit 433
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
Subject: FW: Review of Large Residence Developments
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 8:21:37 AM

 
 
 
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
 

From: William Holtzman <wm@holtzman.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 12:22 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Review of Large Residence Developments
 

 

Re:  Review of Large Residence Developments: 2021-00179PCA (Board File # 210116)

For more than seven years, our neighborhood (Corbett/Corona Heights) benefited from special
legislation (Corona Heights Large Residence Special Use District) that places specific controls on
“monster” homes.  These controls differ somewhat from Supervisor Mandleman’s proposal, but I
still believe this legislation will have a positive impact on the city of San Francisco.
 
At the same time, I do not support the staff recommendations contained in the report.  I find them
overreaching and would damage San Francisco neighborhoods.
 
Sincerely,
William Holtzman
60 Lower Terrace
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
Subject: FW: Trader Joe"s at 555 Fulton Street, San Francisco: 2021-002978CUA
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 8:20:52 AM

 
 
 
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
 

From: Daniel H. Liu <liuaqiang@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 5:54 PM
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
Subject: Trader Joe's at 555 Fulton Street, San Francisco: 2021-002978CUA
 

 

Dear supervisors and commissioners,
 
I support Trader Joe’s in the Hayes Valley community.  The planned grocery store is a vital
asset for residents like me, especially since there are no other nearby groceries that provide
affordable fresh food and produce. Of equal importance, this store will provide jobs to
neighborhood residents who deserve to live and work and prosper in our community.  I fully
support the approval of Trader Joe’s and hope that it can open as soon as possible to fill the
void in our community of groceries, jobs, and new economic opportunities post-COVID-19. 
 
Thank you,
Daniel at 555 Fulton Street
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Merlone, Audrey (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support for RCF Ordinance - Agenda Item 9
Date: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 8:20:09 AM

 
 
 
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
 

From: JC Wallace <jcw@oryxsf.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 4:41 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC)
<joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Chan, Deland (CPC)
<deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael
(CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Cc: Bintliff, Jacob (BOS) <jacob.bintliff@sfgov.org>; John Ramsbacher <jfr@oryxsf.com>;
Mandelman, Rafael (BOS) <rafael.mandelman@sfgov.org>
Subject: Support for RCF Ordinance - Agenda Item 9
 

 

Dear Commissioners,
 
I would like to express my support for the Ordinance being considered by you this week (Agenda
item #9, File 210535, "Planning Code - Conditional Use Authorization Requirements Regarding
Residential Care Facilities") which would, among other things, make it easier to construct or convert
existing buildings into new RCFs, by making facilities of 7 or more beds principally permitted in all
residential zoning districts.  
 
Eliminating a conditional use hearing for this type of facility could make a crucial difference in adding
to the stock of these much needed facilities in our City.  My firm owns 658 Shotwell, which we are in
the process of renovating as a 46-bed RCF.  We benefited from a similar change in legislation 3-years
ago to allow for RCF facilities in RH-3 without a conditional hearing.  We would not have acquired
this vacant and derelict building - which we are now completely retrofitting and upgrading - without
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such prior legislation.  In our case, the City will benefit not only by having a completely rehabilitated
facility providing much needed housing and services, but also given that our future residents will be
placed primarily via a partnership with SFDPH.  
 
I would hope that the ordinance you are considering could have similar positive effects in the future.
 
Sincerely,
 
J.C.  
 

________________________
Juan Carlos (“JC”) Wallace
Principal & Co-Founder
Oryx Partners, LLC
jcw@oryxsf.com
www.oryxsf.com
415-902-5882
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
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 6:44:45 PM

 
 
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
 
 

From: James Ausman <info@email.actionnetwork.org>
Reply-To: "ausman@gmail.com" <ausman@gmail.com>
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 at 5:47 PM
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
mailto:Gabriela.Pantoja@sfgov.org
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

James Ausman 
ausman@gmail.com

San Francisco, California 94110

 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO ADOPTS NEW CLIMATE ACTION GOALS
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 6:44:11 PM
Attachments: 07.20.2021 Climate Action Goals.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 at 6:00 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO ADOPTS NEW CLIMATE ACTION GOALS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, July 20, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO ADOPTS NEW CLIMATE ACTION GOALS

Mayor London Breed’s legislation is a comprehensive update to the City’s Environment Code
and sets new targets for reducing emissions 61% by 2030 and becoming a net-zero city by

2040
 

San Francisco, CA — The City of San Francisco today adopted new climate action goals to
reduce greenhouse gas emissions and address the urgent threat of climate change. San
Francisco has made significant progress on its climate action goals to-date, including a 41%
reduction in emissions six years ahead of schedule. Building on that success, Mayor London
N. Breed introduced legislation to increase San Francisco’s ambition and set new science-
based targets that are aligned with the Paris Climate Agreement. Today, the Board of
Supervisors unanimously approved the legislation, which was co-sponsored by Supervisor
Rafael Mandelman.
 
Included in the legislation is the goal to become a net-zero emissions city by 2040 and other
significant updates to Chapter 9 of the City’s Environment Code. With this new legislation,
San Francisco is continuing its leadership on climate policy and adopting some of the most
ambitious climate and emissions reduction goals of any city in the world. The updated
Environment Code now includes climate action targets in six major areas: energy,
transportation, housing, buildings, zero waste, and roots. The legislation creates an actionable
framework for the development and implementation of San Francisco’s Climate Action Plan,
which will be released later this year. Notably, the Climate Action Plan must specify how the
City can achieve those goals while addressing racial and social inequities.
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


and sets new targets for reducing emissions 61% by 2030 and becoming a net-zero city by 2040 


 


San Francisco, CA — The City of San Francisco today adopted new climate action goals to 


reduce greenhouse gas emissions and address the urgent threat of climate change. San Francisco 


has made significant progress on its climate action goals to-date, including a 41% reduction in 


emissions six years ahead of schedule. Building on that success, Mayor London N. Breed 


introduced legislation to increase San Francisco’s ambition and set new science-based targets 


that are aligned with the Paris Climate Agreement. Today, the Board of Supervisors unanimously 


approved the legislation, which was co-sponsored by Supervisor Rafael Mandelman.  


 


Included in the legislation is the goal to become a net-zero emissions city by 2040 and other 


significant updates to Chapter 9 of the City’s Environment Code. With this new legislation, San 


Francisco is continuing its leadership on climate policy and adopting some of the most ambitious 


climate and emissions reduction goals of any city in the world. The updated Environment Code 


now includes climate action targets in six major areas: energy, transportation, housing, buildings, 


zero waste, and roots. The legislation creates an actionable framework for the development and 


implementation of San Francisco’s Climate Action Plan, which will be released later this year. 


Notably, the Climate Action Plan must specify how the City can achieve those goals while 


addressing racial and social inequities.  


 


“San Francisco has long been a national and international leader on climate action and 


environmental policies, with programs like CleanPowerSF and requiring new construction to be 


all-electric,” said Mayor London Breed. “Now we must build on these successes and push even 


further, because our future depends on it. These new, bold targets put us on track to reduce our 


emissions more quickly—with the urgency that climate change demands and with social and 


racial equity at the forefront of our work.” 


 


The updates to the Environment Code set new targets for sector-based greenhouse gas emissions, 


which are the emissions generated within the City: 


• By 2030, reduce sector-based greenhouse gas emissions by 61% below 1990 levels, and 


• By 2040, reach net-zero sector-based emissions and sequester any residual emissions 


using nature-based solutions. 


 


For the first time, San Francisco is also setting initial targets for consumption-based greenhouse 


gas emissions, which are emissions that occur throughout the supply chain of goods consumed in 


San Francisco. San Francisco is now one of the only cities in the world to have consumption-


based targets. 
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“The climate crisis is upon us, as made painfully clear by extreme drought and wildfires ravaging 


California,” said Supervisor Mandelman, who authored San Francisco’s Climate Emergency 


Resolution in 2019 and passed an ordinance last year requiring all-electric construction in new 


buildings. “The climate action goals we adopted today commit San Francisco to our shared 


vision of achieving a zero-carbon future as soon as possible." 


 


With this legislation, San Francisco is formally adopting a climate action framework called “0-


80-100-Roots,” where “0” refers to a goal of zero waste, “80” refers to a goal of 80% low-carbon 


trips, “100” refers to a goal of 100% renewable energy, and “Roots” refers to sequestering 


carbon through natural systems. To reach the new emissions reduction targets and goals of the 0-


80-100-Roots framework, the updated Environment Code specifies the following climate action 


goals in six key areas: 


 


• Zero Waste: By 2030, a reduction in the generation of solid waste of at least 15% below 


2015 levels and a reduction in the amount of solid waste disposed of by incineration or 


deposit in landfill of at least 50% below 2015 levels;  


• Transportation: By 2030, an increase in low-carbon trips to at least 80% of all trips 


measured and an increase in the level of electrification of vehicles to at least 25% of all 


private vehicles registered, and by 2040, an increase in the level of electrification of 


vehicles to 100% of all private vehicles registered;  


• Energy: By 2025, supplying 100% renewable electricity, and by 2040, supplying 100% 


renewable energy; 


• Housing: Building at least 5,000 new housing units per year with maximum 


affordability, including not less than 30% affordable units, and with an emphasis on 


retaining and rehabilitating existing housing; 


• Buildings: By 2021, requiring zero onsite fossil fuel emissions from all new buildings, 


and by 2035, requiring zero onsite fossil fuel emissions from all large existing 


commercial buildings; and  


• Roots: Sequestering carbon through ecosystem restoration, including increased urban 


tree canopy, green infrastructure, and compost application.  


 


As specified in Mayor Breed’s legislation, all of these climate action goals must also include 


complementary goals of advancing racial and social equity; protecting public health, including 


the health needs of vulnerable populations; increasing community resilience; and fostering a 


more just economy. 


 


“San Francisco achieved a historic milestone today, but we wouldn’t have been able to commit 


to these new, ambitious targets without the support of our residents and businesses who continue 


to lead on the environment,” said Debbie Raphael, Director of the Department of the 


Environment. “There’s no greater time to showcase how cities can partner with our communities 


to advance environmental justice for all.” 
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The ordinance also requires the City to prepare a Climate Action Plan by the end of 2021. The 


Plan, which serves as the roadmap for achieving the reductions required by law, must include an 


equity framework that will address historic racial and social inequities; prioritize social, 


economic, and environmental benefits derived from implementing the Plan; and ensure an 


equitable distribution of those benefits. The Department of Environment has been developing 


this Climate Action Plan with input from the community and stakeholders, and it will include 


specific actions to reduce emissions in six sectors: energy supply, transportation and land use, 


building operations, housing, responsible production and consumption, and healthy ecosystems. 


 


San Francisco continues to make progress on initiatives that will help the City achieve these new 


targets, including reducing emissions from office buildings and homes, promoting transit, 


transitioning to zero-emission transportation, and eliminating waste. San Francisco is also 


engaged with global partners in the fight against climate change as a member of C40, the Carbon 


Neutral Cities Alliance, and the Climate Mayors. 


 


### 







“San Francisco has long been a national and international leader on climate action and
environmental policies, with programs like CleanPowerSF and requiring new construction to
be all-electric,” said Mayor London Breed. “Now we must build on these successes and push
even further, because our future depends on it. These new, bold targets put us on track to
reduce our emissions more quickly—with the urgency that climate change demands and with
social and racial equity at the forefront of our work.”
 
The updates to the Environment Code set new targets for sector-based greenhouse gas
emissions, which are the emissions generated within the City:

By 2030, reduce sector-based greenhouse gas emissions by 61% below 1990 levels, and
By 2040, reach net-zero sector-based emissions and sequester any residual emissions
using nature-based solutions.

 
For the first time, San Francisco is also setting initial targets for consumption-based
greenhouse gas emissions, which are emissions that occur throughout the supply chain of
goods consumed in San Francisco. San Francisco is now one of the only cities in the world to
have consumption-based targets.
 
“The climate crisis is upon us, as made painfully clear by extreme drought and wildfires
ravaging California,” said Supervisor Mandelman, who authored San Francisco’s Climate
Emergency Resolution in 2019 and passed an ordinance last year requiring all-electric
construction in new buildings. “The climate action goals we adopted today commit San
Francisco to our shared vision of achieving a zero-carbon future as soon as possible."
 
With this legislation, San Francisco is formally adopting a climate action framework called “0-
80-100-Roots,” where “0” refers to a goal of zero waste, “80” refers to a goal of 80% low-
carbon trips, “100” refers to a goal of 100% renewable energy, and “Roots” refers to
sequestering carbon through natural systems. To reach the new emissions reduction targets
and goals of the 0-80-100-Roots framework, the updated Environment Code specifies the
following climate action goals in six key areas:
 

·         Zero Waste: By 2030, a reduction in the generation of solid waste of at least 15%
below 2015 levels and a reduction in the amount of solid waste disposed of by
incineration or deposit in landfill of at least 50% below 2015 levels;

·         Transportation: By 2030, an increase in low-carbon trips to at least 80% of all trips
measured and an increase in the level of electrification of vehicles to at least 25% of all
private vehicles registered, and by 2040, an increase in the level of electrification of
vehicles to 100% of all private vehicles registered;

·         Energy: By 2025, supplying 100% renewable electricity, and by 2040, supplying
100% renewable energy;

·         Housing: Building at least 5,000 new housing units per year with maximum
affordability, including not less than 30% affordable units, and with an emphasis on
retaining and rehabilitating existing housing;

·         Buildings: By 2021, requiring zero onsite fossil fuel emissions from all new
buildings, and by 2035, requiring zero onsite fossil fuel emissions from all large
existing commercial buildings; and

·         Roots: Sequestering carbon through ecosystem restoration, including increased urban
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
 
“San Francisco achieved a historic milestone today, but we wouldn’t have been able to
commit to these new, ambitious targets without the support of our residents and businesses
who continue to lead on the environment,” said Debbie Raphael, Director of the Department
of the Environment. “There’s no greater time to showcase how cities can partner with our
communities to advance environmental justice for all.”
 
The ordinance also requires the City to prepare a Climate Action Plan by the end of 2021. The
Plan, which serves as the roadmap for achieving the reductions required by law, must include
an equity framework that will address historic racial and social inequities; prioritize social,
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
building operations, housing, responsible production and consumption, and healthy
ecosystems.
 
San Francisco continues to make progress on initiatives that will help the City achieve these
new targets, including reducing emissions from office buildings and homes, promoting transit,
transitioning to zero-emission transportation, and eliminating waste. San Francisco is also
engaged with global partners in the fight against climate change as a member of C40, the
Carbon Neutral Cities Alliance, and the Climate Mayors.
 

###
 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 6:43:56 PM

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

﻿On 7/20/21, 6:21 PM, "Khalilah Alston" <khalilah.alston@gmail.com> wrote:

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

    Thanks!

    Sent from my Illudium Q-36 Space Modulator

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
Cc: Liang, Xinyu (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 5012 Third Street , 2019-020818AHB: 5012 3rd Street
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 4:14:22 PM

 
 
 
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
 

From: Sharon E. Bliss <sebliss@sonic.net> 
Sent: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 2:06 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: re: 5012 Third Street , 2019-020818AHB: 5012 3rd Street
 

 

Dear members of the Planning Commission;

I am writing to express my concerns with the proposed project at 2019-020818AHB:
5012 3rd Street that you will be reviewing on July 29th.

My major concern is that the project plans currently include no off-street automobile
parking for a proposed 29-unit building. I live around the corner, on the 1700 block of
Quesada Avenue, and street parking and double parking is already a problem. I hope
that the planning commission will recognize the stress that the cars from 29 additional
families will put on the neighborhood and require off-street parking for the building.
Thank you.

Sincerely,

Sharon Bliss

1778 Quesada Avenue

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:xinyu.liang@sfgov.org
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
Subject: FW: Request for Organized Opposition Presentation for 1525 Pine St Project on July 22nd Hearing
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 3:33:10 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png
Negative effects of 1525 Pine St Complete - Planning Hearing Set V3.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 at 2:51 PM
To: "joel.koppel@sfgov.org" <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>, "Chan, Deland (CPC)"
<deland.chan@sfgov.org>, "Moore, Kathrin (CPC)" <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>, "Asbagh,
Claudine (CPC)" <claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org>, "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>,
"Diamond, Susan (CPC)" <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>, "Tanner, Rachael (CPC)"
<rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>, Theresa Imperial <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>, "Fung, Frank
(CPC)" <frank.fung@sfgov.org>, "Hillis, Rich (CPC)" <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>
Cc: "markcooper49@gmail.com" <markcooper49@gmail.com>, ANTHONY CIECHALSKI
<bacime@mac.com>
Subject: Request for Organized Opposition Presentation for 1525 Pine St Project on July 22nd
Hearing
 

 

Hello Commissioners,

I am requesting a 10 minute time slot to present an organized opposition against the 1525 Pine St
Project. I will be representing myself (Theresa Calderon), Mark Cooper and Anthony Ciechalski. We
all live in studios in the lightwell and we want to make sure our concerns are addressed by the
developers and the commission.
 
The sponsors' light study shows that the 79ft building causes significant adverse effects to the light
quality of the neighboring east facing studio units that have no exposure to a street or alley.
However the sponsors claim that the impact is not significant because they are replacing natural
light with artificial lights. This mitigation does not address our concern of lack of access to natural
light. There are no requirements that the lights be maintained after construction. The sponsors are

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/

Interior Light in 3rd Floor Unit on Summer Morning

1. Shows 370 LUX at the window matching the sponsor’s light study
2. Shows corresponding interior light at 147 LUX in the living room and 36 LUX in the kitchen Summer Morning Simulation
3. Interior light i darker than the window light
4. Lower floors are below the average light reading of 840 LUX in the sponsor's study
The Proposed 79 ft building disproportionately affects lower floors. agsn\.‘ux
. approx
Summer Morning Summer Morning Average
Average a0 Proposed 79-ft Project June 21
9:00 AM| 840 lux|
3rd floor 370LUX
Exterior Din
Window
3rd floor 147
Interior Dim’
Living room
3rd floor 36LUX
Interior “ery dark” A
Kitchen 147 LUX 36 LUX

“dark” very dark’

“See side 26 for breakdown of LUX readings




Dark Mornings All Year for Lower floors

Below shows the approximate light on 3rd floor studio using the light readings from the
simulation.

Summer Morning Winter Morning Fall/Spring Morning

a70LUX 79LUX 200 LUX
Din “Very dark” “dark”
approx

approx approx

24 LUX
‘very dark’

“See side 25126127 for breakdown of LUX readings




Values Lux vs Perceived

Effect of Lowering the Building to 4 Floors: —
Improved Morning Light from Dark to Normal

June 11 @ 10:30 AM Light Measurements
By lowering the building to 4 floors, morning No building | 79 ft
light between 9 AM - 12 PM for lower units

4floors
can be improved from dark to normal 2nd floor(lux) | 1060 70 600
“dark” “normal
% reduction 93% 43%

519 L
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


Summer Morning


Average 840 LUX
“Normal”


3rd floor
Exterior 
Window


370 LUX
“Dim”


3rd floor
Interior
Living room


147
“Dim”


3rd floor
Interior
Kitchen


36 LUX
“Very dark”


1. Shows 370 LUX at the window matching the sponsor’s light study
2. Shows corresponding interior light at 147 LUX in the living room and 36 LUX in the kitchen
3. Interior light is darker than the window light
4. Lower floors are below the average light reading of 840 LUX in the sponsor’s study


 The Proposed 79 ft building disproportionately affects lower floors.


147 LUX 
“dark” 


36 LUX 
“very dark”


Summer Morning Average


370 LUX
“Dim”
approx


*See slide 26 for breakdown of LUX readings







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


*See slide 25/26/27 for breakdown of LUX readings







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


*See slide 24/26/27 for breakdown of LUX readings







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







What can be done?







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


Light Reduction Percentage 9AM - 4PM


Morning light reduction for lower units between 9 AM - 
12 PM can be improved by lowering the 1525 building 
height to 4 floors.
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Time/height/% 79 ft 4 floors


9:15 AM 99.99% 99.98


10:30 AM 93% 43%


12:40 PM 77% 72%


4:00 PM 91% 89%







No building 79 ft 4 floors


2nd floor(lux) 1060 70
“dark”


600
“normal


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
can be improved from dark to normal


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


Dim Exterior Light is Dim/Very Dark Interior Light


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







building more units at the direct cost of the health and safety of the neighboring residents. The
project adds 14 studio units and creates 11 substandard studio units next door (1 studio unit in 1525
Pine St). This is a bad tradeoff for the city and sets a bad example that encourages future developers
to sacrifice the health and safety of residents to increase their profits by building more substandard
housing. The planning commission should not allow this to happen.
 
I've attached a presentation that outlines the significant adverse effects of the proposed 79ft project
on 10 studio units, especially those of us on the lower floors. 20 total units in the 1545 Pine St
"Austin" building are affected. The presentation also contains an appendix of quantitative data.
 
Effects on east facing studio units:

I've combined the light study with photos taken from inside a floor studio to show that 
mornings and afternoons will be dark to very dark throughout the whole year.
The photos also show how all the studio units will be very dark to pitch black in the winter
time.
The significant light reduction of more than 99% during the mornings and afternoons for the
east facing studio units on the lower floors. The effects should be mitigated because having
residents live in darkness is bad for their health. Light Quality is protected by the Planning
Code. 
This is especially detrimental for seniors and disabled people like Tony who have limited
ability to leave their home. 
This is also detrimental for the 2 BMR units in the lightwell.

Clear Ask:

This should be mitigated by reducing the height to 4 stories because it effectively increases
the lighting from "dark" to "normal" for the lower floors. The proposed artificial lighting is not
enough because it is not a sustainable substitute for natural light. Maintaining the artificial
lighting in the lightwell is not required by law and can be easily taken down after the project is
built.

Best,
Theresa Calderon, Mark Cooper, Anthony Ciechalski
 





 
 
 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Request for Organized Opposition Presentation for 1525 Pine St Project on July 22nd Hearing
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 3:32:56 PM
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
 
 

From: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 at 3:32 PM
To: Theresa Calderon <cgtheresa@gmail.com>, "joel.koppel@sfgov.org"
<joel.koppel@sfgov.org>, "Chan, Deland (CPC)" <deland.chan@sfgov.org>, "Moore, Kathrin
(CPC)" <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>, "Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)" <claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org>,
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
Subject: Re: Request for Organized Opposition Presentation for 1525 Pine St Project on July
22nd Hearing
 
Ms. Calderon,
The intent of Organized Opposition is to reduce the overall number of speakers by having three
representatives present the concerns of a larger group. Furthermore, this matter has already been
heard. As such, the Sponsor will be provided with three minutes and members of the public will be
provided one minute to speak. I suggest the three of you organize your presentations such that you
each present your shared concerns in one minute increments.
 
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
Subject: FW: Plan Set for 1112 Shotwell Street
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 12:33:12 PM
Attachments: 20210521_1112 Shotwell_PCL 2-compressed.pdf

 
 
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
 
 

From: "Feeney, Claire (CPC)" <claire.feeney@sfgov.org>
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 at 9:46 AM
To: Richard Sucre <richard.sucre@sfgov.org>, "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>,
"Diamond, Susan (CPC)" <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>, "joel.koppel@sfgov.org"
<joel.koppel@sfgov.org>, Theresa Imperial <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>, "Tanner, Rachael
(CPC)" <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>, "Fung, Frank (CPC)" <frank.fung@sfgov.org>, "Moore,
Kathrin (CPC)" <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>, "Chan, Deland (CPC)" <deland.chan@sfgov.org>
Subject: Plan Set for 1112 Shotwell Street
 
Hello Commissioners,
The attached PDF is the most up-to-date plan set for the proposed residential building at 1112
Shotwell Street, 2020-009312CUA. I apologize that I attached an older draft of the plans to the staff
report. The changes are primarily architectural refinements and slight massing changes to the
entryway, to make the project more compatible with the historic district.
 
Best,
Claire
 
Claire Feeney, AICP, Planner II
Southeast Team, Current Planning Division
San Francisco Planning Department
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103 
Direct: 628.652.7313 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 
Expanded in-person services at the Permit Center at 49 South Van Ness Avenue are available. Most other
San Francisco Planning functions are being conducted remotely. Our staff are available by e-mail, and the
Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely. The public is encouraged to
participate. Find more information on our services here.
 

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
http://www.sfplanning.org/
http://propertymap.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanning.org/staff-directory
https://sfplanning.org/node/1978
https://sfplanning.org/node/1978
https://sfplanning.org/node/1964
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COVER SHEET


1112 SHOTWELL ST
NEW CONSTRUCTION OF 3-UNIT BUILDING ADJACENT TO THE EXISTING


RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURE ON THE SAME LOT


1112 SHOTWELL ST
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94110


1112 SHOTWELL LLC


RH-3/40-X


R-2


V-A


202104088185


THE PROJECT PROPOSES THE CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW 3-STORY / 3-UNIT RESIDENTIAL BUILDING NEXT TO THE
EXISTING 3-STORY/4-UNIT RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURE IN THE SIDE YARD. ON THIRD FLOOR, THERE WILL BE A ROOF
ACCESS STAIR TO A PRIVATE ROOF DECK. THE EXTANT 4-UNIT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN THE SHOTWELL
STREET VICTORIANA HISTORIC DISTRICT, DEEMED INDIVIDUALLY ELIGIBLE FOR THE NATIONAL REGISTER AND HAS A
"A-HISTORIC RESOURCE PRESENT" RATING. THE NEW 3-STORY BUILDING IS DESIGNED TO BE COMPATIBLE WITH THE
DISTRICT AND RESOURCE. 7 UNITS ARE ALLOWED ON THE SUBJECT RH-3 PROPERTY WITH CONDITIONAL USE
APPROVAL.
ALL WORK TO COMPLY WITH CURRENT LOCAL AND STATE CODES INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: THE 2019 EDITION
OF THE CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE, THE CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE, THE CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE, THE
CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE AND THE CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE, THE CURRENT EDITIONS OF THE SAN FRANCISCO
BUILDING AND PLANNING CODES, TITLE-24 ENERGY STANDARDS, GYPSUM FIRE RESISTANCE DESIGN MANUAL (20TH
EDITION), ETC...
FULLY SPRINKLERED UNDER A SEPARATE PERMIT


Site Permit/Response to
PCL #2


05/21/2021


SFDBI BPA#: 202104088185 G0.01


1112
SHOTWELL ST


NEW CONSTRUCTION OF
3-UNIT BUILDING ADJACENT


TO THE EXISTING
RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURE


ON THE SAME LOT


1112 SHOTWELL LLC


1112 SHOTWELL ST
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94110


SFDBI BPA: 202104088185
BLOCK 6526 / LOT 002


SFDBI BPA#: 202104088185


SHEET INDEX


01 GENERAL
G0.01 COVER SHEET
G0.03 GENERAL NOTES, PLANNING DEPARTMENT NOTES & SCHEDULES
G0.04 BUILDING DEPARTMENT NOTES & SCHEDULES
G0.05 SITE PHOTOS
G0.06 SITE SURVEY
G0.08 FIRE AND LIFE SAFETY PLANS
G0.11 GREENPOINT RATED CHECKLIST


04 ARCHITECTURAL EXISTING
AE1.01 EXISTING SITE PLAN
AE5.01 EXISTING EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
AE5.02 EXISTING EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS


06 ARCHITECTURE
A1.01 SITE PLANS
A2.01 FLOOR PLANS
A2.02 FLOOR PLANS
A5.01 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A5.02 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A7.01 BUILDING SECTIONS
A10.04 FLOOR ASSEMBLIES - WOOD
A10.21 DOOR & WINDOW SCHEDULE
18


LOCATION MAP:


BUILDING DATA:


SUBJECT PROJECT


FULLY SPRINKLERED UNDER A SEPARATE PERMIT


6526/003 6526/002


1126 SHOTWELL SUBJECT/PROPOSED NEW BUILDING 1112 - 1118 SHOTWELL EXISTING TO REMAIN
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Revisions







A.  GENERAL NOTES:


1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE COMPLETE PROJECT SYSTEMS AND COMPONENTS AND COMPLY WITH 
ALL REQUIREMENTS INDICATED ON THE PROJECT DOCUMENTS.


2. WORK WITHIN THE AREA BOUNDARIES INDICATED IN THE PROJECT DOCUMENTS AND COMPLY WITH ALL 
APPLICABLE BUILDING CODE, REGULATION, & ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS. OCCUPANTS ADJACENT TO THE 
PROJECT AREA BOUNDARIES SHALL CONTINUE UNINTERRUPTED OCCUPANCY DURING CONSTRUCTION OF 


THE PROJECT.


3. VERIFY FIELD CONDITIONS AND COORDINATION WITH THE PROJECT DOCUMENTS PRIOR TO PROCEEDING 
WITH THE WORK.


4. COORDINATE THE WORK WITH ALL REQUIREMENTS INDICATED IN THE PROJECT DOCUMENTS.


5. PERFORM THE WORK AT THE PROJECT SITE DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS, UNLESS OTHERWISE 
NOTED.


6. COORDINATE THE WORK WITH EQUIPMENT, FURNISHINGS AND SYSTEMS PROVIDED BY THE OWNER.


B.  DEFINITIONS:


1. "TYPICAL" OR "TYP" INDICATES IDENTICAL COMPLETE SYSTEM SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR EACH 
OCCURRENCE OF THE CONDITION NOTED.
2. "SIMILAR" INDICATES COMPLETE SYSTEM AND COMPONENTS SHALL BE PROVIDED COMPARABLE TO THE 


CHARACTERISTICS FOR THE CONDITION NOTED.
3. "AS REQUIRED" INDICATES COMPONENTS REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THE NOTED, SYSTEM AS INDICATED IN 
THE PROJECT DOCUMENTS, SHALL BE PROVIDED
4. "ALIGN" INDICATES ACCURATELY PROVIDE FINISH FACES OF MATERIALS IN STRAIGHT, TRUE AND PLUMB 


RELATION TO ADJACENT MATERIALS.


C.  DIMENSIONS:


1. DIMENSIONS ARE INDICATED TO THE CENTERLINE OF THE STRUCTURAL GRID, FACE OF CONCRETE WALL, 
NOMINAL FACE OF CMU WALL, FACE OF PARTITION AS SCHEDULED, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.


2. ALIGNMENT OF PARTITIONS AND FINISHES AS SCHEDULED SHALL BE STRAIGHT, TRUE & PLUMB. THE 
PRIORITY FOR PROJECT DIMENSIONS SHALL BE IN THE FOLLOWING ORDER:


A. STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS
B. LARGE SCALE DETAILS
C. SMALL SCALE DETAILS
D. ENLARGED VIEWS
E. FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS


3. MINIMUM DIMENSIONS FOR ACCESSIBILITY CLEARANCES AND BUILDING CODE REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE 
MAINTAINED.


4. FLOOR ELEVATIONS ARE INDICATED TO THE FACE OF THE STRUCTURAL SLAB, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.


5. VERTICAL DIMENSIONS ARE INDICATED FROM THE FLOOR ELEVATION TO FACE OF FINISHED MATERIAL, 
UNLESS NOTED ABOVE FINISH FLOOR -"AFF".


6. CEILING HEIGHTS ARE INDICATED FROM THE FLOOR ELEVATION TO THE FACE OF SUSPENDED ACOUSTIC 
PANEL CEILING GRID OR FACE OF FINISH MATERIAL FOR OTHER CEILING TYPES, UON.


7. DIMENSIONS SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS SHALL INDICATE THE REQUIRED SIZE, CLEARANCE AND 
DIMENSIONAL RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN PROJECT SYSTEMS AND COMPONENTS. DIMENSIONS SHALL NOT BE 
DETERMINED BY SCALING THE DRAWINGS.


D.  DRAWING SET ORGANIZATION:


1. EACH DRAWING SET SHEET IS IDENTIFIED BY THE SHEET NUMBER IN THE LOWER RIGHT HAND CORNER OF 
THE DRAWING TITLE BLOCK. THE SHEET TITLE PROVIDES A GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE CONTENTS OF 
THE SHEET.


SHEET NUMBER EXAMPLE: A201
"A" INDICATES THE DISCIPLINE THAT CREATED THE DRAWING
"2" INDICATES THE DRAWING CATEGORY CONTAINED ON THE SHEET
"01" INDICATES THE SHEET NUMBER


2. SHEET NUMBERS MAY INCLUDE SUPPLEMENTAL CHARACTERS TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL INFORMATION, 
SUCH AS DRAWING CONTENT, PROJECT SECTOR OR PHASE. REFER TO THE DRAWING INDEX FOR A COMPLETE 
LIST OF SHEETS INCLUDED IN THE DOCUMENT SET.


EXAMPLE: EL201A
"EL" INDICATES THE DISCIPLINE THAT CREATED THE DRAWING AND THE DRAWING CONTENT = 


ELECTRICAL LIGHTING
"A" INDICATES SECTOR "A" OF PLAN SHEET "201". REFER TO THE PROJECT KEY PLAN OR COMPOSITE 


PLAN INDICATING THE RELATIONSHIP OF THE SECTORS.


3. DRAWING SET INDEX INDICATES THE COMPLETE LIST OF SHEETS CONTAINED IN THE DRAWING SET, 
INDEXED BY DISCIPLINE, SHEET NUMBER AND SHEET TITLE, IN SEQUENTIAL ORDER. NOTE THAT ALL 
SEQUENTIAL SHEET NUMBERS MAY BE NOT USED IN THE DRAWING SET.


4. DISCIPLINE IDENTIFICATION, IN ORDER BOUND IN THE DRAWING SET. REFER TO THE DRAWING SET INDEX 
FOR DISCIPLINE CONTAINED IN THIS DRAWING SET:


G   GENERAL INFORMATION Q   EQUIPMENT
C   CIVIL F   FIRE PROTECTION
L   LANDSCAPE P   PLUMBING
S   STRUCTURAL M   MECHANICAL
A   ARCHITECTURAL E   ELECTRICAL
I    INTERIORS T   TELECOMMUNICATIONS


5. DRAWING CATEGORY IDENTIFICATION. REFER TO THE DRAWING SET INDEX FOR DISCIPLINES, CATEGORIES 
AND SHEET NUMBERS CONTAINED IN THIS DRAWING SET:
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GENERAL
NOTES,


PLANNING
DEPARTMENT


NOTES &
SCHEDULES


G0.03


1112
SHOTWELL ST


NEW CONSTRUCTION OF
3-UNIT BUILDING ADJACENT


TO THE EXISTING
RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURE


ON THE SAME LOT


1112 SHOTWELL LLC


1112 SHOTWELL ST
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94110


BLOCK 6526 / LOT 002


PROJECT SUMMARY


Comments


UNIT DISTRIBUTION BUILDING INTERIOR AREA (NET) EXTERIOR OPEN SPACE (NET)


1BR 2BR 3BR TOTAL


RESIDENTIAL


TOTAL PRIVATE COMMON
DWELLING


UNIT COMMON CIRCULATION SUBTOTAL


LEVEL 1 0 1 0 1 828 SF 0 SF 165 SF 992 SF 992 SF 102 SF 698 SF
LEVEL 2 0 1 0 1 809 SF 0 SF 81 SF 890 SF 890 SF 0 SF 0 SF
LEVEL 3 0 1 0 1 974 SF 0 SF 0 SF 974 SF 974 SF 218 SF 0 SF


0 3 0 3 2610 SF 0 SF 245 SF 2856 SF 2856 SF 319 SF 698 SF


GROSS BUILDING AREA BREAKDOWN
BY FLOOR (ENCLOSED AREA)


LEVEL PROPOSED


(N) FIRST FLOOR 1137 SF
(N) SECOND FLOOR 1067 SF
(N) THIRD FLOOR 1061 SF


3266 SF


COMMON OPEN SPACE SUMMARY


AREA REQUIRED (5 UNITS x 133 SF) LEVEL
AREA PROVIDED


TOTAL


665 SF LEVEL 1 698 SF


PLANNING CODE ANALYSIS
ADDRESS : 1112 SHOTWELL, SAN FRANCISCO, 94110 ORIGINAL FILING :


BLOCK / LOT : 6526 / 002; LOT AREA: 6,899 SF
HISTORIC STANDING : EXISTING BUILDING ON SITE: "A-HISTORIC RESOURCE PRESENT" - ALSO
CONTRIBUTOR TO THE SHOTWELL STREET VICTORIANA HISTORIC DISTRICT


Topic Code Section Required / Allowed Existing Proposed


ZONE/MAP MAP ZN01 RH-3 (1DWELLING UNIT PER 1000 SF LOT AREA WITH CU APPROVAL = 7
UNITS MAX)


RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL


PERMITTED USE SFPC 209 PERMITTED RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL
DENSITY SFPC 209.2 RH-3 (1DWELLING UNIT PER 1000 SF LOT AREA WITH CU APPROVAL = 7


UNITS MAX)
4 UNITS ON SITE 3 NEW UNITS = TOTAL 7 ON LOT (CU APPROVAL


IS REQUIRED)
F.A.R SFPC 124 N/A RESIDENTIAL ( F.A.R DOES NOT APPLY) RESIDENTIAL ( F.A.R DOES NOT APPLY)
BULK LIMIT / HEIGHT SFPC 260 40-X 38'-3" (EXISTING STRUCTURE) 34'-1" (NEW STRUCTURE)
FRONT YARD SETBACK SFPC 132 AVERAGE OF ADJACENT PROPERTIES AND NOT TO EXCEED 15'. AT LEAST


50% OF FRONT SETBACK SHALL BE PERMEABLE SO AS TO INCREASE
STORMWATER INFILTRATION AND 20% OF FRONT SETBACK SHALL BE
UNPAVED AND DEVOTED TO PLANT MATERIAL.


11'-3" 9'-7"


REAR YARD SETBACK SFPC 134 45% OF THE LOT DEPTH, BUT IN NO CASE LESS THAN 15' OR 25% OF THE
LOT DEPTH


47'-7" 51'-9" (45% REAR YARDS) (SEC136
OBSTRUCTIONS ALLOWED


OPEN SPACE SFPC TABLE 135(a) 100 sqft OF PRIVATE OR 133 sqft OF COMMON OPEN SPACE PER DWELLING
UNIT IS REQUIRED.


1877 sqft (E) REAR YARD & SIDE YARD FOR (4) UNITS (2) UNITS HAVE PRIVATE OPEN SPACE, (1) UNIT
SHARES 699 SQFT COMMON OPEN SPACE WITH
OTHER (4) UNITS


STREET TREES SFPC 138.1 REQUIRED (3) TREES ON THE SIDEWALK MAINTAIN EXISTING
PARKING SFPC 151 NONE REQUIRED NONE EXISTING PROVIDE BIKE PARKING (3 CLASS (1) BICYCLE


SPACES IN LOCKERS PROVIDED)
RESIDENTIAL DESIGN
GUIDELINES


SFPC 311 APPLY


OPEN SPACE COMPLIANCE:
(2) NEW UNITS HAVE COMPLYING PRIVATE OPEN SPACE (GROUND FLOOR UNIT HAS 
PRIVATE PATIO ON GRADE; THRID FLOOR UNIT HAS PRIVATE ROOF DECK)
(1) NEW UNIT & (4) EXISTING UNITS HAVE ACCESS TO COMPLYING COMMON OPEN SPACE 
(133 SF EA) (SEE PROPOSED SITE PLAN SHEET A1.01)


STD STANDARD
STL STEEL
STRL STRUCTURAL
SUSP SUSPENDED
SYM SYMETRICAL
SYST SYSTEM


T&B TOP AND BOTTOM
T&G TONGUE AND GROOVE
T.O. TOP OF
T/TRD TREAD
TB TOWEL BAR
TEMP TEMPORARY
THK THICK
TOB TOP OF BEAM
TOC TOP OF CONCRETE
TOS TOP OF SLAB
TP TOILET PAPER
TYP TYPICAL


UON UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED


V VOLTAGE / VOLT
VERT VERTICAL
VIF VERIFY IN FIELD
VPFAM VAPOR PERMEABLE FLUID


APPLIED MEMBRANE


W WEST / WIDTH / WIDE
W/ WITH
W/O WITHOUT
WC WATER CLOSET
WD WOOD
WDW WINDOW
WH WATER HEATER
WP WATERPROOF(ING)
WPT WORKING POINT
WRB WEATHER RESISTIVE BARRIER
WT WEIGHT


x BY


PSI POUNDS PER SQUARE INCH
PTDF PRESSURE TREATED


DOUGLAS FIR
PTN PARTITION
PV PHOTOVOLTAIC


R RADIUS (IN DIMENSION) /
RISER


RAD RADIUS
RCP REFLECTED CEILING PLAN
RD ROOF DRAIN
REF REFERENCE
REFR REFRIGERATOR
REG REGISTER
REINF REINFORCED
REQ REQUIRED
RM ROOM
RO ROUGH OPENING
RWD REDWOOD
RWL RAIN WATER LEADER


S SOUTH
SCD SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS
SCHED SCHEDULE / SCHEDULING
SD STORM DRAIN
SECT SECTION
SED SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS
SF SQUARE FEET
SFD SEE FIRE PROTECTION


DRAWINGS
SHT SHEET
SIM SIMILAR
SLD SEE LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS
SMD SEE MECHANICAL DRAWINGS
SOG SLAB ON GRADE
SPD SEE PLUMBING DRAWINGS
SPEC SPECIFICATIONS
SQ SQUARE
SS/SST STAINLESS STEEL
SSD SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS
STC SOUND TRANSMISSION CLASS


L ANGLE / LONG / LENGTH
LAV LAVATORY
LBS POUND / POUNDS
LF LINEAR FEET
LVL LEVEL
LWC LIGHT WEIGHT CONCRETE


MAX MAXIMUM
MECH MECHANICAL
MFR MANUFACTURER
MH MANHOLE
MIN MINIMUM
MISC MISCELLANEOUS
MTD MOUNTED
MTG MOUNTING
MTL METAL


N NORTH
N/A NOT APPLICABLE
NIC NOT IN CONTRACT
NO NUMBER
NRC NOISE REDUCTION


COEFFICIENT
NTS NOT TO SCALE


OC ON CENTER
OFCI OWNER FURNISHED,


CONTRACTOR INSTALLED
OFOI OWNER FURNISHED, OWNER


INSTALLED
OH OPPOSITE HAND
OPNG OPENING


PL PROPERTY LINE
PLAM PLASTIC LAMINATE
PLUMB PLUMBING
PLY/PLY
WD


PLYWOOD


POC POINT OF CONNECTION
PSF POUNDS PER SQUARE FOOT


FIN FINISH
FLR FLOOR / FLOORING
FLUOR FLUORESCENT
FO FACE OF
FOC FACE OF CONCRETE / CURB
FOF FACE OF FINISH
FOS FACE OF STUD
FT FOOT OR FEET
FTG FOOTING
FTS FABRIC COVERED TACK


SURFACE
FURG FURRING


GA GAUGE
GALV GALVANIZED
GC GENERAL CONTRACTOR
GEN GENERAL
GFIC GROUND FAULT INTERRUPT


CIRCUIT
GND GROUND
GWB GYPSUM WALL BOARD
GYP GYPSUM


HB HOSE BIB
HD HEAVY DUTY
HM HOLLOW METAL
HORZ HORIZONTAL
HR HOUR
HSS HOLLOW STEEL SECTION
HT HEIGHT
HVAC HEATING, VENTILATING, AND


AIR CONDITIONING
HWH HOT WATER HEATER


IN INCH OR INCHES
INS INSULATE / INSULATION /


INSULATING
INT INTERIOR


J BOX JUNCTION BOX
JT JOINT


CONC CONCRETE
CONST CONSTRUCTION
CONT CONTINUOUS
CPC CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE
CPT CARPET
CTR CENTER


d PENNY
DBL DOUBLE
DEPT DEPARTMENT
DF DOUGLAS FIR
DH DOUBLE HUNG
DIA DIAMETER
DIM DIMENSION
DN DOWN
DP DRAIN PIPE
DR DOOR
DS DOWNSPOUT
DTL DETAIL
DWG DRAWING


E EAST
EA EACH
EERO EMERGENCY ESCAPE AND


RESCUE OPENING(S)
EL ELEVATION
ELEC ELECTRICAL
ELEV ELEVATOR / ELEVATION
EQ EQUAL
EQUIP EQUIPMENT
EXT EXTERIOR


FA FIRE ALARM
FC FOOT-CANDLE
FD FLOOR DRAIN
FDC FIRE DEPARTMENT


CONNECTION
FDN FOUNDATION
FE FIRE EXTINGUISHER
FEC FIRE EXTINGUISHER W/


CABINET
FF FINISH FLOOR


& AND
@ AT
º DEGREES
Ø DIAMETER OR ROUND
(E) EXISTING
(N) NEW
' FOOT / FEET
" INCH / INCHES
% PERCENT
± PLUS / MINUS
# POUND OR NUMBER


AB ANCHOR BOLT
ADD'L ADDITIONAL
ADJ ADJACENT
AFF ABOVE FINISH FLOOR
ALT ALTERNATE
ALUM ALUMINUM
APPROX APPROXIMATE
ARCH ARCHITECTURAL


B.O. BOTTOM OF
BD BOARD
BLDG BUILDING


CAB CABINET
CBC CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE
CEC CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE
CEM CEMENT
CER CERAMIC
CF CUBIC FEET
CFC CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE
CFCI CONTRACTOR FURNISHED,


CONTRACTOR INSTALLED
CFOI CONTRACTOR FURNISHED,


OWNER INSTALLED
CJ CONTROL JOINT
CL CENTER LINE
CLG CEILING
CLR CLEAR
CMU CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT
COL COLUMN
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BUILDING
DEPARTMENT


NOTES &
SCHEDULES


G0.04


1112
SHOTWELL ST


NEW CONSTRUCTION OF
3-UNIT BUILDING ADJACENT


TO THE EXISTING
RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURE


ON THE SAME LOT


1112 SHOTWELL LLC


1112 SHOTWELL ST
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94110


BLOCK 6526 / LOT 002


OCCUPANCY SCHEDULE BY FLOOR
Level OCCUPANT LOAD (OL) - SCHEDULE ON G0.06.1


(N) FIRST FLOOR 5
(N) ROOF 2
(N) SECOND FLOOR 5
(N) THIRD FLOOR 5


17


BUILDING DEPARTMENT CODE ANALYSIS*
* SEE G0.06.1 AND G0.06.2 FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION


# Description
Code Ref. (CBC,


U.O.N.) Allowable
Min/M


ax Proposed Comments


1 - GENERAL PROJECT INFORMATION
1.1 TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION 602.1 TYPE V-A
1.2 OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION 310.4 R-2 (3 NEW UNITS)
1.3 HIGH-RISE BUILDING CLASSIFICATION 403.1 N/A N/A


3 - HEIGHT AND AREA LIMITATIONS
3.1 BUILDING HEIGHT Table 504.3 Unlimited (UL) Max. 34'-1"
3.2 BUILDING STORIES ABOVE GRADE Table 504.4 3 STORIES Max. 3 STORIES O/ BASEMENT
3.3 LARGEST STORY AREA Table 506.2 UL Max. 1,137 SF Largest Story = 1st Floor
3.4 TOTAL BUILDING AREA 3,254 SF


6 - FIRE RESISTANCE RATING REQUIREMENTS
6.1 PRIMARY STRUCTURAL FRAME Table 601 1 HR Min. 1 HR
6.2 BEARING WALLS - EXTERIOR Table 601 1 HR Min. 1 HR
6.3 BEARING WALLS - INTERIOR Table 601 1 HR Min. 1 HR
6.4 NON-BEARING WALLS - EXTERIOR Table 601 Varies - see below
6.41 WHERE FIRE SEPARATION DISTANCE (FSD) < 30' Table 602 1 HR Min. 1 HR
6.42 WHERE FSD >/= 30' Table 602 Not Require N/A
6.5 NON-BEARING WALLS - INTERIOR Table 601 Not Required
6.51 NON-BEARING WALLS - TENANT SEPARATION 708 1 HR Min. 1 HR
6.6 FLOOR CONSTRUCTION AND ASSOCIATED


SECONDARY MEMBERS
Table 601 and


510.4
1 HR Min. 1 HR


6.7 ROOF CONSTRUCTION AND ASSOCIATED
SECONDARY MEMBERS


Table 601 1 HR Min. 1 HR


6.81 SHAFT ENCLOSURES CONNECTING LESS THAN 4
STORIES


713.4 1 HR WHEN
PENETRATING 2 HR


FLOOR


Min. 1 HR


6.82 SHAFT ENCLOSURES CONNECTING 4 STORIES OR
MORE


713.4 1 HR Min. 1 HR


6.9 HORIZONTAL EXIT (USED AT CORRIDORS) 1026.2 & 711.2.4 1 HR Min. 1 HR


7 - FIRE AND SMOKE PROTECTION FEATURES
7.1 MAXIMUM AREA OF EXTERIOR WALL OPENINGS


AND PROTECTION REQUIRED
7.11 WHERE FIRE SEPARATION DISTANCE (FSD) < 3' SF DBI AB-009 45 MINUTES Min. 45 MINUTES
7.12 WHERE 3' </= FSD <5' Table 705.8 15% OPENING


PERMITTED
UNPROTECTED,
SPRINKLERED


Max. N/A


7.13 WHERE 5' </= FSD <10' Table 705.8 25% OPENING
PERMITTED


UNPROTECTED,
SPRINKLERED


Max. N/A


7.14 WHERE 10' </= FSD <15' Table 705.8 45% OPENING
PERMITTED


UNPROTECTED,
SPRINKLERED


Max. N/A


7.15 WHERE 15' </= FSD <20' Table 705.8 75% OPENING
PERMITTED


UNPROTECTED,
SPRINKLERED


Max. N/A


7.16 WHERE FSD >/= 20' Table 705.8 No Limit


9 - FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS
9.1 AUTOMATIC, FULLY SPRINKLERED SYSTEM 903 and NFPA 13 Required per CBC 903 and


NFPA 14
YES, provided per CBC 903


and NFPA 14
9.2 STANDPIPE SYSTEMS 905 AND NFPA


14
Required per CBC 905 and
NFPA 14 for buildings > 3


stories


NO


9.3 FIRE PUMPS 901.8, 913 and
NFPA 20


Fire Flow Calcs demonstrate
a Fire Pump is required on


this project


NO


9.4 FIRE ALARM AND DETECTION SYSTEM 907 and NFPA 72 Required per CBC 907 and
NFPA 72


YES, provided per CBC 907
and NFPA 72


9.5 EMERGENCY VOICE / ALARM COMMUNICATION
SYSTEM


907 and NFPA 72 Required per CBC 907 and
NFPA 72


YES, provided per CBC 907
and NFPA 72


Smoke Alarms (per CBC 907.2.11) to be hard-wired to Building Primary Power. Audible alarm notification
to comply with 907.5.21.1 including min. 75 DBA sound pressure in R-occupancies.


9.6 EMERGENCY RESPONDER RADIO
COMMUNICATION SYSTEM


403.4.5, 916,
AND CFC 510


Per CFC 510 as required by
Fire Code Official


YES, provided per 403.4.5,
916, AND CFC 510


10 - MEANS OF EGRESS & OCCUPANT LOAD
10.1
1


STAIRWAY WIDTH 1005.3.1 &
10.11.2


40" Min. MIN.


10.1
2


OTHER EGRESS COMPONENT WIDTHS 1005.3.2 &
1011.2


40" Min. MIN.


10.2
1


NUMBER OF EXITS - COMMON AREAS 1006.2 2 Min. 2


10.2
2


NUMBER OF EXITS - WITHIN DWELLING UNITS 1006.2.1 1 Min. 1 Per Exception 1, (1) exit permitted within and from unit


10.3 DISTANCE BETWEEN EXIT ACCESS STAIRWAYS 1007.1.1 1/3 Building Diagonal Min. > 1/3 Building Diagonal Per Exception 2, the separation distance shall not be greater than 1/3 the diagonal in buildings fully
equipped with fire sprinklers


10.4 EMERGENCY ESCAPE AND RESCUE 1030.1 Not Required in Sleeping
Rooms per Exception 1


Not Provided in Sleeping
Rooms
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are the property and copyright of 
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conditions. Written dimensions take 
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to the attention of Kerman Morris 
Architects prior to the commencement 
of any work. 
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standards builders set for building 
permit and to assist the contractor in 
construction. The drawings show 
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SITE PHOTOS


G0.05


1112
SHOTWELL ST


NEW CONSTRUCTION OF
3-UNIT BUILDING ADJACENT


TO THE EXISTING
RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURE


ON THE SAME LOT


1112 SHOTWELL LLC


1112 SHOTWELL ST
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94110


BLOCK 6526 / LOT 002


SCHEMATIC DESIGN SITE PHOTOS


ADJCENT PROPERTY
1126 SHOTWELL


SUBJECT PROPERTY
NEW 3-UNIT STRUCTURE (E) 4-UNIT TO REMAIN


FRONT PERSPECTIVE


TOP PERSPECTIVE


REAR PERSPECTIVE


1126 SHOTWELL


(E) 7' HIGHT FENCE BETWEEN PROPERTIES


EXISTING YARD & SIDE FACADES OF 1126 SHOTWELL ST


EXISTING REAR YARD


FRONT FACADES OF 1126 SHOTWELL ST


EXISTING REAR YARD EXISTING REAR YARD FRONT & SIDE FACADES OF 1106 SHOTWELL ST


EXISTING YARD & SIDE FACADES OF 3267 25TH ST


EXISTING BUILDING TO REMAIN ON THE SAME LOT EXISTING BUILDING TO REMAIN ON THE SAME LOT
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SITE SURVEY


G0.06


1112
SHOTWELL ST


NEW CONSTRUCTION OF
3-UNIT BUILDING ADJACENT


TO THE EXISTING
RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURE


ON THE SAME LOT


1112 SHOTWELL LLC


1112 SHOTWELL ST
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94110


BLOCK 6526 / LOT 002


Revisions







DN


W
/D


W/D


= 5 OCC.
828 SF / 200 SF


UNIT 101


R-2 TYPE VA:
822 SF / 200 = 5 OCC


1 EXIT MIN.; 2 EXIT PROVIDED
5 OCC X 0.2" = 1" 


TRAVEL DISTANCE NOTES: BUILDING


• EXIT ACCESS TRAVEL DISTANCE FROM 
MOST REMOTE POINT OF ANY 
OCCUPANCY IN BUILDING = 48.7' < 125' 
PROJECT COMPLIES


OCCUPANCY WIDTH NOTES: BUILDING


• STAIR 1 WIDTH REQUIREMENT: SET BY 
GREATEST OCCUPANCY


• STAIR 2 WIDTH REQUIREMENT: SET BY 
GREATEST OCCUPANCY 


• ONLY THE GREATEST OCCUPANT LOAD IS 
SHOWN FOR EGRESS PURPOSES


EXIT NOTES:  BUILDING, THIS FLOOR


• SINGLE EXIT PERMITTED ON EACH SIDE OF 
BUILDING BASED ON OCCUPANCY (R-2), MAX. 
TRAVEL DISTANCE (125') PER CBC 1006.3.3 AND 
FORMAL COMMITTEE IBC INTERPRETATION 
21-14 - SEE TABLE THIS SHEET


52.5' (FROM 2ND FL.) + 9' = 61.5'


57' (FROM 3ND FL.) + 23' (FROM 2ND FL.)+ 9' = 89'


26.8' (FROM ROOF.) + 28.7' (FROM 3RD FL.)+ 23' (FROM 2ND FL)+9' = 87.5'


CPET DISTANCE
46' - 5"


CPET DISTANCE
48' - 8"


CPET DISTANCE
9' - 0"


= 5 OCC.
809 SF / 200 SF


UNIT 201


R-2 TYPE VA:
812 SF / 200 = 5 OCC


1 EXIT MIN.; 2 EXIT PROVIDED
5 OCC X 0.2" = 1" 


TRAVEL DISTANCE NOTES: BUILDING


• EXIT ACCESS TRAVEL DISTANCE FROM 
MOST REMOTE POINT OF ANY 
OCCUPANCY IN BUILDING = 61.5' < 125' 
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
52' - 5"


CPET DISTANCE
23' - 1"


= 5 OCC.
974 SF / 200 SF


UNIT 301


R-2 TYPE VA:
969 SF / 200 = 5 OCC


1 EXIT MIN.; 2 EXIT PROVIDED
5 OCC X 0.2" = 1" 


TRAVEL DISTANCE NOTES: BUILDING


• EXIT ACCESS TRAVEL DISTANCE FROM 
MOST REMOTE POINT OF ANY 
OCCUPANCY IN BUILDING = 89' < 125' 
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
56' - 11"


CPET DISTANCE
28' - 8"


R-2 TYPE VA:
218 SF / 200 = 2 OCC


1 EXIT MIN.; 2 EXIT PROVIDED
2 OCC X 0.2" = 0.4" 


TRAVEL DISTANCE NOTES: BUILDING


• EXIT ACCESS TRAVEL DISTANCE FROM 
MOST REMOTE POINT OF ANY 
OCCUPANCY IN BUILDING = 218' < 125' 
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


= 2 OCC.
218 SF / 200 SF


UNIT 303


CPET DISTANCE
26' - 10"


PARTITION LEGEND
(E)   PARTITION TO REMAIN


(N) 1-HR RATED PARTITION & 
FLOOR (SEE SHEET A7.01)


GENERAL NOTES
1. ALL DIMENSIONS TO FINISH FACE OF WALL U.O.N.
2. V.I.F. ALL (E) DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.  
CONTRACTOR SHALL ALERT ARCHITECT TO ANY 
DISCREPANCIES
3. ALL CLEAR DIMENSIONS SHALL BE EXACT WITHIN 1/8" 
TOLERANCE ALONG FULL HEIGHT AND FULL WIDTH OF WALLS


(E) NON-STRUCTURAL PARTITION 
TO BE REMOVED
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32


As indicated


4/
14


/2
02


1 
7:


55
:3


3 
PM


BI
M


 3
60


://
11


12
 S


ho
tw


el
l/2


00
9_


11
12


 S
ho


tw
el


l S
t_


20
20


07
10


.rv
t


05/21/2021


YZ


TM


###


FIRE AND LIFE
SAFETY
PLANS


G0.08


1112
SHOTWELL ST


NEW CONSTRUCTION OF
3-UNIT BUILDING ADJACENT


TO THE EXISTING
RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURE


ON THE SAME LOT


1112 SHOTWELL LLC


1112 SHOTWELL ST
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94110


BLOCK 6526 / LOT 002


3/32" = 1'-0"1 LIFE SAFETY - (N) FIRST FLOOR


3/32" = 1'-0"2 LIFE SAFETY - (N) SECOND FLOOR


3/32" = 1'-0"3 LIFE SAFETY - (N) THIRD FLOOR


3/32" = 1'-0"4 LIFE SAFETY - (N) ROOF
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32


5/
20


/2
02


1 
11


:1
7:


20
 P


M
BI


M
 3


60
://


11
12


 S
ho


tw
el


l/2
00


9_
11


12
 S


ho
tw


el
l S


t_
20


20
07


10
.rv


t


05/21/2021


YZ


TM


###


GREENPOINT
RATED


CHECKLIST


G0.11


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







UP


UP


2
AE


5.0
1


1
AE


5.0
1


1
AE


5.0
2


1
AE7.01


SIDEWALK
15'-0"


SH
O


TW
EL


L 
ST


R
EE


T


ADJACENT PROPERTY
1126 SHOTWELL ST


6526/003
DISTRICT 8 MISSION


LO
T 


W
I D


TH
60


'-0
"


LOT DEPTH
115'-0"


SUBJECT PROPERTY
1112, 1114, 1116 & 1118 


SHOTWELL ST
6526/002


DISTRICT 8 MISSION


EXISTING 4-UNIT 
BUILDING 


(NO WORK)


VACANT AREA FOR 
PROPOSED BUILDING


EXISTING GARAGE


EXISTING GARAGE


(E
) V


AC
AN


T  
SI


DE
 Y


A R
D


20
'-1


1"25
'-7


 1/
2"


16'-4"


41'-11"


VI
R


G
IL


 S
TR


EE
T


22'-0"


14' - 8 1/2"
17' - 11 1/2"


11' - 0"


8' - 1 1/2"


30' - 6 1/2"


30' - 6 1/2"


31' - 3"


31' - 3"


32' - 9"


32' - 10"


3269-3273 25TH STREET 1106-1108 SHOTWELL


EXISTING REAR SETBACK
47'-7"


EXISTING FRONT SETBACK
11'-8 1/2"


C-24585


L
I C


ENSED ARCH ITE C
T


E


ES


DW
ARD DA IS MORR


IS


V


X P. 3 3- 1 - 2 1TAT E
OF CA LIFORNIA


DATE


SCALE


DRAWN BY


CHECKED BY


JOB NO. 


NOTICE


These drawings and specifications 
are the property and copyright of 
Kerman/Morris Architects and shall 
not be used on any other work except 
by written agreement with 
Kerman/Morris Architects.


The Contractor shall verify all existing 
conditions. Written dimensions take 
preference over scaled dimensions 
and shall be verified on the project 
site. Any discrepancy shall be brought 
to the attention of Kerman Morris 
Architects prior to the commencement 
of any work. 


These drawings are an industry 
standards builders set for building 
permit and to assist the contractor in 
construction. The drawings show 
limited and only representative/typical 
details.


All attachments, connections, 
fastenings,etc, are to be properly 
secured in conformance with best 
practice, and the Contractor shall be 
responsible for providing and installing 
them.


32


3/16" = 1'-0"


5/
20


/2
02


1 
11


:3
9:


26
 P


M
BI


M
 3


60
://


11
12


 S
ho


tw
el


l/2
00


9_
11


12
 S


ho
tw


el
l S


t_
20


20
07


10
.rv


t


05/21/2021


YZ


TM


###


EXISTING SITE
PLAN


AE1.01


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


3/16" = 1'-0"1 EXISTING SITE PLAN - ROOF
0' 2' 4'2' 6' 8'


Revisions







(E) FIRST FLOOR
-1' - 1"


(E) SECOND FLOOR
6' - 7"


(E) THIRD FLOOR
18' - 1 1/2"


(E) FOURTH FLOOR
31' - 6"


STREET LEVEL
-3' - 3"


(E) VACANT LAND TO 
BUILD THE (N) BUILDING


(E) FIRST FLOOR
-1' - 1"


(E) SECOND FLOOR
6' - 7"


(E) THIRD FLOOR
18' - 1 1/2"


(E) FOURTH FLOOR
31' - 6"


REAR YARD LEVEL
-9"


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


:0
1:


07
 A


M
BI


M
 3


60
://


11
12


 S
ho


tw
el


l/2
00


9_
11


12
 S


ho
tw


el
l S


t_
20


20
07


10
.rv


t


05/21/2021


YZ


TM


###


EXISTING
EXTERIOR


ELEVATIONS


AE5.01


1112
SHOTWELL ST


NEW CONSTRUCTION OF
3-UNIT BUILDING ADJACENT


TO THE EXISTING
RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURE


ON THE SAME LOT


1112 SHOTWELL LLC


1112 SHOTWELL ST
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94110


BLOCK 6526 / LOT 002


3/16" = 1'-0"1 EXISTING ELEVATION - EAST (FRONT)


3/16" = 1'-0"2 EXISTING ELEVATION - WEST (REAR)


Revisions







(E) FIRST FLOOR
-1' - 1"


(E) SECOND FLOOR
6' - 7"


(E) THIRD FLOOR
18' - 1 1/2"


(E) FOURTH FLOOR
31' - 6"


STREET LEVEL
-3' - 3"


REAR YARD LEVEL
-9"


P.L.P.L.


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
2:


04
 A


M
BI


M
 3


60
://


11
12


 S
ho


tw
el


l/2
00


9_
11


12
 S


ho
tw


el
l S


t_
20


20
07


10
.rv


t


05/21/2021


YZ


TM


###


EXISTING
EXTERIOR


ELEVATIONS


AE5.02


1112
SHOTWELL ST


NEW CONSTRUCTION OF
3-UNIT BUILDING ADJACENT


TO THE EXISTING
RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURE


ON THE SAME LOT


1112 SHOTWELL LLC


1112 SHOTWELL ST
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94110


BLOCK 6526 / LOT 002


3/16" = 1'-0"1 EXISTING ELEVATION - SOUTH


Revisions







UP


UP


DN


DN


UP


UP UP


2
A5


.02


1
A5


.01


2
A5


.01


1
A5


.02


1
A7.01


SIDEWALK
15'-0"


SH
O


TW
EL


L 
ST


R
EE


T


SUBJECT PROPERTY
1112, 1114, 1116 & 1118 


SHOTWELL ST
6526/002


DISTRICT 8 MISSION


ADJACENT PROPERTY
1126 SHOTWELL ST


6526/003
DISTRICT 8 MISSION


LO
T 


W
I D


TH
60


'-0
"


LOT DEPTH
115'-0"


30' - 10"
EXISTING BUILDING


EXISTING BUILDING


-0' - 9"


PROPOSED COMMON 
OPEN SPACE: 687 SF


FOR 5 UNITS (MIN 133 SF 
PER UNIT)


NEW ENTRY


45% REAR YARD SETBACK


21'-2"


COMPLYING PRIVATE 
OPEN SPACE FOR 


UNIT 1: 100 SF


PRIVATE DECK FOR UNIT 2: 42 SF


COMPLYING PRIVATE OPEN 
SPACE FOR UNIT 3: 217 SF


16'-3"


16'-1 1/2" 10'-0"


ADJACENT PROPERTY
25 VIRGIL ST


6526/005B
DISTRICT 8 MISSION


38
'-7


"


10
'-2


"


REAR POP OUT PER SECTION 
136(c)(25) - ONE STORY


PROPOSED NEW 
3-UNIT BUILDING


31' - 10"


-0' - 6"


-0' - 9"


OPEN FRONT 
YARD TO REMAIN


3269-3273 25TH STREET 1106-1108 SHOTWELL


115'-0" (BUILDING AREA)


7'-
6"


SI
D E


 Y
AR


D 
(B


UI
LD


IN
G 


AR
EA


)
20


'-1
1"VI
R


G
IL


 S
TR


EE
T


26'-2" 63'-3"


C AD


1


3


-3'-3"


14' - 8 1/2"


17' - 11 1/2"


8' - 1 1/2"


32' - 0"


32' - 10"


30' - 6 1/2"


32' - 9"


32' - 0"


30' - 6 1/2"


11' - 0"


4'-
10


"


EXISTING 4-UNIT 
BUILDING 


(NO WORK)


(4) CLASS (1) BICYCLE PARKING 
WITH 2 BIKE LOCKERS


PER S155.2
(MIN. 3 REQUIRED)


5'-0" HIGH WOODEN FENCE


EXIT TO VIRGIL ST FRONT SET BACK AREA: 498.07 SF
PERMEABLE AREA: 337.99 SF
67.86% PERMEABLE OF FRONT SETBACK
COMPLIANCE WITH GREEN 
LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS PER 
SECTION 132


34' - 10"


3'-
6"


PROPOSED REAR SETBACK = 45% OF LOT DEPTH PER SECTION 134
51'-9" 7'-8" 49'-1 1/2" 6'-5 1/2"


SETBACK TO MATCH 
NEIGHBOR'S REAR WALL


FLAT 
UNOCCUPIED 


ROOF


UNOCCUPIED 
GABLE ROOF PITCHED ROOF


SETBACK TO PROVIDE RELIEF 
FOR THE ADJACENT BUILDING5'-0" 33'-1 1/2"


(N) GAS METER 
INSIDE PLANTER


(N) ELECTRIC METER 
ATTACHED TO THE WALL


(N) WATER HEATER


UNOCCUPIED ROOF
ABOVE THE STAIRS


6:12


6:12


4:1
2


BUILDING DEPTH
53'-7 1/2"


1.4


1.7


BU
IL D


IN
G 


W
ID


TH
20


'-3
 1/


2"


4:12


3'-2" 3'-2"


FRONT SETBACK TO 
FACE OF "BAY"


4'-
0"


4'-
9 1


/2"
9'-


4"
2'-


8 1
/2"


5'-
8 1


/2"


9'-7 1/2"
FRONT SETBACK TO FACE OF 


PRINCIPAL FACADE WALL


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
21


/2
02


1 
2:


10
:5


3 
PM


BI
M


 3
60


://
11


12
 S


ho
tw


el
l/2


00
9_


11
12


 S
ho


tw
el


l S
t_


20
20


07
10


.rv
t


05/21/2021


YZ


TM


###


SITE PLANS


A1.01


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


3/16" = 1'-0"1 PROPOSED SITE PLAN - ROOF 0' 2' 4'2' 6' 8'


Revisions







UP


UP


DN


W
/D


UP


DNUP


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


826 SF
101


UNIT 1


1
A7.01


3'-
3 1


/2"


3'-
6"


9'-
3 1


/2"


13'-9 1/2"


5'-
5 1


/2"


11
'-6


"


SIDEWALK
15'-0"


SH
O


TW
EL


L 
ST


R
EE


T


0' - 0"


BEDROOM


BEDROOM LIVINGKITCHEN


EXISTING BUILDING
(NO WORK)


EXISTING BUILDING
(NO WORK)


EXISTING BUILDING
(NO WORK)


-0' - 9"
NEW ENTRY


FRONT SETBACK
6'-9 1/2"


OPEN RISERS ON THE 1ST RUN


-0' - 6"


30'-0"


9'-
0"


PRIVATE 
PATIO


CORRIDOR


PROPOSED COMMON 
OPEN SPACE: 699 SF


FOR 5 UNITS (MIN 133 SF 
PER UNIT)


C AB


D


11


2


33


30'-3 1/2" 28'-4" 9'-7 1/2"


9'-
8"


10
'-7


 1/
2"


10
'-2


"


11'-6" 10'-7 1/2"


10'-7 1/2"


4'-6
 1/2


"


5'-0" HIGH 
WOODEN FENCE


HAND RAILS ON BOTH SIDES
5


3


3'-11"


11'-11" 13'-2" 2'-10"


4'-
0"


2'-
8 1


/2"


5'-0"


9'-
2"


3'-
4"


4'-
10


"


8'-0" HIGH (E)WOODEN FENCE 
ON ADJACENT PROPERTY


(N) ELECTRIC 
METER


BE
NC


H


5'-0"


13


13


19


14


21


16


1.4


1.7


(N) GAS METER 
INSIDE PLANTER


-1' - 1"


0' - 0" -1' - 1"


61'-5 1/2"


56'-5 1/2" 5'-0"


W31


W31


W14


W68


W68


139


02


03


1
A5


.01


9'-
0"


9'-
5 1


/2"


1
A7.01


809 SF
201


UNIT 2


2'-10"11'-2"7'-11"


14
'-1


1 1
/2"


BEDROOM


PRIMARY 
BEDROOM


LIVINGKITCHEN


9' - 11"


3'-
4"


EXISTING BUILDING
(NO WORK)


ROOF 
DECK


21'-2"


STAIR ABOVE


C


C


AB


D


11


2


33


30'-3 1/2" 28'-4" 9'-7 1/2"


6"
9'-


8"
10


'-7
 1/


2"


2


3


3'-
8"


11'-5 1/2"


10'-5 1/2"


4'-
0"


4'-
9 1


/2"


5'-6"


3'-
6"


6'-
0"


2'-10"


2'-
2 1


/2"
9'-


4"
4'-


9 1
/2"


4'-
0"


3'-2"


W D


5'-0"


14


13
11


14


11


16


1'-6"8'-11"
LANDING


4'-4" 4'-7 1/2" 14'-8" 2'-11"


SETBACK TO PROVIDE A 
RELIEFE FOR THE 
ADJACENT BUILDING


16


1.4


1.7


7'-8"


53'-7 1/2"


17
'-3


 1/
2"


5'-0" 53'-7 1/2"


W68


W68W31


143


W30


W11


17


W01


20


04 15
W14


1


KEYNOTES
RATED DOOR WITH CLOSER, LATCH, AND SMOKE SEAL
• 45-MIN  AT 1-HR ENCLOSURE
• 90-MIN AT 2-HR ENCLOSURE


PRIVATE STAIR: MAX RISER HEIGHT OF 7 3/4" AND 
MINIMUM TREAD DEPTH OF 10" (PER CBC 1011.5.2 
EXCEPTION #3) MINIMUM HEADROOM 80" (PER CBC 
1011.3)


GUARDRAIL MIN. 42" A.F.F. WITH 4" MAX OPENINGS (PER 
CBC 1015.3 & 1015.4). GUARDRAIL SHALL BE 1-HR RATED 
CONSTRUCTION AT PROPERTY LINE CONDITION


HANDRAIL BETWEEN 34" AND 38" A.F.F. (PER CBC 1014)


COMMON STAIR: MAX RISER HEIGHT OF 7" AND MINIMUM 
TREAD DEPTH OF 11" MIN HEADROOM 80"


2


3


4


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


FLOOR PLANS


A2.01


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


3/16" = 1'-0"1 (N) FIRST FLOOR


3/16" = 1'-0"2 (N) SECOND FLOOR


Revisions







DN


UP


W/D


DN


W/D


1
A5


.01


1
A7.01


974 SF
301


UNIT 3


9'-
6"


8'-
11


 1/
2"


3'-
5 1


/2"


18
'-1


1 1
/2"


BEDROOM


PRIMARY 
BEDROOM


LIVING


KITCHEN


DINING


EXISTING BUILDING
(NO WORK)


19' - 10"


C A


11


33


18'-1 1/2" 5'-0" 6'-0"


8'-10"


2


3


12'-2 1/2"


3'-8 1/2"


3'-0"


14'-0"


10'-10"


3'-
6"


7'-
8 1


/2"
8'-


6"
1'-


1"


1'-
1"


7'-
2"


7'-
8 1


/2"


2'-6"


12


13


11


1'-6"


1.4


1.7


7'-8"


ROOF OUTLINES 
ABOVE


W12


W33


W33


W33


W12


W32
W01


W11


W14


W68


W68


10'-2" 45'-11 1/2"


3'-
0"


17
'-3


 1/
2"


50'-5 1/2" 3'-2"


16
'-3


 1/
2"


4'-
0"


01


14


14


1
A5


.01


1
A7.01


115'-0"


PRIVATE 
ROOF DECK


217 SF


C AB


11


2


33


25'-3 1/2" 28'-4"


9'-
8"


10
'-7


 1/
2"


3'-
0"


17
'-3


 1/
2"


4'-
10


"


12'-10 1/2" 20'-3" 17'-4" 3'-2"


3


2


42" HIGH SOLID 1-HR 
RATED GUARD RAILS


7'-
1"


8'-
8 1


/2"
5'-


0"


34' - 10"


31' - 10"30' - 10"


3'-
4"


3'-
1"


8'-
9"


FLAT 
UNOCCUPIED 


ROOF


UNOCCUPIED 
GABLE ROOF


1.4


1.7


53'-7 1/2"


42" HIGH OPEN METAL 
RAILINGS


34' - 10 1/2"


36' - 1"


8'-0"


6" GUTTER


GABLE ROOF, STANDING SEAM 
MATTE AND POWDER COATED


6" GUTTER


8:1
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


A2.02


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


3/16" = 1'-0"1 (N) THIRD FLOOR


3/16" = 1'-0"2 (N) ROOF


0' 2' 4'2' 6' 8'


Revisions







(N) ROOF
30' - 10"


(N) SECOND FLOOR
9' - 11"


(N) THIRD FLOOR
19' - 10"


STREET LEVEL
-3' - 3"


(N) FIRST FLOOR
0"


ADJACENT PROPERTY: 1126 SHOTWELL ST
25'-0"


SUBJECT PROPERTY: 1112 SHOTWELL ST
60'-0"


EXISTING BUILDING
39'-1"


3'-
2"


8'-
8"


9'-
11


"
9'-


11
"


3'-
3" (E) RETAINING 


WALL TO REMAIN


WOOD WINDOWS, RECESSED, TYP.


BU
IL


DI
NG


 H
EI


GH
T:


 35
'-6


 1/
2"


8" HORIZONTAL PAINTED SIDING A


13


(E) RETAINING 
WALL TO REMAIN


ADJACENT PROPERTY: 1106 SHOTWELL ST
34'-6"


6" HORIZONTAL PAINTED SIDING B


GABLE ROOF, STANDING SEAM MATTE 
AND POWDER COATED


PITCHED ROOF, STANDING SEAM METAL, 
MATTE AND POWDER COATED


8
12


1.41.7


(N) GAS METER INSIDE PLANTER


3
A5.01


EQ
EQ


SEE EXPLODED 
VIEWS 3/A5.01


P.L. P.L.


6" EAVES BEYOND FACADE


PROPOSED BUILDING
20'-9 1/2"


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


6" HORIZONTAL PAINTED SIDING B @BAY WINDOW


WOOD SLIDING DOORS


EXISTING BUILDING
39'-1"


8" HORIZONTAL PAINTED SIDING A


1 2 3


ADJACENT PROPERTY: 1106 SHOTWELL ST
34'-6"


WOOD WINDOWS, TYP.


6" HORIZONTAL PAINTED SIDINGS


PITCHED ROOF STANDING SEAM METAL, MATTE AND POWDER COATED


(E) 7" HIGHT WOOD FENCE ON 
NEIGHBOR'S PROPERTY AT P.L.


P.L.P.L.


1'-
8"


7'-
3"


1'-
1"


5'-
3 1


7/1
28


" R


4"


PITCHED ROOF, STANDING SEAM 
METAL, MATTE AND POWDER COATED


PAINTED WOOD 
PORCH


PAINTED WOOD 
RAILINGS


3" DOWNSPOUT


4" GUTTER


PAINTED WOOD 
STAIRS AND PORCH


TOP OF THE FRONT YARD (4 
RISERS UP FROM THE SIDEWALK)


3'-
0"


5" 6" 2'-9 1/2" 6"


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


3/16" = 1'-0"1 PROPOSED ELEVATION - EAST (FRONT)


3/16" = 1'-0"2 PROPOSED ELEVATION - WEST (REAR)


1/2" = 1'-0"3 PORCH - ENLARGED FRONT ELEVATION


1/2" = 1'-0"4 PORCH - ENLARGED SIDE ELEVATION


5 PORCH - ENLARGED 3D VIEW


6X6 POST


Revisions







(N) ROOF
30' - 10"


(N) SECOND FLOOR
9' - 11"


(N) THIRD FLOOR
19' - 10"


STREET LEVEL
-3' - 3"


(N) FIRST FLOOR
0"


C AD


OUTLINES OF ADJACENT 
PROPERTY


1126 SHOTWELL ST
6526/003


OUTLINES OF ADJACENT 
PROPERTY


25 VIRGIL ST
6526/005B


(E) WINDOW IN THE BUILDING 
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


CA D


EXISTING BUILDING 
OF SUBJECT 


PROJECT
1112 SHOTWELL


(E) WINDOWS IN THE (E) BUILIDNG


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


A5.02


1112
SHOTWELL ST


NEW CONSTRUCTION OF
3-UNIT BUILDING ADJACENT


TO THE EXISTING
RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURE


ON THE SAME LOT


1112 SHOTWELL LLC


1112 SHOTWELL ST
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94110


BLOCK 6526 / LOT 002


3/16" = 1'-0"1 PROPOSED ELEVATION - SOUTH


PROPOSED ELEVATION - NORTH


Revisions







(N) ROOF
30' - 10"


(N) SECOND FLOOR
9' - 11"


(N) THIRD FLOOR
19' - 10"


STREET LEVEL
-3' - 3"


(N) FIRST FLOOR
0"


974 SF
301


UNIT 3


809 SF
201


UNIT 2


826 SF
101


UNIT 1


11
'-0


"
9'-


11
"


9'-
11


"
3'-


3"


8'-
11


"


8'-
11


"


10
'-0


"


PRIVATE ROOF 
DECK FOR UNIT 3


PRIVATE PATIO 
FOR UNIT 1


C ABD


1-HR RATED FLOORS 
BETWEEN DWELLING UNITS


1-HR RATED FLOORS 
BETWEEN DWELLING UNITS


1-HR RATED ROOF


42" HIGH OPEN METAL RAILINGS


P.L.P.L.


3'-
0"


6"


42" GUARDRAIL


34
'-1


"


FL 1


FL 2


FL 2


FL 3


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


- (1) LAYER 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD.
- 2X WOOD STUDS @ 24" O.C. (U.O.N. S.S.D.) 
- INSULATION AS REQ'D PER T-24 PART 6 ENERGY REPORT
- (1) LAYER 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD.


A INTERIOR PARTITION - TYP.
1-HR (GA FILE NO: WP 3520)


1. ALL STANDARD STUD FRAMING SHALL BE 16" O.C. U.O.N. ALL SHAFT WALL STUD FRAMING SHALL BE 
24" O.C. U.O.N


2. ALL GYP. BD. TO BE 5/8" THICK TYPE 'X' U.O.N. PAINT ALL EXPOSED FACES.
3. PROVIDE TYPE 'X' GLASS-MAT WATER-RESISTANT BACKING BOARD IN LIEU OF FINAL LAYER OF 


GYP.BD. INDICATED ON SCHEDULED WALL TYPES AT INTERIOR FRAMED WET WALLS, INCLUDING 
JANITOR'S CLOSETS.


4. PROVIDE MOISTURE AND MOLD-RESISTANT TYPE X GYP BOARD AT ALL INTERIOR "HUMID" 
LOCATIONS INCLUDING BATHROOMS.


5. THE WALL TYPE ABOVE OR BELOW ANY OPENING IS TO BE THE SAME AS THAT SCHEDULED FOR 
EITHER SIDE OF THE OPENING.


6. DIFFERING WALL TYPES SHALL ALIGN SO THAT WALL PLANES CONTINUE UNBROKEN IN ROOMS, 
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.


7. DIMENSION LOCATION FOR ALL INTERIOR WALLS IS TO THE FACE OF GYPSUM BOARD PANELS. 
8. WALLS INDICATED AS FIRE-RATED FORM A SEPARATION THAT SHALL BE CONTINUOUS FROM FLOOR 


TO FLOOR ABOVE WITH NO BREAKS AT COLUMNS, BEAMS, WALL TRANSITIONS, OR OTHER 
OBSTRUCTIONS. AT RATED CONDITIONS PENETRATIONS SHALL BE FIRE CAULKED. 


9. ALL INSULATION SHALL BE UNFACED R-19 AT INTERIOR FURRING ADJACENT TO UNINSULATED 
EXTERIOR WALLS, SUCH AS CONCRETE, CMU, AND SPANDREL PANELS IN WINDOW/CURTAIN WALLS, 
TYP. U.O.N. FOR CLARITY, INSULATION IS NOT SHOWN ON MANY DETAILS. INSULATION IS TO RUN 
CONTINUOUS AROUND FURRED COLUMNS AND OTHER OBSTRUCTIONS TO FORM A CONTINUOUS 
ACOUSTIC OR THERMAL BARRIER.


10. STUDS TO BE 25 GA AT ALL SINGLE-STUD ACOUSTICAL WALLS U.O.N. USE KNURLED STUDS OR 
ADJUST SPACING AS REQUIRED FOR SPANS. SPACING SHALL BE NO LESS THAN 16" O.C. WITHOUT 
APPROVAL OF THE ARCHITECT AND ACOUSTICAL CONSULTANT. HEAVIER GAUGE MAY BE USED AT 
NON-ACOUSTICAL OR DOUBLE-STUD WALLS. MAXIMUM SPANS SHALL BE BASED ON L/240 
DEFLECTION CRITERIA AND 5 PSF DESIGN LOAD, U.O.N.


11. ACOUSTICAL WALLS SHALL INCLUDE BATT INSULATION FULL WIDTH OF STUDS AND BE SEALED AIR 
TIGHT, WITH ACOUSTICAL SEALANT BETWEEN GYPSUM BOARD AND CONCRETE SLABS, BEAM, 
COLUMNS, AND WALLS, OR STRUCTURAL STEEL MEMBERS, AROUND ALL PENETRATIONS, AND AT 
DISSIMILAR MATERIALS. SEE WALL TYPES THIS SHEET INDICATING A NOISE-SENSITIVE SIDE - THE 
NOISE-SENSITIVE SIDE


12. WALLS SUPPORTING CASEWORK, SHELVING, GRAB BARS, EQUIPMENT AND OTHER WALL-MOUNTED 
FIXTURES SHALL BE REINFORCED PER THE FIXTURE MANUFACTURER'S REQUIREMENTS AND THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF THE LATEST EDITION OF THE CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE, WHICHEVER IS 
GREATER.


PARTITION TYPES - GENERAL NOTES


STUD SIZES:
A1   2x4
A2   2x6
A3   2x8
A4   2x10
A5   2x12
A6   3x4


• 3/4" WOOD SIDING W/ MATCHING (E) SIDING PAINT
• GRADE D 60-MINUTE PAPER-BACKED LATH
• 3/4" AIR GAP W/ 3/4" x 2 1/2" MIN. VERT. PLYWOOD STRAPPING @ EA. STUD, SCREWED TO 


STUD (SIZE, SPACING, AND EMBED PER INSUL. MFR.) AND 3/4" x 2 1/2" THICK MINERAL 
WOOL CONT. VERT. SPACER AT HALF-POINT B/T EA. STRAP


• 2" RIGID INSULATION (MINERAL WOOL - R-8)
• PERM-A-VAPOR VPS SELF-ADHERED, VAPOR PERMEABLE AIR/WATER BARRIER BY GCP
• 5/8" TYPE-X GYPSUM BOARD SHEATHING* AT 1-HOUR WALL, WHERE OCCURS
• 1/2" NOMINAL MIN. PLYWOOD SHEATHING S.S.D.
• 2X6 WOOD STUDS, U.O.N., W/
• MINERAL WOOL BATT INSULATION - R-23 MIN. AT 2x6 STUDS; R-15 MIN. AT 2x4 STUDS
• 1/2" NOMINAL MIN. PLYWOOD SHEATHING, WHERE OCCURS, S.S.D.
• (1) LAYER 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD.


* GYPSUM SHEATHING MAY BE OMITTED IN RATED (& NON-RATED) WALLS PER INTERTEK 
TEST #___


EXT. WALL - WOOD SIDING
1-HR (SIM. TO GA FILE NO: WP 8105)K
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
SECTIONS


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


3/16" = 1'-0"1 SECTION - EAST / WEST LONG SECTION


Revisions







(2) LAYERS TYPE X 5/8" GWB


1/2" RESILIENT CHANNEL 
PERPENDICULAR TO FRAMING, 24" 


O.C., TYP


(N) PLYWOOD SUB-FLOOR, S.S.D


(N) WOOD FRAMING, S.S.D.
R-30 BATT INSULATION MIN (OR 


PROVIDE SPRAY FOAM INSUL @ 
EXTERIOR CONDITIONS - SEE 


WALL SECTIONS)
(SEE T-24)


(1) LAYER 5/8" GYPCRETE TOPPING SLAB


FL2 1-HR 50 TO 54 STC 
(GA FILE NO. FC 5112)


FL1 1-HR RATED CONCRETE


R-30 BATT INSULATION MIN 


9 1/2" TJI230 - FRAMING S.S.D


1/2" RESILIENT CHANNEL 
PERPENDICULAR TO FRAMING, 24" 


O.C., TYP


(2) LAYERS 5/8" GWB


1 1/2" MIN RIGID INSULATION/
SLEEPERS AS REQ'D FOR SLOPE


PROTECTION BOARD


WRB


FL3 1-HR 50 TO 54 STC 
(GA FILE NO. RC 2601/SIM)


PLYWOOD SHEATHING 3/4" MIN S.S.D 


(N) 5MM RUBBER UNDERLAYMENT


FIN. AS REQ'D.; SEE SCHEDULE


R-30 SPRAY FORM INSULATION (SEE T-24)


3" GRAVEL


REINFORCED CONC SLAB, 
S.S.D.


(1) LAYER 1 1/2" GYPCRETE TOPPING SLAB
(N) 5MM RUBBER UNDERLAYMENT


FIN. AS REQ'D.; SEE SCHEDULE


GENERAL NOTES - WALL AND FLOOR TYPES


1. SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR FRAMING SIZES.
2. THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS MAY OCCUR AT ANY OF THE WALL TYPES DESCRIBED ABOVE. SEE 
ARCHITECTURAL AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS.
3. GLASS MESH MORTAR UNIT OVER WATER RESISTIVE GYPSUM WALL BOARD AT BATH SHOWER. 
SEE PLANS AND ELEVATIONS.
4. WATER RESISTIVE GYPSUM WALL BOARD REQUIRED FOR ALL LAYERS AT BATHROOMS, POWDER 
ROOMS, KITCHEN SINK, LAUNDRY AREA AND BEHIND COOK TOP. GYPSUM BOARD TO BE TYPE "X" 
WHERE REQUIRED FOR RATED WALLS. REFER TO PLANS.
5. EXTERIOR SIDING OVER PLYWOOD SHEATHING WHERE OCCURS. SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS.
6. PROVIDE AND INSTALL CONTINUOUS SHEAR PANELS WHERE REQUIRED PER STRUCTURAL 
DRAWINGS.
7. PROVIDE SOUND ATTENUATION INSULATION IN ALL INTERIOR BEDROOMS AND BATHROOM 
WALLS.
8. FURR WALLS ADJACENT TO SHEAR PANELS AS REQUIRED FOR CONTINUOUS SUBSTRATE FINISH 
SURFACES.
9. GYPSUM WALLBOARD REQUIRED FOR RATED ASSEMBLIES IS TO BE CONTINUOUS FOR FLOOR TO 
CEILING BEHIND FIXTURES (E.G. BATHTUBS), CABINETS, OTHER SUBSTRATE MATERIALS, ETC...
10. GYPSUM BOARD OF SOUND-RATED ASSEMBLIES SHOULD BE HELD BACK 1/4" FROM ALL 
INTERSECTING SURFACES AND THE GAP CAULKED AIRTIGHT WITH ACOUSTICAL SEALANT.WHERE 
SOUND-RATED ASSSEMBLIES MUST ALSO MEET A FIRE RATING, PROVIDE A FIRE-RATED 
ACOUSTICAL SEALANT SUCH AS USG SHEETROCK BRAND OR PECORA AC-20 FTR.
11. CBC REQUIRES WALLS AND FLOOR-CEILING ASSEMBLIES SEPARATING DWELLING UNITS FROM 
OTHER UNITS OR FROM PUBLIC SPACES ACHIEVE A MIN. STC RATING OF 50.FLOOR-CEILING 
ASSEMBLIES MUST ACHIEVE A MINUMUM IIC RATING OF 50.
12. ATTACH DROPPED CEILING AT BATHROOMS TO WALLS ONLY, NO CONNECTION TO CEILING 
ABOVE.
13. ALL SOUND RATED ASSEMBLIES SUCH AS ISOLATED CEILINGS, PARTY WALLS, CORRIDOR WALLS, 
ELEVATOR WALLS, STAIR WALLS, AND PLUMBING WALLS (INCLUDING INTERIOR NONDEMISING 
ASSEMBLIES) SHOULD BE FILLED WITH BATT INSULATION.
14. OUTLET BOXES ON OPPOSITE SIDES OF PARTY WALLS SHOULD BE SEPARATED BY 16 INCHES 
MINIMUM AND AN EMPTY STUD BAY. BOXES IN ALL SOUND-RATED PARTITIONS (INCLUDING 
PLUMBING WALLS) SHOULD BE FULLY WRAPPED WITH LOWRY'S PADS. LOW VOLTAGE DEVICES 
SUCH AS CABLE, DATA, AND TELEPHONE JACKS SHOULD BE PLACED IN OUTLET BOXES AND 
TREATED AS SUCH.
15. PANELS OR FIXTURES LARGER THAN FOUR-GANG OUTLET BOX IN PARTY OR CORRIDOR WALLS 
SHOULD BE FULLY ENCLOSED.
16. TREAT PIPING AND CONDUIT PENETRATIONS IN PARTY AND PLUMBING WALLS FOR ACOUSTIC 
MITIGATION.
17. ASSEMBLIES WITH RESILIENT CHANNELS AND/OR RESILIENT UNDERLAYMENTS ARE TO 
CONTINUE AT ALL UNIT PERIMETER WALLS TO ENSURE ACOUSTICAL PERFORMANCE.
18. AT EVERY PERIMETER EDGE OF GYPCRETE TOPPING SLAB, PROVIDE RESILIENT PERIMETER 
ISOLATION JOINT BETWEEN TOPPING SLAB AND ADJACENT WALL TO MITIGATE ACOUSTIC 
TRANSFER. INSTALL PER MAXXON GYPSUM UNDERLAYMENT MANUFACTURER RECOMMENDATION.
19. AT ALL PIPING SERVING RESIDENTIAL UNITS, PROVIDE RESILIENT ISOLATION SYSTEM TO 
MITIGATE ACOUSTICAL TRANSFER. PROVIDE ACOUSTO-PLUMB SYSTEM FROM LSP PRODUCTS OR 
EQUAL.
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
ASSEMBLIES -
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A10.04


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
(AA FOR DOUBLE PANEL)
FLUSH PANEL
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(CC FOR DOUBLE PANEL)
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• EXTERIOR DOORS AND DOORS LEADING INTO STAIRWELLS SHALL HAVE SELF-CLOSING DEVICES
• UNIT ENTRIES SHALL HAVE DEADBOLTS & DEADLATCHES SO CONTRUCTED THAT BOTH CAN BE RETRACTED BY 


A SINGLE ACTION OF THE INSIDE LEVER
• ALL GLAZING WITHIN AND ADJACENT TO DOORS TO BE TEMPERED OR RAPPROVED SAFETY GLAZING
• VERIFY THAT ALL CORRIDOR FIRE DOORS ARE TESTED AND APPROVED AS SMOKE AND DRAFT ASSEMBLIES AS 


REQUIRED BY NFPA 105
• PROVIDE LOW LOUVER AT WASHER / DRYER CLOSET PER MECH. (100 SQ.IN. NET FREE AREA)
• PROVIDE LOUVER(S) AT WATER HEATER CLOSETS AS REQ. BY MFR AND AS NOTED IN DIMENSIONED FLOOR 


PLANS (A2.11 - A2.15)
• GARAGE ROLL-UP DOOR IS ANY OPEN GRILLE TO PROVIDE INTAKE AIR FOR GARAGE PER MECH
• ALL WOOD DOORS SHALL BE FINISHED ON ALL SIDES, EXCEPT WHERE CODE REQUIRED INFORMATION WOULD 


BE OBSCURED; FINISH SHALL BE PAINT, U.O.N. 
• PER CBC 1010.1.3 THE MAXIMUM FORCE FOR PUSHING OR PULLING EGRESS DOORS, OTHER THAN FIRE DOORS, 


SHALL NOT EXCEED 5 POUNDS. FOR OTHER SWINGING DOORS, AS WELL AS SLIDING & FOLDING DOORS, THE 
DOOR LATCH SHALL RELEASE WHEN SUBJECTED TO 15 POUND FORCE


• PROVIDE UNDERCUT AT BATHROOM DOORS AND OTHER DOORS AS REQ. IN MECHANICAL DRAWINGS.


DOOR GENERAL NOTES


• ALL DOORS TO BE NFRC-RATED (OR EQUIVALENT SEE T-24 REPORT)
• ALL WINDOWS AND GLAZED DOORS TO BE DUAL PANED METAL FRAMED (U-FACTOR = 0.64 / SHG = 0.30)
• SLIDING GLAZED DOORS (D202) TO BE THERMALLY BROKEN DUAL PANED METAL (U-FACTOR = 0.43 / SHG = 0.30)
• ALL WINDOWS TO INCLUDE LoE 172 GLAZING - SEE T-24 REPORT


DOOR ENERGY COMPLIANCE NOTES


1. DOOR PANEL
A. TYPE AS SCHEDULED - REFER TO DOOR PANEL TYPE ELEVATIONS
B. MATERIALS


WD = SOLID WOOD
SCWD = SOLID-CORE WOOD
ALUM = ALUMINUM-FRAMED
HM = HOLLOW METAL


C. FINISH
FF = FACTORY FINISH
PTD = PAINTED
TF = TRANSPARENT FINISH


2. LITE / LOUVER IN PANEL
A. TYPE AS SCHEDULED


G1 = FLOAT GLASS (INTERIOR CONDITION ONLY) - USE RATED TYPE AS REQ.
IG1 = INSULATED GLASS TYPE 1 - USE RATED TYPE AS REQ.
LV = LOUVER, S.M.D. FOR FREE AREA REQ.


B. MATERIAL & FINISH AS SPECIFIED


3. DOOR FRAME
A. TYPE AS SCHEDULED - REFER TO DOOR FRAME TYPE ELEVATIONS
B. MATERIALS


WD = WOOD
ALSF = ALUMINUM STOREFRONT, SEE STOREFRONT ELEVATIONS
HM = HOLLOW METAL


C. FINISH
FF = FACTORY FINISH
PTD = PAINTED
TF = TRANSPARENT FINISH


4. HARDWARE
A. GROUP - REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS
B. PANIC - PANIC HARDWARE REQUIRED AT ALL DOORS SERVING 50 OR MORE
     OCCUPANTS - SEE LIFE SAFETY PLANS


5. RATING
A. FIRE - REQUIRED FIRE RATING
B. STC - REQUIRED ACOUSTIC SOUND TRANSMISSION CLASS RATING


A


CASEMENT / FIXED


B


DOUBLE-HUNG


C


FIXED


F.F. LEVEL
0'-0"


D


AWNING


SI
LL


 H
EI


GH
T


H


W


HE
AD


 H
EI


GH
T


SI
LL


 H
EI


GH
T


H
HE


AD
 H


EI
GH


T


W


HE
AD


 H
EI


GH
T


H
SI


LL
 H


EI
GH


T


W


H
SI


LL
 H


EI
GH


T
HE


AD
 H


EI
GH


T


W


WALL ASSEMBLY AS SCHED. - SEE
DIM. FLOOR PLANS
WALL ASSEMBLY AS SCHED. - SEE
DIM. FLOOR PLANS


1.5" x 5.5" Fiber-Cement Trim


Vapor Retarder / Air Barrier


Self-Adhered Membrane FlashingSelf-Adhered Membrane Flashing


Wood Bevel/Lap Siding
OR SHAPED NAILER, MIN. 1/2:12 SLOPE


Self-Adhered Membrane Flashing


Wood Double Hung Window Head


Clad Wood Double Hung Window Sill


Wood Blocking As Required


Joint Sealant


1"


5/4 x Window Stool, Shaped


2"


Continuous Metal Angle Back Dam


13
/16


"


3 5/8"


4 5/16"


4 1/2"


1 9
/16


"


2" 1" 2"


EXTENDED SUB-SILL BY WINDOW MFR.


EXTENDED SUB-SILL PROFILE:


1.5" x 5.5" Fiber-Cement Trim


Self-Adhered Membrane Flashing


W/ END DAM


Clad Wood Double Hung Window Head


Wood Blocking As Required


Self-Adhered Membrane Flashing


Metal Flashing


Metal Flashing


Self-Adhered Membrane Flashing


Vapor Retarder / Air Barrier


Metal Flashing


MAINTAIN GAP (NO SEALANT) FOR DRAINAGE


JAMB FLASHING BEYOND


WALL ASSEMBLY AS SCHED. - SIM.,
SEE DIM. FLOOR PLANS
WALL ASSEMBLY AS SCHED. - SIM.,
SEE DIM. FLOOR PLANS


Header, S.S.D.
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
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DOOR &
WINDOW


SCHEDULE


A10.21


1112
SHOTWELL ST


NEW CONSTRUCTION OF
3-UNIT BUILDING ADJACENT


TO THE EXISTING
RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURE


ON THE SAME LOT


1112 SHOTWELL LLC


1112 SHOTWELL ST
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94110


BLOCK 6526 / LOT 002


3/8" = 1'-0"
DOOR PANEL TYPES


DOOR TYPE SCHEDULE
DOOR TYPE


QTY.


DOOR PANEL FRAME


TYPE TAG
(SEE


PLANS) DESCRIPTION
INTERIOR /
EXTERIOR TYPE MATERIAL FINISH


WIDTH


HEIGHT THICKNESS
MATERIA


L FINISHOVERALL


DOUBLE DOOR
LEAVES


PANEL 1 PANEL 2


01 32" EXTERIOR SWING DOOR Exterior 1 A SCWD 2' - 8" 7' - 0" 1 3/4" WD
02 36" EXTERIOR SWING DOOR Exterior 1 C SCWD 3' - 0" 8' - 0" 1 3/4" WD
03 36" EXTERIOR ENTRY SWING DOOR Exterior 1 D SCWD 3' - 4" 8' - 0" 1 3/4" WD
04 CLOSET SWING DOOR Interior 1 AA SCWD 4' - 6" 2' - 3" 2' - 3" 4' - 0" 1 3/8" WD
11 32" BEDROOM SWING DOOR Interior 2 A SCWD 2' - 8" 7' - 6" 1 3/4" WD
12 32" CLOSET SWING DOOR Interior 1 A SCWD 2' - 8" 7' - 6" 1 3/4" WD
13 32" BEDROOM SWING DOOR Interior 4 A SCWD 2' - 10" 7' - 6" 1 3/4" WD
14 34" BATHROOM SWING DOOR Interior 5 A SCWD 2' - 10" 7' - 6" 1 3/8" WD
15 36" CLOSET SWING DOOR Interior 1 A SCWD 3' - 0" 6' - 8" 1 3/8" WD
16 36" UNIT ENTRY DOOR Interior 3 A SCWD 3' - 0" 7' - 6" 1 3/8" WD
17 48" CLOSET BYPASS Interior 1 AA SCWD 4' - 0" 2' - 1" 2' - 1" 7' - 0" 1 1/2" WD
19 30" BEDROOM/BATHROOM DOOR Interior 2 AA SCWD 4' - 6" 2' - 4" 2' - 4" 7' - 0" 1 1/2" WD
20 60" CLOSET BYPASS Interior 1 AA SCWD 5' - 0" 2' - 7" 2' - 7" 7' - 0" 1 1/2" WD
21 32" BATHROOM POCKET DOOR Interior 1 D SCWD 2' - 8" 8' - 0" 1 3/4" WD


TOTAL QTY. (CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY IN PLANS): 25


PATIO DOOR TYPE SCHEDULE


MARK QTY


DOOR TYPE DOOR PANELS FRAME


CommentsDESCRIPTION
INTERIOR /
EXTERIOR TYPE MATERIAL FINISH QTY.


OVERALL
WIDTH (W) HEIGHT (H) THICKNESS


GLASS
TYPE TYPE MATERIAL FINISH


P1 1 Aluminum-clad wood Gliding Door Exterior DD GL 2 6' - 0" 8' - 0" 1 3/4" IG2 ACW
P2 1 Aluminum-clad wood Multi-panel Gliding Door Exterior DDD GL 3 8' - 11" 7' - 11 1/2" 1 3/4" IG2 ACW


WINDOW TYPE SCHEDULE


TYPE
MARK


ELEVATION
TYPE QTY.


ELEVATION DIMENSIONS WINDOW TYPE
UNIT DIMENSIONS


Manufacturer Model Material Finish
WIDTH


(W)
HEIGHT


(H)


SILL
HEIGHT


(SH)


HEAD
HEIGHT


(HH)


W01 AWNING 2 3' - 0" 2' - 0" Andersen Corporation 400-Series Awning SCWD
W11 FIXED 2 2' - 2" 2' - 6" 4' - 6" 7' - 0" Andersen Corporation 400-Series Tilt-Wash Double Hung Picture SCWD
W12 FIXED 2 1' - 8" 5' - 6" 2' - 3" 7' - 9" Andersen Corporation 400-Series Tilt-Wash Double Hung Picture SCWD
W14 DOUBLE HUNG 3 2' - 6" 6' - 0" 2' - 0" 8' - 0" Andersen Corporation 400-Series Tilt-Wash Double Hung SCWD
W30 CASEMENT/FIXED 1 2' - 0" 6' - 0" 2' - 0" 8' - 0" Andersen Corporation 400-Series Casement SCWD
W31 CASEMENT/FIXED 3 2' - 6" 6' - 0" 2' - 0" 8' - 0" Andersen Corporation 400-Series Casement SCWD
W32 CASEMENT/FIXED 1 2' - 6" 5' - 6" 2' - 3" 7' - 9" Andersen Corporation 400-Series Casement SCWD
W33 CASEMENT/FIXED 3 2' - 4" 5' - 6" 2' - 3" 7' - 9" Andersen Corporation 400-Series Casement SCWD
W68 DOUBLE HUNG 6 2' - 10" 6' - 0" Andersen Corporation 400-Series Tilt-Wash Double Hung SCWD


GENERAL NOTES:


1. PER CBC 1015.8, INSTALL WINDOW OPENING CONTROL DEVICES COMPLYING WITH 
ASTM F2090 AT ALL WINDOWS W/ SILL HEIGHTS LESS THAN 36" A.F.F. THE CONTROL 
DEVICE, AFTER OPERATION TO RELEASE THE CONTROL DEVICE ALLOWING THE 
WINDOW TO FULLY OPEN, SHALL NOT REDUCE THE MIN. NET CLEAR OPENING AREA & 
DIMENSIONS OF THE WINDOW UNIT TO LESS THAN THAT REQUIRED BY SECTION 
1030.2.


2. ALL WINDOWS IDENTIFIED AS EMERGENCY ESCAPE AND RESCUE OPENINGS ("EERO") 
SHALL COMPLY WITH CBC 1030:
A. THE MINIMUM CLEAR AREA OF THE EEROS SHALL BE 5.0 SF AT GRADE FLOOR 


OPENINGS AND 5.7 SF AT ALL OTHER OPENINGS (1030.2).
B. THE MINIMUM NET CLEAR OPENING HEIGHT DIMENSION SHALL BE 24" AND THE 


MINIMUM NET CLEAR OPENING WIDTH DIMENSION SHALL BE 20". THE NET CLEAR 
OPENING DIMENSIONS SHALL BE THE RESULT OF NORMAL OPERATION OF THE 
OPENING (1030.2.1).


C. THE EEROS SHALL BE LOCATED SO THAT THE BOTTOM OF THE CLEAR OPENING IS 
NO GREATER THAN 44" A.F.F. (1030.3).


D. OPERATIONAL CONSTRAINTS SHALL COMPLY WITH CBC 1030.4.


WINDOW TYPES


3" = 1'-0"1 EXTERIOR WINDOW SILL - TYP.


3" = 1'-0"2 EXTERIOR WINDOW HEAD - TYP.


Revisions





		Sheets

		G0.01 - COVER SHEET

		G0.03 - GENERAL NOTES, PLANNING DEPARTMENT NOTES & SCHEDULES

		G0.04 - BUILDING DEPARTMENT NOTES & SCHEDULES

		G0.05 - SITE PHOTOS

		G0.06 - SITE SURVEY

		G0.08 - FIRE AND LIFE SAFETY PLANS

		G0.11 - GREENPOINT RATED CHECKLIST

		AE1.01 - EXISTING SITE PLAN

		AE5.01 - EXISTING EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

		AE5.02 - EXISTING EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

		A1.01 - SITE PLANS

		A2.01 - FLOOR PLANS

		A2.02 - FLOOR PLANS

		A5.01 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

		A5.02 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

		A7.01 - BUILDING SECTIONS

		A10.21 - DOOR & WINDOW SCHEDULE







From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 12:32:32 PM

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

﻿On 7/20/21, 10:21 AM, "David Lynam" <dlynam2@yahoo.com> wrote:

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
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 12:32:03 PM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Gary Hirsch <info@email.actionnetwork.org>
Reply-To: "strachanforgan@yahoo.com" <strachanforgan@yahoo.com>
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 at 11:36 AM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: Support new homes at 1900 Diamond Street
 

 

Mr. Jonas Ionin,

Supervisor Mandelman, Of course you should be supporting this project, if you are the
progressive supervisor that you profess to be. Your time and energy should be focused on
getting more housing into our city, not wasting your time on limiting a few people from
building large homes - how many have been permitted in the last 2 years? - hardly enough
to warrant your attention.

I am a resident of Noe Valley and support this project. 
Best, 
Beth Daecher

Gary Hirsch 
strachanforgan@yahoo.com

San Francisco, California 94114

 

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
Subject: FW: Record 2021-002978CUA: 555 Fulton Street (Trader Joe"s)
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 12:04:09 PM

 
 
 
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
 

From: S S <fidesverita@hotmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 11:28 AM
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
Subject: Re: Record 2021-002978CUA: 555 Fulton Street (Trader Joe's)
 

 

+ commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
 

From: S S
Sent: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 11:11 AM
To: prestonstaff@sfgov.org <prestonstaff@sfgov.org>; ajunius@reubenlaw.com
<ajunius@reubenlaw.com>; joel.koppel@sfgov.org <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>;
kathrin.moore@sfgov.org <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; deland.chan@sfgov.org
<deland.chan@sfgov.org>; sue.diamond@sfgov.org <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>;
frank.fung@sfgov.org <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; theresa.imperial@sfgov.org
<theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Rachael.Tanner@sfgov.org <Rachael.Tanner@sfgov.org>;
claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org <claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org>
Subject: Record 2021-002978CUA: 555 Fulton Street (Trader Joe's)
 

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
mailto:prestonstaff@sfgov.org
mailto:prestonstaff@sfgov.org
mailto:ajunius@reubenlaw.com
mailto:ajunius@reubenlaw.com
mailto:joel.koppel@sfgov.org
mailto:joel.koppel@sfgov.org
mailto:kathrin.moore@sfgov.org
mailto:kathrin.moore@sfgov.org
mailto:deland.chan@sfgov.org
mailto:deland.chan@sfgov.org
mailto:sue.diamond@sfgov.org
mailto:sue.diamond@sfgov.org
mailto:frank.fung@sfgov.org
mailto:frank.fung@sfgov.org
mailto:theresa.imperial@sfgov.org
mailto:theresa.imperial@sfgov.org
mailto:Rachael.Tanner@sfgov.org
mailto:Rachael.Tanner@sfgov.org
mailto:claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org
mailto:claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org


Dear SF Supervisors and Commissioners:
 
I write as a current resident of Hayes Valley. I am not able to attend this Thursday's hearing
but wanted to emphasize strongly in writing that I support the immediate opening of Trader
Joe's at 555 Fulton St. in Hayes Valley. The community is frustrated with the City of San
Francisco's unnecessary delay and inefficiency with this opening. 
 
The last year has underscored the importance of local access to essential services, like grocery
stores. Transportation in SF is limited and often lacking, so convenient access to groceries is
absolutely critical to the community. Hayes Valley is in dire need of a grocery store and the
Whole Foods on Market St has been delayed for years. Stores have been closing around San
Francisco at an alarming rate due to COVID, and there are no nearby grocery stores to provide
affordable food and produce. It is not possible for all residents in this neighborhood to walk
half an hour to Whole Foods or Safeway in other neighborhoods-- particularly when there are
residents with disabilities and transportation is difficult. 
 
Trader Joe's has always been a positive member of the SF community. Not only will this
opening provide local jobs to residents, it will encourage foot traffic and bring business to local
stores and restaurants in surrounding neighborhoods as well. As a large company, Trader Joe's
provides competitive pricing, supply chain security, scalability, and resources to the
community. I fully support the approval of Trader Joe’s and hope that it can open as soon as
possible to fill the void.
 
Thank you, 
Stefanie



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 9:18:38 AM

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

﻿On 7/20/21, 9:09 AM, "Dockery Zomant" <dockzom@gmail.com> wrote:

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
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 8:20:02 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Daniel Oden <daniel.h.oden@gmail.com>
Date: Monday, July 19, 2021 at 4:46 PM
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
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 8:19:12 AM
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

		gus riker

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

		CJ Jones

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

		MARIAN YAP

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



Marian Yap

Sent from my iPhone






Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		stevdroide@gmail.com

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

The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure. After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing. The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.



Best,

Stiven






Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		tomaquinas

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
Subject: FW: SUPPORT: Large Residences Ordinance Case Number 2021-001791PCA [Board File No. 210116])
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 8:14:30 AM

 
 
 
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
 

From: Bruce Bowen <bruce.r.bowen@gmail.com> 
Sent: Monday, July 19, 2021 11:41 PM
To: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>;
Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>;
Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>;
Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: MandelmanStaff, [BOS] <mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org>
Subject: SUPPORT: Large Residences Ordinance Case Number 2021-001791PCA [Board File No.
210116])
 

 

President Koppel
Vice President Moore
Members of the San Francisco Planning Commission
 
I am writing to ask that you act to approve Supervisor Mandelman's
proposed Ordinance requiring Conditional Use Authorization for certain large residences (Case
Number 2021-001791PCA [Board File No. 210116]).  
 
In recent years, Dolores Heights has been ground zero for uncontrolled development of ever-larger,
increasingly unaffordable giant houses that are inaccessible to all but the wealthiest.  We've seen
demolitions and remodels to create new houses of 8,000 square feet and more, both with and
without additional sham second units.  Current rules, including the limits in our Special Use District,
are not enough to prevent the continuing transformation of the neighborhood and loss of relatively
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affordable existing homes.  
 
Something needs to be done.  This Ordinance provides tools for greater oversight which can help
protect current homes and also provide for more reasonably sized family homes for the future.
 
In order to determine what the impact of this ordinance might have been had it been in place during
the past 5 years, we analyzed recent projects in Dolores Heights.  The analysis shows that if the
Ordinance had been in place for the more than 30 projects that we've tracked during this time,
including 9 demolitions, then 14 additional units might have been produced if the project sponsor
had chosen to add a unit in order to avoid a CUA.   For the 6 projects that did add units, all 6 failed
the "equity" (in size) test (i.e., the second unit is too small compared to the primary unit).
 
Though not definitive, we believe this analysis makes it clear that Ordinance would have had a
material positive impact and is likely to help produce more reasonably-sized family units in the
future, in our neighborhood and throughout San Francisco.
 
We recognize that a one-size-fits-all approach may not be an ideal solution for all of San Francisco
and are not opposed to future, more granular metrics that reflect the diversity of the built
environment across the City.   In addition, though we agree that amendments may be desirable in
order to address equity concerns raised by the Planning Department in its review of the Ordinance,
we ask that you not recommend any amendment that would soften the Ordinance's strong focus on
overly large single family homes. We hope to be invited to continuing work on these measures,
should more work be necessary.  But we want to bring your attention back to the wrecking balls
active in some neighborhoods now, and also ask for action and approval of this Ordinance now.
 
I'd like to take this opportunity also to thank Supervisor Mandelman for listening to us in Dolores
Heights and introducing this needed reform.
 
Please vote to approve Supervisor Mandelman's ordinance to curb excessively large homes, in the
interest of providing more relatively affordable, sensibly-sized homes.
 
Bruce Bowen
Planning and Land Use Committee
Dolores Heights Improvement Club
 
 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Feeney, Claire (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 1112 Shotwell St, record No 2020-009312CUA
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 8:14:14 AM

 
 
 
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
 

From: Toby Morris <toby@kermanmorris.com> 
Sent: Monday, July 19, 2021 7:34 PM
To: Feeney, Claire (CPC) <claire.feeney@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>
Cc: Toby Morris <toby@kermanmorris.com>
Subject: FW: 1112 Shotwell St, record No 2020-009312CUA
 

 

Hello Commission Secretary Ionin, President Koppel and Planner Claire Feeney,
 
This came to my inbox this evening regarding the case above. Please submit it to the record.
 
Thank you very much,
 
Toby Morris
 
Edward “Toby” Morris
AIA, LEED AP
 

kerman morris architects LLP

139 Noe Street
San Francisco,
CA 94114
T: 415.749.0302
kermanmorris.com

 
 

From: Craig Weber <craig.weber@sbcglobal.net>
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Date: Monday, July 19, 2021 at 7:04 PM
To: Bluebeam Revu <toby@kermanmorris.com>
Subject: Fw: 1112 Shotwell St, record No 2020-009312CUA
 
Note. I tried to send to the SF Planning members as indicated below, all emails were returned as undeliverable.
Craig Weber
 
----- Forwarded Message -----
From: Craig Weber <craig.weber@sbcglobal.net>
To: joelkoppel@sfgov.org <joelkoppel@sfgov.org>; lairefeeney@sfgov.org <lairefeeney@sfgov.org>;
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; toby@kermanmoris.com
<toby@kermanmoris.com>
Sent: Monday, July 19, 2021, 05:21:13 PM PDT
Subject: 1112 Shotwell St, record No 2020-009312CUA
 
Hello Ladies and Gentlemen,
I am writing to support the proposed development at 1112 Shotwell Street. I live at 1150-1152 Shotwell Street and
have been a resident on Shotwell Street for over 65 years. The proposed residential building will enhance the street
with 3 new housing units to be built on an empty lot. The property owner has met with neighbors and presented a
good plan to improve living conditions on my street and to add to the city's housing stock, which is urgently needed.
My neighbors and I support the proposed plan to develop the empty lot and to build more residential housing. 
Thank you in advance for your consideration.
Craig Weber
1150 Shotwell St.
San Francisco, CA 94110
415 641-9900
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: General Public Comment July 22, 2021
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 8:12:29 AM
Attachments: July 2021 List.pdf

 
 
 
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
Sent: Monday, July 19, 2021 5:50 PM
To: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; mooreurban@aol.com; Diamond, Susan (CPC)
<sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC)
<theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Cc: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Hillis, Rich (CPC) <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>; Watty, Elizabeth (CPC)
<elizabeth.watty@sfgov.org>; Merlone, Audrey (CPC) <audrey.merlone@sfgov.org>; Starr, Aaron
(CPC) <aaron.starr@sfgov.org>; Teague, Corey (CPC) <corey.teague@sfgov.org>; Sanchez, Scott
(CPC) <scott.sanchez@sfgov.org>; Cisneros, Stephanie (CPC) <stephanie.cisneros@sfgov.org>; Horn,
Jeffrey (CPC) <jeffrey.horn@sfgov.org>; Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC) <gabriela.pantoja@sfgov.org>;
Campbell, Cathleen (CPC) <cathleen.campbell@sfgov.org>; Winslow, David (CPC)
<david.winslow@sfgov.org>
Subject: General Public Comment July 22, 2021
 

 

Dear Commissioners,
Good evening.
On January 5, 2021 I emailed my General Public Comments for the January 7, 2021 meeting.
It included attachments of previously submitted material including lists of projects that should have
been reviewed as Demolitions as well as the suggestion to adjust the Demolition Calculations per
Section 317 (b) (2) (D).  
Some of the projects on the lists sent in January were completed, with the CFC issued, some were
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not completed.
Attached is a further update of the lists, but distilled.
The projects on this new list are all completed with the CFC issued.
This list is just Noe Valley projects that were flipped upon completion and after the CFC was issued. 
It does not include projects that were extreme Alterations, but were not sold after the CFC.
So the projects on the attached list can all be considered speculative projects, as well as projects
that should have been reviewed under Section 317.
It also includes only projects that would meet a qualitative definition of Demolition which would be:
  
A horizontal and vertical expansion with complete facade removal or alteration. 
Some have published Demo Calcs and some do not.
The boundaries of Noe Valley that are used in the attached list are the Department’s definition of
the neighborhood.
It does not include projects like 403 28th Street or 1369-1371 Sanchez Street that were determined
by your Staff to have exceeded the Tantamount to Demolition thresholds during the work and then
required a CUA.
The lists sent in January included projects that are outside of the Noe Valley boundaries (i.e Dolores
Heights, or Glen Park or other neighborhoods).
Like the earlier lists, the one attached is probably not comprehensive, but is based on my
observations and research using the SFPIM, Google Earth and Real Estate Ads (usually Redfin).
Throughout the past 7+ years the average increase in the sales price after the flip has been in the $3
Million to $3.5 Million range.
The average increase of these 39 completed and flipped projects on the attached Noe Valley list is a
little bit higher….$3.9 Million.
Thank you.
Sincerely,
Georgia Schuttish
 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Enchill, Charles (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: No. 2020-01071COU – Conditional Use Authorization for 400 California Street
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 8:12:16 AM
Attachments: 400-California-PC-2021-07.pdf

 
 
 
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
 

From: Woody LaBounty <wlabounty@sfheritage.org> 
Sent: Monday, July 19, 2021 5:04 PM
To: Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>;
Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Moore,
Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; CPC-
Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC)
<theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Subject: No. 2020-01071COU – Conditional Use Authorization for 400 California Street
 

 

Commissioners:

This letter sets forth the position of San Francisco Heritage on the proposed project at 400 California
Street, Bliss & Faville’s historic Bank of California (1908), including out call for a robust interpretive plan.

Thank you for your attention to this project affecting an important San Francisco building.
 
Woody LaBounty
San Francisco Heritage
 

Woody LaBounty
Interim President & CEO
————————————————————————————————
SAN FRANCISCO HERITAGE
HAAS-LILIENTHAL HOUSE
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July 19, 2021 
 
Planning Commission 
San Francisco Planning 
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
 
Re: No. 2020-01071COA – Conditional Use Authorization for 400 California Street 
 
Commissioners, 


This letter sets forth the position of San Francisco Heritage on the proposed project at 400 California Street, 
Bliss & Faville’s historic Bank of California (1908). 


Heritage has no objection to the proposed entry modifications to 400 California Street or the removal of the 
non-historic interior vestibule. Of the two options presented, Heritage favors “Option 2” specifying the 
additional removal and replacement of the non-historic side lites and transom installed in 1967. Rather than 
anodized aluminum framing for the replacement entryway, Heritage suggests that bronze would be more in 
keeping with the historic significance and materials of the building. 
 
Heritage has no objection to the proposed widening of the existing opening in the building’s west wall to 
provide code-compliant egress to 430 California Street. 
 
We believe strongly that this historic banking temple deserves a well-defined and robust interpretive program, 
which includes public access. We understand the proposed project anticipates hosting monthly public tours 
and a QR-code-accessed interpretive website. Heritage encourages a more detailed interpretive plan that 
ensures a long-term commitment and strategy for public interaction. 
 
For many years Union Bank hosted a museum-worthy history exhibit inside 400 California Street. We 
request further exploration of how future onsite public engagement and access might be achieved. The area 
around the proposed widened entryway to the lobby of 430 California Street may provide an opportunity to 
allow public viewing of the historic interior from inside the structure, while the lobby of the adjacent 430 
California could display interpretive materials. 
 
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
To: Foster, Nicholas (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 469 Stevenson Street, 2017-014833ENV
Date: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 8:11:35 AM
Attachments: 2017-014833ENV-SFHeritage.pdf

 
 
 
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
Sent: Monday, July 19, 2021 4:47 PM
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
Subject: 469 Stevenson Street, 2017-014833ENV
 

 

Commissioners,
 
Please see attached a letter of comment from San Francisco Heritage on 2017-014833ENV (469
Stevenson Street). Thank you for your attention and consideration of the impact of this proposed
project.
 
Woody LaBounty
San Francisco Heritage
 

Woody LaBounty
Interim President & CEO
————————————————————————————————
SAN FRANCISCO HERITAGE
HAAS-LILIENTHAL HOUSE
2007 FRANKLIN STREET
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
Date: Monday, July 19, 2021 1:22:43 PM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Patrick Thompson <ptatws@twc.com>
Date: Monday, July 19, 2021 at 1:12 PM
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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES SFPD TOURISM DEPLOYMENT PLAN AS SAN

FRANCISCO READIES FOR REEMERGING TRAVEL SEASON
Date: Monday, July 19, 2021 1:22:30 PM
Attachments: 07.19.2021 SFPD Tourism Deployment.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Monday, July 19, 2021 at 12:11 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES SFPD TOURISM
DEPLOYMENT PLAN AS SAN FRANCISCO READIES FOR REEMERGING TRAVEL SEASON
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, July 19, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES SFPD TOURISM

DEPLOYMENT PLAN AS SAN FRANCISCO READIES FOR
REEMERGING TRAVEL SEASON

SFPD continues showcasing community policing reforms in deployment of 26 additional
officers on bicycle and foot patrols to City’s high-traffic, iconic travel destinations

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced details from San
Francisco’s new community policing and tourism deployment plan to support and safeguard a
re-emergent travel season that is forecast to exceed 15.3 million visitors by year’s end. 
 
Outlining operational elements at a press conference at Chinatown’s iconic Dragon’s Gate this
morning, Mayor Breed and Chief Bill Scott highlighted how the San Francisco Police
Department’s Tourism Deployment Plan will provide high-visibility and welcome support to
an economic sector that is vitally important to San Francisco as travelers worldwide emerge
from COVID-19 lockdowns. 
 
“Tourism has long been an economic powerhouse in our city, bringing not just local tax
revenue to fund vital city services but also jobs and economic opportunities for generations of
San Franciscans,” said Mayor Breed. “San Francisco has done an incredible job managing this
pandemic, and with one of the highest vaccination rates of anywhere in the country, we are
working hard to reopen our city. That means bringing more officers to our tourist areas, as

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
SFPD continues showcasing community policing reforms in deployment of 26 additional officers 


on bicycle and foot patrols to City’s high-traffic, iconic travel destinations 


 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced details from San Francisco’s 


new community policing and tourism deployment plan to support and safeguard a re-emergent 


travel season that is forecast to exceed 15.3 million visitors by year’s end.   


  


Outlining operational elements at a press conference at Chinatown’s iconic Dragon’s Gate this 


morning, Mayor Breed and Chief Bill Scott highlighted how the San Francisco Police 


Department’s Tourism Deployment Plan will provide high-visibility and welcome support to an 


economic sector that is vitally important to San Francisco as travelers worldwide emerge from 


COVID-19 lockdowns.   


  


“Tourism has long been an economic powerhouse in our city, bringing not just local tax revenue 


to fund vital city services but also jobs and economic opportunities for generations of San 


Franciscans,” said Mayor Breed. “San Francisco has done an incredible job managing this 


pandemic, and with one of the highest vaccination rates of anywhere in the country, we are 


working hard to reopen our city. That means bringing more officers to our tourist areas, as well 


as other efforts like our recently funded efforts to add more ambassadors and performances 


throughout Downtown, the Waterfront, and Mid-Market areas. We are committed to doing 


everything we can to reopen our businesses, put our residents back to work, and welcome 


travelers back to all of our city’s unforgettable destinations.”  


  


The San Francisco Police Department’s Tourism Deployment Plan draws heavily from a 


community policing strategy that is among the pillars of SFPD’s groundbreaking 21st century 


police reforms. Under the plan, SFPD will deploy 26 additional police officers on bicycle and 


foot patrols to an array of high-traffic and highly sought-after travel destinations in five of the 


City’s ten police districts:  


  


• Central Police District’s new deployments will feature 14 additional officers on bike 


and foot patrols that include: Union Square, Market Street, Powell Street, Chinatown and 


Lower Grant Avenue, Pier 39 and Fisherman’s Wharf, North Beach and the crooked 


portion of Lombard Street.   


  



mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

https://www.sanfranciscopolice.org/your-sfpd/police-reform

https://www.sanfranciscopolice.org/your-sfpd/police-reform





OFFICE OF THE MAYOR   LONDON N.  BREED  
 SAN FRANCISCO               MAYOR  
 
 


 


1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681 


TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141 


 


 


• Mission Police District’s new deployments will feature two additional officers on bike 


and foot patrols in the Castro and Upper Market.  


  


• Northern Police District’s new deployments will feature six additional officers on 


bicycle patrols around the Palace of Fine Arts, Alamo Square and Japantown.   


  


• Park Police District’s new deployments will feature two additional officers on bicycle 


patrols along the Haight Street commercial corridor.    


  


• Richmond Police District’s new deployments will feature two additional officers on 


bicycle patrols in Golden Gate Park.   


  


In addition to this Tourism Deployment Plan, the Mayor’s proposed budget, which the Board of 


Supervisors has come to an agreement on, includes funding for the Downtown Recovery Plan. 


The Downtown Recovery Plan includes an expansion of the number of ambassadors in the 


downtown and Union Square areas; a series of events and activations throughout Downtown, at 


the site of the temporary Transbay Terminal, and along the waterfront; and improvements at 


Hallidie Plaza, the entrance to the Powell Street BART Station and site of the Cable Car 


turnaround.  


  


Outlook for Tourism Sector  


Although there is renewed uncertainty about effects from COVID-19 variants in many parts of 


the world, a San Francisco Travel Association analysis released in March forecast that overall 


visitation to the City would reach 15.3 million in 2021, with $3.5 billion in overall visitor 


spending projected by year’s end. The study by San Francisco’s official destination marketing 


organization said that total visitation was not anticipated to return to pre-pandemic levels until 


2023. Due to a slower recovery of international visitors and average rate in the City, San 


Francisco Travel concluded that overall visitor spending was unlikely to return to 2019 levels 


before 2025.  


  


“Our market research shows a light at the end of the tunnel for destinations like San Francisco 


after a devastating year for the global tourism industry: there is huge pent-up demand for travel 


all over the world,” said San Francisco Travel President and CEO Joe D’Alessandro. “As San 


Francisco embarks on a multi-year recovery, we know that high-visibility, community-oriented 


patrols by San Francisco police officers provide a reassuring, welcoming presence for the visitors 


and conventions so essential to our city’s continued success.”   


  


San Francisco Travel reported a total of 10.2 million visitors to the City in 2020, which was 


down 61 percent from a record high of 26.2 million in 2019. Total spending by visitors was $2.3 


billion in 2020, representing a pandemic-driven drop of 77.7 percent from 2019’s record high of 


$10.3 billion in total visitor spending. Spending figures include expenditures on meetings and 


conventions in San Francisco.   


  



https://sfmayor.org/article/mayor-london-breed-announces-investments-san-franciscos-downtown-and-economic-recovery
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The COVID-19 pandemic has similarly affected local employment related to the tourism sector, 


according to San Francisco Travel, which found that the number of jobs supported by tourism in 


San Francisco fell to 20,880 in 2020 — a 75.8 percent decline from 86,111 jobs tourism 


supported in 2019.   


  


Expanded Community Policing at Visitor Destinations  


The mission of officers detailed to the Tourism Deployment Plan is to provide high-visibility and 


preventative patrol in their assigned locations, while embodying the principles of a community 


policing strategy that is a centerpiece of the San Francisco Police Department’s comprehensive 


and voluntary Collaborative Reform Initiative. Officers are well trained to incorporate five goals 


into their community interactions and public guardianship, as detailed in SFPD’s Community 


Policing Strategic Plan. SFPD’s Community Policing principles include:   


  


• Goal 1: Communication that is honest, transparent, empathetic and culturally and 


linguistically competent and respectful.  


  


• Goal 2: Education that both teaches community members in safety awareness and learns 


from communities to serve more responsively.  


  


• Goal 3: Problem-solving through collaborative working partnerships to identify and 


address safety issues and topics of concern.  


  


• Goal 4: Relationship-building to forge trusting and respectful engagements with San 


Francisco’s residents and visitors alike.   


  


• Goal 5: Organizational and operational approaches reflecting the guardian mindset 


that defines the promise of 21st century policing.  


  


New deployments of police officers under the Tourism Deployment Plan announced today have 


already been implemented and will supplement existing patrols citywide, which will remain at 


current staffing levels.  


  


Officers deployed under the plan will be on bicycle or on foot in frequently traveled areas, 


greeting and interacting with community members and guests. Assignments include fixed posts 


as well as patrols in commercial corridors, depending on deployments. Officers’ primary focus 


will be to engage with the public and provide aid when needed, and to take necessary 


enforcement action whenever identifying individuals involved in crime.   


  


“The San Francisco Police Department’s Tourism Deployment Plan is one more step that’s 


making good on our city’s united commitment to come back from COVID-19 stronger than ever 


before,” said Chief of Police Bill Scott. “Together with the Mid-Market Vibrancy and Safety 


Plan, Shine On SF, and a shared spaces program that’s here to stay, all of us in SFPD are grateful 


for the opportunity to do our part for the comeback — and to put community policing to work. 


We’re grateful to Mayor Breed and the San Francisco Police Commission as well as to our 
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community-based partners like SF Travel and so many others. We look forward to showcasing 


21st century police reform and welcoming travelers back to San Francisco, warmly and safely.”    
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well as other efforts like our recently funded efforts to add more ambassadors and
performances throughout Downtown, the Waterfront, and Mid-Market areas. We are
committed to doing everything we can to reopen our businesses, put our residents back to
work, and welcome travelers back to all of our city’s unforgettable destinations.”
 
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
 

Central Police District’s new deployments will feature 14 additional officers on bike
and foot patrols that include: Union Square, Market Street, Powell Street, Chinatown
and Lower Grant Avenue, Pier 39 and Fisherman’s Wharf, North Beach and the crooked
portion of Lombard Street. 

 
Mission Police District’s new deployments will feature two additional officers on bike
and foot patrols in the Castro and Upper Market.

 
Northern Police District’s new deployments will feature six additional officers on
bicycle patrols around the Palace of Fine Arts, Alamo Square and Japantown. 

 
Park Police District’s new deployments will feature two additional officers on bicycle
patrols along the Haight Street commercial corridor.  

 
Richmond Police District’s new deployments will feature two additional officers on
bicycle patrols in Golden Gate Park. 

 
In addition to this Tourism Deployment Plan, the Mayor’s proposed budget, which the Board
of Supervisors has come to an agreement on, includes funding for the Downtown Recovery
Plan. The Downtown Recovery Plan includes an expansion of the number of ambassadors in
the downtown and Union Square areas; a series of events and activations throughout
Downtown, at the site of the temporary Transbay Terminal, and along the waterfront; and
improvements at Hallidie Plaza, the entrance to the Powell Street BART Station and site of the
Cable Car turnaround.
 
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
after a devastating year for the global tourism industry: there is huge pent-up demand for
travel all over the world,” said San Francisco Travel President and CEO Joe D’Alessandro.
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“As San Francisco embarks on a multi-year recovery, we know that high-visibility,
community-oriented patrols by San Francisco police officers provide a reassuring, welcoming
presence for the visitors and conventions so essential to our city’s continued success.” 
 
San Francisco Travel reported a total of 10.2 million visitors to the City in 2020, which was
down 61 percent from a record high of 26.2 million in 2019. Total spending by visitors was
$2.3 billion in 2020, representing a pandemic-driven drop of 77.7 percent from 2019’s record
high of $10.3 billion in total visitor spending. Spending figures include expenditures on
meetings and conventions in San Francisco. 
 
The COVID-19 pandemic has similarly affected local employment related to the tourism
sector, according to San Francisco Travel, which found that the number of jobs supported by
tourism in San Francisco fell to 20,880 in 2020 — a 75.8 percent decline from 86,111 jobs
tourism supported in 2019. 
 
Expanded Community Policing at Visitor Destinations
The mission of officers detailed to the Tourism Deployment Plan is to provide high-visibility
and preventative patrol in their assigned locations, while embodying the principles of a
community policing strategy that is a centerpiece of the San Francisco Police Department’s
comprehensive and voluntary Collaborative Reform Initiative. Officers are well trained to
incorporate five goals into their community interactions and public guardianship, as detailed in
SFPD’s Community Policing Strategic Plan. SFPD’s Community Policing principles include: 
 

Goal 1: Communication that is honest, transparent, empathetic and culturally and
linguistically competent and respectful.

 
Goal 2: Education that both teaches community members in safety awareness and
learns from communities to serve more responsively.

 
Goal 3: Problem-solving through collaborative working partnerships to identify and
address safety issues and topics of concern.

 
Goal 4: Relationship-building to forge trusting and respectful engagements with San
Francisco’s residents and visitors alike. 

 
Goal 5: Organizational and operational approaches reflecting the guardian mindset
that defines the promise of 21st century policing.

 
New deployments of police officers under the Tourism Deployment Plan announced today
have already been implemented and will supplement existing patrols citywide, which will
remain at current staffing levels.
 
Officers deployed under the plan will be on bicycle or on foot in frequently traveled areas,
greeting and interacting with community members and guests. Assignments include fixed
posts as well as patrols in commercial corridors, depending on deployments. Officers’ primary
focus will be to engage with the public and provide aid when needed, and to take necessary
enforcement action whenever identifying individuals involved in crime. 
 
“The San Francisco Police Department’s Tourism Deployment Plan is one more step that’s



making good on our city’s united commitment to come back from COVID-19 stronger than
ever before,” said Chief of Police Bill Scott. “Together with the Mid-Market Vibrancy and
Safety Plan, Shine On SF, and a shared spaces program that’s here to stay, all of us in SFPD
are grateful for the opportunity to do our part for the comeback — and to put community
policing to work. We’re grateful to Mayor Breed and the San Francisco Police Commission as
well as to our community-based partners like SF Travel and so many others. We look forward
to showcasing 21st century police reform and welcoming travelers back to San Francisco,
warmly and safely.”  
 

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

		Cindy Chang

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



After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing.



The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.



Cordially,



Dr Cynthia Chang, OMD

67 Granada Avenue

San Francisco, Ca






Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		James McCarty

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

		Wendy Bear

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

W. Bear



Sent from my iPad






Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		C L Burns

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



The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure. It was one of the first places I hung out when I moved here in 1976.



After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing.



The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.



Thank you for your time and attention. Regards, cindy l burns






Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		Keith B Ward

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

		Crystal Subhi Caleb Dean

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

		Eileen Murphy

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

		Jim Oerther

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



The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22, 2021.



Jim Oerther

4343 3rd Street #301

San Francisco, CA 94124












Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		Nancy Wecker

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
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Dear Commissioners, The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure. After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing. The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd. Additionally, please consider how many lgbTq individuals can no longer afford the rents or purchase prices in SF and having fewer and fewer community venues only sends a message that SF is only for a richer and well-connected group. Please remember the heart in SF. Also, do everything you can to develop housing that is really affordable to people already here and who work here in rather low paying essential jobs so that we middle class people can enjoy our life here. I realize it’s a balancing job you have with competing interests, advocate for the best interest of our unique city and don’t bend to those with the most money having the most influence.

Thank you,

Nancy Wecker






Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		Warren Jackson

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

		Janet Cluff

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

		J Huff

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

		Peter Stickney

		To

		Peskin, Aaron (BOS); Tanner, Rachael (CPC); Chan, Deland (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Ionin, Jonas (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC); MandelmanStaff, [BOS]; sfgrubstake@gmail.com; Diamond, Susan (CPC); Imperial, Theresa (CPC)

		Recipients

		aaron.peskin@sfgov.org; rachael.tanner@sfgov.org; deland.chan@sfgov.org; frank.fung@sfgov.org; joel.koppel@sfgov.org; jonas.ionin@sfgov.org; kathrin.moore@sfgov.org; mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org; sfgrubstake@gmail.com; sue.diamond@sfgov.org; theresa.imperial@sfgov.org
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Dear Commissioners, The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure. After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building. Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing. The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.




Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From

		Rolando Acevedo

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






Rebuild the Grubstake Diner, Build Housing for San Franciscans

		From

		bc

		To

		Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Chan, Deland (CPC); Diamond, Susan (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Imperial, Theresa (CPC); Tanner, Rachael (CPC); Ionin, Jonas (CPC); Peskin, Aaron (BOS); MandelmanStaff, [BOS]; sfgrubstake@gmail.com; Betty Sullivan

		Recipients

		joel.koppel@sfgov.org; kathrin.moore@sfgov.org; deland.chan@sfgov.org; sue.diamond@sfgov.org; frank.fung@sfgov.org; theresa.imperial@sfgov.org; rachael.tanner@sfgov.org; jonas.ionin@sfgov.org; aaron.peskin@sfgov.org; mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org; sfgrubstake@gmail.com; bettysnie@aol.com
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Dear Friends,

We are reaching out to ask for your support to save a local community treasure – the Grubstake Diner.

For over five years the Grubstake team has been working with the LGBTQ+ community to support the preservation of this beloved gathering spot, home away from home to generations of queer activists, community leaders, and allies.  




In addition, the team has been trying to create 21 new units of middle-income housing above a rebuilt Grubstake Diner, desperately needed in San Francisco. 



Because the project has faced numerous delays, we need your support to make it a reality. 




Please take a moment to tell the Planning Commission that the time has come to approve the project and deny any continuance at the upcoming July 22, 2021 Planning Commission hearing. 




It's time to act to preserve our past and insure our future.




Thank you.





Regards,




Bill Lipsky

Author, Gay and Lesbian San Francisco


Contributor, "Faces from Our LGBT Past" San Francisco Bay Times

Board Member, Rainbow Honor Walk


Docent, GLBT Museum, San Francisco
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Dear Commissioners, <BR><BR>The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure.<BR><BR>After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing. <BR><BR>The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.



Thank you so much!!

Kris Larsen



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



Rob



 



Robert Higginbotham



616 Sanchez Street



San Francisco CA 94114
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



Sincerely

Greg Swenson





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



Carol Holcomb
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



Robert Holgate

Robert@rhdsf.com

Robert Holgate Design
Phone: 415-431-6511
fax: 510-621-7145 
rhdsf.com
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Dear Commissioners, 



 The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure. After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building. Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing. The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.



Devin Posey

81 Frank Norris St. #303    

San Francisco, CA 94109
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



Martin Annush





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



TH Bui



Envoyé de mon iPhone
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



Get Outlook for iOS
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



Wes



J. Wes McGaughey

4416 California St.

San Francisco, CA 94118
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Dear Commissioners, <BR><BR>The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure.<BR><BR>After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing. <BR><BR>The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.





Thank you,

Thomas Courtney

Bay City Mechanical
870 Harbour Way South | Richmond, CA 94804

t: (510) 233-7000 | m: (510)829-0440

e: thomasc@baycitymech.com

www.baycitymech.com<http://www.baycitymech.com/>         [https://codetwocdn.azureedge.net/images/mail-signatures/generator/all-inclusive/fb.png] <https://www.facebook.com/Bay-City-Mechanical-Inc-147190325462641/>     [https://codetwocdn.azureedge.net/images/mail-signatures/generator/all-inclusive/ln.png] <https://www.linkedin.com/company/bay-city-mechanical-inc/about/>     [https://codetwocdn.azureedge.net/images/mail-signatures/generator/all-inclusive/it.png] <https://www.instagram.com/baycitymech/>
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



Gi Paoletti

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

Please support this venerable San Francisco small business.



----------------------------




Jim Hurwitz



Cell: 415-948-4336



jimhurwitz@yahoo.com



Stay Positive, Test Negative, Get Vaccinated!



This message sent via mobile device (pleeze excuse typos).
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Dear Commissioners, <BR><BR>The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure.<BR><BR>After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing. <BR><BR>The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.





Thank you

Erica
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



<FROM CHRIS> 



I would also like to add that I am a resident of The Austin and do not oppose the plan as long as it brings low to moderate income housing to those in need. 



Sincerely, 



Chris Noceti 
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

After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing. 

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



 



My partner and I have been regular patrons of the Grubstake for 30 years.  The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure.



 



After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing. 



 



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





Robert Young

A Grubstake patron since 1966.
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

		Colin McDonnell

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

Aleko

(916)955-7827
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





From Javi’s phone






Please support rebuilding Grubstake Diner

		From
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Dear Commissioners,

Housing delayed is housing denied. 



Please approve the Grubstake project without any further hesitation. The Austin residents are trying to pull the ladder up after themselves and deny others access to the beautiful neighborhood that they enjoy. San Francisco should never tolerate abusing the planning process for exclusionary purposes. I was a resident of 1452 Bush St, which abuts The Austin to the south, when The Austin broke ground and watched it being built from my bedroom window. I welcomed the new Austin residents to the neighborhood, and now they must pay it forward and welcome the new residents above Grubstake.

The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure.

The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.



Thank you!



-Aaron




Please Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner!!
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Dear Commissioners,



The Grubstake has always been one of my favorite eating establishments in SF. I have so many fond memories of late nights there, and big brunches, wonderful wait staff and cooks going back to the 80s. It is heartbreaking to me to see so much of what made the city the place I was born and grew up in, the quirky personalities and vibrant colorful businesses that have represented the beauty of San Francisco’s character being lost to gentrification and other impacts. The Grubstake is the epitome of what makes SF SF.



The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure.



After waiting years to present the new building to the Planning Commission, the project is now facing opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building.  Residents of the Austin were informed when they purchased their condos that the Grubstake was in the process of being redeveloped and would include additional height to allow for the housing units. Trying to undo that work now only serves to postpone the redevelopment of this community asset and much-needed middle-income housing.



The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and vote affirmatively on July 22nd.



Very sincerely yours,

Denise Halbe
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



Thank you for your time.

Susan Lima




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





John Manning
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





Brianne
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 555 Fulton CU
Date: Monday, July 19, 2021 9:38:58 AM
Attachments: 2021 JH 555 Fulton Trader Joe"s.doc

 
 
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
 
 

From: "Jhenders@sonic.net" <Jhenders@sonic.net>
Date: Friday, July 16, 2021 at 5:02 PM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: 555 Fulton CU
 

 

Jonas
 
Attached is a letter with concerns about the proposed CU for Trader Joe’s at 555 Fulton.
Please share with the Planning Commissioners.
 
Stay safe
 
Thanks
 
Jason Henderson
San Francisco CA
94102
Jhenders@sonic.net
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July 16th 2021 

Joel Koppel, President, 


San Francisco Planning Commission 


SF Planning Department


1650 Mission Street Suit 400

San Francisco CA  94103


Re: 555 Fulton Street Grocery Store CU 2021-002978CUA July 22nd 2021 

Dear President Koppel and fellow Planning Commissioners, 

As chair of the Hayes Valley Neighborhood Association (HVNA)’s Transportation and Planning Committee, I have been closely involved with the 555 Fulton site since initial proposals to redevelop in 2005.

The proposed CU must include conditions and codification of transportation impacts and mitigations. The planning memo in front of you is underwhelming and disappointing. There is no acknowledgement of the traffic impacts, impacts on cyclists and pedestrians, and especially the hazards of cars turning left into and out of the 70+-car garage. Laguna Street has become a major traffic problem, and this project was approved at the Planning Commission before Uber, Lyft, and various other auto-oriented delivery services existed. Today the neighborhood is saturated with these cars and Laguna has become a de facto north-south bypass of congestion on Octavia. The bike lane on Fulton is also threatened by queuing for the grocery store, and double parking in front of the 555 Fulton residential entry.  Car traffic to TJ’s will likely use Laguna and Fulton eastbound so this intersection is directly impacted by TJ’s garage 


The CU and other legislative actions to enable this grocer must include concrete and clear traffic mitigation policies. These include: 

· Internal garage 


· Attendants to manage queuing 

· Time limits on parking (1 hour)

· Enforcement on parking time limits 

· Sign clearly identifying the garage as Trader Joe’s parking only 


· Garage entrance 


· Right turn in only, right turn out only 

· “No left turn” signage 

· Center median on Fulton across form entrance, with raised plastic curb and delineators or soft hit posts


· Daylighting garage entrance 

· Bulbout west side of garage entrance (20 foot, remove curb parking)

· Bulbout east of garage, 5 foot?

· Bike share Laguna 

· Relocate bike share to Laguna east side in front of the entrance of TJs, 

· discourage private vehicle drop-off and pickup on Laguna in front of TJs 

· Passenger & commercial loading 

· 60 foot or more extended loading zone for the residential building at 555 Fulton 

· Bulbouts and pedestrian safety-visibility on Laguna at Fulton 

Please incorporate these mitigations into the conditions of approval for the Trader Joe’s at 555 Fulton. 

Sincerely 


Jason Henderson 

Chair, Transportation & Planning Committee  


Hayes Valley Neighborhood Association

300 Buchanan Street, #503


San Francisco, CA


94102


Jhenders@sonic.net 
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Comments from SFLUC on Housing Element
Date: Monday, July 19, 2021 9:37:30 AM
Attachments: 2021-07-16 SFLUC Housing Element Comments.pdf

 
 
Jonas P Ionin
Director of Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7589 | www.sfplanning.org
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From: Kathy Howard <kathyhoward@earthlink.net>
Date: Friday, July 16, 2021 at 7:03 PM
To: "CPC.HousingElementUpdateEIR" <CPC.HousingElementUpdateEIR@sfgov.org>
Cc: Kimia Haddadan <kimia.haddadan@sfgov.org>, Shelley Caltagirone
<shelley.caltagirone@sfgov.org>, "Leon-Farrera, Malena (CPC)" <malena.leon-
farrera@sfgov.org>, "Hillis, Rich (CPC)" <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>, "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)"
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>, "Board of Supervisors, (BOS)" <board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org>,
"ChanStaff (BOS)" <chanstaff@sfgov.org>, "MandelmanStaff, [BOS]"
<mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org>, "MelgarStaff (BOS)" <melgarstaff@sfgov.org>, "Preston, Dean
(BOS)" <dean.preston@sfgov.org>, "Safai, Ahsha (BOS)" <ahsha.safai@sfgov.org>, "Walton,
Shamann (BOS)" <shamann.walton@sfgov.org>, "Haney, Matt (BOS)"
<matt.haney@sfgov.org>, "Mar, Gordon (BOS)" <gordon.mar@sfgov.org>, "Peskin, Aaron
(BOS)" <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>, "Ronen, Hillary" <hillary.ronen@sfgov.org>, "Stefani,
Catherine (BOS)" <catherine.stefani@sfgov.org>, "joel.koppel@sfgov.org"
<joel.koppel@sfgov.org>, "Moore, Kathrin (CPC)" <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>, "Chan, Deland
(CPC)" <deland.chan@sfgov.org>, "Diamond, Susan (CPC)" <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>, "Fung,
Frank (CPC)" <frank.fung@sfgov.org>, Theresa Imperial <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>,
"Tanner, Rachael (CPC)" <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Subject: Comments from SFLUC on Housing Element
 

 

Attached please find comments from the San Francisco Land Use Coalition on the Housing Element.
Thank you for your consideration.
 
Katherine Howard for SFLUC
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Dolores Heights* Haight Ashbury* Midtown Terrace* Miraloma Park*Noe Valley* Richmond District *Russian Hill* 
Sunset District* Van Ness Corridor  
 
Date:  July 16, 2021 
To:  Kimia Haddadan, Project manager 


Shelley Caltagirone, Senior Planner 
Malena Leon-Farrera, Policy Analyst and Outreach Coordinator 
Elizabeth White  
San Francisco Planning Department 
 


Subject: Housing Element Comments 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SFLUC has reviewed much of the proposed Housing Element Survey, a somewhat exhaustive and 
complex survey.  We have also looked over the responses from the Race and Equity in all Planning 
Coalition (REP) and agree with many of their conclusions.  Our particular issues are as follows: 


• We are concerned with the survey assumptions about applying different concepts to various 
parts of San Francisco.  'High Opportunity Neighborhoods,' 'Priority Development Areas,' and 
'Geographic Areas' are being designated without local-based community input and information 
on the impact of the proposed policies on those areas.  This kind of input requires more than 
just conceptual terms; it requires maps and specific illustrations of the impacts on each 
neighborhood and input from the residents as to those impacts. 


• Although singling out support for people to live within "Priority Geographies" sounds beneficial, 
that concept also appears to make decisions for people about where they should live, instead of 
leaving it up to the people to decide.   


• Evictions and displacement should be addressed all over San Francisco, not just one or two 
specific areas. 


• RHNA goals have been imposed on San Francisco with no regards to community input and the 
risks of displacement and gentrification.  Building even more market rate housing works against 
racial and social equity.  Many of the proposals will promote incentives for market rate 
development and that will not solve the affordable housing problems in San Francisco.  Market 
rate developments typically increase housing prices, speculation, displacement, and 
gentrification. 


• For all new housing that is to be built, affordable units with deep affordability should be 
prioritized.  We oppose relaxing inclusionary requirements or streamlining the approval process 
for market rate developments. In addition, streamlining approvals means taking the power of 
self-determination away from the very communities that many of the policies state they are 
trying to help. 


• In publicly-owned sites and large privately-owned sites, the City needs to do away with top-
down planning processes and replace with bottom-up processes which put an emphasis on 
gathering and implementing public input. 


• In particular, public land should have only housing that is 100% affordable.   
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• We support community infrastructure improvements to transit, parks, streetscape, and 
neighborhood amenities, but agree that this must be first signed off on by the local residents 
and also be carefully developed so as not to lead to increased land and housing speculation and 
displacement of low-income residents. 


• Many of the proposals will require extensive funding.  The manner of raising the funding and the 
extent of funding should be worked out with the affected communities and reflect community 
input into the funding uses and allocations. 


In summary, many of the proposal leave out the voices of the community and should be rewritten to 
include extensive outreach and a serious commitment to real participation and decision-making at the 
community-level. 
Sincerely, 


Ozzie Rohm 
Ozzie Rohm for SFLUC 
 
cc: Rich Hillis 
 SF Board of Supervisors 
 SF Planning Commission 
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Date: Monday, July 19, 2021 9:34:21 AM

 
 
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
Date: Wednesday, September 23, 2020 at 4:33 PM
To: "joel.koppel@sfgov.org" <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>, "Diamond, Susan (CPC)"
<sue.diamond@sfgov.org>, "Fung, Frank (CPC)" <frank.fung@sfgov.org>, "Moore, Kathrin
(CPC)" <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>, Theresa Imperial <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>, "Chan,
Deland (CPC)" <deland.chan@sfgov.org>, "Tanner, Rachael (CPC)"
<rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Subject: CPC
 
 
 
Jonas P. Ionin,
Director of Commission Affairs
 
Planning Department│City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309│Fax: 415-558-6409
 
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
Subject: FW: July 22 Meeting Item 10: Please Approve Large Residence Ordinance 2021-001791PCA
Date: Monday, July 19, 2021 7:49:42 AM

 
 
 
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
 

From: John Morser <jmorser@pacbell.net> 
Sent: Sunday, July 18, 2021 8:54 PM
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
Cc: MandelmanStaff, [BOS] <mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org>; Bruce Bowen
<bruce.r.bowen@gmail.com>
Subject: July 22 Meeting Item 10: Please Approve Large Residence Ordinance 2021-001791PCA
 

 

Dear Planning Commission,
 
As a Dolores Heights resident who has lived in the neighborhood for almost 40 years
I strongly support Supervisor Mandelman's Large Residence ordinance. This is
because:
 
1) Dolores Heights has been the epicentre for the uncontrolled development of giant
houses that are completely unaffordable except to the wealthiest.
 
2) There have been a large number of projects recently that include demolition of
existing residences, that were sometimes multi-occupancy and their replacement by
one enormous house. Despite our Special Use District, the current rules are self-
evidently failing to protect Dolores Heights from these monster homes.
 

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


3) The proposed Ordinance provides a reasonable framework for more oversight,
allowing protection of existing houses as well as providing more sensible sized homes
for the average family, not just the richest.
 
4) I thank Supervisor Mandelman for listening to our concerns in Dolores Heights and
proposing this rational reform.
 
Yours
 
Michael John Morser
 
 
 
 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: May, Christopher (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 478-484 Haight Street - 2016-013012CUA
Date: Monday, July 19, 2021 7:47:57 AM
Attachments: image002.png

 
 
 
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
 

From: Natalie Burdick <nataliehb@gmail.com> 
Sent: Sunday, July 18, 2021 1:36 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Jeremy Schaub <jeremy@slasf.com>; LOHAMNA Board <lohamna_board@googlegroups.com>
Subject: 478-484 Haight Street - 2016-013012CUA
 

 

To the SF Planning Commission: The Lower Haight Merchants and Neighbors
Association (LoHaMNA) serves to preserve and reinforce the diversity, historic
character, beauty and architecture of the Lower Haight Neighborhood. We also
support and promote merchant activities that reflect and enhance the community’s
needs and unique, diverse character.
 
We support the 478-484 Haight Street project in our neighborhood because of the 18
units of the project. We are pleased that the project does not include any parking. We
do recommend that the project also include affordable studio units in the mix. 
 
We list additional recommendations to strengthen the project’s fit into our community:
 
Active Storefront

1.  
2.  
3. Childcare has privacy requirements that may conflict with our desire for a

permeable, active storefront.
4. Usually, windows get blocked. Set a requirement of the operator to maintain

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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https://sfplanning.org/staff-directory
https://sfplanning.org/node/1978
https://sfplanning.org/covid-19

Lower Haight
Morehants &
Neighbors Assoc.





active use at the windows
5.  
6.  
7.  
8. Add plantings to the retail sidewalk frontage windows to provide a buffer.

Perhaps more recessed
9. space in the front. Perhaps add benches.

10.  
11.  
12.  
13. Add awnings to reduce the need for window coverings on south facing windows.

Also adds more detail
14. to the building.
15.  
16.  
17.  
18. Increase ground floor height
19.  
20.  
21.  
22. Keep operable windows on the 2nd floor are desirable for fresh air and to add

the sound of children
23. to the soundscape.  But ensure that the window style meets safety standards to

encourage actual operation.
24.  
25.  
26.  
27. Replace the two service doors with more active uses.
28.  
29.  
30.  
31. Replace the ground floor office with more active uses.
32.  

 
Neighborhood Identity

1.  
2.  
3. Replace brick cladding with a material that better reflects the Lower Haight

neighborhood identity.
4. Brick seems to be more prevalent to the east.
5.  
6.  
7.  
8. Make residential bay windows deeper.
9.  

 



Bicycle amenities for residents

1.  
2.  
3. We support the bicycle parking room in the plans that support long-term bicycle

parking for residents
4.  
5.  
6.  
7. We encourage additional bicycle facilities fronting or near the project.
8.  

 
Thank you,
 
Natalie Burdick



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: In support of Trader Joe"s in Hayes Valley
Date: Monday, July 19, 2021 7:43:48 AM
Attachments: In support of Trader Joe"s in Hayes Valley.docx

 
 
 
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
 

From: Gail Baugh <gailbaugh40@gmail.com> 
Sent: Saturday, July 17, 2021 2:45 PM
To: Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC)
<sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa
(CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>
Cc: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: In support of Trader Joe's in Hayes Valley
 

 

July 17, 2021
 

To:  SF Planning Department President Joel Koppel, Vice-President Kathryn
Moore, and  Commissioners Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank Fung, Theresa
Imperial, Rachael Tanner 

Re:  In support of Trader Joe’s coming to Hayes Valley
 
Cc: Planning Director Rich Hillis, Hayes Valley Neighborhood Assn (HVNA) President
Jennifer Laska and HVNA board of directors
 
Trader Joe’s grocery store, proposed tenant for about 15,000 square feet of retail

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
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Gail Baugh

700 Hayes Street   San Francisco, CA 94102

July 17, 2021



To:  SF Planning Department President Joel Koppel, Vice-President Kathryn Moore, and  Commissioners Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank Fung, Theresa Imperial, Rachael Tanner 

Re:  In support of Trader Joe’s coming to Hayes Valley



Cc: Planning Director Rich Hillis, Hayes Valley Neighborhood Assn (HVNA) President Jennifer Laska and HVNA board of directors



Trader Joe’s grocery store, proposed tenant for about 15,000 square feet of retail on the entitled commercial space at 555 Fulton Street, should be approved.  While a formula retail ban exists in our Hayes Valley commercial area, it became clear that an affordably-priced grocery store was difficult to secure that wasn’t a chain store.  As former president of HVNA, I was part of a community-based committee that worked with the property owner and its commercial real estate agent to locate a suitable grocery store tenant. After 10 years of waiting for a grocery store in a food desert, most residents with whom I’ve spoken were positive about having a Trader Joe’s locate in this space, particularly because of its walkable location in a residential area. Obviously, new workers in our community, who can walk or bike to their place of employment, are an added benefit.



Having this tenant may also encourage other tenants to occupy the remaining commercial spaces in this large 30,000 square foot ground floor retail. I understand that this lifting of the formula retail ban will apply only to the Trader Joe’s space and is not assumable should a new tenant succeed TJ.



I look forward to your approval of this exception to the formula retail ban in Hayes Valley commercial area.



Sincerely,

Gail Baugh

Gailbaugh40@gmail.com

415-265-0546



on the entitled commercial space at 555 Fulton Street, should be approved.  While
a formula retail ban exists in our Hayes Valley commercial area, it became clear that
an affordably-priced grocery store was difficult to secure that wasn’t a chain
store.  As former president of HVNA, I was part of a community-based committee
that worked with the property owner and its commercial real estate agent to locate
a suitable grocery store tenant. After 10 years of waiting for a grocery store in a
food desert, most residents with whom I’ve spoken were positive about having a
Trader Joe’s locate in this space, particularly because of its walkable location in a
residential area. Obviously, new workers in our community, who can walk or bike to
their place of employment, are an added benefit.
 
Having this tenant may also encourage other tenants to occupy the remaining
commercial spaces in this large 30,000 square foot ground floor retail. I understand
that this lifting of the formula retail ban will apply only to the Trader Joe’s space and
is not assumable should a new tenant succeed TJ.
 
I look forward to your approval of this exception to the formula retail ban in Hayes
Valley commercial area.
 
Sincerely,
Gail Baugh
Gailbaugh40@gmail.com
415-265-0546

mailto:Gailbaugh40@gmail.com


From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - SENIOR MANAGERS; STACY, KATE (CAT); YANG, AUSTIN (CAT);

JENSEN, KRISTEN (CAT)
Subject: CPC Calendars for July 22, 2021
Date: Friday, July 16, 2021 1:10:35 PM
Attachments: 20210722_cal.docx

20210722_cal.pdf
Advance Calendar - 20210722.xlsx
CPC Hearing Results 2021.docx

Commissioners,
Attached are your Calendars for July 22, 2021. Please be prepared for a longer hearing.
 
Enjoy the weekend,
 
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
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Notice of Hearing

&

Agenda





Remote Hearing

via video and teleconferencing





[bookmark: _Hlk76975168]Thursday, July 22, 2021

1:00 p.m.

Regular Meeting



Commissioners:

Joel Koppel, President

Kathrin Moore, Vice President

Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank Fung,

Theresa Imperial, Rachael Tanner



Commission Secretary:

Jonas P. Ionin





Hearing Materials are available at:

Planning Commission Packet and Correspondence











Commission Hearing Broadcasts:

Live stream: https://sfgovtv.org/planning 

Live, Thursdays at 1:00 p.m., Cable Channel 78

Re-broadcast, Fridays at 8:00 p.m., Cable Channel 26









Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

[bookmark: _Hlk63346654] commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7589 at least 48 hours in advance.




Ramaytush Ohlone Acknowledgement 

The Planning Commission acknowledges that we are on the unceded ancestral homeland of the Ramaytush Ohlone, who are the original inhabitants of the San Francisco Peninsula. As the indigenous stewards of this land and in accordance with their traditions, the Ramaytush Ohlone have never ceded, lost, nor forgotten their responsibilities as the caretakers of this place, as well as for all peoples who reside in their traditional territory. As guests, we recognize that we benefit from living and working on their traditional homeland. We wish to pay our respects by acknowledging the Ancestors, Elders, and Relatives of the Ramaytush Ohlone community and by affirming their sovereign rights as First Peoples.



Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

[bookmark: _Hlk879281]Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. 



For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

 

Privacy Policy

Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. 



Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.

 

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance. 



Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.



Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall. 



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing to help ensure availability. 



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisión de Planificación. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.



CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7589。請在聽證會舉行之前的

至少48個小時提出要求。



FILIPINO: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 

RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по планированию. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7589. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания. 





Remote Access to Information and Participation 



In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus. 



On April 3, 2020, the Planning Commission was authorized to resume their hearing schedule through the duration of the shelter-in-place remotely. Therefore, the Planning Commission meetings will be held via videoconferencing and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit the SFGovTV website (https://sfgovtv.org/planning) to stream the live meetings or watch on a local television station. 



Public Comment call-in: (415) 655-0001 / Access code: 	146 795 7960



The public comment call-in line number will also be provided on the Department’s webpage https://sfplanning.org/ and during the live SFGovTV broadcast.



As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Planning Commission.




ROLL CALL:		

[bookmark: _Hlk429617]		President:	Joel Koppel		Vice-President:	Kathrin Moore

		Commissioners:                	Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank Fung,

			Theresa Imperial, Rachael Tanner 



A. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE



The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear the item on this calendar.



1.	2015-012577CUA	(M. WOODS: (628) 652-7350)

[bookmark: _Hlk77065247]1200 VAN NESS AVENUE – northeast corner of Post Street; Lots 003 and 005 in Assessor’s Block 0691 (District 3) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 209.3, 243, 253, 253.2, 271, 303 and 304 to allow a Planned Unit Development (PUD) for the demolition of the existing building complex and the construction of a 13-story mixed use building, mainly 107 dwelling units, approximately 106,700 square feet of health service uses and 270 parking spaces. The proposal includes PUD modifications to Planning Code provisions related to rear yard (Section 134), open space technical standards (Section 135), dwelling unit exposure (Section 140), ground floor ceiling height (Section 145.1), parking and loading entrances (Section 145.1), off-street loading technical standards (Section 154) and floor area premium for corner lots (Section 243). The project site is within a RC-4 (Residential-Commercial, High Density) Zoning District, Van Ness SUD (Special Use District), Van Ness Automotive SUD (Special Use District), Van Ness Avenue Area Plan, and 130-V Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Pending

(Proposed for Continuance to September 23, 2021)



2.	2016-011827ENX	(E. JARDINES: (628) 652-7531)

1500 15TH STREET – northwest corner of South Van Ness Avenue, Lots 016 and 018 in Assessor’s Block 3548 (District 9) – Request for Large Project Authorization (LPA) pursuant to Planning Code Section 329, for the Project proposing a lot merger and new construction of an approximately 85-foot tall, eight-story-over-basement residential  building (measuring approximately 66,388 gross square feet (gsf)) with ground floor retail measuring approximately 3,798 gsf. The Project would construct a total of 160 group housing units (225 beds total inclusive of 65 beds below-grade via 16 bedrooms with four and five beds per room), 52 Class 1 and 12 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces. The proposed project would utilize the State Density Bonus Law (California Government Code Sections 65915‐65918), and proposes waivers for: 1) rear yard (PC 134), 2) street frontage ground-floor ceiling height, and 3) height (PC 250); as well as a concession/incentive for 4) usable open space (PC 135).  The project site is located within a UMU (Urban Mixed-Use) Zoning District, and 58-X Height and Bulk District.  This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions

(Proposed for Continuance to October 14, 2021)





B.	CONSENT CALENDAR 



All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the Planning Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Commission.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Commission, the public, or staff so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered as a separate item at this or a future hearing



3.	2020-002678CUA	(M. WOODS: (628) 652-7350)

2335 GOLDEN GATE AVENUE – south side between Masonic and Parker Avenues; Lot 003 in Assessor’s Block 1145 (District 1) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 134, 209.1, 253, 271, 303 and 304 to allow a PUD (Planned Unit Development ) for the construction of an elevated one-story horizontal addition to the existing War Memorial Gymnasium (WMG) building. The new addition (approximately 15,500 square feet), which would contain a new basketball practice facility (approximately 12,300 square feet), would be connected to the mezzanine level of the existing WMG building via an approximately 3,200 square-foot mezzanine level with restrooms, coaches’ offices, and athletic conference rooms. The proposal includes a PUD modification to Planning Code provisions related to the rear yard (Section 134). The project site is within a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two-Family) Zoning District and 80-D Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions



C.	COMMISSION MATTERS 



4.	Consideration of Adoption:

· Draft Minutes for July 8, 2021



5.	Commission Comments/Questions

· Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to the Commissioner(s).

· Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the Planning Commission.


D.	DEPARTMENT MATTERS



6.	Director’s Announcements



7.	Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic Preservation Commission

	

E.	GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 



At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items.  With respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment may be moved to the end of the Agenda.



F. REGULAR CALENDAR  



The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal.  Please be advised that the project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.



8.	2021-005030PCAMAP	(J. SHAW: (628) 652-7449)

LIFE SCIENCE AND MEDICAL SPECIAL USE DISTRICT [BOARD FILE NO. 210497] – Planning Code and Special Use District Map Amendment to eliminate the Life Science and Medical SUD (Special Use District); make approval findings under the California Environmental Quality Act; and make findings of consistency with the General Plan and the eight priority policies of the Planning Code Section 101.1, and findings of public necessity, convenience, and welfare under Planning Code Section 302.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Modifications



9.	2021-005135PCA	(A. MERLONE: (628) 652-7534)

CONDITIONAL USE AUTHORIZATION REQUIREMENTS REGARDING RESIDENTIAL CARE FACILITIES [BOARD FILE NO. 210535] – Planning Code Amendment to eliminate the requirement of Conditional Use Authorization for Residential Care Facilities for seven or more people in RH (Residential-House ) Districts; require Conditional Use Authorization for a change of use or demolition of a Residential Care Facility, and consideration of certain factors in determining whether to grant Conditional Use Authorization; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; and making findings of consistency with the General Plan, the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1, and public necessity, convenience, and general welfare findings pursuant to Planning Code, Section 302. 

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Modifications



10.	2021-001791PCA	(A. MERLONE: (628) 652-7534)

REVIEW OF LARGE RESIDENCE DEVELOPMENTS – Planning Code Amendment to require Conditional Use Authorization for certain large residence developments in RH (Residential, House) Zoning Districts; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; and making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1, and findings of public convenience, necessity, and welfare under Planning Code, Section 302.

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Modifications

(Continued from Regular hearing on June 17, 2021)



11.	2017-014833ENV	(J. DELUMO: (628) 652-7568)

469 STEVENSON STREET PROJECT – Certification of the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) – The project site is located on the block bounded by Stevenson Street to the north, Jessie Street to the south, 6th Street to the west, and 5th Street to the east (Assessor’s block/lot 3704/045). The proposed project would demolish the existing parking lot and construct a new 27-story mixed-use building approximately 274 feet tall (with an additional 10 feet for rooftop mechanical equipment) with three below-grade parking levels providing approximately 166 parking spaces, one freight loading space, and two service vehicle loading spaces. The approximately 535,000-gross-square-foot building would consist of approximately 495 dwelling units, 4,000 square feet of commercial retail use on the ground floor, and 25,000 square feet of private and common open space. The proposed project would also provide approximately 200 class 1 bicycle spaces, 27 class 2 bicycle parking spaces, and passenger loading zones on Stevenson Street and Jessie Street. The proposed project would use the Individually Requested State Density Bonus Program and provide affordable housing units onsite. The Project Site is located within a C-3-G (Downtown General Commercial) Zoning District, Downtown Plan Area, and 160-F Height and Bulk District.

Note: The public hearing on the draft EIR is closed. The public comment period for the draft EIR ended on May 11, 2020. Public comment will be received when the item is called during the hearing. However, comments submitted may not be included in the Final EIR.  

Preliminary Recommendation: Certify

(Continued from Regular hearing on June 24, 2021)



12a.	2017-014833ENV	(N. FOSTER: (628) 652-7330)

469 STEVENSON STREET – south side between 5th and 6th Streets; Lot 045 in Assessor’s Block 3704 (District 6) – Request for Adoption of Findings and a Statement of Overriding Considerations pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  The proposed project (“Project”) includes construction of a 27-story residential building reaching a height of 274-feet tall (284-feet including rooftop mechanical equipment) with a total Gross Floor Area of approximately 427,000 square feet devoted to residential uses, with approximately 4,000 gross square feet of ground-floor retail. The Project includes a total of 495 dwelling units, with a mix of 192 studio units, 149 one-bedroom units, 96 two-bedroom units, 50 three-bedroom units, and eight five-bedroom units totaling, with 73 dwelling units provided as on-site affordable dwelling units. The Project would provide 166 off-street vehicle parking spaces, up to 12 car-share spaces, 200 Class 1 and 27 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces, and three freight loading spaces within a below-grade garage. The Project is utilizing the Individually Requested State Density Bonus Program to achieve a 42.5% density bonus thereby maximizing residential density on the Site pursuant to California Government Code Sections 65915-95918, as revised under Assembly Bill No. 2345 (AB 2345). The Project Site is located within a C-3-G (Downtown General Commercial) Zoning District, Downtown Plan Area, and 160-F Height and Bulk District.

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt Findings

(Continued from Regular hearing on June 24, 2021)



12b.	2017-014833DNX	(N. FOSTER: (628) 652-7330)

469 STEVENSON STREET – south side between 5th and 6th Streets; Lot 045 in Assessor’s Block 3704 (District 6) – Request for Downtown Project Authorization to permit a project greater than 50,000 square feet of floor area within a C-3 Zoning District (Sections 210.2 and 309). The proposed project (“Project”) is utilizing the Individually Requested State Density Bonus Program pursuant to California Government Code Sections 65915-95918, as revised under Assembly Bill No. 2345 (AB 2345) to achieve a 42.5% density bonus. The Project requests six (6) waivers from: Maximum Floor Area Ratio (Section 123); Rear Yard (Section 134); Common Useable Open Space (Section 135); Dwelling Unit Exposure (Section 140); Ground-Level Wind Current (Section 148); Bulk (Section 270); and one (1) incentive from Height (Section 250). The Project includes construction of a 27-story residential building reaching a height of 274-feet tall (284-feet including rooftop mechanical equipment) with a total Gross Floor Area of approximately 427,000 square feet devoted to residential uses, with approximately 4,000 gross square feet of ground-floor retail. The Project includes a total of 495 dwelling units, with a mix of 192 studio units, 149 one-bedroom units, 96 two-bedroom units, 50 three-bedroom units, and eight five-bedroom units totaling, with 73 dwelling units provided as on-site affordable dwelling units. The Project would provide 166 off-street vehicle parking spaces, up to 12 car-share spaces, 200 Class 1 and 27 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces, and three freight loading spaces within a below-grade garage. The Project Site is located within a C-3-G (Downtown General Commercial) Zoning District, Downtown Plan Area, and 160-F Height and Bulk District.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on June 24, 2021)



12c.	2017-014833CUA	(N. FOSTER: (628) 652-7330)

469 STEVENSON STREET – south side between 5th and 6th Streets; Lot 045 in Assessor’s Block 3704 (District 6) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization to permit additional square footage above that permitted by the base floor area ratio limits for the construction of on-site, affordable dwelling units (Sections 124(f) and 303). The proposed project (“Project”) includes construction of a 27-story residential building reaching a height of 274-feet tall (284-feet including rooftop mechanical equipment) with a total Gross Floor Area of approximately 427,000 square feet devoted to residential uses, with approximately 4,000 gross square feet of ground-floor retail. The Project includes a total of 495 dwelling units, with a mix of 192 studio units, 149 one-bedroom units, 96 two-bedroom units, 50 three-bedroom units, and eight five-bedroom units totaling, with 73 dwelling units provided as on-site affordable dwelling units. The Project would provide 166 off-street vehicle parking spaces, up to 12 car-share spaces, 200 Class 1 and 27 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces, and three freight loading spaces within a below-grade garage. The Project is utilizing the Individually Requested State Density Bonus Program to achieve a 42.5% density bonus thereby maximizing residential density on the Site pursuant to California Government Code Sections 65915-95918, as revised under Assembly Bill No. 2345 (AB 2345). The Project Site is located within a C-3-G (Downtown General Commercial) Zoning District, Downtown Plan Area, and 160-F Height and Bulk District.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on June 24, 2021)



13.	2015-009955CUA	(C. ASBAGH: (628) 652- 7329)

[bookmark: _Hlk71211048]1525 PINE STREET – south side between Van Ness Avenue and Polk Street; Lot 020 in Assessor’s Block 0667 (District 3) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Section 303 and other applicable Sections as follows: Development on a Large Lot (Section 121.1), Non-Residential Use Size (Section 121.2), Dwelling Unit Mix (Section 207.6), and Operating Hours (Section 723). Request for State Density Bonus pursuant to Planning Code Section 206.6 to achieve an additional six units over the base density of 15 units, for a total of 21 units, with one Concession or Incentive for Permitted Obstructions (Section 136), and Waivers requested from the minimum requirements for Rear Yard (Section 134), Common Useable Open Space (Section 135), Dwelling Unit Exposure (Section 140), Ground-Floor Ceiling Height (Section 145.1(c)(4), Transparency (Section 145.1(c)(6), Height (Section 260), Setbacks on Narrow Streets (Section 261.1), and Bulk (Section 270). The project would demolish an existing 1,661 square foot one-story commercial restaurant (dba “Grubstake”) and construct a new 83-foot tall eight-story mixed-use building with a 2,856 square foot restaurant and 21 dwelling units within the Polk Street NCD (Neighborhood Commercial District) Zoning District, Lower Polk Street Alcohol Restricted Use Special Use District, and 65-A Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on June 17, 2021)

Note: On May 6, 2021, after hearing and closing public comment, continued to June 17, 2021 with direction from Commissioners by a vote of +5 -2 (Imperial and Moore against). On June 17, 2021, without hearing, continued to July 22, 2021 by a vote of +5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent).



14.	2021-002978CUA	(C. ASBAGH: (628) 652- 7329)

555 FULTON STREET – southeast corner of Laguna Street; Lot 058 in Assessor’s Block 0794 (District 5) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303(c), 303.1, 703.4, and 249.35A to establish a Formula Retail Grocery store (d.b.a. Trader Joe’s). The project is located within a RTO (Residential Transit Oriented), Hayes Valley NCT (Neighborhood Commercial Transit) Zoning Districts, Fulton Street Grocery Store SUD (Special Use District), and 40-X/50-X Height and Bulk District. The revised project was analyzed in the Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for the original project (Case No. 2005.1085E).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions



15.	2020-010710CUA	(C. ENCHILL: (628) 652-7551)

[bookmark: _Hlk76714827][bookmark: _Hlk74563538][bookmark: _Hlk74563163]400 CALIFORNIA STREET – northeast corner of Leidesdorff Street; Lot 003 in Assessor’s Block 0239 (District 4) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Section 210.2 and 303, to establish approximately 9,330 square feet of office use at the ground floor of an existing commercial building. The subject property is located in a C-3-O (Downtown Office) Zoning District and 350-S Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on July 15, 2021)



16a.	2020-005897DNX	(J. VIMR: (628) 652-7319)

233 GEARY STREET – southwest corner of Geary and Stockton Streets; Lots 018-020 in Assessor’s Block 0314 (District 3) – Request for Downtown Project Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Section 309, with a requested exception for Rear Yard requirements (Section 134), for the proposed conversion of the existing building from retail and office uses to a mix of retail, expanded office space, and 21 residential units spanning the upper three floors. There will be no change to the height of the building nor expansion if its envelope. 233 Geary Street is located within a C-3-R (Downtown-Retail) Zoning District, Kearny-Market-Mason-Sutter Conservation District and 80-130-F Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions





16b.	2020-005897CUA	(J. VIMR: (628) 652-7319)

233 GEARY STREET – southwest corner of Geary and Stockton Streets; Lots 018-020 in Assessor’s Block 0314 (District 3) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 210.2 and 303, to provide office uses exceeding 5,000 gross square feet on the fourth, fifth, and sixth floors of the existing building located within a C-3-R (Downtown-Retail) Zoning District, Kearny-Market-Mason-Sutter Conservation District and 80-130-F Height and Bulk District.  

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 



16c.	2020-005897OFA	(J. VIMR: (628) 652-7319)

233 GEARY STREET – southwest corner of Geary and Stockton Streets; Lots 018-020 in Assessor’s Block 0314 (District 3) – Request for Office Allocation pursuant to Planning Code Sections 320-325 to establish up to 49,999 square feet of new non-retail sales and service (general office) use at the existing building located within a C-3-R (Downtown-Retail) Zoning District, Kearny-Market-Mason-Sutter Conservation District and 80-130-F Height and Bulk District. 

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions



17.	2020-009312CUA	(C. FEENEY: (628) 652-7313)

1112 SHOTWELL STREET – west side between 25th and 26th Streets; Lot 002 in Assessor’s Block 6526 (District 9) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 209.1 and 303, to establish more than three total dwelling units on a single parcel, within a RH-3 (Residential-House, Three Family) Zoning District, and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions



18.	2018-002625CUA	(J. HORN: (628) 652-7366)

4716-4722 MISSION STREET – west side between Leo and Ruth Streets; Lots 014 and 015 in Assessor’s Block 6955 (District 11) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 317, to demolish an existing two-story, 2,500-square-foot mixed-use building with one residential unit and an existing one-story, 440-square-foot commercial building and to construct a six-story, 65-foot-tall, 22,800-square-foot mixed-use residential and commercial building. The proposed project would contain 784 square feet of retail, eight principally permitted dwelling units and 16 accessory dwelling units. The project would also include 2,985 total square feet of common open space, 25 Class I bicycle parking spaces and four Class II bicycle parking spaces. The project site is located in the Excelsior-Outer Mission Street NCD (Neighborhood Commercial District) Zoning District and 65-A Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions



ADJOURNMENT


Hearing Procedures

The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org. 



Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item. 

· When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.



Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).



For most cases (CU’s, PUD’s, 309’s, etc.) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair.

3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a period equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers.  The intent of the 10 min block of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the organized opposition.  The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized presentation to represent their testimony, if granted.  Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written application at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.  Such application should identify the organization(s) and speakers.

4. Public testimony from proponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

5. Public testimony from opponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

6. Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing.

7. Action by the Commission on the matter before it.

8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.

10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by the Chair;

11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.



Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).



For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor.

3. Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each.

4. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors.

5. Testimony by members of the public in support of the project would be up to three (3) minutes each.

6. DR requestor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

7. Project sponsor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

8. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.



The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under Discretionary Review.  A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed.



Hearing Materials

Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be delivered to 49 South Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part of the public record for any public hearing. 



Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing.



Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary (commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record.



These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission.



Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 49 South Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.  



Appeals

The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission hearing.



		Case Type

		Case Suffix

		Appeal Period*

		Appeal Body



		Office Allocation

		OFA (B)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**



		Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit Development

		CUA (C)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Building Permit Application (Discretionary Review)

		DRP/DRM (D)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		EIR Certification

		ENV (E)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Coastal Zone Permit

		CTZ (P)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Planning Code Amendments by Application

		PCA (T)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Variance (Zoning Administrator action)

		VAR (V)

		10 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Large Project Authorization in Eastern Neighborhoods 

		LPA (X)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown Residential Districts

		DNX (X)

		15-calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Zoning Map Change by Application

		MAP (Z)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors







* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of the date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission hearing).  Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision letter.



**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.



For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org. 

An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections 328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244. For further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within 15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880. 



Challenges

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4) the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.



CEQA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code

If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section 31.16.  This appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project.  Typically, an appeal must be filed within 30 calendar days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to CEQA.  For information on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184.  If the Department’s Environmental Review Officer has deemed a project to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared and can be obtained on-line at http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a litigant may be limited to raising only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision.



Protest of Fee or Exaction

You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in accordance with Government Code Section 66020.  The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development referencing the challenged fee or exaction.  For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.   



The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter will serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun.



Proposition F

Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org.



San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.
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Ramaytush Ohlone Acknowledgement  
The Planning Commission acknowledges that we are on the unceded ancestral homeland of the Ramaytush Ohlone, who are the original inhabitants 
of the San Francisco Peninsula. As the indigenous stewards of this land and in accordance with their traditions, the Ramaytush Ohlone have never 
ceded, lost, nor forgotten their responsibilities as the caretakers of this place, as well as for all peoples who reside in their traditional territory. As guests, 
we recognize that we benefit from living and working on their traditional homeland. We wish to pay our respects by acknowledging the Ancestors, 
Elders, and Relatives of the Ramaytush Ohlone community and by affirming their sovereign rights as First Peoples. 
 
Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance 
Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City 
and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations 
are open to the people's review.  
 
For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of 
the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-
7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco 
Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine. 
  
Pr ivacy Policy 
Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act 
and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.  
 
Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its 
commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made 
available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This 
means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to 
the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect 
or copy. 
  
Accessible Meeting Information 
Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through 
Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, 
Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.  
 
Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness 
stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, 
call (415) 701-4485 or call 311. 
 
Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking 
Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall.  
 
Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or 
other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in advance 
of the hearing to help ensure availability.  
 
Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or 
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. 
 
Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related 
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings. 
 
S PANISH: Agenda para la Comisión de Planificación. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato 
para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia. 
 
CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7589。請在聽證會舉行之前的 
至少48個小時提出要求。 
 
FILIPINO: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig 
(headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.  


RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по  планированию. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым 
устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7589. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов 
до  начала слушания.  



mailto:sotf@sfgov.org

http://www.sfbos.org/sunshine
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Re mote Access to Information and Participation  
 


In a ccordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for a ll residents to Shelter-in-place - and the 
numerous preceding local a nd state proclamations, orders a nd supplemental directions - aggressive 
directives have been issued to slow down a nd reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus.  
 
On April 3, 2020, the Planning Commission was authorized to resume their hearing schedule through the 
duration of the shelter-in-place remotely. Therefore, the Planning Commission meetings will be held via 
videoconferencing a nd a llow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages 
interested pa rties to submit their comments in writing, in a dvance of the hea ring to 
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit the SFGovTV website (https://sfgovtv.org/planning) to stream 
the live meetings or watch on a local television station.  
 
Public Comment call-in: (415) 655-0001 / Access code:  146 795 7960 
 
The public comment ca ll-in line number will a lso be provided on the Department’s webpage 
https://sfplanning.org/ a nd during the live SFGovTV broadcast. 
 
As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on 
the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Planning Commission. 


  



mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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ROLL CALL:   
  President: Joel Koppel 


 Vice-President: Kathrin Moore 
  Commissioners:                 Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank Fung, 
   Theresa Imperial, Rachael Tanner  
 
A. CO NSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE 
 


The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may choose 
to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear 
the item on this calendar. 


 
1. 2015-012577CUA (M. WOODS: (628) 652-7350) 


1200 VAN NESS AVENUE – northeast corner of Post Street; Lots 003 and 005 in Assessor’s 
Block 0691 (District 3) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning 
Code Sections 209.3, 243, 253, 253.2, 271, 303 and 304 to allow a Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) for the demolition of the existing building complex and the construction of a 13-story 
mixed use building, mainly 107 dwelling units, approximately 106,700 square feet of health 
service uses and 270 parking spaces. The proposal includes PUD modifications to Planning 
Code provisions related to rear yard (Section 134), open space technical standards (Section 
135), dwelling unit exposure (Section 140), ground floor ceiling height (Section 145.1), 
parking and loading entrances (Section 145.1), off-street loading technical standards 
(Section 154) and floor area premium for corner lots (Section 243). The project site is within 
a RC-4 (Residential-Commercial, High Density) Zoning District, Van Ness SUD (Special Use 
District), Van Ness Automotive SUD (Special Use District), Van Ness Avenue Area Plan, and 
130-V Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project 
for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation:  Pending 
(Proposed for Continuance to September 23, 2021) 


 
2. 2016-011827ENX (E. JARDINES: (628) 652-7531) 


1500 15TH STREET – northwest corner of South Van Ness Avenue, Lots 016 and 018 in 
Assessor’s Block 3548 (District 9) – Request for Large Project Authorization (LPA) pursuant 
to Planning Code Section 329, for the Project proposing a lot merger and new construction 
of an approximately 85-foot tall, eight-story-over-basement residential  building 
(measuring approximately 66,388 gross square feet (gsf)) with ground floor retail measuring 
approximately 3,798 gsf. The Project would construct a total of 160 group housing units (225 
beds total inclusive of 65 beds below-grade via 16 bedrooms with four and five beds per 
room), 52 Class 1 and 12 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces. The proposed project would utilize 
the State Density Bonus Law (California Government Code Sections 65915‐65918), and 
proposes waivers for: 1) rear yard (PC 134), 2) street frontage ground-floor ceiling height, 
and 3) height (PC 250); as well as a concession/incentive for 4) usable open space (PC 
135).  The project site is located within a UMU (Urban Mixed-Use) Zoning District, and 58-X 
Height and Bulk District.  This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the 
purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
(Proposed for Continuance to October 14, 2021) 
 
 



http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2016-011827ENX.pdf
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B. CO NSENT CALENDAR  
 
All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the 
Planning Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Commission.  There 
will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Commission, the public, or staff 
so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered 
as a separate item at this or a future hearing 


 
3. 2020-002678CUA (M. WOODS: (628) 652-7350) 


2335 GOLDEN GATE AVENUE – south side between Masonic and Parker Avenues; Lot 003 in 
Assessor’s Block 1145 (District 1) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to 
Planning Code Sections 134, 209.1, 253, 271, 303 and 304 to allow a PUD (Planned Unit 
Development ) for the construction of an elevated one-story horizontal addition to the 
existing War Memorial Gymnasium (WMG) building. The new addition (approximately 
15,500 square feet), which would contain a new basketball practice facility (approximately 
12,300 square feet), would be connected to the mezzanine level of the existing WMG 
building via an approximately 3,200 square-foot mezzanine level with restrooms, coaches’ 
offices, and athletic conference rooms. The proposal includes a PUD modification to 
Planning Code provisions related to the rear yard (Section 134). The project site is within a 
RH-2 (Residential-House, Two-Family) Zoning District and 80-D Height and Bulk District. This 
action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to 
San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 


 
C. CO MMISSION MATTERS  
 


4. Consideration of Adoption: 
• Draft Minutes for July 8, 2021 


 
5. Commission Comments/Questions 


• Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may 
make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to 
the Commissioner(s). 


• Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take  
action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could 
be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the 
Planning Commission. 


 
D. DEPARTMENT MATTERS 


 
6. Director’s Announcements 
 
7. Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic 


Preservation Commission 
  


E. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT  
 


At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public  
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items.  With respect 



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2020-002678CUA.pdf

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04
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to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is 
reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three 
minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment may 
be moved to the end of the Agenda. 


 
F. REGULAR CALENDAR   


 
The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project 
sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal.  Please be advised that the 
project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, 
expediters, and/or other advisors. 


 
8. 2021-005030PCAMAP (J. SHAW: (628) 652-7449) 


LIFE SCIENCE AND MEDICAL SPECIAL USE DISTRICT [BOARD FILE NO. 210497] – Planning 
Code and Special Use District Map Amendment to eliminate the Life Science and Medical 
SUD (Special Use District); make approval findings under the California Environmental 
Quality Act; and make findings of consistency with the General Plan and the eight priority 
policies of the Planning Code Section 101.1, and findings of public necessity, convenience, 
and welfare under Planning Code Section 302. 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Modifications 
 


9. 2021-005135PCA (A. MERLONE: (628) 652-7534) 
CONDITIONAL USE AUTHORIZATION REQUIREMENTS REGARDING RESIDENTIAL CARE 
FACILITIES [BOARD FILE NO. 210535] – Planning Code Amendment to eliminate the 
requirement of Conditional Use Authorization for Residential Care Facilities for seven or 
more people in RH (Residential-House ) Districts; require Conditional Use Authorization for 
a change of use or demolition of a Residential Care Facility, and consideration of certain 
factors in determining whether to grant Conditional Use Authorization; affirming the 
Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; and 
making findings of consistency with the General Plan, the eight priority policies of Planning 
Code, Section 101.1, and public necessity, convenience, and general welfare findings 
pursuant to Planning Code, Section 302.  
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Modifications 
 


10. 2021-001791PCA (A. MERLONE: (628) 652-7534) 
REVIEW OF LARGE RESIDENCE DEVELOPMENTS – Planning Code Amendment to require 
Conditional Use Authorization for certain large residence developments in RH (Residential, 
House) Zoning Districts; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the 
California Environmental Quality Act; and making findings of consistency with the General 
Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1, and findings of public  
convenience, necessity, and welfare under Planning Code, Section 302. 
Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Modifications 
(Continued from Regular hearing on June 17, 2021) 


 
11. 2017-014833ENV (J. DELUMO: (628) 652-7568) 


469 STEVENSON STREET PROJECT – Certification of the Final Environmental Impact Report 
(EIR) – The project site is located on the block bounded by Stevenson Street to the north, 
Jessie Street to the south, 6th Street to the west, and 5th Street to the east (Assessor’s 
block/lot 3704/045). The proposed project would demolish the existing parking lot and 



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2021-005030PCAMAP.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2021-005135PCA.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2021-001791PCA.pdf
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construct a new 27-story mixed-use building approximately 274 feet tall (with an additional 
10 feet for rooftop mechanical equipment) with three below-grade parking levels providing 
approximately 166 parking spaces, one freight loading space, and two service vehicle 
loading spaces. The approximately 535,000-gross-square-foot building would consist of 
approximately 495 dwelling units, 4,000 square feet of commercial retail use on the ground 
floor, and 25,000 square feet of private and common open space. The proposed project 
would also provide approximately 200 class 1 bicycle spaces, 27 class 2 bicycle parking 
spaces, and passenger loading zones on Stevenson Street and Jessie Street. The proposed 
project would use the Individually Requested State Density Bonus Program and provide  
affordable housing units onsite. The Project Site is located within a C-3-G (Downtown 
General Commercial) Zoning District, Downtown Plan Area, and 160-F Height and Bulk 
District. 
Note: The public hearing on the draft EIR is closed. The public comment period for the draft 
EIR ended on May 11, 2020. Public comment will be received when the item is called during 
the  hearing. However, comments submitted may not be included in the Final EIR.   
Preliminary Recommendation: Certify 
(Continued from Regular hearing on June 24, 2021) 


 
12a. 2017-014833ENV (N. FOSTER: (628) 652-7330) 


469 STEVENSON STREET – south side between 5th and 6th Streets; Lot 045 in Assessor’s Block 
3704 (District 6) – Request for Adoption of Findings and a Statement of Overriding 
Considerations pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  The proposed 
project (“Project”) includes construction of a 27-story residential building reaching a height 
of 274-feet tall (284-feet including rooftop mechanical equipment) with a total Gross Floor 
Area of approximately 427,000 square feet devoted to residential uses, with approximately 
4,000 gross square feet of ground-floor retail. The Project includes a total of 495 dwelling 
units, with a mix of 192 studio units, 149 one-bedroom units, 96 two-bedroom units, 50 
three-bedroom units, and eight five-bedroom units totaling, with 73 dwelling units 
provided as on-site affordable dwelling units. The Project would provide 166 off-street 
vehicle parking spaces, up to 12 car-share spaces, 200 Class 1 and 27 Class 2 bicycle parking 
spaces, and three freight loading spaces within a below-grade garage. The Project is utilizing 
the Individually Requested State Density Bonus Program to achieve a 42.5% density bonus 
thereby maximizing residential density on the Site pursuant to California Government Code 
Sections 65915-95918, as revised under Assembly Bill No. 2345 (AB 2345). The Project Site is 
located within a C-3-G (Downtown General Commercial) Zoning District, Downtown Plan 
Area, and 160-F Height and Bulk District. 
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt Findings 
(Continued from Regular hearing on June 24, 2021) 


 
12b. 2017-014833DNX (N. FOSTER: (628) 652-7330) 


469 STEVENSON STREET – south side between 5th and 6th Streets; Lot 045 in Assessor’s Block 
3704 (District 6) – Request for Downtown Project Authorization to permit a project greater 
than 50,000 square feet of floor area within a C-3 Zoning District (Sections 210.2 and 309). 
The proposed project (“Project”) is utilizing the Individually Requested State Density Bonus 
Program pursuant to California Government Code Sections 65915-95918, as revised under 
Assembly Bill No. 2345 (AB 2345) to achieve a 42.5% density bonus. The Project requests six 
(6) waivers from: Maximum Floor Area Ratio (Section 123); Rear Yard (Section 134); Common 
Useable Open Space (Section 135); Dwelling Unit Exposure (Section 140); Ground-Level 
Wind Current (Section 148); Bulk (Section 270); and one (1) incentive from Height (Section 



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2017-014833PRJ%20-%20full.pdf
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250). The Project includes construction of a 27-story residential building reaching a height 
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
spaces, and three freight loading spaces within a below-grade garage. The Project Site is 
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


 
12c. 2017-014833CUA (N. FOSTER: (628) 652-7330) 


469 STEVENSON STREET – south side between 5th and 6th Streets; Lot 045 in Assessor’s Block 
3704 (District 6) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization to permit additional square 
footage above that permitted by the base floor area ratio limits for the construction of on-
site, affordable dwelling units (Sections 124(f) and 303). The proposed project (“Project”) 
includes construction of a 27-story residential building reaching a height of 274-feet tall 
(284-feet including rooftop mechanical equipment) with a total Gross Floor Area of 
approximately 427,000 square feet devoted to residential uses, with approximately 4,000 
gross square feet of ground-floor retail. The Project includes a total of 495 dwelling units, 
with a mix of 192 studio units, 149 one-bedroom units, 96 two-bedroom units, 50 three-
bedroom units, and eight five-bedroom units totaling, with 73 dwelling units provided as 
on-site affordable dwelling units. The Project would provide 166 off-street vehicle parking 
spaces, up to 12 car-share spaces, 200 Class 1 and 27 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces, and 
three freight loading spaces within a below-grade garage. The Project is utilizing the 
Individually Requested State Density Bonus Program to achieve a 42.5% density bonus 
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


 
13. 2015-009955CUA (C. ASBAGH: (628) 652- 7329) 


1525 PINE STREET – south side between Van Ness Avenue and Polk Street; Lot 020 in 
Assessor’s Block 0667 (District 3) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to 
Planning Code Section 303 and other applicable Sections as follows: Development on a 
Large Lot (Section 121.1), Non-Residential Use Size (Section 121.2), Dwelling Unit Mix 
(Section 207.6), and Operating Hours (Section 723). Request for State Density Bonus 
pursuant to Planning Code Section 206.6 to achieve an additional six units over the base 
density of 15 units, for a total of 21 units, with one Concession or Incentive for Permitted 
Obstructions (Section 136), and Waivers requested from the minimum requirements for 
Rear Yard (Section 134), Common Useable Open Space (Section 135), Dwelling Unit 
Exposure (Section 140), Ground-Floor Ceiling Height (Section 145.1(c)(4), Transparency 
(Section 145.1(c)(6), Height (Section 260), Setbacks on Narrow Streets (Section 261.1), and 
Bulk (Section 270). The project would demolish an existing 1,661 square foot one-story 



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2017-014833PRJ%20-%20full.pdf
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commercial restaurant (dba “Grubstake”) and construct a new 83-foot tall eight-story 
mixed-use building with a 2,856 square foot restaurant and 21 dwelling units within the 
Polk Street NCD (Neighborhood Commercial District) Zoning District, Lower Polk Street 
Alcohol Restricted Use Special Use District, and 65-A Height and Bulk District. This action 
constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San 
Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).  
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
(Continued from Regular hearing on June 17, 2021) 
Note: On May 6, 2021, after hearing and closing public comment, continued to June 17, 2021 
with direction from Commissioners by a vote of +5 -2 (Imperial and Moore against). On June 
17, 2021, without hearing, continued to July 22, 2021 by a vote of +5 -0 (Koppel, Chan 
absent). 


 
14. 2021-002978CUA (C. ASBAGH: (628) 652- 7329) 


555 FULTON STREET – southeast corner of Laguna Street; Lot 058 in Assessor’s Block 0794 
(District 5) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 
303(c), 303.1, 703.4, and 249.35A to establish a Formula Retail Grocery store (d.b.a. Trader 
Joe’s). The project is located within a RTO (Residential Transit Oriented), Hayes Valley NCT 
(Neighborhood Commercial Transit) Zoning Districts, Fulton Street Grocery Store SUD 
(Special Use District), and 40-X/50-X Height and Bulk District. The revised project was 
analyzed in the Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for the original project (Case No. 
2005.1085E). 
Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 


15. 2020-010710CUA (C. ENCHILL: (628) 652-7551) 
400 CALIFORNIA STREET – northeast corner of Leidesdorff Street; Lot 003 in Assessor’s Block 
0239 (District 4) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code 
Section 210.2 and 303, to establish approximately 9,330 square feet of office use at the 
ground floor of an existing commercial building. The subject property is located in a C-3-O 
(Downtown Office) Zoning District and 350-S Height and Bulk District. This action 
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


 
16a. 2020-005897DNX (J. VIMR: (628) 652-7319) 


233 GEARY STREET – southwest corner of Geary and Stockton Streets; Lots 018-020 in 
Assessor’s Block 0314 (District 3) – Request for Downtown Project Authorization pursuant 
to Planning Code Section 309, with a requested exception for Rear Yard requirements 
(Section 134), for the proposed conversion of the existing building from retail and office uses 
to a mix of retail, expanded office space, and 21 residential units spanning the upper three 
floors. There will be no change to the height of the building nor expansion if its envelope. 
233 Geary Street is located within a C-3-R (Downtown-Retail) Zoning District, Kearny-
Market-Mason-Sutter Conservation District and 80-130-F Height and Bulk District. This 
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

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2021-002978CUA.pdf
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16b. 2020-005897CUA (J. VIMR: (628) 652-7319) 
233 GEARY STREET – southwest corner of Geary and Stockton Streets; Lots 018-020 in 
Assessor’s Block 0314 (District 3) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to 
Planning Code Sections 210.2 and 303, to provide office uses exceeding 5,000 gross square  
feet on the fourth, fifth, and sixth floors of the existing building located within a C-3-R 
(Downtown-Retail) Zoning District, Kearny-Market-Mason-Sutter Conservation District and 
80-130-F Height and Bulk District.   
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions  


 
16c. 2020-005897OFA (J. VIMR: (628) 652-7319) 


233 GEARY STREET – southwest corner of Geary and Stockton Streets; Lots 018-020 in 
Assessor’s Block 0314 (District 3) – Request for O ffice Allocation pursuant to Planning Code 
Sections 320-325 to establish up to 49,999 square feet of new non-retail sales and service 
(general office) use at the existing building located within a C-3-R (Downtown-Retail) 
Zoning District, Kearny-Market-Mason-Sutter Conservation District and 80-130-F Height 
and Bulk District.  
Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 


 
17. 2020-009312CUA (C. FEENEY: (628) 652-7313) 


1112 SHOTWELL STREET – west side between 25th and 26th Streets; Lot 002 in Assessor’s 
Block 6526 (District 9) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning 
Code Sections 209.1 and 303, to establish more than three total dwelling units on a single 
parcel, within a RH-3 (Residential-House, Three Family) Zoning District, and 40-X Height and 
Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of 
CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 


 
18. 2018-002625CUA (J. HORN: (628) 652-7366) 


4716-4722 MISSION STREET – west side between Leo and Ruth Streets; Lots 014 and 015 in 
Assessor’s Block 6955 (District 11) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to 
Planning Code Sections 303 and 317, to demolish an existing two-story, 2,500-square-foot 
mixed-use building with one residential unit and an existing one-story, 440-square-foot 
commercial building and to construct a six-story, 65-foot-tall, 22,800-square-foot mixed-use 
residential and commercial building. The proposed project would contain 784 square feet 
of retail, eight principally permitted dwelling units and 16 accessory dwelling units. The 
project would also include 2,985 total square feet of common open space, 25 Class I bicycle 
parking spaces and four Class II bicycle parking spaces. The project site is located in the 
Excelsior-Outer Mission Street NCD (Neighborhood Commercial District) Zoning District and 
65-A Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for 
the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 


ADJOURNMENT  



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2020-005897DNXCUAOFA.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2020-005897DNXCUAOFA.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2020-009312CUA.pdf

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2018-002625CUA.pdf

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04
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He aring Procedures 
The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and 
the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org.  
 
Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item.  
 When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  


Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound 
indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended. 


 
Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are 
prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or 
use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use 
of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings). 
 
For most cases (CU’s, PUD’s, 309’s, etc.) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission 
Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order: 
 


1. A thorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff. 
2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, 


engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request 
for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, 
through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair. 


3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a period 
equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers.  The intent of the 10 min block 
of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the organized 
opposition.  The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized presentation to 
represent their testimony, if granted.  Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written application at least 72 
hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.  Such application should 
identify the organization(s) and speakers. 


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
8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three (3) 


minutes. 
9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise 


exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings. 
10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by 


the Chair; 
11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue 


to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission. 
 
Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of 
four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any 
Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present 
constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission). 
 
For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission 
Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order: 
 


1. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff. 
2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, 


expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor. 
3. Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each. 
4. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, 


expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not 
to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors. 


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
8. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise 


exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings. 
 
The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under 
Discretionary Review.  A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed. 
 
He aring Materials 
Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be 
received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be 
delivered to 49 South Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be 
provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing 
must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part 
of the public record for any public hearing.  
 
Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the 
Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion 
on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing. 
 
Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary 
(commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record. 
 
These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission. 
 
Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 49 South 
Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the 
hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.   
 
Appeals 
The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission 
hearing. 
 


Ca se Type Ca se Suffix Appeal Period* Appeal Body 
Office Allocation OFA (B) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals** 
Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit 
Development 


CUA (C) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 


Building Permit Application (Discretionary 
Review) 


DRP/DRM (D) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals 


EIR Certification ENV (E) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
Coastal Zone Permit CTZ (P) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals 
Planning Code Amendments by Application PCA (T) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
Variance (Zoning Administrator action) VAR (V) 10 calendar days Board of Appeals 
Large Project Authorization in Eastern 
Neighborhoods  


LPA (X) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals 


Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown 
Residential Districts 


DNX (X) 15-calendar days Board of Appeals 


Zoning Map Change by Application MAP (Z) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
 
* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of the 
date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission 
hearing).  Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision letter. 
 
**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project 
requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office 
Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization. 
 
For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more 
information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or 
board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org.  



mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org

mailto:board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org





San Francisco Planning Commission  Thursday, July 22, 2021 


 


Notice of Remote Hearing & Agenda        Page 13 of 13 
 


An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of 
S upervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections 
328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244. For 
further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
at (415) 554-5184.  
 
An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing 
Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within 
15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals 
must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about 
appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  
 
Challenges 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the 
adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4) 
the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use 
authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing 
described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing. 
 
CE QA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code 
If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code 
Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of 
that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section 31.16.  This 
appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project.  Typically, an appeal must be filed within 30 calendar 
days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to CEQA.  For information 
on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, 
Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184.  If the Department’s Environmental Review Officer has deemed a project 
to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared and can be obtained on-line at 
http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a litigant may be limited to raising 
only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Supervisors, 
Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part 
of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision. 
 
Pr otest of Fee or Exaction 
You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in accordance 
with Government Code Section 66020.  The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 66020(a) and must 
be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development referencing the challenged fee 
or exaction.  For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee shall be the date of the earliest 
discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.    
 
The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as 
expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter will 
serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun. 
 
Pr oposition F 
Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use 
matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community 
Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island 
Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the 
Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months 
after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been 
resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org. 
 
S a n Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance 
Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San 
Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying 
activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness 
Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics. 
 



http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447

http://www.sfgov.org/ethics
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Advance



				To:		Planning Commission

				From:		Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

				Re:		Advance Calendar

						All items and dates are tentative and subject to change.



				July 15, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Koppel, Chan - OUT						Planner

		2020-010710CUA		400 California Street				to: 7/22		Enchill

						conversion of ~9,400 square feet of retail use to office

		2020-010508DRP		3201 23rd Street				Withdrawn		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2021-002259CUA		1001 Minnesota Street				CONSENT		Wu

						Expansion of a Restaurant Use (dba Piccino) from 2,421 square feet to 6,591 square feet

		2020-000058DRM		2780-2782 Diamond St				CONSENT		Pantoja

						Flat Removal of two dwelling units

				Rules & Regs				fr: 5/27; 6/10; 6/24		Lynch

						Amendments

				Office of Cannabis						Christensen

						Informational

		2021-004740PCA		Exempt conversions from MCDs to Cannabis Retail						Christensen

						Planning Code Amendment

		2017-011878PHA-04		Block 7 of Potrero Power Station						Giacomucci

						Informational

		2020-001610CUA		3832 18th Street						Horn

						317 Demolition and new construction of Group Housing per SDB Program

		2020-010109CUA		35 Belgrave Avenue						Gunther

						demolition and construct a new, three-story over basement single family home

		2018-002508DRP-04		4250 26th Street				fr: 6/24		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				July 22, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

		2015-012577CUA		1200 Van Ness Ave				to: 9/23		Woods

						Demo & new construction of a 13-story building health services, retail, 107 dwelling units

		2020-002678CUA		2335 Golden Gate Ave				CONSENT		Woods

						Construction of a new basketball training facility on the USF campus

		2021-005030PCAMAP		Life Science and Medical Special Use District						Shaw

						Planning Code & Zoning Map Amendment

		2021-005135PCA		Conditional Use Authorization Requirements Regarding Residential Care Facilities						Merlone

						Planning Code Amendment

		2021-001791PCA		Review of Large Residence Developments				fr: 6/17		Merlone

						Planning Code Amendment

		2017-014833ENV		469 Stevenson Street				fr: 6/10; 6/24		Delumo

						CEIR

		2017-014833DNXCUAENV		469 Stevenson Street				fr: 6/10; 6/24		Foster

						State Density Bonus residential project (495 dwelling units)

		2015-009955CUA		1525 Pine Street				fr: 3/18; 5/6; 6/17		Updegrave

						Demo and new construction of an 8-story mixed-use building

		2016-011827ENX		1500 15th Street				fr: 6/24		Jardines

						State Density Bonus for 8-story group housing project (160 group housing rooms and 225 beds) 

		2020-010710CUA		400 California Street				fr: 7/15		Enchill

						conversion of ~9,400 square feet of retail use to office

		2020-005897CUADNXOFA		233 Geary Street						Vimr

						exterior alterations at the ground floor, western wall, rooftop, and windows

		2020-009312CUA		1112 Shotwell Street						Feeney

						Construct a new 3-story, 3-unit residential building on a parcel with existing multi-unit residential building

		2021-002978CUA		555 Fulton Street						Asbaugh

						Trad'r Joe's in the Hayes Valley Special Use District

		2018-002625CUA		4716-4722 Mission Street						Horn

						317 Residential Demolition and new construction of 8 DUs and 16 ADUs

				July 29, 2021 - Joint with RecPark

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

		2019-017481ENV		530 Sansome Street				fr: 6/17; 7/8		Callagy

						Appeal of the PMND

		2019-017481SHD		530 Sansome Street				fr: 6/24		Hicks

						Mixed-use commercial project (SFFD station, hotel, office, gym) and residential variant project

		2019-017481DNXCUA		530 Sansome Street				fr: 6/24		Foster

		OFASHDVAR				Mixed-use commercial project (SFFD station, hotel, office, gym) and residential variant project

				July 29, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

		2020-011615CUA		2022 Mission Street 				CONSENT		Wu

						Limited Restaurant Use to a Restaurant and Place of Entertainment Use

		2020-008347CUA		 811 Clay Street 				CONSENT		Hoagland

						Foot/Chair Massage to Massage on ground floor in CVR District

		2017-012086ENV		770 Woolsey Street						Delumo

						Review and comment on Draft EIR

		2019-012676DNXCUA		159 Fell Street						Updegrave

						Demolition, New Construction 7-story building with ground-floor retail and 20 residential units

		2019-013528CUA		36-38 Gough Street 						Samonsky

						demolition of a duplex and construction of a five story residential building

		2019-019901CUA		1068 Florida Street						Christensen

						legalize demo and rebuild of duplex		to Sept 23rd

		2019-020818AHB		5012 03rd St						Liang

						New construction of 29 units under HOME-SF

		2016-010671CUA		809 Sacramento Street						Foster

						CUA for height above 35 feet in Chinatown Mixed Use Districts

		2016-002728CUA-02		2525 Van Ness Ave						May

						increase residential parking ratio from 0.5 spaces to 0.75 spaces per unit

		2019-023466DRM		3150 18th St						Sucre

						ActivSpace 

		2016-013505DRP		35 Ventura Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				August 5, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner

				August 12, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner

				August 19, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner

				August 26, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

		2021-003142CUA		333 Fremont Street				CONSENT		Giacomucci

						Wireless CUA 

		2021-003994CUA		3995 Alemany Blvd				CONSENT		Balba

						Formula Retail use within the Neighborhood Commercial, Shopping Center Zoning District

		2021-005562PCA		Small Business Zoning Controls in Chinatown and North Beach and on Polk Street						Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

		2019-021884ENV		SFMTA: 2500 Mariposa Street 						McKeller

						Potrero Yard Muni Bus Maintenance Facility - DEIR

		2020-007481CUA		5367 Diamond Heights Blvd. (1900 Diamond St.) 						Pantoja

						PUD for the construction of 24 dwelling units in a total of 14 residential buildings

		2018-013451PRJ		2135 Market Street						Horn

						State Density Bonus new construction of 9-story, 36 unit mixed use building

		2019-011944OFA		660 3rd St						Westhoff

						Small cap office allocation to abate code enforcement case

		2020-009481CUA		4034 20th Street				fr: 5/27; 6/17		Horn

						Section 317 Residential Demolition

		2020-000788CUA		722 Wisconsin				Fr. 7/8		Feeney

						Sec 317 CUA to demo SFR and construct two unit building

		2020-010030CUADURVAR		1927 Washington Street						Ajello

						dwelling unit merger along with the relocation of a dwelling unit

		2018-015983CUAVAR		136 Delmar St.						Hoagland

						Demo SFR and construct 2-unit dwelling

		2021-000997DRP		801 Corbett Avenue						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2021-003059DRP		555 Buena Vista Avenue						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				September 2, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

		2021-001698CUA		340 Fell Street				CB3P		Hoagland

						Merger of three tenant spaces resulting in non-residential (automotive repair) use greater than 2,999 sf

		2021-006260PCA		State-Mandated Accessory Dwelling Unit Controls						Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

		2018-017026CWP		Environmental Justice Framework 						Chen

						Informational

		2020-009813CUA		18 Palm Ave						Agnihotri

						Interim Zoning Controls - Large Residential Projects  

		2019-023623ENXOFA		130 Townsend						Westhoff

						Large Project Application

		2016-013012CUA		478-484 Haight St				fr: 6/24		May

						non-residential use size greater than 4,000 square feet and for the removal of a dwelling unit

		2020-008959CUA		376 Hill Street						Horn

						317 demolition and new construction of a single-family home and ADU

		2019-013808CUAVAR		4300 17th Street						Horn

						New Construction is Corona Heights SUD

		2019-0015440CUA		472 Greenwich Street						Vimr

						provide one off street parking space, and horizontal and vertical additions to a two-unit building

		2020-006404CUA 		3757 21st Street						Speirs

						Demo SFR, new construction of a SFR with one ADU.

		2021-001579CUA 		2715 Judah Street						Campbell

						Cannabis Retail Sales

		2021-000308DRP		642 Alvarado Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				September 9, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

		2020-011473CUA		2075 Mission Street				CONSENT		Cisnernos

						Vintage Sign Authorization

		2021-005099CUA		4126 18th Street				CONSENT		Campbell

						CUA Liquor Store

		2021-006353PCA		ADU Housing Services						Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

		2018-013597ENV		Portsmouth Square Improvement						Calpin

						Draft EIR

		2020-005610ENXOFAVAR		490 Brannan St						Liang

						CSOMA key site office development

		2016-015987PCA		1750 Van Ness Avenue						May

						Buddhist Cultural Center from the 3:1 residential-to-non-residential ratio exemption

		2016-015987CUAVAR		1750 Van Ness Avenue						May

						institutional use in the RC-4 District, a use size greater than 6,000 square feet, a building greater than 50 feet

		2019-020031CUAVAR		2867 San Bruno Ave						Durandet

						legalize dwelling units, change from onsite BMR to fee

		2019-001627CUA 		459 Clipper Street						Horn

						Residential Demolition and New Construction of 2-Family Dwelling

		2021-001859CUA		3800 24th Street 						Horn

						CUA formulat retail fitness studio

		2020-006422CUA		1728 Larkin Street						Ajello  Hoagland

						CUA to demo existing garage and construct 6-story, 6-unit building

		2021-002667DRP-03		4763 19th Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				September 16, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner





				September 23, 2021

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

		2020-003971PCA		Dwelling Unit Density Exception for Corner Lots in RHD’s						Merlone

						Planning Code Amendment

				ConnectSF						Tran

						Informational

		2019-020611CUAVAR		5114-5116 3rd Street				fr: 6/17; 7/8		Weissglass

						illegal demolition of a legal dwelling unit

		2019-022661CUA		628 Shotwell Street				fr: 11/19; 1/21; 3/18; 4/22; 5/20; 7/8		Feeney

						Residential Care Facility to residential

		2015-012577CUA		1200 Van Ness Ave				fr: 7/22		Woods

						Demo & new construction of a 13-story building health services, retail, 107 dwelling units

		2020-007565CUA-02		1336 Chestnut St						May

						modification to the previously-approved project

		2020-005729CUA		4 Seacliff Ave						May

						demolish existing single-family and construct a new 3-story single family residence with an ADU

		2019-019901CUA		1068 Florida Street				fr: 7/29		Christensen

						legalize demo and rebuild of duplex

		2017-015648CUAVAR		952 Carolina Street						Christensen

						Partial demo / relocate existing single-family home and construct new three-story rear addition

		2021-000269DRP-02		3669 21st Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2021-000182DRP		140 20th Avenue						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				September 30, 2021

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

		2018-007380CUAVAR		1320 Washington Street						Perry

						6-story over basement residential building with 25 dwelling units 

		2021-001622CUA 		220 Post Street						Vimr

						retail to office use

		2021-000433CUA		2428 Clement St						Agnihotri

						Cannabis Retail

		2016-000302DRP		460 Vallejo Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2020-008611DRP		1433 Diamond Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				October 7, 2021

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

				Rail Alignment and Benefits (RAB) Study						Harvey

						Informational

				October 14, 2021

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner





				October 21, 2021

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner

		2019-013276ENX		560 Brannan Street						Liang

						Demo new construction of 120 units using SDB

				October 28, 2021

		Case No.		Chan - OUT						Planner





				November 4, 2021

		Case No.								Planner





				November 11, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner





				November 18, 2021

		Case No.								Planner

		2018-014727AHB		921 O'Farrell Street 						Hoagland

						AHB / HOME-SF 14-story (140 feet) tower with 50 dwelling units and ground-level retail

		2017-000663OFA-02		610-660 Brannan Street						Samonsky

						second office allocation for the San Francisco Flower Mart

				November 25, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner
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To:           Staff

From:       Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

Re:           Hearing Results

          

NEXT MOTION/RESOLUTION No: 20942

 

NEXT DISCRETIONARY REVIEW ACTION No: 758

                  

DRA = Discretionary Review Action; M = Motion; R = Resolution



    July 15, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-010710CUA

		400 California Street

		Enchill

		Continued to July 22, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2020-010508DRP

		3201 23rd Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20939

		2021-002259CUA

		1001 Minnesota Street

		Wu

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		DRA-756

		2020-000058DRM

		2780-2782 Diamond Street

		Pantoja

		No DR and Approved

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2021-004810CRV

		Commission Rules and Regulations

		Lynch

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to August 26, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2018-003614OTH

		Office Of Cannabis

		Christensen

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20940

		2021-004740PCA

		Grandfathered Medical Cannabis Dispensaries [Board File #210452]

		Christensen

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2017-011878PHA-04

		Block 7 of Potrero Power Station

		Giacomucci

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2020-001610CUA

		3832 18th Street

		Horn

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to Octobrer 14, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2020-001610SHD

		3832 18th Street

		Horn

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to Octobrer 14, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		M-20941

		2020-010109CUA

		35 Belgrave Avenue

		Gunther

		Approved with Conditions as amended for the ADU to be at least 600 sqft.

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		DRA-757

		2018-002508DRP-05

		4250 26th Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)







   July 8, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-013412VAR

		146 Jordan Avenue

		Winslow

		ZA Continued to July 28, 2021

		



		

		2019-017481APL

		530 Sansome Street

		Callagy

		Continued to July 29, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2020-000788CUA

		722 Wisconsin Street

		Feeney

		Continued to August 26, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2019-020611CUA

		5114-5116 3rd Street

		Sucre

		Continued to September 23, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2019-020611VAR

		5114-5116 3rd Street

		Sucre

		ZA Continued to September 23, 2021

		



		

		2019-022661CUA

		628 Shotwell Street

		Feeney

		Continued to September 23, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		M-20937

		2021-002352CUA

		3401 California Street

		Agnihotri

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		M-20938

		2021-000726CUA

		559 Clay Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		DRA-755

		2019-013412DRP

		146 Jordan Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+4 -0 (Diamond recused; Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 17, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 24, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		

		Residential Open Space Controls

		Sanchez

		Reviewed and Commented

		







  June 24, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2021-000726CUA

		559 Clay Street

		Hoagland

		Continued to July 8, 2021

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		

		2018-002508DRP-04

		4250 26th Street

		Winslow

		Continued to July 15, 2021

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		

		2019-017481SHD

		530 Sansome Street

		Foster

		Continued to July 29, 2021

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		

		2019-017481SHD

		530 Sansome Street

		Foster

		Continued to July 29, 2021

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		

		2019-017481DNX

		530 Sansome Street

		Foster

		Continued to July 29, 2021

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		

		2019-017481CUA

		530 Sansome Street

		Foster

		Continued to July 29, 2021

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		

		2019-017481OFA

		530 Sansome Street

		Foster

		Continued to July 29, 2021

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		

		2019-017481VAR

		530 Sansome Street

		Foster

		ZA Continued to July 29, 2021

		



		

		2016-013012CUA

		478-484 Haight Street

		May

		Continued to September 2, 2021

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		

		2021-004810CRV

		Commission Rules And Regulations

		

		Continued to July 15, 2021

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		

		2017-014833ENV

		469 Stevenson Street Project

		Delumo

		Continued to July 22, 2021

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		

		2017-014833ENV

		469 Stevenson Street

		Foster

		Continued to July 22, 2021

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		

		2017-014833DNX

		469 Stevenson Street

		Foster

		Continued to July 22, 2021

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		

		2017-014833CUA

		469 Stevenson Street

		Foster

		Continued to July 22, 2021

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 10, 2021 – Closed Session

		

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 10, 2021 – Regular

		

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		M-20935

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Grob

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Increase the number of larger group housing units, wherever feasible;

2. Provide balconies to maximum projection on all sides except O’Farrell Street;

3. Continue working with Staff to increase the number of bicycle parking spaces, up to 200;

4. Convert the ground-floor retail space to group housing units; and 

5. Work with Staff to analyze the feasibility of converting the basement to additional group housing units.

		+4 -2 (Imperial, Moore against; Chan absent)



		M-20936

		2020-001973CUA

		1737 Post Street, Suite 367

		Young

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Sponsor to meet/work with the Japantown Taskforce; and 

2. Update memo.

		+5 -1 (Moore against; Chan absent)







  June 17, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-017481APL

		530 Sansome Street

		Callagy

		Continued to July 8, 2021

		+3 -2 (Diamond, Fung against; Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2019-020611CUA

		5114-5116 3rd Street

		Weissglass

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



		

		2021-001791PCA

		Review Of Large Residence Developments

		Merlone

		Continued to July 22, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2015-009955CUA

		1525 Pine Street

		Asbagh

		Continued to July 22, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2020-009481CUA

		4034 20th Street

		Horn

		Continued to August 26, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2019-014071DRP

		2269 Francisco Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 3, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2021-000947PRJ

		555-585 Bryant Street

		Liang

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20934

		2019-023105AHB

		2800 Geary Boulevard

		Dito

		Approved the Geary Bl. driveway access variant, with no bulb-out, with Conditions as amended to include the Sponsor pursue appropriate traffic calming measures to mitigate any disruption to the Geary BRT and senior housing facility.

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)







   June 10, 2021 Closed Session Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Conference with Legal Counsel

		Ionin

		Adopted a Motion to to Assert the Attorney-Client Privilege

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		

		Closed Session discussion

		Ionin

		Adopted a Motion to to not disclose

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)







   June 10, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Grob

		Continued to June 24, 2021

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



		

		2020-011319DRP

		655 Powell Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2021-004810CRV

		Commission Rules and Regulations

		Ionin

		Continued to June 24, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 27, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		

		State Density Bonus Law

		Conner

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2020-009640OTH

		Centering Planning on Racial and Social Equity

		Flores

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20932

		2019-017761CUA

		4234 24th Street

		Hicks

		Approved with 

Conditions as modified, replacing the roof penthouse with a roof hatch.

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20933

		2020-007152CUA

		5801 Mission Street

		Balba

		After a Motion to Disapprove failed +2 -4 (Diamond, Imperial, Moore, Koppel against); Approved with Condtions

		+4 -2 (Tanner, Fung against; Chan absent)



		DRA-754

		2020-009332DRP

		311 Jersey Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)







  June 3, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-006578DRP

		2455 Harrison Street

		Westhoff

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 20, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20926

		2020-006112PCA

		Massage Establishment Zoning Controls [BF 210381]

		Flores

		Approved with Staff Modifications

		+7 -0



		

		2018-013637CWP

		Islais Creek Southeast Mobility and Adaptation Strategy

		Fisher/ Barata

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20927

		2021-000444CUA

		135 Post Street

		Guy

		Approved with Amendments read into the record by Staff

		+7 -0



		M-20928

		2021-000444OFA

		135 Post Street

		Guy

		Approved with Amendments read into the record by Staff

		+7 -0



		M-20929

		2020-011603CUA

		2424 Polk Street

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Applicant to apply for a passenger loading (white) zone;

2. Doors adjacent to the vaping lounge be alarmed; and

3. Windows adjacent to the vaping lounge be inoperative or remain closed during operation.

		+5 -2 (Fung, Moore against)



		M-20930

		2020-003223CUA

		249 Texas Street

		Westhoff

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		[bookmark: OLE_LINK1]M-20931

		2019-006578SHD

		2455 Harrison Street

		Westhoff

		Adopted Shadow Findings

		+7 -0







   May 27, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-009481CUA

		4034 20th Street

		Horn

		Continued to June 17, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2021-001698CUA

		340 Fell Street

		Hoagland

		Continued to September 2, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-008058DRP

		1950 Franklin Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		CPC Rules&Regs

		Ionin

		Continued to June 10, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20923

		2021-003760CUA

		4374 Mission Street

		Campbell

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 13, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		DRA-753

		2019-017985DRP-05

		25 Toledo Way

		Winslow

		No DR Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		M-20924

		2019-012888CUA

		3129-3141 Clement Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Outdoor seating to end at 8:00 pm and outdoor noise to end at 10 pm;

2. No outdoor TV’s; and

3. Sound from the Karaoke Bar to be fully contained within the establishment and no noise to bleed outside.

		+7 -0



		M-20925

		2021-000603CUA

		5 Leland Avenue

		Christensen

		Disapproved, citing:

1. Overconcentration and saturation in the immediate vicinity;

2. Limited number of storefronts; and 

3. CU criteria not being met.

		+4 -3 (Tanner, Diamond, Koppel against)







   May 20, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-022661CUA

		628 Shotweel Street

		Feeney

		Continued to July 8, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 6, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20922

		2020-007074CUA

		159 Laidley Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2020-007734DRP-03

		3441 Washington Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		DRA-750

		2019-019822DRP

		4079 Cesar Chavez

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		DRA-751

		2019-019373DRP

		217 Hugo Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		DRA-752

		2019-016244DRP

		239 Broad Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0







   May 13, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2021-000603CUA

		5 Leland Avenue

		Christensen

		Continued to May 27, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-003223CUA

		249 Texas Street

		Westhoff

		Continued to June 3, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-019373DRP

		217 Hugo Street

		Winslow

		Continued to May 20, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-007734DRP-03

		3441 Washington Street

		Winslow

		Continued to May 20, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20914

		2020-008474CUA

		3519 California Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20915

		2019-021247CUA

		1537 Mission Street

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 29, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		O Guttenburg Street

		Pantoja

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20916

		2021-002990PCA

		Temporary Closure of Liquor Stores in Polk Street Neighborhood Commercial District[BF 210287]

		Merlone

		Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		R-20917

		2021-003184PCAMAP

		2500-2530 18th Street Affordable Housing Special Use District [BF 210182]

		Flores

		Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		

		2019-021884CWPENV

		Potrero Yard Modernization Project

		Snyder

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20918

		2018-011249CUA-02

		1567 California Street

		Perry

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20919

		2020-003042AHB

		4712-4720 3rd Street

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20920

		2014.1058CUA

		6424 3rd Street/188 Key Avenue

		Jardines

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2014.1058VAR

		6424 3rd Street/188 Key Avenue

		Jardines

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20921

		2020-000886CUA

		575 Vermont Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include: 

1. A patio for the ADU at grade for the full width of the unit at least ten feet deep;

2. Sponsor continue working with Staff and adjacent neighbors on the north facing fenestration of the top two floors; and 

3. The modifications be submitted to the CPC in the form of an update memo. 

		+7 -0







   May 6, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-019373DRP

		217 Hugo Street

		Winslow

		Continued to May 13, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20908

		2021-000186CUA

		2675 Geary Boulevard

		May

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 22, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20909

		2015-009955ENV

		1525 Pine Street

		Li

		Upheld

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		

		2015-009955CUA

		1525 Pine Street

		Asbagh

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to June 17, 2021 with direction to explore a project that provides more light and air to the adjacent tenants.

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		M-20910

		2019-020740CUA

		468 Turk Street

		Asbagh

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include the minimum kitchen appliances as listed by the Project Sponsor.

		+7 -0



		M-20911

		2021-001979CUA

		141 Leland Avenue

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20912

		2021-002277CUA

		220 Dolores Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2021-002277VAR

		220 Dolores Street

		Horn

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20913

		2021-002736CUA

		129 Hyde Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2021-002736VAR

		129 Hyde Street

		Horn

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		DRA-749

		2013.0846DRP

		140-142 Jasper Place

		Winslow

		No DR, Approved with a Finding recognizing the rent-controlled status of the building.

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)







   April 29, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

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

		4079 Cesar Chavez Street

		Winslow

		Continued to May 20, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2016-012135CUA

		2214 Cayuga Avenue and 3101 Alemany Boulevard

		Pantoja

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0846DRP

		140-142 Jasper Place

		Winslow

		Continued to May 6, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-023105AHB

		2800 Geary Boulevard

		Dito

		Continued to June 17, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-011249CUA-02

		1567 California Street

		Perry

		Continued to May 13, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20899

		2021-000485CUA

		3910 24th Street

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-748

		2021-000389DRP

		366-368 Collingwood Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 15, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20900

		2016-016100ENV

		SFPUC Southern Skyline Boulevard Ridge Trail Extension Project

		Johnston

		Certified

		+7 -0



		M-20901

		2020-005255SHD_

2020-006576SHD	

		474 Bryant Street and 77 Stillman Street

		Liang

		Adopted Findings

		+7 -0



		M-20902

		2020-005255ENX

		474 Bryant Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20903

		2020-005255OFA

		474 Bryant Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20904

		2020-006576ENX

		77 Stillman Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20905

		2020-006576OFA

		77 Stillman Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20906

		2020-006045CUA

		292 Eureka Street

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2020-006045VAR

		292 Eureka Street

		Cisneros

		After hearing and closing public comment; ZA indicated an intent to Grant

		+7 -0



		M-20907

		2020-009424CUA

		231-235 Wilde Avenue

		Wu

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0







   April 22, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

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



		M-20894

		2018-007267OFA-02

		865 Market Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2018-004047CWP-02

		Housing Inventory Report, Housing Balance Report, and update on Monitoring Reports

		Littlefield

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2019-016230CWP

		Housing Element 2022 Update

		Haddadan

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2021-003010PRJ

		Transitioning The Shared Spaces To A Permanent City Program

		Abad

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20895

		2021-002933PCA

		Simplify Restrictions On Small Businesses [Board File No. 210285]

		Nickolopoulos

		Approved with Staff Modifications and eliminating the provision related to ADU’s in Chinatown.

		+4 -3 (Chan, Imperial, Moore against)



		

		2019-006114PRJ

		300 5th Street

		Christensen

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20896

		2013.0614ENX-02

		600 South Van Ness

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20897

		2020-010729CUA

		1215 29th Avenue

		Page

		Disapproved

		+7 -0



		M-20898

		2020-009148CUA

		353 Divisadero Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-746

		2020-006525DRP

		1990 Lombard Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+7 -0



		DRA-747

		2020-002333DRP

		2814 Clay Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+7 -0







   April 15, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-019822DRP

		4079 Cesar Chavez Street

		Winslow

		Continued to April 29, 2021

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



		M-20888

		2020-011809CUA

		300 West Portal Avenue

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20889

		2020-009545CUA

		2084 Chestnut Street

		Gunther

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 25, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 1, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Grob

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to June 10, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-020740CUA

		468 Turk Street

		Asbagh

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 6, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20890

		2020-007798CUA

		48 Stockton Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20891

		2020-007798OFA

		48 Stockton Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20892

		2019-023090CUA

		1428-1434 Irving Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include no use of rear yard open space for/by patients.

		+7 -0



		DRA-745

		2020-001578DRP-02

		17 Reed Street

		Winslow

		No DR, Approved as Modified

		+7 -0



		M-20893

		2020-008507CUA

		2119 Castro Street

		Balba

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0







   April 1, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-003223CUA

		249 Texas Street

		Westhoff

		Continued to April 15, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Grob

		Continued to April 15, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0614ENX-02

		600 South Van Ness

		Christensen

		Continued to April 22, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2016-000302DRP

		460 Vallejo Street

		Winslow

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		M-20881

		2020-006303CUA

		2201 Powell Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Diamond recused)



		M-20882

		2020-011265CUA

		1550 Wallace Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20883

		2018-013692CUA

		2285 Jerrold Avenue

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 18, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20884

		2021-000342CUA

		403 28th Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		M-20885

		2020-007565CUA

		1336 Chestnut Street

		May

		Approved with Conditions as amended such that the roof deck railing be pulled in three-feet and the privacy planters placed outbound of the railing.

		+7 -0



		M-20886

		2017-011827CUA

		26 Hamilton Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20887

		2019-017356CUA

		1861 Union Street

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-744

		2019-015785DRP

		2375 Funston Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR, Approved with Staff modifications and conditioned no roof deck and transom windows on the north side.

		+7 -0







   March 25, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-002333DRP

		2814 Clay Street

		Winslow

		Continued to April 22, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-006303CUA

		2201 Powell Street

		Weissglass

		Continued to April 1, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-020740CUA

		468 Turk Street

		Asbagh

		Continued to April 15, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-006578SHD

		2455 Harrison Street

		Westhoff

		Continued to June 3, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 11, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20877

		2021-001410CRV

		42 Otis Street

		Jardines

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-20878

		2018-001088CUA

		4211 26th Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20879

		2020-007383CUA

		666 Hamilton Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20880

		2020-006747CUA

		3109 Fillmore Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -1 (Fung against)



		DRA-742

		2020-010532DRP

		1801 Mission Street

		Sucre

		Took DR and Approved; adding conditions directing the Sponsor to conduct community outreach related to:

1. Multi-lingual menus;

2. Local hire employment opportunites (acknowledging previous employees will have first-right-of-refusal); and

3. Cultural art and other interior amenities.

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		DRA-743

		2020-001414DRP

		308 Duncan Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and denied the BPA.

		+5 -1 (Tanner against; Koppel absent)







   March 18, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

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

		4712 3rd Street

		Feeney

		Continued to April 22, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2015-009955ENV

		1525 Pine Street

		Li

		Continued to May 6, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2015-009955CUA

		1525 Pine Street

		Updegrave

		Continued to May 6, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20876

		2012.0506CUA-02

		950 Gough Street

		Gunther

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 4, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2021-000342CUA

		403 28th Street

		Hoagland

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to April 1, 2021 with direction to add a second unit.

		+7 -0



		DRA-741

		2019-017673DRP

		46 Racine Lane

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with the condition that the roof deck be pulled in five feet from all sides.

		+7 -0



		

		2018-001088CUA

		4211 26th Street

		Pantoja

		Continued to March 25, 2021

		+7 -0







   March 11, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Boudreaux

		Continued to April 1, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-014461CUA

		1324-1326 Powell Street

		Updegrave

		Continued Indefinitely 

		+7 -0



		M-20870

		2020-005471CUA

		3741 Buchanan Street

		Botn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-738

		2019-000969DRP-02

		4822 19th Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with modifications

		+7 -0



		

		2019-000969VAR

		4822 19th Street

		Pantoja

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 25, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20871

		2021-001805CRV

		Amendments to the TDM Program Standards

		Perry

		Adopted 

		+7 -0



		M-20872

		2018-016721CUA

		0 Guttenberg Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include a memo with detailed plans related to landscaping, increased permeability and lighting be submitted to the CPC within two weeks.

		+7 -0



		

		2018-016721VAR

		0 Guttenberg Street

		Pantoja

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant.

		



		M-20873

		2020-008651CUA

		801 38th Avenue

		Gunther

		Approved with Conditions as proposed, with no requirement for a second dwelling unit.

		+4 -3 (Chan, Imperial, Moore against)



		M-20874

		2020-005251CUA

		1271 46th Avenue

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		R-20875

		2017-013728CRV

		1021 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Adopted as amended to include the finding related to open space as read into the record by Staff.

		+7 -0



		DRA-739

		2017-013728DRP-02

		1021 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Took DR and Approved with modifications and a condition that the roof-deck be increased to 750 sq ft and appropriate window materials as read into the record by Staff.

		+7 -0



		DRA-740

		2020-002743DRP-02

		1555 Oak Street

		Winslow

		No DR, adding a finding to recommend SFMTA extend the red zone for improved visibility.

		+7 -0







   March 4, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-003042AHB

		4712 3rd Street

		Feeney

		Continued to March 18, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-006525DRP

		1990 Lombard Street

		Winslow

		Continued to April 22, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0846DRP

		140-142 Jasper Place

		Winslow

		Continued to April 29, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0511DNX

		1125 Market Street

		Alexander

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0511CUA

		1125 Market Street

		Alexander

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		M-20866

		2020-010157CUA

		1100 Van Ness Avenue

		Agnihotri

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 18, 2021 – Closed Session

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 18, 2021 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2009.3461CWP

		Area Plan Implementation Update and Inter-Department Plan Implementation Committee (IPIC) Report

		Snyder

		Reviewed and Commented

		+7 -0



		R-20867

		2021-000317CRV

		TMASF Connects

		Kran

		Adopted a Resolution Authorizing brokerage services

		+7 -0



		M-20868

		2019-012820AHB

		4742 Mission Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include a design presentation to the CPC related to open space, roof deck, railings and perimeter wall treatment.

		+7 -0



		

		2020-003223CUA

		249 Texas Street

		Westhoff

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to April 1, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20869

		2017-015988CUA

		501 Crescent Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+7 -0





 

  February 25, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.0614ENX-02

		600 South Van Ness

		Christensen

		Continued to April 1, 2021

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		

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

		Kirby

		Continued to March 25, 2021

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		

		2007.0604X

		1145 Mission Street

		Hoagland

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		

		2018-006863DRP

		1263-1265 Clay Street

		Winslow

		WITHDRAWN

		



		M-20859

		2020-008305CUA

		2853 Mission Street

		Wu

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		M-20860

		2018-012222CUA

		1385 Carroll Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		R-20861

		2020-006803PCA

		Code Corrections 2020

		Sanchez

		Approved

		+5 -1 (Imperial against; Tanner absent)



		R-20862

		2021-000541PCA

		CEQA Appeals [BF 201284]

		Flores

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		M-20863

		2016-008515CUA

		1049 Market Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20864

		2018-016808SHD

		321 Florida Street

		Christensen

		Adopted Findings

		+6 -1 (Moore against)



		M-20865

		2018-016808ENX

		321 Florida Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Incorporating changes provided by the Sponsor;

2. Pursue additional roof-top open space;

3. Explore two-bdrm units on the ground floor; and

4. Return to the CPC for final design review; 

Adding a Finding, recognizing the desire for outdoor open space, encouraging the Sponsor to pursue providing private usable outdoor open space.

		+7 -0





 

   February 18, 2021 Closed Session Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Conference with Legal Counsel

		Ionin

		Adopted a Motion to assert Attorney-Client privilege

		+7 -0



		

		

		Closed Session discussion

		Ionin

		Announced no action and Adopted a Motion to not disclose.

		+7 -0





 

   February 18, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.0846DRP

		140-142 Jasper Place

		Winslow

		Continued to March 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-016808SHD

		321 Florida Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 25, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-016808ENX

		321 Florida Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 25, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-012567DRP

		36 Delano Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 28, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 4, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20854

		2020-011581PCA

		Chinatown Mixed-Used Districts [BF 201326]

		Flores

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-20855

		2019-020938CUA

		1 Montgomery Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions as Amended by Staff; and the Commission to include a provision for a commercial/retail use under the Public Access condition.

		+6 -1 (Moore against)



		

		2021-001452PCA

		Expanded Compliance Control and Consumer Protections Where History of Significant Violations (BF 210015)

		Starr

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20856

		2018-011430CUA

		1776 Green Street

		May

		Approved with Conditinos as amended to include a min. of 15 bicycle parking spaces, of which 10 may be vertical.

		+7 -0



		

		2018-011430VAR

		1776 Green Street

		May

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant.

		



		M-20857

		2020-008388CUA

		235 Clement Street

		Agnihotri

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20858

		2018-014795ENX

		1560 Folsom Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions; adding a Finding, recognizing the desire for outdoor open space, encouraging the Sponsor to pursue providing private usable outdoor open space.

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013728CRV

		1021 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Continued to March 11, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013728DRP-02

		1021 Valencia Street

		Winslow

		Continued to March 11, 2021

		+7 -0



		DRA-737

		2019-021383DRP-02

		1615-1617 Mason Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+7 -0





 

   February 4, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-003223CUA

		249 Texas Street

		Westhoff

		Continued to March 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-021010CUA

		717 California Street

		Foster

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Boudreaux

		Continued to March 11, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-014795ENX

		1560 Folsom Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 18, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20850

		2020-007346CUA

		2284-2286 Union Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 21, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20851

		2020-010430CRV

		FY 2021-2023 Proposed Department Budget

		Landis

		

Approved

		+7 -0



		

		2017-015181CUA

		412 Broadway

		Perry

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		DRA-735

		2020-001229DRP

		73 Fountain Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		M-20852

		2020-001286CUA

		576 27th Avenue

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+7 -0



		M-20853

		2019-020049CUA

		1131 Polk Street

		Guy

		Approved with Conditions as amended, omitting references to “locally owned businesses.”

		+7 -0



		DRA-736

		2018-011022DRP

		2651-2653 Octavia Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore Against)





 

   January 28, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-009054PCA

		Temporary Use of HotelS and Motels for Permanent Supportive Housing [BF 201218]

		Flores

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2020-010373DRP

		330 Rutledge Street

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



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 14, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20841

		2016-013312DVA

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-20842

		2016-013312PCAMAP

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-20843

		2016-013312DNX-02

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20844

		2016-013312CUA-02

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20845

		2016-013312OFA-02

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20846

		2015-009163CUA

		77 Geary Street

		Guy

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -1 (Imperial Against)



		M-20847

		2020-006234CUA

		653-656 Fell Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20848

		2020-007075CUA

		2166 Market Street

		Campbell

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20849

		2019-015984CUA

		590 2nd Avenue

		Lindsay

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-734

		2018-017283DRP

		476 Lombard Street

		Winslow

		No DR 

		+4 -3 (Tanner, Imperial, Moore Against)





 

   January 21, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-002743DRP

		1555 Oak Street

		Winslow

		Continued to March 11, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-010342DRP

		3543 Pierce Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2019-021369DRP

		468 Jersey Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Boudreaux

		Continued to February 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-022661CUA

		628 Shotwell Street

		Feeney

		Continued to March 18, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-014795ENX

		1560 Folsom Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		DRA-733

		2014.0243DRP-02

		3927-3929 19th Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved as Modified

		+7 -0



		M-20835

		2020-010132CUA

		150 7th Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes For January 7, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Election Of Officers

		Ionin

		Koppel – President;

Moore – Vice

		+7 -0



		

		2020-010430CRV

		FY 2021-2023 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20836

		2020-006803PCA

		Code Corrections 2020

		Sanchez

		Initiated and Scheduled a hearing on or after February 11, 2021.

		+7 -0



		M-20837

		2016-008743CUA

		446-448 Ralston Avenue

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions as Amended by Staff

		+7 -0



		

		2016-008743VAR

		446-448 Ralston Avenue

		Hicks

		ZA Closed the PH and took the matter under advisement

		



		M-20838

		2018-015786CUA

		2750 Geary Boulevard

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions as Amended to include a community liaison thru construction and operation of the facility.

		+7 -0



		M-20839

		2019-018013CUA

		2027 20th Avenue

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20840

		2020-006575CUA

		560 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as Amended to include a one-year report-back update hearing with specific attention to the CBA agreement.

		+7 -0







  January 14, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-012567DRP

		36 Delano Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued to January 28, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-020049CUA

		1131 Polk Street

		Guy

		Continued to February 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013728CRV

		1021 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 18, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013728DRP

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



		M-20829

		2020-009361CUA

		801 Phelps Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2020-008417CWP

		Housing Recovery

		Nelson

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20830

		2017-004557ENV

		550 O’Farrell Street

		Mckellar

		Certified

		+7 -0



		M-20831

		2017-004557ENV

		550 O’Farrell Street

		Updegrave

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20832

		2017-004557CUA

		550 O’Farrell Street

		Updegrave

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2017-004557VAR

		550 O’Farrell Street

		Updegrave

		ZA Closed the PH and Granted the requested Variances

		



		M-20833

		2018-015815AHB

		1055 Texas Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20834

		2019-006959CUA

		656 Andover Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-732

		2017-011977DRP-02

		3145-3147 Jackson Street

		Winslow

		No DR 

		+6 -1 (Moore Against)







   January 7, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-017283DRP

		476 Lombard Street

		Winslow

		Continued to January 14, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2017-011977DRP-02

		3145-3147 Jackson Street

		Winslow

		Continued to January 14, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Boudreaux

		Continued to January 21, 2021

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



		M-20826

		2020-005945CUA

		2265 McKinnon Avenue

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 10, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 17, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2020-002347CWP

		UCSF Parnassus MOU

		Switzky

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20827

		2020-007461CUA

		1057 Howard Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20828

		2020-007488CUA

		1095 Columbus Avenue

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
Subject: FW: In support of 35 Belgrave Ave
Date: Friday, July 16, 2021 8:49:50 AM

 
 
 
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
 

From: Abdur Chowdhury <abdur@chowdhurys.org> 
Sent: Thursday, July 15, 2021 6:14 PM
To: Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC)
<sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC)
<theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC)
<kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>;
Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; Gunther, Gretel (CPC)
<gretel.gunther@sfgov.org>
Subject: In support of 35 Belgrave Ave
 

 

We are the owners of 25 Belgrave and direct neighbors of the 35 Belgrave project. We are writing to
you to voice our support for this project. We are excited to see the final house. 
 
We understand that a vocal neighbor is not in support of this. I would like to point out that they have
tried to block every project on our block and have bullied those owners for their own benefits. 
 
Thank you for helping our neighbors get their project to the next phase. 
 
--
Ana & Abdur Chowdhury
25 Belgrave Ave
 
 
2020-010109CUA: 35 Belgrave Avenue – south side between Shrader Street and Twin Peaks

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


Boulevard; Lot 071 in Assessor's Block 2688 (District 5) - Request for a Conditional Use Authorization
pursuant to Planning Code Sections 209.1, 303, and 317, to permit the demolition of an existing two-
story over basement single family home and construct a new, approximately 6,280 square foot,
three-story over basement single family home with a new accessory dwelling unit within an RH-1(D)
(Residential- House, One-Family Detached) Zoning District and a 40-X Height and Bulk District. A
Planning Commission approval at the public hearing would constitute the Approval Action for the
project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).
For further information, call Gretel Gunther at (628) 652-7607 or email at gretel.gunther@sfgov.org
and ask about Case No. 2020-010109CUA.

mailto:gretel.gunther@sfgov.org


 
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
Date: Friday, July 16, 2021 8:37:44 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Conrad Shock <info@email.actionnetwork.org>
Reply-To: "shockconrad@gmail.com" <shockconrad@gmail.com>
Date: Thursday, July 15, 2021 at 11:24 PM
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

Conrad Shock 
shockconrad@gmail.com

San Francisco, California 94110

 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** CITY OFFICIALS ENCOURAGE RESIDENTS TO GET VACCINATED TO COMBAT

COVID-19 VARIANTS
Date: Thursday, July 15, 2021 11:48:06 AM
Attachments: 07.15.2021 Southeast Health Center.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Thursday, July 15, 2021 at 11:39 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** CITY OFFICIALS ENCOURAGE RESIDENTS TO GET VACCINATED
TO COMBAT COVID-19 VARIANTS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, July 15, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
CITY OFFICIALS ENCOURAGE RESIDENTS TO GET

VACCINATED TO COMBAT COVID-19 VARIANTS
San Francisco, along with all Bay Area counties, is seeing trend of rising COVID-19

cases due to delta variant
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, Board of Supervisors President Shamann
Walton, and the Department of Public Health (DPH) today encouraged residents to get
vaccinated as the delta variant of COVID-19 is now the dominant strain in the United States
and California. This variant spreads more easily than the original virus and poses new risks to
communities in San Francisco. Vaccines continue to be highly effective at preventing
severe illness and death. Over the last three weeks, all Bay Area counties have seen at least a
doubling of new COVID-19 cases, causing concern that unvaccinated people are more at risk
than ever.  
 
“Vaccinating as many people as possible, as soon as possible, is our best defense against
COVID-19, the delta variant, and the harm it can do to our communities,” said Mayor Breed.
“In particular, the Black community has the lowest vaccination rate compared to the citywide
rate, which means more people who are already struggling with significant disparities in this
City might get sick. While we beat back three surges in San Francisco, the delta variant brings
new challenges that will continue to increase the disparities we see in communities of color.
We need everyone to do their part to get vaccinated and encourage their friends and family to

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


CITY OFFICIALS ENCOURAGE RESIDENTS TO GET 


VACCINATED TO COMBAT COVID-19 VARIANTS 
San Francisco, along with all Bay Area counties, is seeing trend of rising COVID-19 cases due 


to delta variant 


 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, Board of Supervisors President Shamann 


Walton, and the Department of Public Health (DPH) today encouraged residents to get 


vaccinated as the delta variant of COVID-19 is now the dominant strain in the United States and 


California. This variant spreads more easily than the original virus and poses new risks to 


communities in San Francisco. Vaccines continue to be highly effective at preventing 


severe illness and death. Over the last three weeks, all Bay Area counties have seen at least a 


doubling of new COVID-19 cases, causing concern that unvaccinated people are more at risk 


than ever.   


 


“Vaccinating as many people as possible, as soon as possible, is our best defense against 


COVID-19, the delta variant, and the harm it can do to our communities,” said Mayor Breed. “In 


particular, the Black community has the lowest vaccination rate compared to the citywide rate, 


which means more people who are already struggling with significant disparities in this City 


might get sick. While we beat back three surges in San Francisco, the delta variant brings new 


challenges that will continue to increase the disparities we see in communities of color. We need 


everyone to do their part to get vaccinated and encourage their friends and family to do the 


same.”     


 


San Francisco’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in low case rates and 


hospitalizations, and relatively high vaccination rates, with 83% of the eligible population with at 


least one dose and 76% of the eligible population fully vaccinated as of July 13. Over the week 


ending July 7, for which there is full data, average daily new cases have increased four-fold to 42 


new cases/day from a low of 9.9 cases/day on June 19.  Forward looking data through July 


12 indicates that new cases will increase to at least 73 cases/day, a seven-fold increase since June 


19.  


 


“As we have seen since the beginning of the pandemic, COVID-19 infections are not distributed 


evenly throughout all neighborhoods and communities in San Francisco,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, 


Director of Public Health. “Our focus and work to achieve vaccine equity and access continues 


in partnership with the communities that are most impacted. Get vaccinated – hospitalizations 


and deaths due to COVID-19 are preventable through vaccines.”   
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Those who are not yet vaccinated should continue to follow the health precautions that work to 


help curtail the spread of COVID-19 and to prevent new variants from emerging: wear a mask 


that covers your nose and mouth when you have to go outside, stay at least 6 feet away from 


others, when able choose outdoor settings versus indoor, and wash your hands frequently after 


touching your face or touching shared objects. People who develop or show any symptoms 


should get tested, even if they are fully vaccinated.   


 


“Bayview Hunters Point is still one of the hardest hit areas with COVID-19 infections, 


particularly in the African American community. With the new delta variant that is more 


transmissible, it is critical that our community gets vaccinated as soon as possible,” 


said Shamann Walton, President of the Board of Supervisors.  


 


San Francisco continues to make vaccines accessible to all residents through sites located in 


neighborhoods and through mobile vaccine efforts.  In the Bayview, the Southeast Health 


Center (2401 Keith Street) is offering vaccines – no appointment needed – Mondays, Tuesdays, 


Wednesdays, and Fridays from 9:00am to 7:00pm, and Saturdays from 9:00am to 


4:00pm. Vaccines are also available at 1800 Oakdale, with drop-ins available on Fridays and 


Saturday from 9:30am to 3:00pm. For more information on COVID-19 vaccines, 


visit sf.gov/getvaccinated. 


 


### 


 


 



http://www.sf.gov/getvaccinated





do the same.”    
 
San Francisco’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in low case rates and
hospitalizations, and relatively high vaccination rates, with 83% of the eligible population with
at least one dose and 76% of the eligible population fully vaccinated as of July
13. Over the week ending July 7, for which there is full data, average daily new cases have
increased four-fold to 42 new cases/day from a low of 9.9 cases/day on June 19.  Forward
looking data through July 12 indicates that new cases will increase to at least 73 cases/day, a
seven-fold increase since June 19. 
 
“As we have seen since the beginning of the pandemic, COVID-19 infections are not
distributed evenly throughout all neighborhoods and communities in San Francisco,” said Dr.
Grant Colfax, Director of Public Health. “Our focus and work to achieve vaccine equity and
access continues in partnership with the communities that are most impacted. Get vaccinated –
hospitalizations and deaths due to COVID-19 are preventable through vaccines.”  
 
Those who are not yet vaccinated should continue to follow the health precautions that work
to help curtail the spread of COVID-19 and to prevent new variants from emerging: wear
a mask that covers your nose and mouth when you have to go outside, stay at least 6 feet away
from others, when able choose outdoor settings versus indoor, and wash your hands frequently
after touching your face or touching shared objects. People who develop or show any
symptoms should get tested, even if they are fully vaccinated.  
 
“Bayview Hunters Point is still one of the hardest hit areas with COVID-19 infections,
particularly in the African American community. With the new delta variant that is more
transmissible, it is critical that our community gets vaccinated as soon as possible,”
said Shamann Walton, President of the Board of Supervisors. 
 
San Francisco continues to make vaccines accessible to all residents through sites located in
neighborhoods and through mobile vaccine efforts.  In the Bayview, the Southeast Health
Center (2401 Keith Street) is offering vaccines – no appointment needed – Mondays,
Tuesdays, Wednesdays, and Fridays from 9:00am to 7:00pm, and Saturdays from 9:00am to
4:00pm. Vaccines are also available at 1800 Oakdale, with drop-ins available on Fridays and
Saturday from 9:30am to 3:00pm. For more information on COVID-19 vaccines,
visit sf.gov/getvaccinated.

 
###
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